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Fund Balance Report

Christian County, MO As Of 06/21/2021

Fund Beginning Balance Total Revenues Total Expenses Ending Balance
260 - P.A. Training 7,290.57 3,379.29 342.58 10,327.28
ReportTotal: 7,29057 337929 34258 10,327.28

6/21/2021 8:25:41 AM . : mmPage 10f1



Amy Dent_

i N o
From: Arny Fite <Amy.Fite@prosecutors.mo.gov>
Sent: Thursday, June 17, 2021 10:53 AM
To: Amy Dent
Subject: change venue case

56.765. Funding — surcharge to be collected in criminal and infraction cases,
exceptions — registration fees — funds created — audit — use of fund. — 1. A
surcharge of five dollars shall be assessed as costs in each court proceeding filed in any
court in the state in all criminal cases including violations of any county ordinance or
any violation of a criminal or traffic law of the state, including an infraction; except
that no such surcharge shall be collected in any proceeding in any court when the
proceeding or the defendant has been dismissed by the court or when costs are to be
paid by the state, county or municipality.

2. One-half of all moneys collected under the provisions of subsection 1 of this
section shall be payable to the state of Missouri and remitted to the director of revenue
who shall deposit the amount collected pursuant to this section to the credit of the
"Missouri Office of Prosecution Services Fund" which is hereby created in the state
treasury. The moneys credited to the Missouri office of prosecution services fund from
each county shall be used only for the purposes set forth in sections 56.750, 56.755,
and 56.760. The state treasurer shall be the custodian of the fund, and shall make
disbursements, as allowed by lawful appropriations. All earnings resulting from the
investment of money in the fund shall be credited to the Missouri office of prosecution
services fund. The Missouri office of prosecution services may collect a registration fee
to pay for expenses included in sponsoring training conferences. The revenues and
expenditures of the Missouri office of prosecution services shall be subject to an annual
audit to be performed by the Missouri state auditor. The Missouri office of
prosecution services shall also be subject to any other audit authorized and directed by
the state auditor.

3. One-half of all moneys collected under the provisions of subsection 1 of this
section shall be payable to the county treasurer of each county from which such funds
were generated. The county treasurer shall deposit all of such funds into the county
treasury in a separate fund to be used solely for the purpose of additional training for
circuit and prosecuting attorneys and their staffs. If the funds collected and deposited
by the county are not totally expended annually for the purposes set forth in this
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subsection, then the unexpended moneys shall remain in said fund and the balance
shall be kept in said fund to accumulate from year to year, or at the request of the
circuit or prosecuting attorney, with the approval of the county commission or the
appropriate governing body of the_'c()ﬁﬁﬁzﬁc;iﬁénéit};iaf St. Louis, and may be used to
pay for expert witness fees, travel expenses incurred by victim/witnesses in case
preparation and trial, for expenses incurred for changes of venue, for expenses
incurred for special prosecutors, and for other lawful expenses incurred by the circuit

or prosecuting attorney in operation of that office.

4. There is hereby established in the state treasury the "Missouri Office of
Prosecution Services Revolving Fund". Any moneys received by or on behalf of the
Missouri office of prosecution services from registration fees, federal and state grants
or any other source established in section 56.760 in connection with the purposes set
forth in sections 56.750, 56.755, and 56.760 shall be deposited into the fund.

5. The moneys in the Missouri office of prosecution services revolving fund shall be
kept separate and apart from all other moneys in the state treasury. The state treasurer
shall administer the fund and shall disburse moneys from the fund to the Missouri
office of prosecution services pursuant to appropriations for the purposes set forth in
sections 56.750, 56.755 and 56.760.

6. Any unexpended balances remaining in the Missouri office of prosecution
services fund and the Missouri office of prosecution services revolving fund at each
biennium shall be exempt from the provisions of section 33.080 relating to the transfer
of unexpended balances to general revenue.

(L. 1981 5.B. 32 § 4, A.L. 1996 5.B. 869, A.L. 1997 5.B. 248, A.1.. 1999 5.B, 275, A.L. 2001
S.B. 267, A.L. 2019 H.B. 547)

Amy J. Fite

Prosecuting Attorney

Christian County, Missouri

102 W. Walnut Street, First Floor
Ozark MO 65721

Phone: 417.581.7915

Fax: 417.581.7918

Email: Amy.Fite@prosecutors.mo.gov




REQUESTED 2021 Q2
ENTITY PROJECT REQUEST NOTES TOTAég:_? HECE PROJECT COST APPROVED 2021 DI SrRlE?Ifﬂ ON % DISTRIBUTION Dl;?;;:b"rﬁED
PARTICIPATION TOTAL
SOUTH SPARTA SPECIAL SEAL & CRACK FILL SEAL 8 CRACK FILL 2-4 MILES OF ROADWAY $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $5,000.00 5% 50%
BILLINGS SPECIAL HMA QVERLAY LENAPE RD & N METZELTIEN RD HOT MTX ASPHALT OVERLAY $140,000.00 $100,000.00 $100,000.00 $25,000.00 85% 50%
HEMLOCK & N WILLOW RD, WIDENING 1.1 MILES TO MEET 22' W/ ' BASE
QZARK SPECIAL AREA IMPROVEMENTS SHOULDER, 2" HMA OVERLAY, REPLACE 2 CULVERTS ON WILLOW, EXTEND 1 $350,000.00 $350,000.00 $100,000.00 $25,000.00 5% 50%
: CULVERT ON HEMLOCK
CULVERT REPLACEMENT & ARMOR SHIRE CIRCLE, 3 LOCATIONS, UPGRADE CULVERT SIZE, INSTALL HEADWALLS, :
IR X X . A :
STONESHIRE SPECIAL DITCHES ARMOR OUTFALL, PATCH ROADWAY 519,275.00 $19,275.00 $15,275.00 $4,818.75 H 25% 50%
. 4.7 MILES OF CHIP & SEAL, GOLDENROD, TENNESSEE, COLLINS, AUTUMN SAGE,
SELMORE SPECIAL CHIP & SEAL MICHIGAN, ROLLING HILLS, UTAK, EMPIRE AVE, W1 NDR[_VER, GREEN GAKS $77,644.00 £$69,897.60 $69,897.60 51747540 5% 50%
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 235 - MUNICIPAL COST SHARE $100,000.00 $100,000.00 $1C0,000,00 525,000.00 25% 50%
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 235 - PROJECT EXPENDITURES $400,000.00 $400,000.00 $400,000.00 $100,000.00 =% 50%
$1,106,919.00  51,055,172.60  5$789,172.60  $202,293.15 ,
AMOUNT AVAILABLE FROM 221 $399,540.68




- County of Christian
o Bid: County Depository Bank Services
: June 21, 2021







June 21, 2021

Christian County Commission
100 W. Church Street Room 100
Ozark, MO 65721

RE: Invitation to Bid: County Depository Bank Services

Dear Christian County Commission Office:

Thank you for this opportunity to provide a proposal for banking services to County of Christian which
meets the requested contract terms beginning July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2023 with an option to extend

for an additional two (2) years heginning June 30, 2023 to June 30, 2025.

As a locally owned bank, The Bank of Missouri prides itself on delivering exemplary service that many of
our customers have come to appreciate and expect. We value this opportunity, and if selected, we will

make every effort to continue providing this same type of service to Christian County.

If you have any questions or would like further details on any of the information provided, please feel free
to contact me.

Commuﬁity Bank President
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Executive Summary

About The Bank of Missouri

The Bank of Missouri is an independent, community bank founded in 1891. With 500 employees, 37
branches in 25 cities across Missouri and $2.6 billion in assets, we are committed to the communities we
serve. Our leadership team is comprised of established bankers with backgrounds from local community
banks, as well as large institutional banks. This gives the bank a strong foundation of core community
values and service, along with the vision and technology offered through nationwide providers.

Each of our markets are under local management, with its own directors and management team. Our
staff consists of neighbors and friends committed to their customers and involved in the communities
where they live and work. We've got your back, so you can focus on where you're headed. That's what
we mean when we say The Bank of Missouri is your partner to "Live Well. Bank Well."

Your Banking Team

The Bank of Missouri has several convenient locations prepared to service the needs of Christian County.
We offer a dedicated relationship team that includes:

Sandy Mincks, AVP/Branch Operations Officer/Retail Services Supervisor
Jana Bobbett, VP/Regional Treasury Solutions Officer

Devin Bobbett, VP/Sr. Commercial Loan Officer

David Cook, Community Bank President

In addition to the relationship team, we also have a dedicated Treasury Support Service group available
Monday through Friday from 8am to 5pm (excluding Federal & Bank Holidays).

The Bank of Missouri has 4 convenient locations in the Springfield market prepared to service the needs of
Christian County.

West South Branch East EIm Branch

1301 W South St 520 E Eim St

Ozark, MO 65721 Republic, MO 65738

Lobby: 9:00-4:30 Lobby: 9:00-4:30

Drive-Up: 8:00-5:00 (Fri-5:30) Drive-Up: 8:00-5:00 (Fri-5:30)
Saturday: 8:00-Noon (Drive Up Only) Saturday; 8:00-Noon (Drive Up Only)
East Sunshine Branch South Campbell Branch

2360 E Sunshine St 3807 S Campbell Ave
Springfield, MO 65804 Springfield, MO 65807

Lobby: 9:00-4:30 Lobby: 9:00-4:30

Drive-Up: 8:00-5:00 (Fri-5:30) Drive-Up: 8:00-5:00 (Fri-5:30)
Saturday: Closed Saturday: 8:00-Noon (Drive Up Only)

DIC. .;Bankofmlssoun com_‘_ﬁ
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Community Giving

We're a community bank. Therefore, we are active in our communities we serve. In fact, The Bank of
Missouri is a leader in the communities we serve.

Here's how we look at it. Our bank has been fortunate to achieve many successes and receive many
community awards over the years, and we know our communities are what make that possible. So, we
believe in giving back and showing our appreciation.

As a community bank that's been around since 1891, we recognize the connection between community
involvement and the role we play in the neighborhoods where we do business.

Core Values

The Bank of Missouri exists to serve the financial needs of its clients. Client's needs must be the first
consideration in everything we do.

The Bank of Missouri is a leader in the communities we serve and community needs are taken seriously.

The Bank of Missouri will never intentionally do anything that goes against the best interest of the
communities we serve.

The Bank of Missouri is a for-profit business that is committed to achieving profits by providing quality
services to our clients and providing continuous value to our shareholders.
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EXHIBIT A

BANKING SPECIFICATIONS

A. Complete the attached PROPOSED COST SCHEDULE (Exhibit 1).

Agreed.

B. Detail costs, procedures and deadiines associated with ACH payroll processing. Give
computed ACH cost for one bi-weekly payroll with approximately 250 potential
participants. Detail deadlines for Friday morning account crediting.

The Bank of Missouri offers Initiated ACH Debit and Credit transactions (ACH Origination). ACH transactions
initiated by the County {(except for Same Day ACH) must provide for a one business day lead prior to the

effective due date. Transactions received after the cut-off time of 4:00 pm CST will be processed the following
business day.

Same Day ACH is available for debit or credit entries less than $100,000. The cutoff time for Same Day ACH is
2:00 pm CST.

The County may initiate reversing entries or files of entries within five (5) banking days of the original file(s) and
within twenty-four (24) hours of discovery of the error. Dual Control {separation of duties) is available for ACH
Origination Debit and Credit Transactions. Email notification of ACH returns is available within online banking
platform. Treasury Solutions Client Support is available Monday through Friday during normal business hours.

ACH Cost for bi-weekly payroll would be $25.00 per month and $0.10 per participant.

The Bank of Missouri will provide ACH Payroll Processing to Christian County at no cost.

C. Please state proposal for interest calculation as outlined in SECTION 2 of Conditions. Interest
rate paid on the accounts that are used to purchase United States Government (or agency
of the United States Government) security repurchase agreements shall be stated as a
specified number of basis points above or below the most recent ovemnight Federal Funds
Rate as published in Section C, Markets Diary in the Wall Street Journal. Please consider
including a Guaranteed Floor Rate of Interest in your bid. This will be given consideration in
determining our depository institution.

The Public Funds Interest Checking is recommended for the following 16 accounts: 9 for Treasurer, 4 for

Collector, 2 for County Clerk and 1 for Recorder of Deeds. The Bank of Missouri will provide a fixed rate of
interest at 0.24%.

The Public Funds High Performance Savings Account is recommended for the two savings accounts for the
County Collector. The Bank of Missouri will provide a fixed rate of interest at 0.24%.

| THE
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D. Please Submit the proposal for compliance with collateralization requirements specified.

The Bank of Missouri will secure (collateralize) your deposits at all times by maintaining the market value of
securities (Agencies, Municipals) in the amount equal to at least 100% of the amount on deposit with the Bank,
less the amount, if any, which is an insured deposit pursuant to the most current Federal Deposit Insurance Act.
The safe keeping agent is Midwest Independent Bank (MIB).

The Bank can provide a monthly summary of deposits and matching securities for your records.

E. ON-LINE ELECTRONIC BANKING SERVICES
a. The depository's ability to provide interactive access through the internet that allows
account balance inquiry, account transfers, ACH processing, stop payments, wire
transfers, and direct deposit of payroll checks to various banking institutions. Include
setup charges, on-line charges, and monthly charges, per transaction costs that are in
addition to, or in lieu of traditional costs quoted in Part 1 of this proposal.

The Bank of Missouri Treasury Solutions online banking platform offers a single, secure and efficient way to
provide the County with the access needed to manage day to day banking activities including the following:

¢ Allows multiple users to access one Online Banking service

¢ Ability to manage access rights of each user; includes dual control for separation of duties

e  Virtual or physical security tokens

¢ Unlimited ACH Credit and Debit Origination for payroll direct deposit, tax payments, and other
payments

¢ Initiate outgoing wire transfers (includes repetitive)

e  Ability to issue stop payment

¢ Transfer money between accounts

o Electronic statements provide early access/reconciliation and stores up to 18 months of bank
statements with check images with the ability to export bank statements

¢ Bill Pay (check or electronic) capabilities

¢ |P Restriction (controlled login access)

e Custom Reporting Available including, but not limited to, Prior Day Balance Report, Daily Balance

reporting summary and detail, Intraday balancing report (memo-posted transactions), detailed debit
and credit activity

Notification of changes regarding ACH (NOCs)
Notification on returned items

Access to Remote Deposit Capture

Access to Check Positive Pay and ACH Positive Pay

The Bank of Missouri will provide the Online Banking Platform Services above at no cost.

8 THE
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b. Detail whether memo post information is available and whether entered data is
acceptedimmediately or batch processed by the depository at alater time. Detail how
much history is available (i.e., current month, prior, month, six months, year, etc.) and
whether or not query processing is available for specified date ranges.

Please refer to the Funds Availability Policy Disclosure included. Transactions are conducted in a ‘real time’
environment allowing the County to view all memo posted items electronically. Electronic Statements are
available through online banking for up to 18 months. Query processing is available for specific date ranges.

c. The depository's ability to download files on demand from the depository computer to
County's network containing check clearing information. Include record format of
downloaded files and any costs over and above monthly account access charges.

Electronic Statements are available through online banking and stored up to 18 month of bank statements
with check images with the ability to export bank statements.

Custom Reporting Available including, but not limited to, Prior Day Balance Report, Daily Balance reporting
summary and detail, Intraday balancing report (memo-posted transactions), detailed debit and credit
activity.

d. Detail whether downloaded files will contain current information, prior day
transactions or weekly/monthly batch information. If downloading files directly is not
available, detail proposed alternatives (i.e., magnetic tape or diskette fransfer)

and charges associated with the alternative. Approximately 50,000 items will be
downloaded during the course of the Agreement.

Electronic Statements are available through online banking and stored up to 18 month of bank statements
with check images with the ability to export bank statements,

Custom Reporting Available including, but not limited to, Prior Day Balance Report, Daily Balance reporting
summary and detail, Intraday balancing report (memo-posted transactions), detailed debit and credit
activity.

e. The depository's ability to upload ASCII files containing information necessary for ACH
debit process, include record format required for file acceptance and all costs
associated with file transfer for ACH processing. Detail any costs that is in addition to or
in lieu of cost quoted in Part A, of this proposal for ACH debit transactions.

Agreed. The Bank recommends the County supply a test file to confirm format compatibility.

THE
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f. Provide a minimum of two references of current users of your electronic banking
services proposed.

County of Taney

Melanie Smith, Treasurer
(417)732.3135
melanie.Smith@taneycountymo.gov

City of Republic

Bryan Hawk, Utility Billing Supervisor
(417)546.7207
bhawk@republicmo.com

Southwest Electric Cooperative

Leslie Cantrell, Finance & Account Manager
(800)262.0326

Icantrell@swec.coop

1. FINANCIAL STABILITY- Provide financial data required.

Please see The Bank of Missouri Statement of Condition attached.

2. Provide a copy of the most recent IDC Financial Ratings for this financial institution.

The Bank of Missouri has been awarded a 5-Star ("Superior") Rating from Bauer Financial, Inc., an independent
bank rating company. Bauer's 5-Star Rating, their highest performance ranking, represents an independent,
unbiased analysis of a financial institution's safety and soundness position. Bauer has been analyzing and
reporting the financial condition of the nation's banking industry since 1983.

The Bauer rating is based on a complex analysis of financial criteria including capitalization, asset quality,
profitability, liquidity and risk. The 5-Star Rating indicates that The Bank of Missouri is both financially sound
and has the resources to deal with a variety of adverse economic conditions. No institution pays Bauer Financial
to rate it, nor can any choose to be excluded.

3. FUNDS AVAILABILITY SCHEDULE-include a copy of your Funds Availability Schedule

Please see The Bank of Missouri Funds Availability Disclosure attached.

4, BANK STATEMENT- include a sample copy of your bank statement.

Please see The Bank of Missouri sample statement attached.

BANK
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Include a CD-ROM (or other approved format) with Sample images of cleared checks and

deposit items.

CD-ROM is available upon request with statements and check images.

Provide a detailed list of any exceptions to TERMS AND CONDITIONS,

Please see The Bank of Missouri Terms and Conditions attached.

Provide a listing of business teller service locations and hours.

West South Branch

1301 W South St

Ozark, MO 65721

Lobby: 9:00-4:30

Drive-Up: 8:00-5:00 (Fri-5:30)
Saturday: 8:00-Noon (Drive Up Only)

East Elm Branch

520 E Elm St

Republic, MO 65738

Lobby: 9:00-4:30

Drive-Up: 8:00-5:00 (Fri-5:30)
Saturday: 8:00-Noon (Drive Up Only)

East Sunshine Branch
2360 E Sunshine St
Springfield, MO 65804
Lobby: 9:00-4:30

Drive-Up: 8:00-5:00 (Fri-5:30)
Saturday: Closed

South Campbell Branch

3807 S Campbell Ave
Springfield, MO 65807

Lobby: 9:00-4:30

Drive-Up: 8:00-5:00 (Fri-5:30)
Saturday: 8.00-Noon (Drive Up Only)

Please state whether this financial institution would provide other County Officeholders and
departments including, but not limited to the County Sheriff, Recorder, Circuit Clerk,
Juvenile, Drug Court, Law Library, Collector and Circuit Court, with checking accounts and
banking services based upon the PROPOSED COST SCHEDULE of Exhibit "1™ of this
Agreement. If not, please describe the costs for maintaining such accounts.

Agreed.

WE'RE DNLINE, ARDUND THE CORNER,
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9. Securities Deposit: RSMO. 110.20; The value of the securities deposifed and maintained by
a legal depositary under Section 110.010 shall at all times be not less than one hundred
percent of the actual amount of the funds on deposit with the depositary, less the amount,
if any, insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

The Bank of Missouri will secure (collateralize) your deposits at all times by maintaining the market value of
securities (Agencies, Municipals) in the amount equal to at least 100% of the amount on deposit with the Bank, less
the amount, if any, which is an insured deposit pursuant to the most current Federal Deposit Insurance Act. The
safe keeping agent is Midwest Independent Bank (MIB).

The Bank can provide a monthly summary of deposits and matching securities for your records.

EXHIBIT 1
PROPOSED COST SCHEDULE
ITEM PROPOSED COST VOLUME
Deposit Items Waived 33.000
Checks Paid Waived 6500
Returned Checks Waived 55
Account Transfers Waived 50
Stop Payments Waived 40
ACH Transactions Waived 1500
Incoming Waived
Outgoing Direct Deposit Waived 90 Files
Wire Transfers Waived
Incoming Waived 25
Qutgoing Waived 250
Account Maintenance Waived Per month
Monthly Bank Statements Waived Per month
w/account analysis 13 monthly 2quarterly
Security Safekeeping
Safe Deposit Box-List size Waived One 3x10, One 5X10,
and location with pricing Ozark Location Only One 10x10
Credit Card Fees Credit Card Services Collector 2.5%
available. Pricing proposal Treasurer 2.89% &
available upon request. 0.18 cents
4.13% & 0.18 cents Monthly
Fixed @29.75
Debit Card Fees Credit Card Services Same As Above
available. Pricing proposal
available upon request.

THE
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Other costs: itemized on Standard banking fee
separate sheet of paper schedules attached
OTHER FEES
ITEM PROPOSED COST
Deposited Checks Returned Waived
Recleared Deposited Items Waived
ACH Return ltems Waived
ACH File Reversals Waived
ACH ltem Reversal Waived
Image Copies of Checks Waived
Research and Reconciling Waived
Special Statement Waived
Statements on CD Waived
Monthly Internet Banking Fee Waived

BANKING DEPOSITORY SPECIFICATIONS

Agreement must include effective date of 15t day of July 2021, by and between the COUNTY OF
CHRISTIAN, STATE OF MISSOURI, a political subdivision consisting of a county of the first
classification, without a charter form of government (hereinafter referred to as the "County"), and
the Bank and each hereby state;

In compliance with the provisions of Chapter 110, RSMo., the County, on the 28th day of June
2021, will select and designate the Bank as the official depository to receive the funds of the

County from the 15t day of July 2021 through the 30N day of June 2023, and the Bank has
accepted said designation and agreed fo act as said depository. The County and the Bank
agree that the contract would have an option to be extended for the period of the 30th day of
June 2023 through the 30t day of June 2025, unless one or both of the parties provides written
nofification not later than the 30t day of May 2023, that the contract will not be extended. The
Bank shall nofify the Christian County Commission and any other office or department utilizing
the County’s Tax ID in writing and the County will provide written notification to the Bank through
the officer assigned pursuant to 4.4 of the proposed agreement.

SECTION 1-ACCOUNTS
1.1 Provide full service checking account with two copies of the monthly bank statement and
account analysis reflecting monthly beginning balance, plus deposits, less check honored

each month. One copy shall be provided to the County Treasurer and one copy to the
County Clerk as required in Chapter 110, RSMo., and for the County Collector's accounts,

W BANK
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one copy shall be provided to the County Collector and one to the County Auditor and
for the Recorder of Deeds one copy shall be provided.

Agreed.

This depository will serve as a clearinghouse for accounts through which all deposits will be
made all check drawn.

Agreed.

One (1) CERF account for the Treasurer shall be an investment account where deposits
are made but no checks are drawn. ACH debits and credits are drawn on this account.
QOutgoing wire fransfers are also processed through thisaccount.

Agreed.

Ten (10) regular checking accounts two (2) for Treasurer (one of which willrequire outgoing
wire transfers for payroll), two (2) for County Clerk, one (1) for Recorder of Deeds, four (4)
for Collector, one (1) for Assessor, shall be maintained upon which deposits will be
maintained and checks will be drawn asneeded.

Agreed.

A checking account shall be maintained for the School Account.

Agreed.

Two (2) regular interest-bearing savings accounts shall be maintained for the Collector to
deposit tax protest payments and surtaxes: said accounts to earn interest at the rate
designated in paragraph 2.2 of this Agreement.

The Public Funds High Performance Savings Account is recommended for the two savings accounts for the
County Collector. The Bank of Missouri will provide a fixed rate of interest at 0.24%.

THE

WE'RE DNLINE, ARDUND THE CORNER,

AND AT HAND T0 SERVE YOU BETTER.

OF MISSO

NK

URI



14

1.2.5 The costs for all current and future accounts shall be based on the Depository Proposal for
Christian County Public Funds in the attached Exhibit “1". The County Treasurer shall have
the right to add or remove or change the designation of any account throughout the
course of this agreement and the Bank wil charge fees monthly according to the
Proposed Cost Schedule for Christian County Public Funds for the configuration of the
accounts determined by the County Treasurer.

Agreed.

1.3  The Bank will serve as both sending and receiving bank on ACH system. Christian County
will pay charges as detailed in the Proposed Cost Schedule for Christian County Public
Funds of Exhibit "1" of this agreement.

Agreed.

1.4  State and Federal payroll and CERF payments are posted over the internet and shall be
billed according to the Proposed Cost Schedule for Christian Count Public Funds attached
to this Agreement.

Agreed.

SECTION 2-INVESTMENT

2.1 The Bank will maintain all accounts, except any accounts designated by the Treasurer as
a non-interest-bearing account pursuant to law, as interest bearing checking accounts.
The interest rate designated in 2.2 of this agreement will be paid on closing ledger
balances in the accounts and no reserve requirement will be assessed. These accounts
will be fully collateralized as required by Missourilaw in Sections 110.020, 110.010, and
30.270, RSMo. An account analysis can be provided for each account.

Agreed.

2.2 Theinterest rate paid on closing ledger balances will be as follows:

The Bank will pay interest on all Christian County checking accounts current and future (currently
16 accounts: 9 for Treasurer, 4 for Collector, 2 for County Clerk, and 1 for the Recorder of Deeds)
and all Christian County savings accounts current and future (currently 2 for the County Collector)
covered by the Depository Agreement. As requested, rates are quoted in relation to the most
recent Overnight Federal Funds Rate, as published in the Wall Street Journal, adjusted weekly.

A BANK

Agreed.

WE'RE DNLINE, ARDUND THE CORNER,
AND AT HAND TO SERVE YOU BETTER.



15

2.2.1 Monthly bank statements shall reflect daily interest earned on these investment purchases.

Agreed.

2.2.2 The County will separately bid out all or part of its excess funds outside the depository
agreement that arises from this Request for Proposal. From time to time, County may desire
to purchase government securities through the depository.

Agreed.

SECTION 3-COLLATERALIZATION
The Christian County Treasurer will invest funds outside the Depository Agreement.

31 Bank Depository shall collateralize and secure all deposits and investments as required by
Missourilaw in Chapters 110 and 30, RSMo., including Sections 110.020,

110.010, and 30.270 RSMo. The maximum amount at any one time that has to be
collateralized under all of the accounts will be $80,000,000.00 (80 million dollars).

The Bank of Missouri will secure (collateralize) your deposits at all times by maintaining the market value of
securities (Agencies, Municipals) in the amount equal to at least 100% of the amount on deposit with the Bank,
less the amount, if any, which is an insured deposit pursuant to the most current Federal Deposit Insurance Act.
The safe keeping agent is Midwest Independent Bank (MIB).

The Bank can provide a monthly summary of deposits and matching securities for your records.

3.2 Al security so pledged and not able to be held by a Federal Reserve Bank shall be held
by a third-party institution. The Proposal shall state who will be designated to be the third-
party institution.

The Bank of Missouri will secure (collateralize) your deposits at all times by maintaining the market value of
securities (Agencies, Municipals) in the amount equal to at least 100% of the amount on deposit with the Bank,
less the amount, if any, which is an insured deposit pursuant to the most current Federal Deposit Insurance Act.
The safe keeping agent is Midwest Independent Bank (MIB).

The Bank can provide a monthly summary of deposits and matching securities for your records.

3.3 The County and the Office Holders require that the market value of the pledged
security/collateral be 100% of the amount of funds on deposit at all fimes, less the amount
that is insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, (FDIC).

THE
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The Bank of Missouri will secure (collateralize) your deposits at all times by maintaining the market value of
securities (Agencies, Municipals) in the amount equal to at least 100% of the amount on deposit with the Bank,
less the amount, if any, which is an insured deposit pursuant to the most current Federal Deposit Insurance Act.
The safe keeping agent is Midwest Independent Bank (MIB).

The Bank can provide a monthly summary of deposits and matching securities for your records.

34 Safekeeping receipts for pledged collateral and securities shall be delivered to the
Christian County Treasurer and said collateral and securities shall be released by the third-
party institution only when authorized by County through a statement signed by the
County Treasurer. County shall designate a backup for signing releases if the County
Treasurer is not available (Currently the Deputy Treasurer).

Agreed.

3.4.1 Authorization for release of pledged collateral shall be in writing (fax acceptable) with
phone confirmation. Verification of replacement securities will be required prior to release.

Agreed.

3.5 The depository agrees to have the third-party holder provide the County Treasurer with a
quarterly listing of security pledged as authorized by section 30.270 RSMo., on or before
the tenth day of each quarter. County currently receives these listing via internet access.

Agreed.

3.5.1 The quarterly listing shall detail the holdings as of the last working day of the immediately
preceding quarter.

Agreed.

3.5.2 The quarterly listing shall include the purchase date, the coupon interest rate, the maturity
date, the par value of each security, the total par value of all securities, the market value
of each security and the total securities.

Agreed.

WE'RE DNLINE, ARDUND THE CORNER,
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3.6 The County Treasurer reserves the right to reject or request replacement of any security
pledged.

Agreed.

3.7 Safekeeping receipts for pledged collateral and securities shall be delivered showing
description, cusip number, maturity, pledged par value, and market value.

Agreed.

3.8  Alisting of acceptable securities under Missouri law is found in section 30.270 RSMo.

Agreed.

THE

BANK
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SECTION 4-ACCOUNT SERVICES

4.

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

A ( BankofM|550uncom

The depository shall provide regular business teller service and availability of branch
facilities for deposits. The depository shall provide a method for after hour's deposit.

All four (4) branches within the Springfield market will provide night depository services.

Deposits can be made and shall be considered same day business until 5:00 pm central
standard time. It is anticipated that there be one deposit per day per account except
during peak tax season (last two weeks of December when more than two deposits per
day to the Investment Account may occur).

Agreed.

Pre-encoded, pre-printed deposits slips and checks for each account listed in Section 1
hereof, shall be provided to the County at no cost.

Intro pack provided by the bank. Additional checks and deposit slips will be provided at bank cost.

Designation of one bank officer for communication and investment purposes.

David Cook, Community Bank President

The Bank shall provide any necessary MICR encoding requirementsto County's
check printing system.

Please see The Bank of Missouri MICR Requirements attached.

A CD Rom {or other media accepted by the County) shall be provided monthly with
images of all checks cleared and deposit items. Software necessary to view and print any
item shall be included with the CD. A sample CD shall be provided with the proposal.

CD-ROM is available upon request with statements and images.

The County shall be able to transfer funds between accounts at no charge.

Agreed.

WE'RE DNLINE, ARDUND THE CORNER,
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4.8 Funds availability schedules shall be provided with the proposal.

Please see The Bank of Missouri Funds Availability attached

4.8.1 At a minimum, the County is to be given credit as collected funds for all items cleared
through the Bank on same day as deposit.

Agreed.

4.8.2 ltems deposited that clear at institutions within the same Federal Reserve region shall be
considered collected within one business day at a maximum.

Agreed.

4.8.3 Incoming wire transfers shall be credited as collected on the day received if received by
or before 3:00 pm central standard time.

Agreed.

4.9 The County Treasurer shall be the contact and working person by and between the bank
depository and the Treasurer's accounts. The County Collector shall be the contact and
working person by and between the bank depository and the Collector's accounts. Any
other office or department that request services will have their own accounts and shall
designate in writing their own contactperson.

Agreed.

4.10 Service charges on all current and future accounts shall be totaled and billed monthly to
the County Treasurer, Collector, Recorder of Deeds, Clerk, and any other offices or
departments that may request services for their respective accounts.

Agreed.

4.11 Any future accounts established by the County shall be computed under the terms of this
contract as long as no new requirements are established by the County.

Agreed.

Tt
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4.11.1 Any new account that involves funds under the control of the County Treasurer that uses
the County’s tax identification number, shall be set up through the County Commission
and the County Treasurer.

Agreed.

4.11.2 Any new accounts involving funds under the control of the County Treasurer shall require
the signatures of the County Treasurer and/cr her designee.

Agreed.

4.11.3 Any new account that involves funds under the control of the County Clerk that uses the
County’s tax identification number, shall be set up through the County Commission and
notification to the County Treasurer.

Agreed.

4.11.4 Any new accounts involving funds under the control of the County Clerk shall require the
signatures of the County Clerk and/or her designee.

Agreed.

4.11.5 The County Treasurer's accounts for the County will be required to have two signatures
with the County Treasurer or their facsimile stamp as one and the Presiding Commissioner
or their facsimile stamp as the second signature. The Treasurer's School account is required
to have two signatures one being the County Treasurer and her designee. The CERF
accountis done online through ACH transfers and can be performed by the Treasurer or
her designee. Please see Exhibit "2" in its entirety.

Agreed.

4.11.6 Any new account that involves funds under the control of the County Collector that uses
the County's tax identification number shall be set up through the County Collector in
cooperation with the County Commission and notification to the County Treasurer.

Agreed.

4.11.7 Any new account that involves funds under the control of the County Collector shall
require the signatures of the County Collector and his designee.

Agreed.

meer FDIC BankofMissouri.com |
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4.11.8 Any new account that involves funds under the control of the County Recorder that uses
the County's tax identification number shall be set up through the County Recorder in
cooperation with the County Commission and notification of the County Treasurer.

Agreed.

4.11.9 Any new account that involves funds under the control of the Recorder of Deeds shall
require the signatures of the Recorder of Deeds and her designee.

Agreed.

4.11.10 Any department that sets up a new account that uses the County's Tax identification
number shall be set up through the County Commission and the department and
nofification to the County Treasurer.

Agreed.

THE
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SECTION 5-ONLINE BANKING SERVICES

Under the proposal submitted by the bank and incorporated herein as Exhibit “1", all online
banking services shall be provided under the following terms and conditions. The costs shall be
calculated pursuant to Section V of the Proposal Response Form and the Proposed Cost
Schedule and billed monthly.

5.1 The County currently has electronic banking services via the internet to the depository
bank for use in processing wire transfers, stop payments, ACH processing, remote deposits
capture, account transfers and account balance history. Routine account transfers can
be set up one time and generated upon request without reentering data.

Agreed.

52 The County has the ability to download checks cleared data on demand for use in
account balancing. This is currently done daily for the investment account and can be
done for selected periods on any account.

Agreed.

53 The proposal form contains request for a proposal for electronic banking services which
addresses the following:

Agreed.

5.3.1 The depository's ability to provide interactive services through the internet that allows
account balance inquiry, account transfers, ACH processing, stop payments, remote
deposits capture and wire transfers. Please include set up charges, on-line charges,
monthly charges, per transaction costs that are in addition to or in lieu of traditional costs
quoted in this proposal.

Agreed.

5.3.2 Detail whether memo postinformationis available and whether entered data is accepted
immediately or batch processed by the depository at alater time. Detail how much history
is available, detail proposed dlternatives (i.e. magnetic tape or diskette transfer) and
charges associated with alternative. Approximately 50,000 items will be downloaded per
year.

Please refer to the Funds Availability Policy Disclosure included. Transactions are conducted in a ‘real time’
environment allowing the County to view all memo posted items electronically. Electronic Statements are
available through online banking for up to 18 months. Query processing is available for specific date ranges.

W BANK
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5.3.3 Provide a minimum of two references of current users of your electronic bank services
proposed.

County of Taney

Melanie Smith, Treasurer
(417)732.3135
melanie.Smith@taneycountymo.gov

City of Republic

Bryan Hawk, Utility Billing Supervisor
(417)546.7207
bhawk@republicno.com

Southwest Electric Cooperative
Leslie Cantrell, Finance & Account Manager
(800)262.0326

Icantrell@swec.coop

SECTION-6 OTHER SERVICES

6.1 Bid three (3) safety deposit boxes, one (1) with dimensions 3x10, one (1) with dimensions
5x10, and one (1) 10x10. Safety deposit boxes costs shall be charged as detailed in the
Depository Proposal for Christian County Public Funds of Exhibit “1".

Provided at no cost at The Bank of Missouri’s Ozark branch.

6.2  Incoming and outgoing wire transfers initiated over the internet shall be billed at the rate
in the Proposed Cost Schedule attached hereto.

The Bank of Missouri will process the County’s incoming and outgoing wire transfers for domestic wire
transfers and offers wire transmission for domestic wires.

Authorized Representative of the County will assign authorized users a Cash Manager ID, Security Token,
Password and Wire PIN which is used to transmit and authenticate wire transfer requests initiated via the
County’s online banking platform. Dual Control (separation of duties) is available for Wire Transmission.

Domestic Wire transfers received after the bank’s cut-off time (2:00 pm CST) will be processed the following
business day.

The Bank of Missouri will provide incoming and outgoing wires at no cost to the county.

THE
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6.3 Bid bank services for Positive Pay.

The Bank of Missouri offers Check Positive Pay and ACH Positive Pay (filters and blocks). Check Positive Pay
allows for a daily file upload of issued check items. Checks presented for payment will be verified against the
items included in the uploaded file. Checks that do not match will be flagged as an exception and will require
approval to be paid through the County’s online banking platform.

For ACH debit entries, all entries will be flagged as exception items unless the County has named the company
that originated the entry on their approved filter list. Entries that are not on the approved list will be reported
electronically to the County through the County’s online banking platform.

Cut-off time for Positive Pay exception items is 12:00 pm noon C5T.

The County must instruct the bank to pay or return all exception items. No specific accounting software is
required to utilize positive pay. The Issued Check file may be uploaded to the Bank’s online banking system
using CSV format or a Fixed Position File. The file may also be entered manually in the Positive Pay module.
The Bank recommends the County supply a test file to confirm format compatibility, along with a list of all
outstanding checks. The Issued Check file must be uploaded or manually entered no later than 5:00 pm CST,
one business day prior to disbursing checks. Issued check files received after that time will be processed next
business day. Checks presented for immediate payment not matching the Issued Check file will be deemed an
exception. The Bank will attempt to contact an Authorized Representative at the District via telephone for
instructions. In the event the bank is not able to reach an Authorized Representative, the Bank will not pay the
Exception item.

The Bank of Missouri will provide Positive Pay to Christian County at no cost.

SECTION 7-COUNTY COMMISSION AND COUNTY AUDITOR VERIFICATION OF ACCOUNTS

71 The County Commission and the County Auditor shall have access to the Christian County
Treasurer's Accounts for the purpose of verifying account balances. That verification shall
be through and by the authority of the County Treasurer in the form of going online to the
depository Bank in the County Treasurer's office.

Agreed.

7.2  The County Commission and the County Auditor shall have access to the Christian County
Clerk's and Collector's accounts for the purpose of verifying account balances. The Bank
will be given permission from the County Clerk or County Collector to release @ full account
record being copied and/or given to the County Commission or the County Auditor upon
request.

Agreed.

1 THE
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SECTION 8-WIRE TRANSFERS AUTHORIZATION POLICY STATEMENT

8.1 All wire transfers are to be handled by the Policy Statement-Wire tfransfers
Authorization referenced in its entirety as Exhibit 2",

Agreed.

SECTION 9-MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS

9.1 Bank must remain a banking corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of
Missouri or the United States of America.

Agreed.

9.2 Bank must maintain a home office or full service branch within the boundaries of Christian
County, Missouri.

Agreed.

In addition to all other charges previously detailed, County shall pay charges as outlined in the
Proposed Cost Schedule attached

o 888 547 65 1 . WE'RE DNLINE, ARDUND THE CORNER, K
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Exhibit 2

Policy Statement
Wire Transfers Authorization

This statement is provided to further clarify the depository agreements between Christian County
Government and the County Banking service provider. The below clarification statements are
effective as of the date set forth below, until changed by County Treasurer or the Deputy County
Clerk with the County Commission approval.

CERF-Summary of County Contributions-CERF Administrative Retirement System

The retirement program CERF {County Employees Retirement Fund) obtains funding from several
different sources. These funds which are deposited in a special County bank account shall then
be forwarded to Administrative Retirement System for credit to CERF's account, this process
requires a wire transfer from the County bank account to CERF's Administrative Retirement System
account. This wire transfer is a predefined single purpose transaction, where the parameters are
fixed. The only factor subject to variation is the dollar amount. The sources of funds (Employee
Contributions) are the result of payroll deductions and therefore results | a wire fransfer each pay
cycle. The sources of funds (Assessor late fee's, Collector merchant license fees, Collector
delinquent fees, Recorder of Deeds document filing fees, County interest and County
Contributions) are received on a calendar monthly cycle and therefore usually result in a wire
transfer each calendar month. The authorization to and responsibility for these transactions is
assigned to the County Treasurer, who manages the depositing and forwarding of these funds
for the County.

EFTPS Payroll Taxes

The preparation of the County’s payroll creates a liability of Federal Payroll Taxes that must be
deposited in a timely manner by the method required by the Internal Revenue Service. This
process, called EFTPS (Electronic Federal Tax Payment System), requires a wire transfer each pay
cycle. The wire transfer is a predefined single purpose transaction, where the parameters are fixed.
The only factor subject to variation is the dollar amount. This transaction is accomplished by an
internet entry in the IRS EFTPS network. The authorization to and responsibility for this transaction is
assigned to the Deputy County Clerk, who manages the payroll operations of the County.

ACH Credit Payroll Taxes

The preparation of the County's payroll creates a liability of State Payroll Taxes that must be
deposited in a timely manner by the method required by the Missouri Department of Revenue,
the Division of Taxation and Collection. This process, called ACH Credit (Automated Clearing
House Credit) requires a wire transfer each pay cycle. This wire transfer is a predefined single
purpose transaction, where the perimeters are fixed. The only factor subject to variation is the
dollar amount. This transaction is accomplished by an internet entry in the State ACH network.
The authorization to and responsibility for this transaction is assigned to the Deputy County Clerk,
who manages the payroll operation of the County.

Tl[E
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The undersigned certifies that they have the authority to bind this company in an
agreement to supply the commodity or service in accordance with all terms, conditions,
and pricing specified herein or to offer a "No Bid.” Please type or print the information
below. Bidder is REQUIRED to complete, sign and return this form with their submittal of Bid
as well as all pages initialed. *An authorized signature is mandatory; lack thereof will result
in a determination of "Non-Responsive”. Also required is a direct email address in order to
receive award results. We do not use USPS for direct results notification, only email.

The Bank of Missouri

P W e

AUThorizﬁAf rfonNirint) ! Eg

Company Name
2360 E. Sunshine St

Address Signature

Springfield, MO 65804 Community Bank President
City/County/State/Zip Title

417.881.4600 417.890.9446 June 21, 2021 43-0170190
Telephone # Fax # Date Tax ID #

dcook@bankofmissouri.com

Corporation

E-mail

Entity Type (Corporation, LLC, Sole

Proprietor, Partnership)

Bids received after 8:45 on the 215t day of June 2021, will be considered untimely
and will not be opened.

THE
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EXHIBIT B
AUTHORITY TO BIND AGREEMENT

The Christian County Commission will be accepting sealed bids from Christian County
Banking Institutions which desire to be selected as the depository of Christian County
Funds for the next four years, with an option to re-bid in each odd-numbered year. All
banking institutions should comply with the provisions of Chapter 110 of the Revised
Statutes of the State of Missouri.

BID Deadline and Location: Pursuant to 110.140 Any banking corporation or association in
the county desiring to bid shall deliver a sealed bid marked SEALED BID DO NOT OPEN RE:
BANK BID to County Commission 100 West Church, Room 100, Ozark, MO. 65721, no later

than 8:45 a.m. the 215t day of June.

Opening Date/ Time/Location: The Christian County Commission, in compliance with
RsMO 110.150.1, will publicly open the bids on the 215t day of June 2021 at 9:00 a.m. in
the Commission Chamber on the first floor of the historic courthouse located at 100 West
Church, Room 100 Ozark, MO., and cause each bid to be entered upon the records of
the Commission pursuant to 110.150.1, but the Commission may reject any and all bids.

Award Date/Location: After review of the bid, the Christian County Commission shall
award bid by the last Monday of June.

Questions or Additional Information Requested: Please e-mail all questions regarding the

Bank Bid to the County Commission Office at:
countycommission@christiancountymo.gov. All questions must be submitted prior to the

bid opening and no later than Monday, June 215t, 2021. All questions will be answered in
writing or emailed to all known potential bidders in Christian County.

888.54 7.654 | / WE'RE ONLINE, ARDUND THE CORNER,
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The vendor hereby declares understanding, agreement, and certification of compliance to
provide the items and/or services, at the prices quoted, in accordance with all terms and
conditions, requirements, and specifications of this original invitation to bid. The vendor further
agrees that upon receipt of an authorized purchase order from the Christian County Commission
or when a Notice of Award is signed and issued by the Commission, a binding confract shall exist
between the vendor and Christian County. Signature required below confirming understanding of

this statement.

Doing Business as (DBA) Name

The Bank of Missouri

Legal Name of Entity/Individual Filed with IRS for this
Tax ID No.

The Bank of Missouri 43-0170190

Mailing Address
1301 W. South Street

IRS Form 1099 Mailing Address
906 N. Kingshighway

City, State, Zip Code
Ozark, MO 65721

City, State, Zip Code
Perryville, MO 63775

Contact Person

David Cook

Email Address:
dcook@bankofmissouri.com

Phone Number

417.582.4600

Fax Number:

417.890.9446

Date

(215

THE

BANK
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List three (3) business references:

1st
Representative Name:
Company Name:

Taney County Melanie Smith
Address City State Zip
132 David Street Forsyth MO 65653
Business Phone Business Fax Cellular Phone

417.546.7207

email address if available Melanie.Smith@taneycountymo.g

2nd

Representative Name:
Company Name:

City of Republic Bryan Hawk
Address City State Zip

213 North Main Avenue Republic MO 65738
Business Phone Business Fax Cellular Phone

417.732.3135

emdail address if available bhawk@republicmo.com

3rd .
Representative Name:

Company Name:

Southwest Electric Corporative Leslie Cantrell

Address City State Zip
1023 S Springfield Ave Bolivar MO 65613
Business Phone Business Fax Cellular Phone

800.262.0326

email address if available Icantrell@swec.coop

. 888 547.654 WE'RE DNLINE, ARDUND THE CORNER,
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FINAL MANDATORY COMPLIANCE CHECKLIST:

Please use the below table to ensure your bid is fully compliant before you seal it for
submission. If you have any questions regarding any of these items, please call:

Madi Hires, Executive Administrative
Assistant (417) 582-4300

countycommission@christicncountymo.gov

FINAL COMPLIANCE CHECKLIST (1)

| am submitting my bid prior to the specified deadline. (Page 2, Section 2)

| understand that no faxed or electronically fransmitted bids will be accepted. (Page 2,
Section 1)

| have filled out, signed, and dated the declaration page, and | understand that failure X
to do so will result in rejection of my bid. (Page 11, Section 37)

I am including one (1) unbound original and four (4) copies of my bid. | understand that X
| must include The Price Sheet found in Exhibit A, Page 3 - Exhibit 1, and all pages

thereafter.

| am enclosing my bid in a sealed envelope, and | am marking the envelope “SEALED X

BID — DO NOT OPEN". (Page 2, Section 1)

I have filled out, signed, and dated the Authorized to Bind Agreement, and understand X
that failure to do so will result in rejection of my bid. (Exhibit B, Page 2).

| am indicating on the envelope the good/service that | am bidding on. X

HE
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The Bank of Missouri Statement of Condition for 6/30/2020

Condensed Statement of Condition
June 30, 2020
(In Thousands)

Assets
Loans: $1,455,685
Less: reserve for losses 18,236
Net Loans 1,437,449
Federal Funds sold 0
Investment securities 388,111
Total earnings assets 1,825,560
Cash and due from banks 45,971
Premises and equipment 36,440
Other assets 136,768
Total assets $2,044,739

Liabilities
Transaction accounts $398,648
Money Market & Savings 1,028,683
Time deposits 266,834
Total deposits 1,694,165
Federal Funds purchased O
Other liabilities 107,991
Total liabilities 1,802,156

Stockholders' Equity
Common stock 600
Surplus 83,166
Undivided profits 154,012

Securities Market Valuation 4,342

Non-controlling interest 463

in consolidated subsidiaries
Total stockholders' equity 242,583

Total liabilities and equity $2,044,739

Total stockholders' equity and reserves $260,819,000

WE'RE DNLINE, ARDUND THE CORNER,
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Standard Banking Fee Schedule

FEES AND CHARGES. The following fees and charges may be assessed against your account:
Effective June 22, 2020, and subject to change.

CONSUMER FEES
ATM/Debhit Card Fees

Elstotrier Withdrawals atother ATMS. s s ey s s e i s i et $2.25
Card Replacement (Overnight Domestic Postal Delivery) ..........cccccooiiiiiiie i Shipping Fee
Collection Fees

EheckicolleBlion” fEES: v s e e T R e e T A A R e e e $25.00 per item
Foreign Check ColleCion FEES.........ccuivvi it e e $5.00 per item plus MIB Fee

Deposit Services Fees

Domiant ACCoUNE FRR. wimumvmsimims i i $5.00 per month (applicable to all Checking Accounts)
Early Account Closing Fee (all accounts except Kasasa®) ............$25.00 within 6 months of account opening date

Early Account Closing Fee (Kasasa Cash®, Kasasa Cash Back®, Kasasa Tunes®) ... $0.00
Miscellaneous

Account Reconciliation FEE ..........cocieineiiiiiin it e $30.00 per hour/$15.00 minimum
AECOUNEREWNEEGDS): sunmumm s T S T e T R T T S e $5.00 per CD
B Ot Vi CAt O R G G BIGE wusiccirveuiysuss o nsivsbesisesisi sosiass s Vs soh o6 s oo S S A A e $5.00
AUOMAD NS SWEEE FBE: .. tiassios it hs 8aon san558 s 405 e A SR 3 DA o 4 s i i o R s $5.00
CD ROM mnummnmimmmssas st maiass $10.00/Monthly; $15.00/Quarterly or Semi-Annually; $25.00/Annually
CaBNIBLS CNBTK . covnssssns s sonis s e aparme Gt s $10.00 (Investors Club or Veterans Checking - No Charge)
N B 2 DD I B SIY vcmuievansots os 0 G53  EA A  FAA  SE $25.00
Equiprigit RelBeted TREOR: . .. ipwrmss s s sr aii s s iss i savins oo S0 e i v v s s $2.00
ESCIoW SEIVICE EEB: viwnsmssnsst sl boss s aiibves donalins $325.00 Setup Fee/$10.00 per disbursement
Facsimilg {Incoming/OURg0ING ~ DT AT uwsusiss s iy st mms it Byt s e B e s o s 56 $2.00
Foreign Currency Fee (Next Day Delivery) .......ccccoveiiiiinnnnnn $15.00 shipped by Noon / $12.00 shipped by 5:00 pm
GArNIShMEntS B LEVIES v ivnmisivnins s s e vy s e s §va o0 K e S 0 G $100.00
GO TOKON: o mmrmmrman i s e T s D T e B e T T s TR T .$15.00
HSA Closing Fee (Waived if Internal Transfer) ... e e $23.00
HSA Service Fee (Account opened less than 12 months..) ..o, $33.00
DI PROTBCE: sscoicuavummmmansasususneeivsassions sy i usiesisisss s o oo s v o e Wa o i R S S e $2.00 per month
Insufficient Funds (NSF) Fee - (Imposed each time an item is returned).........c.cccccovvviciciiciiinnn, $30.89 per item
Negative Balance Closing FEe .......ccccovi i $25.00/Negative Balance of $100 or more
IRA: Service Tetmination s o oo s s v s 508 e e A ek b $35.00 (per plan)
N oy O e CuStOMER )k i i S R B I e S A T e L e T $3.00
Night Depository Bag (Without TOCK) ......ooiiiii i e e

Night Depository Bag (with lock)
Night DepoStony SetUN FBG.cessamsomsseonimesssmim oo s o s 6 o s i i e s ssis s
Notary (per signature acknowledgment)
Notary (Club account members)
OVerdraft (O e ElRums s e e s i e T

(Imposed for overdrafts created by check, in person withdrawals, ATM Withdrawals, or any other electronic means)

P RO GODIES: (DT GODVY v v oo tas vy s v s oy Eh s s b S P B $0.50
RECArt SEATch wump s s e e e it $30 per hour/$20.00 minimum ($0.50 per page)
Return Check Fee (Assessed each time a check is re-| presented for payment or charged back to an
account)........... T e DA
Return Deposited Ilem wnth Spemal !nstrucnons Sel Up Fee ............................................................................. $15 00
Signature Verification (per account) ... $25.00 per month
Smiart Pay EXPress PAYIMIBIL e vwvoimn s i shayvsisiasiins i ok s sia voras o8seanshasssssvnsbdinsasiod by drs $3.25 per payment

WE'RE DNLINE, ARDUND THE CORNER,
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Standard Banking Fee Schedule (continued)

Miscellaneous Fees (continued)

Additional STAIEMENT.. . n it v i st s s R T e A G $5.00
TEMPOTATY BTBIEITIBNE v rovissiesssvsitisiinemrsvis s sossseTakases st s S0 S o5 B B B S PR $5.00
S DIl STATEIENE. 1oi e i i v s T o R L B P A R e B R $10.00
Paper Statement with Images (Select, Select 2 & Student Select Checking ONLY) .....ocoovvvieiiiiiiiicii $3.00
SO PAVTIEIVE v e oo s e s B B S s s e $34.00 per request
TEMPOTER CHETKS v o s e s e O ST S et B $1.00 per page (4 checks/page)
Tl D OTI0, T AT SIO v oo s 5 4 G S T S SRS e R O eV SR $4.50
Wire Transfers:

[ ToTn a1 Lo B B Tyt A O S $18.50
Ot IO IR (DO EHE) e e e e T T B T T T S T e e g e T s $24.75
Foreign:(Incominig & O URGOTNG Y. comsiu it musumisni i isbmsng 5 i i ru s s s ey sy s sy s it e $49.50
Online Banking:

Bift Bay G NECK i s e e s s Y e e A P e R $2.99 per check
Gift Pay DOnation GHE K wms s s sy e s s s s e s $1.99 per check
BUSINESS FEES:

ATM/Debit Card Fees

Customer WIthdrawals @t O her ATIVIS ... et e et ettt b e s nbae e $2.25
Card Replacement (Overnight Domestic Postal Delivery) ..o, Shipping Fee

SAFE DEPOSIT BOX FEES
Annual Rents

5Il x 3"
Y s S N S v S T S A O TR VB W 5
10" x 3"
10" x 4"
10" x 5"
O T T
10V X B s s

10" x 10"
* Annual rents will be discounted $4.00 if an automatic payment from a checking/savings account is established.
Late Payment Fee (2-month grace period) $5.00 per month
LOES OF OIS BY: wivin onvis v s s i vaiseass s s¥i s ss s S 40 S0 ST S S T B P T T B e $25.00

Lass of Both KeYs: ... simiiumimimsosianmainsasnm Cost of drilling and lock replacement

THE

BANK
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Sample Bank Statement
THE

YBANK

. OF MISSOURI
LIVE WELL. BANK WELL.

Date 2/10/21 Page 1
Frimary Acceount Acct Ending 00€3
Enclosures

RCE TEST
FEEREF R R R E BB R R R R F R E R AR R AR R AR R AR AR

MOVED LEFT NO FORWARDING ADDRESS

FEFFRE R R NG RN NF R FFAF R AR AR ER R

CHECKING ACCOUNTS

KASASR CASH Humber of Enclosures 1]

Account Numbex Acct Ending 00€3 Stacement Dates 4/22/20 thru 2/10/21

Previous Balance 00 Days in the statemant periocd 298
1 Deposits/Credics 1.00 Average Lecdger 00
1 Checks/Debits 1.00 Average Collected 00

Service Charge 00

Interest Paid 00

Ending Balance SO0

Deposits and Credits
Date Description Amount
2/02 REFUND ATH Foreign Fee 100

Electronic Debits (Includes BillPay Checks
Date Description Amount
2/03 REV ATM FEE - TESTING 1.00-

Daily Balance Information
Date Balance Date Balance Date Balance
4/22 00 2/02 1.00 2/03 .00

THE

OF g!s SOURI

: . 888-547-654 . o WERE DHLINE, ARDUND THE CORNER,

AND AT HAND TD SERVE YDU BETTER.

_memper FDIC BankofMissouri.com
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Funds Availability Policy Discosure

FUNDS AVAILABILITY POLICY DISCLOSURE . THE

OF MISSOURI
PURPOSE OF THIS DISCLOSURE. Our general policy is to allow you to withdraw funds deposited in a transaction account on the first
Business Day after the day of deposit. Funds fiom electronic direct deposits will be available on the day we 1eceive the deposit. In some cases,
we may delay your ability to withdraw funds beyond the fust Business Day after the day of deposit. Our complete policy is sununarized below.
For puposes of this disclosure, the terms "you""yowr" refer to the customer and the terms "our"/"we"/"us” refer to The Bank of Missoun.

Generally, bansaction accounts are accounts which would permit an unlimited number of payments by check to third parsons, and also an
unlimited number of telephonic and prezuthorized mransfers to third persons or other accounts you may have with us.

DETERMINING THE AVAILABILITY OF YOUR DEPOSIT. The length of the dalay varies depending on the type of deposit and is
explained balow. When we delay your zbility to withdraw funds from a deposit, you may not withdraw the funds in cash, and we will not pay
checks you have written on vour account by wsing thess funds. Even after we have made fund: available to you and you have withdrawn the
funds, you are still 1esponsible for checks you deposit that are retumed to us unpaid and for any other problems invelving yow deposit.

When we delay your ability to withdraw funds, the length of the delay is counted in Business Days fiom the day of yowr deposit. The tern
“Business Day" means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or federally declared legal holiday, and the txm "Banking Day" means that put of
any Business Day on which we are open to the public for canying on substantially all of our banking functions.

If you make a deposit before the close of busines: on a Business Day that we are open, we will consider that day to be the day of your deposit.
However, if you make a deposit after the close of business or on a day that we are not open, we will consider the deposit made on the next
Business Day we are open.

AVAILABILITY SCHEDULE. Our policy is to make furds fiom your cash and check deposits available to you on the first Business Day after
the day we receive yowr deposit. Electronic direct deposits will be available on the day we rzceive the deposit. Once the fund: are available, you
can withdraw them in cash and we will use them to pay checks that you have wiitten.
LONGER DELAYS MAY APPLY. In some cases, we will not make all of the funds that you depesit by check available to vou according to
the previously stated availability schedule. Depending on the type of check that you deposit, fands may not be available untll the second
Business Day after the day of your deposit. The first $225.00 of your deposits, however, may be available on the first Business Day after the day
of deposit.
If we a12 not going to make all of the funds from your deposit available to you according to the previously stated availability scheduls, we will
notify yeu at the time you make your deposit. We will alzo tell you when the funds will be available. If your deposit is not made diectly to one
of our employees, or if we decide to take this action after you have left the premizes, we will mail you the notice by the day after we raceive
your deposit If you will need the funds from a deposit right away, you should ask us when the funds will be available.
Funds vou deposit by check may ba delayed for a longer period under the following curcumstances:

(a) if we belisve a check you depozit will not be paid;

(b) if you deposit checks totaling more than $5,525 on any one day;

() if youredeposit a check that has been retwned unpaid;

(d) if vou have overdrawn your account repeatedly in thae last six months; or

(&) if an emergency condition avizes that would not enable us to make the funds available to you, such as the failure of computer or

communications equipment.

We will notify you if we delay your ability to withdraw funds for any of these reasons, and we will tall you when the funds will be available.
They will generally be available no later than the seventh Business Day after the day of your deposit. If you will need the funds from a deposit
right away, you should ask us when the funds will be availabls.

HOLDS ON OTHER FUNDS FOR CHECK CASHING, If we cazh a check for you that is drawn on another financial institution, we may
withhold the availability of a corresponding amount of funds that are already in your account. Those funds will be available at the fime funds
fiom the check we cazhed would have been available if you had deposited it.

HOLDS ON OTHER FUNDS IN ANOTHER ACCOUNT. If we accapt for deposit a check that is drawn on another financial institution, we
may make funds fiom the depozit available for withdrawal immediately but delay your availability to withdraw a comresponding amount of funds
that vou have on deposit in another account with us. The funds in the other account would then not be available for withdrawal until the tme
periods that are described elsewhere in this disclosure for the type of check that you dapesited.

SPECIAL RULES FOR NEW ACCOUNTS, If vou are a new customer, the following special mules will apply during the fust 30 days yow

account is open.

Funds from elsctronic direct deposits to your account will be available on the day we receive the deposit. Funds from deposits of cash, wire
transfers, and the first $5,525 of a day's total deposits of cashier's, certified, teller's, traveler's, and federal, state and local government chacks
will ba available on the first Business Day after the day of deposit if the depesit meets certain conditions. For example, the checks must be
payable to you (and you may have to use a special deposit skip). The excess over $5,523 will ba available on the ninth Business Day after the day
of your daposit. If your dsposit of these checks (other than a U.S. Treaswy check) is not made in persen to one of our employees, the first
$35,525 will not be available unal the second Businezs Day after the day of deposit.

€ X07-2019 Coruplisace Systems, Bac. £b14106-Badcclik - 201927882
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Funds Availability Policy Discosure (continved)

Other Check Deposits. Funds from all other check deposits will be available on the eleventh Business Day after the day of deposit.

DEPOSITS AT AUTOMATED TELLER MACHINES. If you make a deposit at an automated teller machine (ATM) that is ouwned and
operated by us before 2:00 pm CST on a Business Day that we are open. we will consider the deposit made that day. However, if you make a
deposit at an ATM that is owned and operated by us after 2:00 pm CST or on a day that we are not open. we will consider the deposit made on
the next Business Day we are open.

ADDITIONAL ATM INFORMATION. All deposits are subject to receipt by the bank upon opening the machine.

. 888-547'654 ” WE'RE DNLINE, AROUND THE CORNER,

AND AT HAND T0 SERVE YOU BETTER.
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Terms and Conditions

ACCOUNT AGREEMENT
lC‘HZE(.?I-ZL\'t‘.-‘- ACCOUNT THE

ACCOUNT TITLE AND ADDRESS

_ACCOUNTOPENDATE | ACCOUNINUMBER | OWNERSHIPTVPE | PRODUCTNAME | INITIALDEFOSIT

DEFINITIONS. Throughout this Agreement, the terms "you,” "yowr,” and "account owner” refar to the Customer named on the account, and
the terms "we," "owr,” and "us" refer to the Bank, The Bank of Mizsowi.

GENERAL AGREEMENT. You understand that the following Account Agreement ("Agrzement”) govams yowr Checking account with us,
alomg with any other documeants applicable to your account, including all account openimg disclosures that have been providad to you, which are
incorporated by reference. You understand that yowr account is also governed by applicable law. The infoamation found in the accomt opening
discloswes may change fiom time to titme in our sole discration. If the fees, charges, mininnum balance requirements, or other items: change in a
manner that would adversely affect you, we will provide you with wiitten notice prior to the change. By providing a written or electronic
signature on the Account Information document or other apesmant to open your account, or by using any of our deposit account sa1vices, you
and any idenfified account owners agree to the terms contained in this Account Agreement.

YOUR CHOICE OF ACCOUNT. You have inshueted us as to the title and type of the account that you have chozen. You acknowledge that it
is your sole responsibility to determine the full lagal effect of opening and maintaining the fype of account you have chozen. We have not set
forth all laws that may impact your chosen account. You must determine whether the account you select is apprepriate for yowr cwrent and
future needs. Except as requived by Jaw, we assume no legal responsibility to inform you as to the effact of yowr account chotce on your legal
mterests.

BUSINESS ACCOUNTS. Business accounts are those established by any parmership, corporaticn, association or other entity operated on a
for-profit basis; all corporations and associations operated on a not-for-profit-basis; and any individual who intends to use the account for
canrving on a trade or business. We reserve the nght to require separate wiitten authonzation, in a form acceptable to us, telling us who is
authorized to act on your behalf. We are authorized to follow the directions of a person designated as having authority to act on the entiny's
behalf unti! we receive wiitten notice that the authority has been terminated and have had a reasonable ima to act upon that notice.

ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS TO OPEN ACCOUNT. You agse to supply w with a copy of any chartering document, Operating
Agresment, or related documents requested by us.

ESCROW, TRUST, FIDUCIARY AND CUSTODIAL ACCOUNTS. When yow account is set up as an escrow account, hust account,
fiduciary account or custodial account, it is your sole responsibility to determine the legal effects of opening and maintaining an account of this
nzture. We have no obligation to act as trustes or to inguire into your powers or responsibiliias over this account We rezerve the 1ight to require
the decumentation necessary wnder applicable law to establish, maintain, manage, and close thiz 2ccount. There may be additional terms and
conditions that apply to thus account that are governad by a separate agreement.

TRANSFERS AND ASSIGNMENTS, We may assign or transfer any or all of our interest in this account. You cannot assign or transfer any
interest in your accoumt unless we agree in witing,

RESTRICTIVE LEGENDS. We are not required to honor any restiictive legend on checks you waite unless we have agreed to the reshiction
in wiiting signed by an officer of the Bank. Examples of reshictive legends are "two signatures required”, "nmust be presented within 90 days™ or
"not valid for more than $1,000.00."

STALE OR POSTDATED CHECKS. We rezarve the night to pay or dishonor a check more than six (6) months old wathout prior notice to
you You agree not to postdate any check drawn on the account. If you do, and the check 15 prezented for payment before the date of the check,
we may pay it or rehun it unpaid. We are not liable for paying any stale or postdated chack. Any damages you incur that we may be hiable for
are limited to actual damages not to exceed the amount of the check.

PREAUTHORIZED CHECKS OR DRAFTS. You should guard information about your account (such as your routing number and youwr
account munsbar) as carefully as you would guard blank checks. If you vohuntarily give such information about yowr account to a paty whichis
szeking to s2ll you goods or sexvices, without physically delivenng a check to that party, any debit to or withdrawal fiom yow account it
initiates will be deemed authorized by you

© 20012017 Congliance Systznn, I Ge2IN 87015520 - 2007254 7 3
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Terms and Conditions (continued)

VERIFYING FUNDS AVAILABILITY FOR CHECK. You authorize us to release funds availability information about yowr account to
individuals or merchants who reprezent to us that they have received a check from you.

CHECK SAFEKEEPING. If you utilize a check safekesping system or any other system offered by us for the retention of your checks, you
understand that the canceled checks will be retained by us and destroyed after a reasonable time peried or as required by law. Any request fora
copy of any chack may be subject to a fee, as indicated in the Schedule of Fees or Disclosure: and as allowed by law. If for any 1eason we
cannot provide you with a copy of a chack, owr liability will be limited to the leszer of the face amount of the check or the actual damages
sustained by you.

SUBSTITUTE CHECKS. To mzke check processing faster, federal law peymits financial institutions to replace original checks with "substitute
checks." These substitute checks are similar in size to the oniginal items with a slightly recuced image of the font and back of the criginal item.
The front of a substitute chack states: "This is a legal copy of your check. You can uss it the same way you would use the criginal check.” You
may e a substitute check as proof of payment just like the onginal item. Some or 2ll of the items that you receive back fiom us may be
substitute chacks.

WITHDRAWALS, Deposits will be avatlable for withdrawal consistent with the temms of the Disclosures. Withdrawals may be subject to a
sarvies charge.

DEPOSITS, Deposits may be made in person, by mail, or in ancther form and manner as agreed by us in our sole discretion We are not
responsible for hansactions matled wntil we actually receive and record them We may in our sole discretion refuse to accept paticular
mstuments as a daposit to youwr account. Cash deposits are credited to your acoount according to this Agreement. Other items you depoesit are
hzndled by us accarding to owr usnal collection practices. If an item you deposit is rehumed unpaid, we will debit your account for the item. You
are liable to ws for the amount of any check you deposit to your account that is rehumed wpaid and all costs and expenses related to the
collection of all or past of such amount from yven. Funds deposited to your account, excluding any Time Deposit accounts, are available in
accordance with the Discloswes.

COLLECTION OF DEPOSITED ITEMS, In receiving items for deposit or collection, we act only as your agent and assume no responsibility
beyond the exercise of crdinary care. All items are credited subject to final settlement in cash or credits. We shall have the right to forward items
to comespondants including all Federal Reserve Banks, and we shall not be liabls for default or neglect of said convespondents for loss in transit,
nor shall any comespondent be liable except for its own negligence. You specifically authenize s or owr comespondents to utlize Federal
Raserve Barks to handle such itenw: in accordance with provisions of Regulation J (12 CFR Part 210), as revised or amended from time to time
by the Federal Reserve Board In the event we are subject to local cleminghouse niles, you speeifically authorize us to handle such items in
accordance with the rmules and regulations of the clearinghouse.

If we permit you to withdraw funds from your account before final seftlement has been made for any deposited item, and final settlemant is not
mads, we have the right to charge your account or obtain a refund from you. In addition, we vy charge back any deposited item at any time
before final settlement for whatever reason. We shall not be hable for any damages resulting fiom the exercize of these rights. Except as pay be
athibutable to our lack of good faith or frilure to exercise ordinary care, we will not be liable for dishenor resulting from any reversal of credit,
refumn of deposited items or for any dumages resulting from any of thoze actions.

REMOTELY CREATED CHECKS, A remotely created check, as defined in Regulation CC, means a chack that is not created by the paying
bank and that does not bear a signahwe applisd, or puperted to be applied, by the person on whoze account the check is drawn. By having a
deposit account with us, you certify that all remotely created checks deposited to your account(s) will be axprassly and verifiably authorized by
the payer. And we resarve the nights to refuse for deposit any such remotely created check if we have any reazon to balieve that the item is
fraudulent in any manner and to obtain from you the payer's express, verifiable autheeization for any such item.

UNLAWFUL INTERNET GAMBLING. Restiicted hansactions are prohibited from being processed through your account with us as
required by the Unlawful Intemst Gambling Enforcement Act of 2006 and Regulation GG. A resticted transaction 15 a transaction or transunittal
involving any credit, funds, instuument, or proceeds in connection with the participation of another person in unlawful! Infernet gambling.

STATEMENTS. We will provide you with a periodic statement showing the account activity. The last address you supply us in wiiting will be
desmmed the proper address for mailing this statement to you. The account holder who receives this statement is the agent for hisher co-account
holder(s) for puposes of receiving the statement and items. You nmst exercize reasonable care in reviewing yowr statement and reazonable
prompiness in notifying us of any discrepanciss, such as alterations or forged or unauthorized signatures, even if by ths same wiongdoer.
Raasonable promptness will not exist if you fail to notify us within 30 days after we mail or otherwise make tha statement available to you. If
you fail to notify us of any discyepancies, with reasonable prompmmess, your right to aszert such discrepancies will be bared or limited to the
extent paimutted by law. Additionally, you agree that we will not be Liable for discrepancies reported to us after one year after we mail or
otherwize make the statement or item= available to you, even if we failed to exercise crdinary care. However, if the discrepancy is the result of
an elechronic fund transfer, the provisions of the Dizclosures will contiol its resolution If you do not receive a statemant from us because you
have failed fo claim it or have supplied us with an incorrect address, we may stop sending your statenwnts until you specifically make written
request that we resume sending your statements and you supply us with a proper address.

ACH AND WIRE TRANSFERS. This Agreement iz subject to Article 4A of the Uniform Commercial Code - Funds Transfers as adepted in
the state of Missowi. If you zend or raceive a wire hansfer, you apee that Fedwire® Funds Senvice may be wed. Federal Resenve Boad
Ragulation J is the law that covers transactions made over Fedwire® Funds Senvice. When you originate a funds transfer for which Feduire®
Funds Service is used, and you identify by name and munber a beneficiary financial institution, an intermediary financial institution or a
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Terms and Conditions (continued)

bensficiary, we and every receiving or beneficiary institution may rely on the identifying number to make payment. We may rely on the mumber
even if it identifies a financial institution, person or account other than the one named

If you are a party to an Automated Clearing Houze ("ACH") entry, you agree that we may transmit an entiy through the ACH, and you agee to
be bound by the Nationa) Automated Clearing House Association (NACHA") Operating Rules and Guudelines, the nles of any local ACH, and
the nules of any other systems through which the enhy is made.

PROVISIONAL PAYMENT. Credit we give you is provisional until we receive final settlement for that entiy. If we do not recaive
final settlement, you agree that we are entitled to a refund of the amount credited to you in connection with the entry, axd the party
miaking payment to you via such entry (ie., the originator of the entiy) shall not be deanved to have paid you in the amount of such entry.

INTERNATIONAL ACH TRANSACTIONS, If your tansaction originates fiom a financial agency that is outside of the temitorial
jurisdiction of the United States, it may be subject to additional review for compliance with the rules of the Office of Foreigm Ascets
Conhrol (OFAC). If 2dditional review is required, the Intemational ACH transaction will not be available to you unti it passes final
verification.

NOTICE OF RECEIPT. We will not provide you with notice of our receipt of the order, unless we are so requested by the tansfer
criginator in the order. However, we will continue to rotify vou of the receipt of payments in the periodie statements we provide to you

CHOICE OF LA, We mazy accept on your behalf payments to your account which have been tansmitted, that are not subject to the
Electronic Fund Transfer Act, and vow rights and obligations with raspact to such payments shall be construzd in accordance with and
governed by the laws of the state where we are located

YOUR RESPONSIBILITY FOR BACK OF CHECK. Al negotiable paper ("checks") prasented for deposit nmst be in a format that can be
processed and we may refise to accept any check that doss not meet this requirement. All endorsenients on the reverse side of any check
deposited into your acceunt must be placed on the left side of the check when looking at it from the front, and the endorsements must be placed
=0 35 not to go beyond an area located 1-%4 inches from the left edge of the check when locking at it from the front. It is your responsibility to
encwe that theze requirements are met and yon are responsible for any loss incuned by us for falwe of an endovsemsnt to meet this
Tequirement,

STOP PAYMENTS. You may stop payment on a check drawn against yow account by a record or wiitten order or othar confinmation as
allowed by us, provided that we receive the Stop Payment Order in a time and mamner that gives us a teasonable oppartunity to act on it. The
Stop Payment Order must describe the item or account with reasonable certainty. Oral requests for a Stop Payment Order are binding on us for
14 calendar days only, and nmist be confirmed by you in a record or wiiting within that period. If the record or wiitten confirmation is not
received as specified, we will no longer be bownd by your request. Upon receipt of confumation in a record or waiting, a Stop Payment Order on
a check remains in effect for six months or until we receive a 1ecord or writing reveking the Stop Payment Order, whichever occws first. If the
item on which a Step Payment Chder has been placed has not cleared or been returned to you by the payee, you may renew tha Stop Payment
Order for an additional six months by providing a request to us in a record or wiiting within the time period the Stop Payment Order is in effect
A Stop Payment Order on an EFT debit remains in effect until the earlier of 1) your withdrawal of the Stop Payment Order, 2) the ratun of the
debit enty, or 3) six wonths from the date of the Stop Payment Ouder, uxless you renew the Stop Payment Order. You may renew the Stop
Payment Order for an additional six months to prevent the transfer fiom being paid by providing a request to s within the time paxiod the Stop
Payment Order is in effect. When a stop is placed on a nmdtiple debit enty transfer, we may require youwr confumation in a racord or waiting
stating that you have canceled your authorization for the transfer with the payee (a Stop Payment Order does not revoke authorization). You will
be charged a fee every time you request a Stop Payment Order, and for each Stop Payment Order renswal you make. You understand that we
ny accept the Stop Paymsent Order 1equest fiom any of the authonized signars of the account rezardless of who signad the chack. A release of
the Stop Payment Order may be made only by the person who initiated the stop payment request. Our acceptance of a stop payment request does
not constitute a representation by ws that the item has not abeady been paid or that we have had a reasonable epportunity to act cn the requast.

A Stop Payment Order may be placed on eithey 3 one-time an=far or on a nnultiple debit entry transfer. If you request a stop payment on a
nmltiple debit entry transfer, we nuust receive the Stop Payment Order, orally or in a record or writing, at least three business days before a
scheduled multiple debit entry. If fhie Stop Payment Order is requested for an Electronic Check Conversion or othar one-tins transfer, we nmst
receive the request, orally or in a record or waiting, in a period of time that provides us a reasonable opportunity to act on it prior to acting on the
debit enhy, otherwise this Stop Payment Order shall be of 1o effect. Oral stop payment orders are binding on us for 14 calendar days only, and
nmist be confirmad by you in a reccrd or writing within that period.

The Stop Payment Order shall be governed by the provision of the Uniform Conmnercial Code 4A in effect in the state in which we are located,
NACHA Operaring Rules, and any applicable state law.

We have a daily cutoff time by which we nuust receive any knowledge, notice, Stop Payment Order, set-off or legal process affecting ow right or
duty to pay a chack. That cutoff time is one hour after the opening of your branch's banking day, following the banking day on which youwr
branch received the check.

DEATH OR INCOMPETENCY, Neither the death nor the legal adjudication of incompetence of any individual autherizad to act on yow
behalf revokes our authority to accept, pay, or collect items mtil we know of the fact of death or of an adjudication of incompetence and have a
reasonzble opportunity to act on it. To the extent permitted by law, even with knowledge, we may for 10 days after the dats of death, pay checks
drawn on or before the date of death unless ordered to stop payment by a person claiming an interest in the account.

NOXN-SUFFICIENT FUNDS AND OVERDRAFTS. If your account lacks sufficient funds available to pay a chack, preauthorized transfer or
other dsbit activity presented for paymant, we may (1) retwm the item, or (2) pay the item at owr discretion. If we retwm the item without paying
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Terms and Conditions (continued)

it, we may charge you a non-sufficient fimds fae. If we do pay the item on your behalf, you will be responsible to pay the overdrawn balanes and
an overdraft fee. Overdiafts may be coversd by our standard overdiaft practice that comes with yowr account or an overdraft protection plan,
such as a link to an account or a line of credit. As part of owr standard overdraft practice, we do not autherize and pay overdrafts on ATM or
everyday debit card transactions unless you request us to do 0. Our handiing of these items may subject your account to 2 fes as disclosed in the
fes schedule or other Disclosures. Unless we advize you otherwize, we will process checks and other debit itemys in an ordsr datermined in owr
sole discretion.

PROCESSING ORDER. We will process items, such as credits, checks, and other debit items in accordance with our processing oxder policy.
The processing order of thess itenys is inportant because if there is ot enough money in the account to pay for the itams in the order they are
processed in accordance with the processing order, there may be an overdraft on your account which may result in overdraft or non-sufficient
finds fees or an increase in the amount of these fees.

SIGNATURES. Yow signahue on the Account Information document is yowr authonzed signatwre. You authorize us, at any time, to chage
you for all checks, drafts or other orders for the payment of woney, that are drawn on ws regardless of by whom or by what means (including
facsimile sigmature(s)) your signature may have been affixed s0 long as the signatwe rezembles the signahwe specimen in cur files. For
withdrawal and other prrposes relating to any aceount you have wath us, we ave authorized to recognize your signaturs; and we will not be liabla
ta you for refising to honor signed inshuments or instuctions if we believe in good faith that one or more of the signatwes appearing on the
inshument or mstuctions is not gemuine.

If your itemws are signed wing any facsimile signahure or non-manual form of signahure, you acknowledge that it is solely for your banefit and
convenience. You agres that no facsimle signature you have autherizad ws to honor may be considered a forgery or an unauthorized signature,
and that every authonzed facsinule simnature shall be effective as the signatery's ovwn oniginal, manual signahme. You accept sole 1esponsibility
for maintaining secwity over any device affixing the signature as such signature will be effective regardless of whather the person affixing it
was authorized to do s0. Yowr autherization notwithstanding, we are ot obligated to accept or pay any items bearing facsimile signahures.

Further, most checks, and other items are processad sutomatically, i e., without individual review of each item. Therefore, unless we aprezin a
separate writing, in owr sole discretion, upon your request and due to unique circumstances to conduct individual review of each item, you agree
that we are acting within coxumon and reasonable banking practices by automatically processing checks, and other items, i.e., without individual
review of each check, or item. You agpes to indenminify, defend and hold us hamlezs fiom and agax.n.# all lozz, costs, damage, hability, and other
injury (ineluding reazonable attomey fees) that you or we xay suffer or incur as a result of this practice.

FEES, SERVICE CHARGES AND BALANCE REQUIREMENTS. You agrse to pay us and are respensible for any fees, charges or
balance"depcmt requirements as provided in the Fee Schedule or Disclosures provided to you at the tine you opaned the account. Fee;, charges
and balance requirements may change from time to time. W also reserve the right to mposs a service clm;e for cashing checks drawn on yowr
account if the person cazhing the check is not a customer of this Bank.

SET-OFFS AND SECURITY INTEREST. If you ever ows us money as a bonower, guaranter or otherwise, and it becomes due, we have the
right under the law (called "set-off'") and under this Agreament (by which you grant us a secwity inferest in your deposit account and any other
accounts keld by you) to use your account funds to pay the debt, whers permitted by law. The zecinity interest granted by this Apeemsnt is
consensual and is in addition to owr right of set-off.

CLAIMS, In response to any gamishment, attachment, reshaming crder, injunction, levy, citation to dizcover assets, judgment, reclamation
other order of cowt or other legal process ("Claim(z)™), we have the right to place a hold on, remove from yowr account(s) and/or remit to the
desipated third-party(ies) any awount on deposit in your account as set forth in and required by such Claim(s). In addition, we may chage
against yowr account(s) any fee authorized by law in connection with the Claim(s) or as otharwise sat forth in the fee schedule.

DORMANT ACCOUNTS. You understand that if your account is donnant, we may charge fees specified in the Dizelonwes to the extent

permitted by the law. You agree that we are relieved of all responsibility if your account balance is escheated (that is, huned over to the state) in
accordance with state law.

ATTORNEVYS' FEES AND EXPENSES. You agiee to be liable to us for any loss, costs or expenses, including reazonable attoineys’ fees to
the extant pamitted by law, that we incur as a result of any dispute involving your account, and you authorize us to daduct any such less, costs
or expanse from your account without prior notice to yvou. This obligation includes disputes batween yowrself and us involving the account and
situations whare we become invelved in disputes between you and an authorized signer, anothar joint ownar, or a third party claiming an interest
in the account. It also includes situations where you, an authonzad sigrer, another joint owner, or a third party takes action with respect to the
account that cauzes us, in good faith, to seek the advice of counsel, whether or not we actually become involved in a dispute.

LEGAL PROCESS AGAINST ACCOUNT, You agree to ba responsible for, to reimburse us, and'or have yowr account chargad for any

expanses or reasonable attornay fees we intwr due to an attachment, g.umshmm: levy or subpoena of records of your account. Any gamishment
or other levy against yowr account is subject to owr night of set-off and secwity intersst. We may reshict the uze of yowr account if it is involved

m any legal proceeding.

CLOSING ACCOUNT. We nuy close the account at any time, with or without cause, after sending you notics as required by the law. At ow
diseretion, we have the autherity to pay an otherwise proparly payable check, which is presented after the closing of youwr account. Such a
texmination will not 1eleaze you from any faes or other obligations incwred before the termination We will send a check for the balance n owr
poszession to which you are entitled.
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Terms and Conditions (continued)

OUR WAIVER OF RIGHTS. You understand and agree that no delay or faihure on our past to exercize any right, remedy, power or privilege
available to ws under this Apreement shall affect or preclude o future exercize of that right, remedy, power o privilege.

YOUR WAIVER OF NOTICE, By signing the Account Information form, you waive any notice of non-payment, dishonor or protest
regarding any items credited to or charged agaimst your deposit account. For exanple, if a check that you deposited is dishonored and retumed to
us, we are not required to netify you of the dishouner.

NOTICE. You are responsible for notifying us of any change to the name, type or address of your entity or other information affecting your
account. Notices mut be in a form ard manner acceptable to us with encugh information to allow us to identify the account, Notics sent by you
to us is not effective until we have received it and have had a reasonable opportunify to act upon it. Wiitten notice zent by us to you is effective
when mailed to the last address supplied

AMENDMENTS AND ALTERATIONS, You agmee that the tarm ard conditions governing vour account may be amended by us from time
to time. We will notify you of ansendments as required by applicable law. Yow confinued use of the account evidences your agreement to any
amendments. Notices will be sent to the most recent address shown on the account records.

EFFECTIVE APPLICABLE LAWS AND REGULATIONS, You understand that this Ameemsnt is governsd by the laws of Mizzow,
except to the extent that federal law is controlling. Changes in theze laws and regulations may modify the temw and conditions of your
account(s). We do not have to notify you of these changes, unless rzquirad to do s0 by law. If any of the terms of this Apeement come into
conflict with the applicable law and are declared to be invalid or unenforceabls, those terms will be nullified to the extent that they are
inconsistent with the law ard the applicable law will govem However, this shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions.
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MICR Requirements
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(Examples provided are for 3 Digit formats; to accommodate longer avvount numbers you will adjust
by moving “ presently appearing in field number 28 to the right.)

B= Brar;ch Numbaer
# = Serial No (WMICR)

X = Auto Space = Dash
T = Variable Process Codo

V = Variable No
"' = Accountl Symbol

KEY: C = Check Digit

0-8 = Constant No.

The Bank of Missouri will not be responsible for the accuracy of checks or deposit tickets printed by

another company using the above specifications.
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Additional Financial Solutions

Through our divisions, the bank offers brokerage services, insurance and investments and
retirement planning.

Investments & Retirement Planning

Reliable Trust Services
Complete Financial Planning
Wealth Management Strategies
Expert IRA Administration

Principal Fiduciary

Proven Investment Management
Custom Benefit Plans for Employees
Attractive Benefits for Executives

NOT A DEPOSIT | NOT FDIC INSURED | NOT INSURED BY ANY FEDERAL
GOVERNMENT AGENCY | NOT GUARANTEED BY THE BANK | MAY GO DOWN IN VALUE

Private Client Group

¢ Investment Consulting & Management ¢ Business Exit Planning
e Comprehensive Financial Planning ¢ Trust & Estate Planning
» Executive Compensation Arrangement

NOT A DEPOSIT | NOT FDIC INSURED | NOT INSURED BY ANY FEDERAL
GOVERNMENT AGENCY | NOT GUARANTEED BY THE BANK | MAY GO DOWN IN VALUE

Reliable Community Title Company

e Real Estate Title Insurance ¢« Real Estate Title Searches
o Real Estate Closing Transactions ¢  Construction Disbursement

WE'RE DNLINE, ARDUND THE CORNER,
AND AT HAND TO SERVE YDU BETTER.
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Invitation to Connect

Thank you for the opportunity to present our recommendations for banking services to
Christian County. We hope you'll see that our convenient locations, local commitment to
community and variety of account services will meet your needs.

We encourage you to get to know us. The bank’s website is a great tool to learn more about
us and our services. Please also search for The Bank of Missouri on social media and hit ‘like’.
Follow us to see what we're up to and who we're helping across our great state.

Facebook | Instagram | LinkedIn | Twitter | YouTube

BankofMissouri.com

B

Mission Statement
THE BANK OF MISSOURI is an independent community bank.
LOOKING to expand into communities with growth potential,
STRIVING to meet the financial needs of those communities with services,
GIVING through our resources and associates to the communities we serve, and
PROVIDING a value to our shareholders.

THE

\YBANK

OF MISSOURI

WE'RE DNLINE, ARDUND THE CORNER,

AND AT HAND T0 SERVE YDU BETTER.
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(OZARK BANK

Post Office Box 220
Ozark, Missouri 65721
417-581-2321
June 21, 2021 Fax 417-581-2235

ozarkbank.com

Ralph Phillips, Presiding Commissioner

Lynn Morris, Eastern District Commissioner
Hosea Bilyeu, Western District Commissioner
100 W. Church St., Room 100

Ozark, MO 65721

RE: Depository Proposal for Christian County Public Funds
Members of the Christian County Commission,

Ozark Bank hereby submits our proposal to continue as the depository for Christian County for the upcoming
four-year period (2021 — 2023, with the option to renew up to one (1) additional two-year period if agreed upon
by both County and Bank).

We have thoroughly read and understand all provisions of the solicitation. Ozark Bank agrees to execute any
required DEPOSITORY AGREEMENT, subject to clarifications or exceptions noted on the enclosed Proposal
Response Form, Section 1 1.

Enclosed are the following; Signed Declaration
Three (3) Business References
Final Mandatory Compliance Checklist
Exhibit A - Proposal Response Form
Exhibit 1 - Proposed Cost Schedule
IDC Financial Publishing Bank Rating
Funds Availability Schedule
Bank Contact Information
Sample Statement
Sample CD-ROM
Exhibit B - Signed Authority To Bind Agreement

Additionally, Ozark Bank will be pleased to consider requests for loans to Christian County, subject to
governing Missouri statutes and the bank's credit policy.

Ozark Bank is truly a community bank. For over a century, we have been serving the needs of Christian County
and its communities. We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal to the Christian County

Commission. Please let us know if you have any questions regarding our proposal.

Sincerely,

L (%?d%t‘
ohn R. Hépeth

Chief Financial Officer

MEMBER FDIC



(37) Declaration:

The vendor hereby declares understanding, agreement, and certification of compliance to provide
the items and/or services, at the prices quoted, in accordance with all terms and conditions,
requirements, and specifications of this original invitation to bid. The vendor further agrees that upon
receipt of an authorized purchase order from the Christian County Commission or when a Notice of
Award is signed and issued by the Commission, a binding contract shall exist between the vendor and

Christian County. Signature required below confirming understanding of this statement.

Doing Business as (DBA) Name Legal Name of Entity/Individual Filed with IRS for this
Tax ID No.
OZARK BANK OZARK BANK

Mailing Address IRS Form 1099 Mailing Address

P.0. BOX 220 P.0. BOX 220
City, State, Zip Code City, State, Zip Code
OZARK, MO, 65721 OZARK, MO, 65721
Contact Person Email Address:

JOHN R. HEDGPETH jhedgpethlozarkbank.com
Phone Number Fax Number:

{417) 581 - 2321 (417) 581 - 2235
Avuthorized Signature Date
June 21, 2021

/" g
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List three (3) business references:

1st

Company Name: Representative Name:
Christian County Treasurers Office Karen Matthews
Address City State Zip
100 W. Church Street, Room 209 Ozark MO 65721
Business Phone Business Fax Cellular Phone
(417) 582 - 4348 (417) 581 - 1191 =

email address if available - karenmatthewschristiancountymo. gov

2nd

Company Name: Representative Name:

Employee Screening Services of Missouri Nathan Carter

Address City State Zip

2055 S. Stewart Ave, Ste A Springfield MO 65804
Business Phone Business Fax Cellular Phone

(417) 887 - 7697 (660) 826 - 3960 _

email address if available - nathancarter@yourdrugtesting.com

3rd

Company Name: Representative Name:

Evans and Green Attorneys at Law Doug Evans

Address City State Zip

1615 S. Ingram Mill Road, Bldg F Springfield MO 65804
Business Phone Business Fax Cellular Phone

(417) 889 - 0111 (417) 889 - 616l I

email address if available - douglevansgreenlaw.com

12| Page



FINAL MANDATORY COMPLIANCE CHECKLIST:

Please use the below table to ensure your bid is fully compliant before you seal it for submission. If
you have any guestions regarding any of these items, please call:

Madi Hires, Executive Administrative Assistant
(417) 582-4300

countycommission@christiancountymo.gov

FINAL COMPLIANCE CHECKLIST (V)

| am submitting my bid prior to the specified deadline. (Page 2, Section 2)

| understand that no faxed or electronically transmitted bids will be accepted. (Page 2,
Section 1)

I have filled out, signed, and dated the declaration page, and | understand that failure
to do so will result in rejection of my bid. (Page 11, Section 37)

I am including one (1) unbound original and four (4) copies of my bid. | understand that
I must include The Price Sheet found in Exhibit A, Page 3 - Exhibit 1, and all pages
thereafter,

| am enclosing my bid in a sealed envelope, and | am marking the envelope “SEALED
BID - DO NOT OPEN". [Page 2, Section 1)

I have filled out, signed, and dated the Authorized to Bind Agreement, and understand
that failure to do so will result in rejection of my bid. (Exhibit B, Page 2).

4% B S| % K%

I am indicating on the envelope the good/service that | am bidding on.

15| Pag:



PROPOSAL RESPONSE FORM - BANKING DEPOSITORY SERVICES
2021 THROUGH 2023

1. Proposed Cost Schedule is attached. All requested services will be provided at NO CHARGE to the
County, with the exception of Credit Card Fee’s, which would be assessed by our processing partner
Heartland Merchant Services. See Note (A) on the Proposed Cost Schedule.

2. ACH Payroll Processing will be provided at NO CHARGE to the County. The payroli file would need
to be submitted to the bank by 3:00 PM two business days before the settlement date through our secure
online banking site.

3. Ozark Bank will pay interest on all Christian County checking accounts (currently 16 accounts: 9 for
County Treasurer, 4 for County Collector, 2 for County Clerk, and 1 for County Recorder of Deeds) and
all Christian County savings accounts (currently 2 for County Collector) covered by the Depository
Agreement. Rates are quoted in relation to the most recent Effective Federal Funds Rate, as published
in the Wall Street Journal, adjusted weekly. The Effective Federal Funds Rate as of 06/18/21 is 0.10%.

The interest rate will be ticred (based on the daily collected balance in any individual checking or
savings account). The first $10,000,000 in balances will earn interest at the Effective Federal Funds
Rate plus 10 basis points, with a Guaranteed Floor Rate of 0.15%. Balances above the first $10,000,000
will earn interest at the Effective Federal Funds Rate minus 10 basis points, with a Guaranteed Floor
Rate of 0.05%. Opening of additional County accounts for the purpose of maintaining individual
account balances below $10,000,000 will be prohibited.

Below is an example of a tiered interest calculation (based on the Effective Federal Funds Rate of 0.10%
as of 06/18/21), assuming during peak tax collection period, the Christian County Collector Collections
account might have a daily collected balance of $53,455,117.21.

$0.01 - $10,000,000.00 earns interest at the rate of 0.20% ($10,000,000.00 x 6.20% / 365 = $54.79)
$10,000,000.01 - $53,455,117.21 earns interest at the rate of 0.05% ($43,455,117.20 x 0.05% / 365 = $59.53)

4, Christian County funds deposited with Ozark Bank will be secured by acceptable collateral for public
funds as required by Missouri statute. Market value of the collateral will be equal to 100% or greater of
funds on deposit, less the amount that is insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).

All collateral will be held by a third-party institution (currently UMB Bank, Kansas City, MO).

Safekeeping receipts for pledged collateral shall be delivered to the Christian County Treasurer and said
collateral shall be released by the third-party institution when:

1) Authorized by the County through a statement signed by the County Treasurer or designated backup
(currently the Deputy Treasurer), or
2) Bank has substituted collateral of the same or higher value.

Ozark Bank would anticipate no changes to the collateralization, recordkeeping, reporting, and pledging
/ releasing procedures currently in effect.

5. ON-LINE ELECTRONIC BANKING SERVICES

a. Qzark Bank can provide online banking services at no additional cost with the following features:

A



Current day’s activity

Daily balance reporting available by 8:00 am the following business day
Detailed debit and credit postings

Initiation of regular recurring wire transfers

Initiation of ACH credit transactions

Placement of stop payment orders

Multi-level security

Subject to required security controls and approved dollar limits.

b. Memo post information is available online and credited to the available balance, the transactions are
then hard posted to the account during nightly processing which usually occurs at approximately 8:00
PM on weekdays. Transfers made online are effective immediately. Six months of transaction history
and 24 months of statements are available online.

¢. Files can be downloaded from the Internet Banking website detailing transaction and check
information in either Comma Separated Value (.CSV), text format (.TXT), or Microsoft Money format
(.OFX). Three options are available for selecting a download date range: between two dates, since the
last statement, or since the last download. No costs are associated with this service.

d. Downloading files directly from online banking is available, and the files will contain transactions
posted through the prior business day.

e. Ozark Bank can receive properly formatted NACHA files with or without an offsetting record to our
online banking site for credit processing at no additional costs.

f. Christian County Treasurer - Karen Matthews and Christian County Collector — Ted Nichols.
Ozark Bank, originally chartered in 1906, has served the residents and businesses of Christian County
for nearly 115 years. The following table of bank performance ratios and peer group comparisons
reflects the financial stability of Ozark Bank.

As of March 31, 2021 (the most recent Call Report data provided to the FDIC):

Ratio Ozark Peer Group Missouri
Bank Average Average
Net Income (% of Average Assets) 98% 1.29% 1.29%
Tier One Leverage Ratio 8.60% 9.94% 9.85%
Noncurrent Loans and Leases to Gross 0.01% 0.60% 0.49%
Loans and Leases ]

Per Regulatory Guidelines, a financial institution with a Tier One Leverage Ratio greater than or equal
to 5.0%, along with satisfying other certain capital requirements, is considered well capitalized.

Peer Group Average: Insured commercial banks having assets between $300 million and $1 billion
Missouri Average: All insured commercial banks in the State of Missouri.

Ozark Bank remains a strong, well-capitalized community bank.
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10.

11.

IDC Financial Publishing ranks Ozark Bank in the Superior category as of March 31, 2021. A copy of
the complete IDC Financial report for Ozark Bank is attached.

Copy provided.

We have included a sample statement. Statements would be identical to the current format received by
the County.

We have included a sample CD-ROM with images. CD-ROMs would be identical to the current format
received by the County.

Regarding the PROPOSAL:

Section 2 — Investment

2.1 and 2.2 specify that interest will be paid on closing ledger balances. Ozark Bank will pay interest on
closing collected balances.

2.2.2 specifies from time to time, County may desire to purchase government securities through the
depository. Government securities may now be purchased directly online at www. TreasuryDirect.gov.

This would be the recommended process for the County.

Section 3 — Collateralization;

3.4.1 specifies that verification of replacement securities will be required prior to release in writing.
Substitution of securities is a simultaneous process, safeguarded by the third-party institution.
Verification of replacement pledges prior to release would require twice the level of securities. The
current collateral pledging procedures in place will be maintained.

Section 6 — Qther Services:

6.3 — Positive Pay is available and will be provided at NO COST.



12.

13.

14.

Business teller locations and hours:

Location

Lobby Hours

Drive-Thru Hours

106 — 112 N 2™ Avenue
Ozark MO 65721

9:00 a.m. — 5:00 p.m.
Monday ~ Friday

NA

1509 W. Jackson
Qzark MO 65721

9:00 a.m. — 5:00 p.m.
Monday — Friday
9:00 a.m. — Noon Saturday

9:00 a.m, — 5:00 p.m.
Monday — Friday
9:00 a.m. — Noon Saturday

Teller On Demand
7:00 a.m. — 7:00 p.m.
Monday — Friday
8:00 a.m. — noon Saturday

1351 W. State Hwy NN
Ozark MO 65721

9:00 a.m. — 5:00 p.m.
Monday — Friday

9:00 a.m. — 5:00 p.m.
Monday — Friday

Teller On Demand
7:00 a.m. — 7:00 p.m.
Monday — Friday
8:00 a.m. — noon Saturday

410 Massey Blvd
Nixa MO 65714

9:00 a.m. — 5:00 p.m.
Monday — Friday
9:00 a.m. — Noon Saturday

9:00 a.m. — 5:00 p.m.
Monday — Friday

Teller On Demand
7:00 a.m. — 7:00 p.m.
Monday — Friday
8:00 a.m. — noon Saturday

604 E. South Street
(Apple Market)
Ozark MO 65721

NA

Teller On Demand
7:00 a.m. — 7:00 p.m.
Monday — Friday
8:00 a.m. — noon Saturday

Ozark Bank will be pleased to extend the preferred pricing described on the Proposed Cost Schedule to
other County officeholders and County departments.

Christian County funds deposited with Ozark Bank will be secured by acceptable collateral for public
funds as required by Missouri statute, Market value of the collateral will be equal to 100% or greater of
funds on deposit, less the amount that is insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).

A



EXHIBIT 1

PROPOSED COST SCHEDULE

[ ITEM PROPOSED COST VOLUME
Deposit Items No Cost 33,000
Checks Paid No Cost 6500

Returned Checks No Cost 35
Account Transfers No Cost 50
Stop Payments No Cost 40
ACH Transactions No Cost 1500
Incoming Ne Cost
Outgoing Direct Deposit No Cost 90 Files
Wire Transfers No Cost
Incoming No Cost 25
Outgoing No Cost 250
Account Maintenance No Cost Per month
Monthly Bank Statements N Per month
: o Cost
w/account analysis 13 monthly 2quarterly
Security Safekeeping No Cost
Safe Deposit Box-List size Wi Dt One 3x10, One 5X10,
and location with pricing One 10x10
Credit Card Fees Collector 2.5%
Treasurer 2.89% &
(See Note A Attached) 0.18 cents
4.13% & 0.18 cents Monthly
Fixed @29.75
Debit Card Fees No Cost Same As Above
Other costs: itemized on
|_separate sheet of paper No Cost
OTHER FEES

[ ITEM PROPOSED COST
Deposited Checks Returned Ko Bost
Recleared Deposited ltems No Cost

ACH Return ltems No Cost

ACH File Reversals No Cost

ACH Item Reversal No Cost
Image Copies of Checks No Cost
Research and Reconciling No Cost
Special Statement No Cost
Statements on CD No Cost
Monthly Internet Banking Fee No Cost

3| Page




Note A:

Ozark Bank provides these services through our partnership with Heartland Merchant Services.
All fees associated with this service are determined and assessed by Heartland Merchant
services. Heartland Merchant Services is a leading provider of credit card processing. In order to
prepare a competitive proposal for services, we will need a copy of a monthly services statement
showing monthly volumes and fees prepared by the current services provider for both the
Treasurer’s office and the Collector’s office. Once that information is received, a proposal to
provide these services can be prepared for review by the County Commission.
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OZARK BANK

(OZARK BK)
LOCATION: OZARK, MO
TYPE: BANK
TOTAL ASSETS: $296MM

IDC Rank of Financial Ratios 2021-Q1:

CAMEL Analysis

Capital Ratios - A Foundation for Safety and Soundness

Tier 1 Capital % Tier 1 Assets

Risk Based Capital % Risk Based Assets
Tier | Capital % Risk Based Assets

Well Capitalizecd

205

Superior (200 - 300)

8.6%
NC
NC

Adequacy of Capital and Loan Loss Reserve to Cover Loan Delinquency

toan Loss Reserve % Tier | Capital
Loans 90 Days Delinquent % Tier | Capital
Leans Nonaccrual + REQ % Tier | Capital

9.3%
0.0%
0.1%

More than Adequate Capital and Loan Loss Reserve to Cover Loan Delinquency

Margins Measure Management

Common Sharehoider's Net Operating Profit After Tax % Tangible Equity Capital, NOPAT ROE (1yr)

Cost of Equity COE (1yr)

ROE Adds Substantial Value

Net Interest % Earning Assets (1yr)
Noninterest Income % Earning Assets (1yr)
Noninterest Expense % Earning Assets {Tyr)
Operating Profit Margin OPM (1yr)
Average OPM

12.8%
6.5%

3.37%
0.55%
2.55%
34.9%



OPM Risk Standard Deviation 3.5%
Average OPM Risk

Earnings Return on Equity Equals the Operating Return Plus the Financial Return

Return of Net Operating Profit From Operations After Tax % Earning Assets (ROEA) 1.84%
Average Operating Return

Return on Financial Leverage (ROFL) = Spread X Leverage 10.26%
High Financial Return

ROEA less COF AT = Leverage Spread 1.31%
Wide Spread

Leverage Multiplier 8.34

Above Average Muitiplier

Liquidity Determines the Ability to Grow

Balance Sheet Cash Flow % Tier | Equity -8.4%
Percent Annual Growth in Equity Capital 2.1%
Nonperforming Assets % Total Loans 0.0%
liguid Loans % Stable Deposits and Borrowings Plus Excess Liquidity 64.6%
Interest-Bearing Liabilities % Earning Assets 79.4%
Liquidity Normal

Supplemental Ratios

investment Yield 0.9%
Loan Yield 4.9%
Cost of Adjusted Debt - After Tax 0.5%
Net Income % Avg Assels 1.1%

Reports

Resources



© 1986 - 2021 by IDC Financial Publishing, Inc. (IDC") All rights reserved. All pages within this Site and any
material made available for download are the property of IDC, or its licensors or suppliers, as applicable. The
Site Is protected by United States and international copyright and trademark laws. The contents of the Site,
including without limitation all data, reports, files, documents, text, photographs, images, audio, and video,
and any materials accessed through or made available for use or download through this Site, (“Content™),
including all such Content that may be provided by third party data providers and made available on the Site
("Third Party Data"), may not be copied, distributed, modified, reproduced, published or used, in whole or in
part, except for purposes authorized by the Terms of Use agreed to, or as otherwise approved in writing by
IDC. You may not frame or utilize framing techniques to enclose, or deep linking to, any name, trademarks,
service marks, logo, Content or other proprietary information (including; images, text, page layout, or form) of
IDC without our express written consent,

Limitations to Use of Financial Ratios and Ranks

Ranks are designed to provide IDC Financial Publishing, Inc.'s opinion as to the relative value of financial ratios,
and are subject to limitations in their use. The ranks have no value in forecasting the direction of future trends
of financial ratios. While in our opinion the selected ratios provide an ample financial picture for evaluating a
financial institution, the quality of individual financial institutions can also be influenced by factors not taken
into account in this analysis,

The quality of a financial institution is not fixed over time, but tends to undergo change. For this reason,
changes in ranks occur, reflecting changes in the individual financial ratios.The data utilized for calculations,
ranks, and other information was obtained from sources believed to be reliable and accurate; however,
neither the publisher nor its employees assume responsibility for the correctness or accuracy of data,
calculations, or liability for their use,



DC Financial Publishing, Inc.

RANK of Financial Ratios Defined by CAMEL

Each financial institution has a one-line analysis of financial ratios and 2 one-number summary rank.
IDC Financial Publishing's (IDCFP’s) unique CAMEL analysis utilizes financial ratios that have a
significant impact on the quality of the financial institution.

Summary Rank:

Superior Excellent Average Below Average | Lowest Ratios Rank of One |
200-300 165-199 125-164 75-124 2-74 1

Capital risk is determined by Tier I capital as a percent of Tier 1 assets and as a percent of risk-based
assets. Tier I & 11 capital as a percent of risk-based assets (risk-based capital ratios) measures credit and
interest rate risk as well as estimates risk in the asset base.

Adequacy of Capital and reserves measures the levels of delinquent loans, nonaccrual loans, restructured
and foreclosed assets relative to loan loss reserves and capital.

Margins are the best measurement of management, Margins represent the spreads between 1) operating
profit and net operating revenues, 2) after-tax return on earning assets less after-tax cost of funding, and
3} the retum on equity (ROE) compared to estimated cost of equity capital (COE).

Eaming returns measure the success of the bank's operating and financial strategies. Returns on earning
assets (ROEA) before funding costs measures a bank’s management of operations. Returns on financial
leverage (ROFL) measures financial management and the degree to which a bank uses deposits,
borrowing and debt to fund eaming assets not funded by adjusted tangible equity.

Liquidity measures 1) balance sheet cash flow as a percent of Tier I capital and 2} loans compared to
stable deposits and borrowings plus estimated unused lines of credit at the Federal Home Loan Bank.

Financial ratios, which illustratc IDCFP's CAMEL, represent most of the components of the RANK., but
not all the financial ratios used in the RANK process,

Limitations to Use of Financial Ratios and Ranks
Ranks are designed to provide IDC Financial Publishing, In¢.’s opinion as 1o the relative value of financial ratios and are subject to limitations in
their use. The ranks have no vatue in forecasting the direction of futwre teends of financial ralios, While in our opinion the sefected ratios provide
an ample financial picture for ¢valuating a thrifi, the quality of individuat savings institutions can also be influenced by factors not taken into
account in this analysis.
The quality of a financial institution is not fixed over time but tends to undergo change. For this reason, changes in ranks oceur, reflecting
changes in the individual financial ratios.
The data for calculations and ranks and other information found in this publication was obtained from sources believed to be reliable and
acourate; however, neither the publisher nor its employees assume responsibility for the correctness or accuracy of data, calculasions of ranks, or
liability for their use.

© 1986-2019 by IDC Financial Publishing, Inc. All rights reserved. No pait of the this document may be reprinted. reproduced, or utilized in any
form or by any electronic, mechanical, or other means, now known or hereafier invented, including photocopying and recording, or in any
information storage and retricval system, without the CXpress Wwritten permission of IDC Financial Publishing, Tnc.
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Glossary for Bank CAMEL Report

C - CAPITAL RATIOS

Tier I Capital as a % of Assets

The Tier I Capital Ratio is provided by bank and bank holding company call FEPOFLS.

Computations of Tier 1 Capital Ratios are based on Tier [ capital and Tier 1 assets as filed by banks on FDIC call
reports and by bank holding companies on Y-9C reports,

Tier I & IT Capital as a % of Risk-based Assets

The Risk-based Capital Ratie is provided by bank and bank holding company call reports.

Computations of risk-based capital ratios are based on qualifying capital and risk-adjusted assets as filed by banks
on FDIC call reports and by bank holding companies on Y-9C reports.

Tier I Capital as a % of Risk-based Assets
The Tier I Risk-based Capital Ratio is provided by bank and bank holding company call reports.
Tier I capital is divided by risk-based assets (as provided by banks and BHCs) and is shown as a percentage.

Ranks are capped based on levels of capital ratios, IDC caps rankings under the following conditions:

Category Tier 1 Capital Ratio Total Risk-Based Capital Ratio Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital Ratio | Rank Cap
Well Capitalized 5% ar Higher * | 10% or Higher * | 8% or Higher Nonc
Adequately Capitalized 4% to Less Than 5% + | 8% to Less Than 10% * ] 4% 1o Less than 6% 124
Under Capitalized 3% toLess Than4% | + | 6% to Less Than 8% + {1 3%to Loss Than 4% i

|- Sighificantly Under Capitalized Less'Than3%: -~ o[+ | LessThan 6% " "~ -1+ 1 Loss Thand%. . ' . |2
Critlcully Under Cipltalized. . | Less Than2% . | |- oo o oo [ — oo s

FDIC enforcement actions are reviewed each month for consent erders related to capital. If an institution is required
to mairtain a higher than adequate capital ratio, IDC uses requirement as being “Adequately Capitalized” for the
purpose of calculating their rank.

A — Adequacy of Tier 1 Capital and the Loan Loss Reserve to Cover
Loan Delinquency

Loan Loss Reserve as a % of Tier 1 Capital
The loan loss allowance is divided by Tier I capital and is shown as a percentage.

Loans 90 Days Delinquent as a % of Tier 1 Capital
Loans 90 days past due and accruing less loans guaranteed by U.S. Government or Rebooked "GNMA Loans”
repurchased are divided by Tier I capital and is shown as a pereentage.

Leans Nonacernal + Real Estate Owned as a % of Tier I Capital

Loans on nonaccrual, a portion of restructured loans, and other real estate owned less loans and
repossessed assets guaranteed by U.S. Government or Rebooked "GNMA Loans" repurchased are
divided by Tier 1 capital and is shown as a percentage.

Adequacy of capital is determined by adding the ratio of loans 90 days delinquent to Tier 1 capital plus the ratio of
nonaccrual loans and real estate owned to Tier 1 capital, then subtracting the ratio of the loan loss reserve to Tier 1
capital. If the ratio of delinquency exceeds the ratio of reserves, this reduces the amount of IDC’s estimate of Tier 1
capital available to cover risk. If the adjusted ratio of Tier 1 capital falls below 5%, IDCFP ranks are reduced below
125,

©1986-2019 IDC Financial Publishing, Inc. Bank CAMEL Definitions



M — Margins Measure Management
NOPAT ROE Less COE Measures Value Added

Common Sharcholder’s Net Operating Profit After Tax as a % of Tangible Equity Capital
{NOPAT ROE)

Net operating profit after tax return on tangible equity is also defined as the sum of return on earning assets (before
funding) and return on financial leverage (ROEA + ROFL),

Cost of Equity (COE)

The measure of a financial institution's cost of capital is the estimated cost of which the institution can raise
additional equity capital. In appraising firms that are not public or subsidiaries of publicly traded or bank holding
companies, IDC uses general risk, demonstrated by the 30-year T-Bond yield and the risk premium for financial
equities. The risk premium is 50% of the T-Bond yield adjusted by a risk multiplier for an institution's specific
financial risk.

The specific COE for an individual financial institution is determined by asset size, pretax coverage of net loan
charge-offs, loan delinguency risk to capital adjusted for variations in operating profit margins, and the level of
financial leverage. In order to quantify specific risk, a risk multiplier incorporates the following:

a) Size Risk - The risk multiplier is multiplied by 0.9x for institutions with assets over $1 billion, 1.0x for
assets between $500 million and $1 billion, 1.1x for assets $200 million to $500 million, 1.2x for assets
$100 to $200 million, and 1.3x for assets less than $100 million,

b) Financial Risk - The risk multiplier is set in a range of 0.8 to 1.2 based on pretax income (adjusted for
nonrecurring noninterest income or expense) plus the loan loss provision, together covering net charge-offs,

¢) Loan Risk to Capital - Financial institutions with loan delinquency plus nonperforming loans greater than
loan loss reserve, all stated as a percent of equity, are evaluated to measure potential loan loss risk to Tier |
capital. If this risk-adjusted Tier 1 equity ratio is below 5%, the institution is assigned a loan risk ratio of
2.0. All other institutions with adequate risk-adjusted Tier | capital above 5% use a loan risk ratio of 1.0.
The equity risk is adjusted by the loan risk ratio.

d) Variability of the Operating Profit Margin — Operating profit risk, which is 20% of the 5-Y ear standard
deviation of the operating profit margin, is added to the equity risk which is then used to adjust the risk
multiplier.

e} Finally, the risk multiplier is adjusted to reflect the use of financial leverage or the level of the leverage
multiplier. A leverage multiplier of 7.0 or less uses a factor of 1.0 times the risk multiplier, while an
increase in a leverage multiplier to 12.0 or higher requires as much as 2.2 times the risk multiplier.

* Asanexample, a large institution with low coverage of net charge-offs coupled with moderate loan
delinquency above the loan loss reserve and a risk in operating profit margin of 3.6 times 20% and leverage
of 7 would compute as follows: (9x .8x (1.0+(2x3.6))x or(9x.8x 1.7x 1), or 2.4 times equity risk
premium of 50% of the long bond yield of 2.8%, on March 31, 2019. This equals a risk premium of 1.7%
which is then added to the 2.8% yield on bonds to provide an estimate of 4.5% for the cost of equity
capital,

*  Anexample of a smaller institution with a lower coverage ratio, modest loan delinquency, but larger
variations in the operating profit margin of 5.0 and higher leverage multiplier of 9 would compute as
follows: (1.1 x 1.0x (1.0 + (2 x 5.0)) x 1.4) or (1.1 x [ x 2x 1.4}, or 3.1 times 50% of the long bond yield
of 2.8%, on March 31, 2019, for a risk premium of 4.3% added to the 2.8% long bond yield for an estimate
of 7.1% for the cost of capital.

Banks reporting as Sub Chapter § corporations report nel income after a zero-tax rate, while banks reporting as standard corporations use a
21% tax rute for 2018 and 34% prior to 2018. The cost of tangible equity capital (COE) for banks owned by a Sub Chapter § corporation, which
reporis zere taxes, is adjusted with a tax rate of 27% in 2018 and 34% prior fo 2018 to reflect a pretax COE compared fo a reported pretax ROE.
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Operating Profit Margin

Net operating revenues less salaries, employee benefits, expenses of premises and fixed assets, and other operating
expenses (excluding loan loss provision and losses on the sale of non-loan assets and amortization expense of
intangible assets) are divided by net operating revenue, as a percentage. Net operating revenue is defined as interest
income from loans and investments less interest expense plus noninterest operating income (excluding gains on the
sale of non-loan assets, gains and losses on financial assets carried at fair market value, and bargain purchase
income}. The operating profit margin is the inverse of the commonly used efficiency ratio.

Risk to the Operating Profit Margin
One standard deviation of the operating profit margin over five years (but not less than five quarters) measures risk
or volatility in profit margins. The risk level is also a measure of a bank’s complexity.

E — Earnings Return

Return on Earning Assets (ROEA)

The interest income from loans and investments plus noninterest income less opcrating and loan loss expenses (excluding
gain or loss on the sale of non-loan assets) less the applicable tax rate amount plus the increases in the loan loss reserve to
reflect cash accounting is divided by average eaming assets, as a percentage.

Return on Financial Leverage

ROFL reflects both the degree to which a bank uses debt and deposit funds to finance its operating strategy and the
after-tax cost of these debt funds. ROFL is calculated by multiplying the leverage spread times the leverage
multiplier,

Leverage Spread
The leverage spread equals the return on eaming assets less the cost of adjusted debt, both after tax. The cost of
adjusted debt equals the after-tax cost of funding divided by adjusted debt.

Leverage Multiplier

The leverage multiplier is defined as the ratio of adjusted debt to adjusted equity. Adjusted debt equals earning
assets (which includes the loan loss reserve) less adjusted tangible equity. Adjusted tangible equity equals
stockholder’s tangible equity capital plus the loan loss reserve.

L - Liquidity Determines the Ability to Grow

Balance Sheet Cash Flow as a % of Tier I Net Worth

Balance sheet cash flow equals operating cash flow minus financial cash flow. It measures the profit return on
physical assets in computing operating cash flow. When computing financial cash flow, balance sheet cash flow
separates cash and equivalents (cash and balances due from depository institutions) from earning assets. Operating
cash flow is defined as the change in retained earnings less the change in fixed assets. Financial cash flow is defined
as the change in all liabilities and capital less retained catnings, minus the change in earning assets,

If a financial institution finances its growth with increases in retained earnings equal to increases in growth
producing assets, but the financial cash flow is positive, then the balance sheet cash flow would be negative,
showing the change in liabilities (excluding retained earnings) is in excess of the change in loans and investments.
An institution with poor loan quality or risky investments experiences asset write-offs or write-downs, and at the
same time deposits are increased, or new borrowings incurred, to finance the asset base. Balance sheet cash flow
recognizes the shortfall and the risk to net capital of the institution,

Internal Growth of Equity Capital

The internal growth of equity capital is the reinvestment rate of retained earnings after dividends, plus the change in
the loan loss reserve as a percentage of the previous periods equity capital and loan loss reserve, The internal growth
rate of equity can indicate sustainable future growth,
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Loans Noncurrent + Restructured + Other Real Estate Owned as a % of Loans
High risk loans and assets, which include loans 90-days past due, nonaccrual and a portion of restructured loans plus
other real estate owned are divided by total loans plus other real cstate owned.

Mliquid Loans as a % of Stable Deposits and Borrowings Plus Excess Liquidity
Another measure of liquidity is the match between illiquid loans and stable deposits and borrowings plus available
lines of credit at the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB).

Tliquid loans are defined as loans and leases (nct of unearned income allowance, and reserves for loan losses) less
loans and leases held for sale. Stable deposits and borrowings are total domestic deposits less total time deposits
greater than $250,000 and other borrowed money with remaining maturity of one year or less plus excess of 80% of
loans secured by 1-4 family 1** lien mortgages, 5 or more family mortgages and home equity loans, if greater than
FHLB advances. The latter is added to deposits due to the ability to finance 80% of single family first mortgage, 5 or
more family mortgages and home equity loans at the FHLB.

Interest-Bearing Liabilities as a % of Earning Assets (Burden Ratio)

The latest quarterly interest-bearing liabilities are divided by earning assets, as a percentage. A high level of
liabilities requiring interest relative to earning assets paying interest creates a burden to the bank.

©1986-2019 1DC Financial Publishing, Inc. Bank CAMEL Definitions
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ALABAMA 207 208,382 91 142 122 14 0 6 3 68 60 118 133 40 157 129
ALASKA 277 8955 0.9 192 82 6 0 5 13 62 54 147 137 39 134 104
ARIZONA 295 47660 88 129 116 7 O 4 16 69 52 185 208 38 219 188
ARKANSAS 276 130,628 10.8 167 142 M ¢ 5 14 69 T3 146 139 43 142 135
CALIFORNIA 210 2708456 86 167 145 10 0 6 21 54 63 071 7.0 51 98 122
COLORADO 259 69,037 89 167 1563 8 O 3 B8 55 71 148 135 43 143 128
CONNECTICUT 270 229269 114 166 1562 36 O 5 19 82 73 133 154 39 136 148
DELAWARE 21 746472 86 177 162 & 0 4 3B 50 79 101 106 38 113 94
DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 185 1772 83 152 13% 10 3 &5 5 61 68 040 90 61 104 54
FLORIDA 47 274907 98 174 189 % 6 5 20 72 72 105 108 48 124 114
GEORGIA 214 158136 9.5 156 135 10 0 5 14 66 65 1,23 141 42 150 123
HAWAII 268 64905 7.8 147 134 13 O 2 10 58 64 08% {17 38 139 137
IDAHO 260 9391 102 175 163 9 0 3 18 71 58 120 124 47 127 108
ILLINOIS 253 585068 95 159 142 15 0 4 22 75 72 126 150 44 145 143
INDIANA 280 128268 99 154 138 9 ¢ 5 14 66 72 138 156 42 160 135
IOWA 252 120859 9.8 148 132 9§ i 5 11 66 73 122 129 48 132 125
KANSAS 230 85,607 10.6 165 151 9 1 6 12 83 74 116 121 54 125 118
KENTUCKY 249 72,058 106 163 152 8 ¢ 5 11 64 69 1.28 125 47 128 116
LOUISIANA 240 63,846 10.2 167 148 9 1 6 3 68 68 104 106 47 121 105
MAINE 252 35210 104 162 147 & ¢ 4 17 64 73 129 126 40 13.8 102
MARYLAND 267 51,352 104 161 138 9 0 8 13 75 66 120 138 41 150 124
MASSACHUSETTS 234 665300 91 169 154 10 O 3 40 51 78 069 118 43 121 113
MICHIGAN 276 321,237 94 145 128 15 0 10 19 73 B84 127 158 42 155 117
MINNESOTA 2§2 g55065 86 141 129 13 0 4 2 B9 M 147 153 44 156 159
MISSISSIPPI 254 134294 88 148 124 11 9 5 5 63 67 097 114 42 120 120
MISSOURI 277 226202 101 176 160 & ¢ 3 15 65 68 150 157 42 162 133
MONTANA 281 53605 94 151 133 16 O 3 14 61 64 157 161 38 156 141
NEBRASKA 278 95212 103 154 137 12 ¢ 4 16 70 73 148 146 43 146 129
NEVADA 291 24388 154 303 282 9 ¢ 7 48 68 62 299 183 43 181 223
NEW HAMPSH{RE 219 14086 104 157 145 8 O 2 18 67 75 088 88 43 99 76
NEW JERSEY 215 215387 104 161 143 10 Q¢ 7 1 81 8 090 116 50 118 104
NEW MEXICO 254 18570 97 17¢ 167 9 ¢ 5 11 58 61 146 148 60 153 152
NEW YORK 273 10,731,925 76 176 158 & ¢ 5 29 67 76 1.08 157 43 168 125
NORTH CAROLINA 254 3586074 7.5 163 143 9 0 4 21 50 67 086 121 45 128 122
NORTH DAKOTA 267 45281 96 150 134 11 0 5 10 68 73 1.52 163 50 17.2 170
OHIO 283 833857 93 150 127 N ¢ 6 7 62 66 114 129 39 136 132
OKLAHOMA 2711 163518 9.0 155 140 8 i 6 49 66 75 145 170 48 182 144
OREGON 287 38,149 94 165 134 N ¢ 1 29 67 59 150 164 39 166 129
PENNSYLVANIA 273 7320834 96 158 136 10 ¢ 7 56 63 69 080 100 39 124 126
RHODE ISLAND 281 197839 96 135 115 13 ¢ 7 12 68 67 098 116 37 122 116
SOUTH CAROLINA 240 25029 103 181 169 9 0 4 13 59 69 1.03 106 46 118 94
SOUTH DAKOTA 234 54554 123 205 188 17 @ 10 § 66 57 278 184 49 182 165
TENNESSEE 259 211,816 93 142 123 1 0 5 4 69 69 122 141 42 135 134
TEXAS 245 12395995 84 2089 199 6 0 3 48 46 68 094 118 51 128 137
UTAH 200 101,789 111 167 153 17 1 4 16 90 66 1.48 211 47 192 174
VERMONT 237 6862 92 161 149 10 0 4 19 59 69 142 123 46 132 97
VIRGINIA 283 611,632 111 239 220 22 ¢ 3 17 64 80 155 159 41 160 1386
WASHINGTON 262 106,137 9.8 152 137 1 0 3 14 84 62 107 115 39 126 113
WEST VIRGINTA 283 68,893 10.6 166 146 9 0 5 14 66 64 130 133 38 147 137
WISCONSIN 270 132897 11.0 158 143 10 0 5 17 83 71 146 136 47 140 114
WYOMING 247 10437 99 214 200 g O 3 9 51 70 133 128 54 132 113
GUAM 167 3013 82 139 127 7 1 256 9 89 60 0 47 48 67 84
MICRONESIA 24 200127 430 447 6 0 3 -4 29 47 103 73 39 76 93
PUERTO RICO 273 96,437 9.0 195 171 18§ 0 18 20 50 71 1,13 134 41 120 92
VIRGIN 1SLANDS 283 368 83 NC NC & O 4 18 35 36 160 156 64 174 158
TOTALS 261 27273032 84 172 1853 10 0 5 18 62 72 104 134 44 144 126
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17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 25 27 28 2% a0 Kil 32 33 kL] 35 36 7 38 39 40
1.5 65 44 09 24 289 038 318 333 161 166 278 307 422 24 184 174 025 042 159 87 139 109 &1
15 57 51 09 33 544 008 351 385 15 131 298 325 M9 21 172 15 013 019 160 70 116 48 28
1.7 69 47 05 281 389 027 372 426 077 064 197 235 583 24 236 237 020 039 215 92 195 187 176
1.5 68 50 08 -43 513 049 349 38 178 160 305 326 448 31 216 221 049 065 167 75 121 107 95
15 54 35 06 101.2 210 020 231 284 214 219 327 313 247 56 112 172 (027 049 085 105 87 18 74
1.2 63 46 04 783 354 019 318 358 137 097 263 284 407 30 162 161 023 033 139 92 127 88 77
1.1 74 83 06 47 212 0531 593 840 063 060 294 349 478 19 270 343 077 144 193 71 109 652 86
0.9 42 44 09 -11.7 184 016 223 256 110 1.04 188 218 430 25 146 1.61 028 070 1.18 B85 08 108 8.2
1.2 65 45 1.1 2827 556 027 3.05 312 148 062 360 302 00 80 087 087 025 032 072 89 94 81 17
1.3 71 37 06 146 328 028 250 292 525 606 592 698 320 50 197 216 048 071 149 82 04 94 67
14 72 46 07 28 438 022 333 377 124 106 267 301 4106 33 188 182 036 043 152 87 131 105 39
18 65 35 03 129 257 031 277 314 089 093 212 243 423 16 140 146 046 028 124 100 125 83 48
1.2 66 52 04 225 407 043 372 417 080 087 271 321 411 44 158 158 023 029 135 89 1141 116 89
1.2 58 51 07 -3.0 251 032 335 372 205 241 312 331 391 27 205 225 051 079 154 91 124 104 100
19 71 42 07 274 376 046 347 341 138 123 255 277 448 36 197 191 039 057 158 86 140 122 91
1.7 65 46 08 486 324 014 320 346 083 082 232 256 432 28 190 197 052 068 138 82 113 80 67
16 65 47 10 338 310 016 313 326 125 105 262 271 394 36 199 185 054 070 145 80 105 54 43
14 69 48 08 188 384 045 346 372 127 118 298 322 371 31 191 188 Q45 057 146 76 108 17 64
13 71 54 10 113 433 028 381 408 096 091 310 334 346 33 184 178 051 062 133 77 102 87 65
1.8 76 43 05 126 410 023 835 345 117 097 279 295 365 32 195 168 040 060 155 B8O 118 120 B2
1.2 78 46 11 271 552 028 338 372 105 083 244 273 460 35 206 202 048 065 158 80 130 102 B85
1.0 42 38 06 63 196 OO0 224 259 303 323 368 389 305 22 162 152 039 057 132 105 105 47 66
14 71 50 15 495 148 017 280 272 228 220 323 319 359 31 240 233 086 133 144 91 131 132 84
14 61 39 02 8475 187 047 269 305 183 207 272 296 400 2B 165 197 027 052 139 104 139 96 96
1.6 70 45 07 -31.0 424 018 328 358 141 133 298 323 364 26 154 168 037 050 197 89 104 7B 69
16 63 43 05 74 339 016 305 331 361 340 453 474 39 24 207 180 034 048 173 82 141 125 91
1.7 62 49 05 04 481 041 364 385 142 103 260 285 452 24 193 193 019 032 174 81 137 91 68
1.6 70 54 06 266 333 017 390 427 129 127 294 327 431 22 213 208 047 062 167 775 125 119 88
1.1 75 54 1.0 B93 387 020 386 400 087 1285 032 065 453 64 396 537 062 080 334 76 141 154 155
1.4 79 43 03 -39 399 0149 335 347 062 062 273 298 307 34 147 131 041 051 106 79 84 96 71
1.2 73 41 10 389 468 012 254 281 157 160 276 290 362 288 1,73 188 068 08 1.06 93 101 75 55
15 56 55 1.0 553 466 019 366 387 079 0985 272 301 389 41 194 205 024 035 .70 78 134 12 54
1.2 31 35 13 320 116 045 154 183 288 285 283 300 34 23 160 175 035 Q76 1.25 {20 152 126 85
1.1 42 33 06 230 117 610 190 217 180 1983 249 266 325 32 120 165 019 o064 101 116 ti6 82 77
1.1 73 49 0.7 9.2 325 028 363 381 217 254 353 402 394 53 227 224 043 047 1.83 82 149 129 106
1.6 67 38 07 23 191 016 280 308 163 170 269 291 393 20 163 1.81 029 053 134 90 1120 82 78
1.8 68 46 08 880 374 028 333 346 1,72 146 295 314 416 34 219 206 042 063 1,77 91 160 150 9.0
10 77 43 01 -53.5 476 023 329 384 179 140 293 323 423 26 204 180 028 041 176 83 145 123 -145
14 64 36 10 322 253 032 25 258 152 186 260 290 367 21 154 186 027 056 124 89 109 77 7
1.5 76 36 01 -823 175 016 274 298¢ 143 124 253 255 394 07 146 165 031 056 135 95 108 74 78
13 66 51 06 -10.7 435 024 358 382 111 087 3.01 330 344 37 162 140 033 045 1.2 78 102 95 64
14 668 75 16 180 313 032 518 566 308 320 426 451 415 42 348 336 038 059 308 76 148 131 43
1.1 73 43 07 56 403 008 298 353 137 105 271 272 378 28 172 207 o040 073 132 91 118 93 42
13 43 40 07 857 202 O11 246 287 167 183 274 300 357 42 128 1147 020 032 108 118 115 91 79
1.2 67 63 07 24 281 035 447 514 153 152 311 312 506 31 276 290 057 074 218 81 168 1.7 106
1.4 @ 43 06 497 305 020 322 35T 24 114 2908 337 329 36 170 €42 036 043 134 84 115 12 70
2.0 57 71 08 101 182 047 477 613 419 143 331 41t 439 20 249 240 047 083 202 7.2 135 145 94
1.6 69 44 05 276 488 024 328 366 083 080 251 280 389 331 162 i65 031 041 1.31 85 108 41 72
1.6 74 42 07 -146 445 029 3§23 352 1.3 110 252 265 440 25 186 192 034 055 1682 78 127 86 48
1.5 73 43 07 7B 434 016 312 335 247 221 344 322 424 36 207 190 044 060 163 81 1195 87 58
1.4 53 53 07 -45.0 405 076 323 346 1,7¢ 100 270 287 398 42 180 173 040 046 150 76 113 81 64
0.8 56 55 37 790 112 026 339 420 143 178 397 477 135 31 o062 081 004 008 058 92 &1 50 63
1.1 26 88 16 590 481 011 328 395 043 043 237 275 354 27 126 158 006 013 120 53 64 3o 52
1.7 52 54 15 440 282 008 342 402 09 105 268 313 380 35 167 184 045 074 122 85 103 90 72
28 43 50 09 -704 385 031 376 413 057 043 193 241 555 15 198 181 005 025 184 79 154 165 1565
1.3 46 38 09 538 180 018 223 255 225 232 288 405 361 JI2 157 178 033 065 1.24 108 129 104 81
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Totals and Averages 5023 21Q1 261 22572575 849 174 162 10 0 5 1§ 58 099 1t6 50 128 127
Totals and Averages 5046 20Q4 266 21,892,108 88 169 158 12 ¢ 5 7 60 0.76 9.2 125 124
Totals and Averages 5080 20Q3 273 21228225 88 168 156 13 0 &5 11 62 0.87 99 137 134
Totals and Averages 4511 20Q2 241 20,196,051 87 162 150 11 1 6 i 63 091 98 138 12.8
Totals and Averages 4546 20Q1 282 19,054,204 93 155 144 11 0 4 £ 10 110 320 135 12,
Totals and Averages 4605 19Q4 275 17612476 97 159 148 7 0 4 {1 73 1.31 140 134 121
Totals and Averages 4669 19Q3 277 17340162 97 159 148 7 0 4 o 133 145 138 121
Totals and Averages 4713 19Q2 280 17,137,183 88 161 150 7 0 4 3 74 1,38 15.1 144 120
Totals and Averages 4773 19Q1 275 16859572 9.8 160 149 7 1 5 -5 79 1.38 150 143 118
Totals and Averages 4798 18Q4 272 16,765,756 9,7 150 148 7 1 5 & 79 1.37 123 121 48
Totals and Averages 4864 18Q3 262 16523,759 9.8 159 i48 7 1 5 3 80 1.19 108 106 97
Totals and Averages 4920 18Q2 259 16,406,081 8.7 158 147 7 i 5 6 78 113 163 101 85
Totals and Averages 4964 18QL 255 16,364,556 9.6 157 14.6 7 i 5 8 77 1.04 94 93 85
Totals and Averages 5003 17Q4 252 16254466 9.6 157 146 7 i 5 3 78 097 88 46 87 84
Totals and Averages 5065 17Q3 261 16,108,682 87 157 146 7 1 6 4 76 .09 8¢ 48 98 95
Totals and Averages 5098 17Q2 261 15923808 97 156 145 7 1 6 4 76 1.0¢ 99 48 97 G5
Totals and Averages 5148 17Q1 257 15822774 95 154 143 8 1 6 0 M 1,07 97 51 96 46
Totals and Averages 5199 16Q4 255 15,660,255 9.4 152 141 8 7 044 75 104 95 52 94 04
Totals and Averages 5257 16Q3 259 15669124 9.5 5% 138 8 1 7 275 103 94 39 83 82
Totals and Averages 5325 16Q2 257 15457350 9.5 149 138 8 1 703 7 102 93 39 92 &2
Totals and Averages 5377 16Q1 255 15233288 9.6 162 150 8 1 8 4 M 103 94 44 93 oi
Totals and Averages 5428 15Q4 252 14923990 9.5 149 137 8 1 7 6 7 1.05 96 51 83 91
Totals and Averages 5502 15Q3 249 14755878 96 149 136 8 1 8 85 75 103 94 49 90 &0
Totals and Averages 5566 15Q2 245 14,708,056 9.5 147 135 8 1 8 4 N 103 94 53 90 89
Totals and Averages 5627 15Q1 248 14,743,903 94 147 133 B 1 8 6 73 102 94 44 90 88
Totals and Averages 5697 14Q4 244 14488508 94 148 134 8 2 & 7 76 102 93 48 90 87
Totals and Averages 5764 14Q3 242 14,297,065 94 148 134 9 2 10 5 73 106 96 56 81 B4
Totals and Averages 5819 14Q2 239 14113544 95 148 134 g 2 10 7 74 103 94 61 90 82
Totals and Averages 5867 14Q1 238 13,861,396 85 154 136 10 2 11 1 74 105 96 66 91 81
Totals and Averages 5038 13Q4 237 13677917 93 152 133 10 2 12 B 75 109 99 75 83 B2
Totals and Averages 11996 13Q3 172 27,083,266 93 152 133 11 2 13 4 76 106 96 71 91 81
Totals and Averages 6041 13Q2 236 13357211 92 151 131 12 3 14 3 76 118 101 59 93 80
Totals and Averages 6111 13Q1 228 13371181 91 152 132 13 3 16 7 76 113 95 55 86 B1
Totals and Averages 6168 12Q4 223 13,404,196 9.0 157 136 13 4 17 2 7B 110 92 54 81 8D
Totats and Averages 6248 12Q3 223 13,086376 92 158 138 14 4 18 12 81 107 87 53 93 B0
Totals and Averages 6304 1202 22412817317 82 159 137 15 4 18 82 129 86 53 81 81
Totals and Averages 6357 12Q1 220 12813995 91 160 137 16 4 20 81 139 83 59 79 87
Totals and Averages 6396 11Q4 216 12,780,023 9.0 157 133 17 5 20 82 125 80 56 75 88
Totals and Averages 6461 11Q3 216 12700437 81 159 134 18 & 21 82 145 89 67 80 86
Totals and Averages 6528 11Q2 203 12516657 &1 162 137 18 6 23 92 133 69 74 67 76
Totals and Averages 6576 11Q1 204 12311285 01 61 136 20 6 24 88 109 67 76 64 178
Totals and Averages 6653 1004 204 12,219,677 88 162 135 21 7 26 a0 107 61 72 62 80
Totals and Averages 6750 10Q3 204 12,287,835 89 164 137 22 8 28 93 134 44 66 58 83
Totals and Averagas 6805 10Q2 196 12,123,158 87 158 131 24 8 29 94 087 31 71 50 88
Totals and Averages 6898 10Q1 182 12237911 85 153 126 26 10 3 97 057 18 78 48 85
Totals and Averages 6964 09Q4 191 11,888,166 8.7 144 117 22 9 31 02 028 15 75 566 86
Totals and Averages 7037 09Q3 180 11,967,775 85 143 115 22 8 3 96 044 09 75 68 108
Totals and Averages 7120 09Q2 205 12,000,356 8.2 139 1t1 21 § 27 108 024 24 69 80 115
Totals and Averages 7164 09Ql 205 12113998 80 137 108 1% 7 23 110 049 35 61 97 124
Totals and Averages 7213 08Q4 189 12430170 7.6 131 101 18 & 1% 115 049 35 63 81 123
Totals and Averages 7277 08Q3 195 12165296 7.8 125 97 18 2 18 124 082 56 70 08 128
Totals and Averages 7335 08Q2 194 11541261 7.7 125 987 14 2 13 131 081 60 7.0 100 126
Totals and Averages 7315 08Q1 201 11611548 76 124 96 2 2 14 130 113 81 67 107 12
Totals and Averages 7418 01Q4 207 11,296,040 7.7 124 96 1 2 8 130 128 95 68 M3 130
Totals and Averages 7436 07Q3 222 10900033 7.9 123 97 8 2 6 3 iy 1.6 11,8 7.1 124 144
Totals and Averages 7482 07Q2 228 10513274 7.8 124 98 9 1 5 4 133 226 133 70 133 146
Totals and Averages 7513 07Q1 228 10,235686 7.9 125 10.0 ] 1 4 3 133 223 128 68 128 146
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17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 28 30 k]l 32 33 M 35 36 37 38 38 40
1.2 52 4.2 10 293 210 0.26 2.60 3.07 1.64 166 259 268 398 38 1564 177 024 048 1.28 41 . 90 46
1.4 84 44 1.0 476 209 046 204 3.05 1.62 167 284 271 401 33 164 176 035 050 1.26 89 74 43
1.7 55 44 1.0 354 208 049 2.89 3.09 166 168 268 270 414 32 1.83 1.81 049 053 133 44 123 6.5
20 57 4.8 09 307 204 o051 301 3.08 1.7 1.1 274 271 426 32 2.03 s 0.63 0.50 138 8.7 107 60
23 60 5.2 ch 46 206 026 3.20 310 1.80 177 291 280 424 33 217 0.80 051 1.37 84 60 46
2.5 61 53 07 01 23 004 329 315 1.82 177 297 282 427 34 222 085 045 135 84 34 41
25 B1 54 08 33 213 004 334 3.6 1,81 177 297 284 434 35 2% 087 046 138 85 34 4.2
2.5 61 54 08 01 2t1 004 336 316 1.81 1.79 296 2.86 437 36 227 082 043 1.44 8.8 39 43
24 61 52 09 90 212 004 335 314 1.84 179 298 287 433 37 219 075 040 144 85 43 4.4
2.3 61 5.1 08 -62 21.0 008 333 313 186 180 296 285 437 37 214 1. 088 (.37 145 7.0 40 40
2.2 61 50 09 40 212 008 330 312 1.8 183 296 285 430 37 185 1. 057 034 126 7.0 35 42
241 61 4.9 09 -58 213 009 328 a1 1.89 183 299 288 426 37 172 151 049 031 122 7.0 33 44
241 60 47 1.0 -137 214 009 3.22 3H 1.79 190 280 2097 423 | 167 150 041 029 113 7.0 34 44
20 60 4.6 1.0 -133 205 0.09 319 3.11 1.79 192 289 293 420 142 143 035 028 1.06 341 41
1.9 60 4.6 11 -11.2 205 009 394 3.10 177 189 283 292 426 15654 148 032 028 1.20 42 42
1.9 60 45 11 22 208 009 341 310 1,79 1.90 284 295 423 152 1.47 029 027 1.20 43 42
1.8 52 44 12 76 208 009 3.08 310 177 191 283 296 418 148 149 028 027 118 45 41
1.8 60 44 1,3 1986 205 011 3.07 313 1,77 184 283 300 415 146 147 027 028 117 69 0 48 41
1.7 59 43 1.3 146 202 011 3.02 312 180 185 285 303 409 141 146 025 0.28 115 69 9 48 39
1.7 59 4.3 14 163 200 o011 302 3.15 1.83 185 289 305 404 139 147 024 029 114 69 8 48 39
17 59 43 1.5 130 200 011 3.0% 3147 1.81 196 290 3.08 40.0 141 148 024 030 1.1 7.0 8 44 a7
1.7 59 43 14 03 198 009 3.02 321 1.84 1.99 292 312 399 . 140 1,50 023 032 116 7.0 79 42 3p6
1.7 59 43 1.5 <56 197 008 3.01 3.22 1.81 199 295 312 385 37 138 149 023 033 112 70 76 89 a3
1.7 58 44 15 -136 392 009 3.02 323 180 2.01 304 314 379 38 135 151 0.23 035 112 70 77 39 32
1.7 57 44 16 -134 {94 o009 304 325 1.9 2.01 307 315 3ar5 40 139 150 024 036 {12 70 76 441 32
1.7 57 4.5 18 -88 188 009 3.08 330 1.82 204 31t 318 372 42 140 151 Q.25 039 112 70 76 40 32
1.8 58 45 t9 7.5 187 009 311 3290 183 206 311 319 376 44 14 151 025 041 1.5 89 77 39 33
18 58 456 20 -139 186 041 313 333 194 207 317 320 368 49 144 151 027 044 1,14 59 76 86 31
1.8 58 46 22 -13.9 187 011 317 336 199 208 319 321 374 51 147 153 0.28 046 117 69 77 37 33
18 58 47 23 174 186 0.2 320 3.38 207 211 3.21 322 38.0 52 150 156 030 050 1.20 68 78 44 a7
1.3 58 47 25 177 184 012 322 339 207 220 328 330 374 53 152 157 031 050 118 68 76 34 a9
1.9 58 50 27 87 181 010 3.26 3.38 212 223 329 330 3798 53 155 160 033 053 120 867 77 48 44
1.8 58 b1 3.0 -10.7 182 041 331 340 203 230 533 332 365 57 149 035 059 113 87 74 44 44
2.0 58 5.1 31 -85 183 011 3.36 3.35 2.02 239 339 331 356 59 147 037 068 1.07 6.1 &7 3.7 45
21 59 5.2 33 -89 184 014 341 339 196 225 339 332 365 58 1.62 040 074 1.20 66 7.7 44 4.6
21 59 53 32 -15.2 186 0.4 346 334 237 229 358 327 364 59 151 043 081 108 66 66 44 4,5
2.2 59 53 35 -105 190 0.4 348 349 239 234 360 335 367 6.3 1.51 046 096 105 66 64 42 49
2.3 58 54 36 -200 1B7 015 350 350 227 241 358 338 358 60 161 049 103 100 65 60 39 48
2.3 58 54 38 -206 189 0.05 3.4B 3.46 239 245 355 340 3rs 60 159 053 1,10 1.07 6.5 64 34 44
2.4 58 54 40 -184 193 016 357 379 320 232 438 342 365 70 1.48 057 147 090 64 52 28 45
25 59 55 44 161 1189 018 356 385 3.0l 236 417 344 376 68 1.57 060 154 085 64 50 32 47
2.5 60 55 47 04 200 021 360 389 324 245 426 348 392 74 143 063 1.62 0Ye 64 48 33 47
27 60 5.5 50 111 203 040 357 387 318 252 418 350 402 68 1.40 067 168 072 64 44 36 48
2.8 61 5.5 51 3041 200 041 357 396 312 256 418 354 402 6.7 140 072 179 060 65 37 23 46
3.0 62 5.6 54 67.0 21 055 356 394 3.00 266 395 360 40.8 64 148 079 187 055 66 35 83 45
61 5.6 53 1136 218 077 347 374 2.86 237 388 346 38.8 6.1 1,52 0.86 t.92 0.61 68 41 21 45
62 5.5 51 1695 220 098 334 383 2.55 254 3509 3.68 406 57 173 096 1.84 0.75 70 5.1 46 5.3
62 58 44 2324 219 147 3389 381 293 257 385 385 376 63 215 115 187 0.97 73 69 76 h9
§2 5.8 3.7 2352 221 102 335 381 223 264 312 387 424 50 23 127 1.88 .02 7.7 74 7.0 59
3.8 63 58 29 2144 216 087 3is 3.83 200 277 295 376 403 40 233 148 191 083 B0 58 58 47
44 64 64 22 268 212 078 3.28 348 230 25 320 337 386 49 2.93 190 194 1M 77 69 67 58
4.6 66 6.9 1.8 2218 213 061 330 323 234 258 331 332 386 53 320 219 19 100 78 68 589 63
4.9 65 7.2 1.5 193.0 210 047 3.30 338 242 269 336 351 and 48 346 241 183 103 80 73 58 7.0
5.0 66 7.3 12 14562 213 035 330 343 255 287 2348 364 393 43 360 253 183 105 79 74 5.1 6.7
5.0 66 15 09 824 216 022 333 3.9 2.72 2.71 343 371 428 39 877 257 173 1.18 8.0 B.6 4.8 6.4
5.0 66 74 07 526 222 018 331 383 291 276 350 375 435 3B 378 2.52 185 124 81 93 563 68
4.9 66 7.3 07 405 223 047 334 385 279 271 350 3.74 425 38 3N 245 1.60 1.23 8.1 9.1 6.5 6.8



Funds Availability Schedule

For determining the availability of deposits, every day is a business day, except Saturdays, Sundays, and
Federal holidays. Deposits made before 7:00 p.m. ** on a business day that we are open are available to you on
the business day following your deposit.

The county will be given credit as collected funds for all items cleared through Ozark Bank on the same
day as the deposit.

Items deposited cleared through other banks will be considered collected on the next business day
following the day of deposit.

Incoming wire transfers shall be credited as collected on the day received (if received by our cutoff time,
which is typically 3:00 p.m.)

** Items deposited via Remote Deposit Capture may have an earlier deposit cutoff to assure timely processing
of the image file. That cutoff is typically 3:00 p.m.



Bank Contact Information

Primary Bank Contact: John R, Hedgpeth
Chief Financial Officer
106-112 N. 2" Avenue
Ozark, MO 65721
Phone: 417-581-2321 [ext 5073]
Fax: 417-581-2235
Email: jhedgpeth@ozarkbank.com

Alternate Bank Contacts: Nathan Toliver
Assistant Vice President / Controller
106-112 N. 2™ Avenue
Ozark, MO 65721
Phone: 417-581-2321 [ext 5024]
Fax: 417-581-2235
Email: ntoliver@ozarkbank.com

Harold Phillips

Senior Vice President

106-112 N. 2™ Avenue

Ozark, MO 65721

Phone: 417-581-2321 [ext 5046]
Fax: 417-581-2838

Email: hphillips@ozarkbank.com

Charlotte Terry

Vice President / Deposit Operations Manager
106-112 N. 2™ Avenue

Ozark, MO 65721

Phone: 417-581-2321 [ext 5057]

Fax: 417-581-6641

Email: cterry@ozarkbank.com




@3 OZARK BANK

P.O. BOX 220 18086
0ZARK, MISSQURI 65721
581-2321
CHRISTIAN COUNTY TREASURER Account Number: **#***3701
COUNTY FUNDS Statement Date: 5/31/21
HOLD Page Number: 1
DO NOT MAIL Items: 410

* 0 % % TRUNCATED * kK %

**PRIVACY NOTICE**

Federal law requires_us to tell you how we collect, share, and
Erotect your personal information. our privacy policy has not
changed and you may review our ?01icy and practices with respect
to your personal information at
www.ozarkbank.com/assets/privacy_disclosure_as_of_2-19-13-2.pdf
or we will mail you a free copy upon request if you call us at

417-581-2321.

BUSINESS PROGRESS gy ek kkkkkukk k3701

Previous Balance on 4/30/21 $ 21,354,817.43

32 Deposits and Other Additions (Credits) + 1,716,745.15
424 checks and other Charges (Debits) - 1,498,178.00
Current Balance on 5/31/21 $ 21,573,384.58

Checking Account Transactions
5/03/21 Regular Deposit 10,324.87 +
5/04/21 Direct Deposit 015 TREAS 310 MISC PAY 1,184.28 +
5/05/21 Regular Deposit 67.96 +
5/05/21 Regular Deposit 162,246.45 +
5/06/21 Direct Deposit MO DEPT REVENUE MO SU TAX 0 - COUNTY LAW ENFORCEMENT205,323.46 +
5/06/21 Direct Deposit MO DEPT REVENUE MO SU TAX 1 - ADDITIONAL COUNTY LAW 207,901.83 +
ENFORCEMENT

5/06/21 Direct Deposit MO DEPT REVENUE MO SU TAX 0 - COUNTY 410,647.37 +
5/06/21 Regular Deposit 1,312.50 +
5/06/21 Misc Credit Adj Transfer from DDA #*#¥¥¥¥¥kkik*8369 400.00 +
5/07/21 Direct Deposit 015 TREAS 310 MISC PAY 3,981.75 +
5/10/21 Direct Deposit 015 TREAS 310 MISC PAY 1,018.56 +
5/10/21 Regular Deposit 107,264.28 +
5/11/21 Regular Deposit 19,471.98 +
5/11/21 Regular Deposit 299,111.25 +
5/12/21 Direct Deposit ST. OF MISSOURI VENDOR PAY ZZ*ST. OF MISSOURI*ZZ*VEN 52,891.04 +

DOR PAYMENTS*210510
5/12/21 Regular Deposit 5,226.61 +
5/13/21 Direct Deposit ST. OF MISSOURI VENDOR PAY ZZ¥*ST. OF MISSOURI*ZZ*VEN 5,330.55 +
DOR PAYMENTS*210511

5/14/21 Regular Deposit 7,326.47 +
5/17/21 Regular Deposit 21,638.43 +
5/18/21 Regular Deposit 25,429.46 +
5/19/21 Direct Deposit ST. OF MISSOURI VENDOR PAY ZZ*ST. OF MISSOURI*ZZ*VEN 1,788.09 +
DOR PAYMENTS*210517
5/20/21 Regular Deposit 14,986.06 +
5/21/21 Direct Deposit 015 TREAS 310 MISC PAY 285.86 +
5/21/21 Direct Deposit ST. OF MISSOURI VENDOR PAY ZZ*ST. OF MISSOURI*ZZ*VEN 6,863.95 +

DOR PAYMENTS*210519

5/24/21 Direct Deposit ST. OF MISSOURI VENDOR PAY ZZ*ST. OF MISSOURI*ZZ*VEN 1,635.62 +
DOR PAYMENTS*210520

5/24/21 Direct Deposit ST. OF MISSOURI VENDOR PAY ZZ*ST. OF MISSOURI*ZZ*VEN 6,407.72 +
DOR PAYMENTS*210520

5/24/21 Regular Deposit 113,554.27 +
5/25/21 Regular Deposit 12,396.26 +
5/26/21 Direct Deposit ST. OF MISSOURI VENDOR PAY ZZ*ST. OF MISSOURI*ZZ*VEN 50.00 +

DOR PAYMENTS*210524
Continued On Next Page...

NOTICE: SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR IMPORTANT INFORMATION LENDER /
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i% (ZARK BANK

ESTABLISHED

P.O. BOX 220 19086
OZARK, MISSOURI 65721
581-2321
CHRISTIAN COUNTY TREASURER Account Number: ====%3/701
COUNTY FUNDS Statement Date: 5/31/21
HOLD Page Number: 2
DO NOT MAIL Items: 410
* % % % TRUNCATED * * * *
5/27/21 Direct Deposit ST. OF MISSOURI VENDOR PAY ZZ*ST. OF MISSOQURI*ZZ*VEN 252.00 +
DOR PAYMENTS*210525
5/27/21 Regular Deposit 1,335.82 +
5/31/21 Interest Deposit 9,090.40 +
5/04/21 Wire Transfer WIRE TFR TO BMO HARRIS/WEX 14,165.34 -
5/06/21 Automatic Debit LAGERS PAYMENT 84,163.72 -
5/07/21 Automatic Debit CHRISTIAN COUNTY PAYROLL 3,799.05 -
5/07/21 Automatic Debit CHRISTIAN COUNTY PAYROLL 239,400.68 -
5/11/21 wire Transfer WIRE TFR TO MIB BANK/GARRISON SPECIAL RD DIST 139.77 -
5/11/21 Wire Transfer  TRANSFER TO SELMORE SPECIAL ROAD DISTRICT 261.88 -
5/11/21 wire Transfer WIRE TO SOUTH SPARTA SPCL RD DSTRCT 340.92 -
5/11/21 wire Transfer WIRE TFR TO MIB BANK/LOGAN ROGERSVILLE FIRE 570.86 -
5/11/21 wire Transfer WIRE TFR TO MIB BANK/CHADWICK RURAL FIRE PROTECT 682.30 -
5/11/21 wire Transfer WIRE TFR TO MIB BANK/BILLINGS FIRE PROTECTION DIST 1,730.61 -
5/11/21 wire Transfer WIRE TO HIGHLANDVILLE RURAL FIRE PROTECTION 2,054.31 -
5/11/21 wire Transfer WIRE TFR TO MIB BANK/CLEVER FIRE PROTECTION DIST 2,144.90 -
5/11/21 wire Transfer WIRE TFR TO MIB BANK/BILLINGS SPECIAL RD DIST 2,895.55 -
5/11/21 wire Transfer TRANSFER TO OZARKSPECIAL ROAD DISTRICT 4,767.74 -
5/11/21 wire Transfer TRANSFER TO CHRISTIAN COUNTY SENIOR 4,988.86 -
5/11/21 wire Transfer WIRE TO CC BOARD FOR DEV. DISABLED 7,962.39 -
5/11/21 wire Transfer WIRE CHRISTIAN COUNTY AMBULANCE DSTRCT 11,790.26 -
5/11/21 wire Transfer WIRE TO OTC GENERAL OPERATING 16,481.11 -
5/11/21 ere Transfer TRANSFER TO CHRISTIAN COUNTY LIBRARY 20,213.84 -
5/11/21 wire Transfer TRANSFER OZARK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 24,292.24 -
5/11/21 wire Transfer WIRE TO NIXA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 27,557.38 -
5/11/21 Automatic Debit IRS USATAXPYMT 657.90 -
5/11/21 Automatic Debit IRS USATAXPYMT 72,055.37 -
5/13/21 Automatic Debit JP MO REV TAX MO REV TAX 9,351.50 -
5/14/21 Automatic Debit SUDDENLINK 7704 CABLE PMNT 200.69 -
5/21/21 Automatic Debit CHRISTIAN COUNTY PAYROLL 236,413.36 -
5/25/21 Automatic Debit IRS USATAXPYMT 70,546.12 -
5/25/21 Misc Debit Adju ck #144077 $360 cleared proof as $350 10.00 -
5/27/21 Automatic Debit JP MO REV TAX MO REV TAX 9,152.50 -
Check # Date Paid Amount Check # Date Paid Amount
41 5/03/21 7,422 .85 15797* 5/17/21 1,200.00
14865* 5/18/21 4.37 15802+ 5/26/21 28.33
15021* 5/18/21 5.00 15820% 5/03/21 125.00
15031* 5/18/21 5.00 15826* 5/10/21 180.15
15063* 5/18/21 4.37 15827 5/13/21 222.08
15151* 5/18/21 4,37 15831* 5/03/21 4,12
15216* 5/18/21 10.00 15840%* 5/11/21 500.00
15221* 5/18/21 10.00 15851* 5/19/21 600.00
15244%* 5/18/21 10.00 15853+ 5/05/21 200.00
15250%* 5/18/21 11.67 15856% 5/04/21 500.00
15476* 5/03/21 5.00 15857 5/03/21 100.00
15479%* 5/03/21 5.00 15861* 5/20/21 500.00
15543* 5/03/21 5.00 15862 5/06/21 75.00
15720%* 5/20/21 88.71 15863 5/05/21 67.96
15743* 5/03/21 10.00 15865* 5/04/21 100.00
15745%* 5/24/21 750.00 15867* 5/10/21 1.23
15751* 5/26/21 28.34 15868 5/06/21 430.00
15755% 5/03/21 5.00 15869 5/07/21 60.00
15758%* 5/03/21 5.00 15870 5/13/21 300.00
15771* 5/06/21 100.00 15871 5/10/21 479.69
15772 5/06/21 50.00 15872 5/05/21 39.35

Continued On Next Page...

NOTICE: SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR IMPORTANT INFORMATION
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To Balance Your Account Follow These Easy Steps

_ Outstanding Checks/QOther Withdrawals BANK BALANCE SHOWN
Date ar Number R -2 ) ONTHIS STATEMENT 5

e I N S ADD + DEPOSITS & OTHER
e e o b . AMOQUNTS NOF CREDITED
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R ) ) ) (IF ANY) $

SUBTRACT DEBITS

- - OUTSTANDING s :
IO R ALANGE .
SHOULD AGREE WITH YOUR CHECK BOOK SALANCE AFTER

TOTAL DEBITS ) o oy DEDUCTING SERVICE CHARGE F ANY) ON THIS STATEMENT

Plaasc oxamin

oomumadiately and joportihingorrect 1 ne reply s receved within 60 days the account wil De considaran corract.
IN CASE OF ERRORS OR QUESTIONS ABOUT YOUR ELECTRONIC TRANSFERS

Telephone or write us al the telephone number of addross located on the front of s statarment as soan as you can, if you think your statement of regeipt is wrong or i you
more infarmation about & transter on the statemant o receint. We miust hear from you 00 fater than 80 days after we sent you the FIRST statement on which the error
o appeared

account number fif any).

{?) Pescnbe the enor of the tansfer you arg unsure aboul. and explain ns cleardy as you can why you beliove thare is an arror or why you nead maore information
amount of the g clod error

tand wall correct any eiror promptly. § we take more than 10 business days ta do s, wee will cradit your account for the amount you think
2 of the money durmg the tims it takes ) compirte our investgalion.

Wo v‘ml fnvestigala your
iz iy erer, so that you w

EXPLANATION OF BALANCE ONWRICH FINANCE CHARGE IS COMPUTED

W calculate the FINANCE CHARGE on your a i by meltiphying i ‘ima (uu(m! transaclions, by thoe daily periodic rate cach
day uring the ng cycle. This g T v P FINANCE GHARGE for the bifling
cycte. To get the dafy palance on w : oh day, add any now addances and
subtract any paymeants ar eredits and unpaid hnange cha

The "average daily w0 on the front o B} ;o won only. To vahdale the amount ¢f your hnance charge, multiply the
rumber of days in tho Billi average daily F mp{v fhe product by the daly perodic rate

‘Note: I the sinls falls on o Ay < i ¥ pOr o 4 non-busmess day, the number of days in the billing cycio will
nalade the subsequent numier of rmn business days uniil {He next husm@bs d:;, and the finance charge will continue @ acerue. However, the number of days in the
et biling cyvele wall ot nclude any days moluded in the prior cycic

BILLING RIGHTS SUMMARY
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) 1@3 OZzARK BANK

PO. BOX 220 1906
OZARK, MISSOURI 65721
581-2321
CHRISTIAN COUNTY TREASURER ACCOURt NOMber: ****¥370T
COUNTY FUNDS Statement Date: 5/31/21
HOLD Page Number: 3
DO NOT MAIL Items: 410
% % % % TRUNCATED * * * *

Check # Date Paid Amount Check # Date Paid Amount
15873 5/06/21 20.00 143595% 5/06/21 24.50
15874 5/07/21 5.00 143606* 5/03/21 24 .00
15875 5/10/21 133.00 143618* 5/05/21 72.00
15876 5/13/21 43.84 143629* 5/04/21 24.00
15877 5/17/21 40.00 143696* 5/06/21 656.20
15878 5/07/21 30.65 143711% 5/20/21 986.87
15879 5/25/21 175.00 143791* 5/03/21 85.00
15880 5/06/21 200.00 143811* 5/06/21 1,339.00
15881 5/13/21 50.00 143835* 5/04/21 62.40
15882 5/26/21 28.33 143845%* 5/06/21 39.07
15883 5/13/21 100.00 143849* 5/21/21 67.04
15884 5/12/21 200.00 143860* 5/03/21 1,020.00
15885 5/12/21 70.00 143866* 5/03/21 195.00
15886 5/12/21 12.50 143868% 5/06/21 671.23
15887 5/12/21 125.00 143877* 5/27/21 100.12
15889* 5/17/21 12.50 143897* 5/03/21 535.77
15890 5/13/21 141.50 143898 5/06/21 940.00
15891 5/17/21 100.00 143899 5/04/21 128.12
15892 5/17/21 200.00 143900 5/03/21 70.00
15895* 5/19/21 12.50 143901 5/04/21 14,999.93
15896 5/12/21 500.00 143902 5/03/21 1,253.53
15897 5/17/21 1,000.00 143903 5/04/21 620.60
15899* 5/19/21 200.00 143904 5/04/21 576.18
15900 5/17/21 141.50 143905 5/04/21 10.00
15903* 5/28/21 5.00 143906 5/06/21 26.99
15904 5/28/21 500.00 143907 5/10/21 83.90
15905 5/13/21 200.00 143909* 5/04/21 58.00
15906 5/12/21 818.75 143910 5/04/21 15,397.95
15907 5/11/21 300.00 143911 5/03/21 771.93
15908 5/14/21 400.00 143912 5/05/21 270.00
15909 5/14/21 28.34 143913 5/03/21 250.00
15911* 5/19/21 12.50 143914 5/03/21 722.95
15912 5/13/21 250.00 143915 5/05/21 117.39
15913 5/14/21 28.33 143916 5/04/21 524.24
15914 5/19/21 55.00 143917 5/03/21 163.62
15915 5/18/21 100.00 143918 5/03/21 984.49
15917* 5/12/21 500.00 143919 5/05/21 1,812.37
15918 5/11/21 375.00 143920 5/13/21 50.00
15919 5/11/21 50.00 143921 5/03/21 118.00
15920 5/18/21 200.00 143922 5/04/21 340.00
15921 5/10/21 100.00 143923 5/03/21 128.52
15922 5/19/21 92.51 143924 5/06/21 1,362.50
15923 5/25/21 50.00 143925 5/04/21 39.00
15924 5/20/21 94 .08 143926 5/03/21 68.76
15927%* 5/21/21 275.00 143927 5/04/21 709.52
15928 5/28/21 40.00 143928 5/04/21 5,153.26
15929 5/28/21 1,090.00 143929 5/03/21 380.90
15930 5/28/21 180.00 143930 5/04/21 1,149.49
15935%* 5/24/21 150.00 143931 5/05/21 195.00
15942%* 5/28/21 246.18 143932 5/05/21 93.60
15943 5/24/21 150.00 143933 5/05/21 1,102.77
15954* 5/28/21 10.00 143934 5/06/21 149.98
15960% 5/27/21 99.00 143935 5/04/21 435.00
143552%* 5/03/21 24.50 143936 5/06/21 919.54
143564* 5/05/21 24.50 143937 5/05/21 1,190.15

continued On Next Page...
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NOTICE: SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR IMPORTANT INFORMATION LENDER //¢V
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1@3 0z

ARK BANK

P.O. BOX 220
OZARK, MISSOURI 65721
581-2321

ESTABLISHED
1806

CHRISTIAN COUNTY TREASURER

COUNTY FUNDS

HOLD

DO NOT MAIL

Check # Date Paid
143938 5/04/21
143939 5/03/21
143940 5/14/21
143941 5/04/21
143942 5/05/21
143943 5/05/21
143944 5/12/21
143945 5/04/21
143946 5/07/21
143947 5/10/21
143948 5/10/21
143949 5/11/21
143950 5/11/21
143951 5/12/21
143952 5/11/21
143953 5/13/21
143954 5/10/21
143955 5/18/21
143956 5/10/21
143957 5/07/21
143958 5/11/21
143959 5/12/21
143960 5/11/21
143961 5/11/21
143962 5/11/21
143963 5/11/21
143964 5/17/21
143965 5/12/21
143966 5/12/21
143967 5/06/21
143968 5/18/21
143969 5/10/21
143970 5/11/21
143971 5/11/21
143972 5/19/21
143973 5/11/21
143974 5/12/21
143975 5/10/21
143976 5/17/21
143977 5/21/21
143978 5/17/21
143979 5/12/21
143980 5/11/21
143981 5/07/21
143982 5/10/21
143983 5/12/21
143984 5/10/21
143985 5/12/21
143986 5/17/21
143987 5/27/21
143989+ 5/11/21
143990 5/11/21
143991 5/14/21
143992 5/11/21
143993 5/10/21

4,065.
8,457.

4,125.
180.
640.

16,050.
772
361.

Check #

Account Number: #***%#*37071
Statement Date: 5/31/21
4

Page Number:
Items: 410

Date Paid

® w k% TRUNCATED * R R %

Amount

143994
143995
143997+
143998
143999
144000
144001
144002
144003
144004
144005
144006
144007
144008
144009
144010
144011
144012
144013
144014
144015
144017%
144019%
144020
144021
144022
144023
144024
144025
144026
144027
144028
144029
144030
144031
144032
144034%*
144035
144036
144037
144038
144040%
144041
144042
144043
144044
144045
144046
144047
144048
144049
144050
144051
144052
144053

5/18/21
5/19/21
5/11/21
5/11/21
5/12/21
5/13/21
5/07/21
5/11/21
5/07/21
5/10/21
5/11/21
5/11/21
5/13/21
5/12/21
5/12/21
5/25/21
5/12/21
5/14/21
5/18/21
5/17/21
5/18/21
5/18/21
5/18/21
5/19/21
5/19/21
5/21/21
5/19/21
5/18/21
5/20/21
5/20/21
5/24/21
5/24/21
5/19/21
5/19/21
5/18/21
5/19/21
5/18/21
5/24/21
5/14/21
5/18/21
5/24/21
5/19/21
5/18/21
5/19/21
5/18/21
5/18/21
5/28/21
5/19/21
5/20/21
5/19/21
5/21/21
5/20/21
5/18/21
5/18/21
5/18/21

7,307.82
149.54
223.59
173.42
418.82
306.39

12,275.24

2,569.00

154.34
66.84
15,582.89

2,983.88

225.00
42.24

1,077.02
418.90
208.00

4,953.30
164.39
821.17

3,032.27
168.40

48.59
6.60

6,191.49
421.90
381.75

23,196.42
654.60
250.00

14.31
24,268.00
66

376.79
127.80
78.00
493.48
125.00
1,100.00
254.23
202.10
1,200.00
36.00
16,145.00

Continued On Next Page...

NOTICE: SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR IMPORTANT INFORMATION
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To Balance Your Account Follow These Easy Steps

~Outstanding Cheuks/(_)t__her Withdrawals BANE’ BALANCE SHOWN
DateorNumber o ,;S ] i _ e ON THIS STATEMENT 5

ADD + DEPOSITS & OTHER

AMOUNTS NOT CREDITED

IN THIS STATEMENT

(IF ANY) §

TOTAL B e e e

SUBTRACT DEBITS
QUTSTANDBING S e

BALANCE )

CHK BOOK BALANCE AFTER
ANY: ON THIS STATEMENT

SHOULD aGHEE WITH YOUR CHE
DEDUGTING SERVICE CHARGE

TOTAL DEBITS

Ploase exarnne mmediately and report i mcorrect, 1! no reply & stvidd withm 80 days the account will be consederad correct
IN CASE OF ERAORS OR QUESTIONS ABOUT YOUR ELECTRONIC TRANSFERS

1w telephong number or adiress ecated on tha front of this statement as soon as you can. if you fink your siaicment o1 receipl s wrong or i you
sent you the FIRST statement on which the error

Telephone o write us at
need mere information about a transfer on the statement o reéceipt, Wa must hear friom vou no kater than 60 days afts
of proimem appeared
113 Ted us your nama and account numbiar (f any)
121 Descrbe the ewoar o e trangfer Gounsues about, and explam gy ¢
13) Te# us the dollar amouni of the & i
We will investigate yvour comptamt and wil correc crror prompiy. i wo tak
is in errer 50 that you will have use of the meney durng the time 1L takes v 19 com

v vou batiove there is an error or why you need mare information

v a3 you can

3n 10 busmess days o do s, we will credit your acrount for e amount you think
pizte our invesligation,

EXPLANATION OF BALANCE ON WHICH FINANCE CHARGE IS CORMPUTED

Wa calculats the FINANGE CHARGE on your aceount by muHiplyir g current transactcns, by the daily pariodic vate each

day during the billing cycle. This gives u&. a dady Hnanos s 1o denve 0 ielel FINANGE GRARGE lor the bilkng
oy T gat the daily balance on sach daly fin: count sach day, add any new advances and
subtract any payments or credits and unpaid finance cha

The ‘avarage daily balance” shown on the front »f GEIMEnt s B g : sstraticn only. To valdate the anount of your Tinance chargo, muitiply the
number of days in the biling cycie by the average daily b owin. ther o 1 by the daily pel;(}fhfz rme-;
"Neta: I the statement closing date falls on & E“u'!'y or on & blisiness Jday
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FDIC

- i% (OZARK BANK

ESTABLISHED

P.O. BOX 220 19086
OZARK, MISSOURI 65721
581-2321
CHRISTIAN COUNTY TREASURER Account Number: *#**%370T
COUNTY FUNDS Statement Date: 5/31/21
HOLD Page Number: 5
DO NOT MAIL Items: 410
* % % % TRUNCATED * * * *
Check # Date Paid Amount Check # Date Paid Amount
144054 5/28/21 500.00 144129% 5/24/21 103.50
144055 5/20/21 284.58 144130 5/20/21 34.50
144056 5/20/21 3,858.58 144132%* 5/18/21 42.00
144057 5/19/21 7,535.00 144133 5/20/21 24.00
144058 5/24/21 180.68 144135* 5/20/21 72.00
144059 5/27/21 3,200.00 144136 5/20/21 24.00
144060 5/19/21 500.00 144137 5/19/21 24.50
144061 5/19/21 3,970.80 144139* 5/25/21 37.00
144062 5/18/21 162.83 144140 5/25/21 28.17
144063 5/19/21 192.82 144142* 5/25/21 2,500.00
144064 5/18/21 196.74 144143 5/25/21 752.00
144065 5/18/21 113.84 144146* 5/25/21 10,500.75
144066 5/19/21 960.00 144147 5/24/21 28.86
144067 5/18/21 2,945.39 144148 5/24/21 1,976.19
144070* 5/24/21 377.67 144149 5/24/21 1,179.15
144071 5/18/21 1,508.10 144150 5/25/21 2,391.21
144072 5/19/21 75.00 144151 5/26/21 45.26
144073 5/19/21 353.30 144152 5/26/21 213.54
144074 5/18/21 110.54 144153 5/26/21 22,040.67
144075 5/24/21 37.50 144155* 5/26/21 303.85
144076 5/19/21 74.26 144156 5/25/21 768.00
144077 5/21/21 350.00 144157 5/25/21 57.00
144078 5/18/21 24.17 144158 5/26/21 95.20
144079 5/18/21 208.00 144159 5/25/21 1,485.00
144080 5/19/21 399.58 144160 5/25/21 446.91
144081 5/17/21 5,837.49 144161 5/25/21 3,040.00
144083* 5/18/21 1,185.74 144162 5/27/21 249.87
144087* 5/25/21 24.00 144163 5/27/21 25.00
144088 5/24/21 24.00 144164 5/24/21 203.22
144089 5/19/21 24.00 144165 5/26/21 2,240.54
144090 5/19/21 24.00 144166 5/27/21 1,882.00
144093~ 5/19/21 24.50 144167 5/28/21 58.00
144094 5/26/21 25.50 144169* 5/27/21 660.00
144095 5/25/21 73.50 144170 5/25/21 226.10
144096 5/24/21 24.00 144171 5/26/21 1,280.00
144097 5/20/21 24.00 144172 5/25/21 463.30
144098 5/24/21 24.50 144173 5/26/21 2,320.23
144100* 5/18/21 24.00 144174 5/26/21 1,608.00
144106* 5/21/21 24.00 144176% 5/26/21 40.59
144108* 5/19/21 72.00 144177 5/25/21 3,001.50
144110* 5/20/21 100.50 144178 5/25/21 528.00
144111 5/18/21 24.50 144179 5/25/21 2,495.00
144112 5/25/21 24.50 144181* 5/26/21 497.20
144115* 5/25/21 37.50 144182 5/24/21 1,042.74
144116 5/27/21 72.00 144183 5/25/21 234.08
144117 5/25/21 24.00 144184 5/26/21 264.70
144118 5/20/21 24.00 144185 5/25/21 3,414.00
144119 5/18/21 24.00 144186 5/25/21 2,079.67
144120 5/20/21 34.50 144187 5/28/21 180.00
144121 5/18/21 72.00 144189* 5/27/21 154.31
144122 5/24/21 72.00 144190 5/26/21 416.13
144123 5/25/21 72.00 144191 5/25/21 55.00
144124 5/19/21 24.50 144192 5/26/21 1,450.00
144125 5/25/21 18.00 144194+ 5/25/21 32.00
144127* 5/20/21 24.00 144195 5/25/21 625.00

Continued On Next Page...

=

NOTICE: SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR IMPORTANT INFORMATION
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To Balahce Your Account Follow These Easy Steps
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- i% OZARK BANK

P.O. BOX 220 1906
OZARK, MISSOURI 65721
581-2321
CHRISTIAN COUNTY TREASURER Account Number: *HEERITOL
COUNTY FUNDS Statement Date: 5/31/21
HOLD Page Number: 6
DO NOT MAIL Items: 410
¥ o % ® TRUNCATED s Y %
Check # Date Paid Amount Check # Date Paid Amount
144196 5/26/21 565.38 144209 5/25/21 516.69
144197 5/26/21 136.71 144210 5/26/21 7,298.10
144198 5/25/21 600.00 144211 5/25/21 149.54
144199 5/27/21 13.99 144212 5/27/21 8,333.34
144200 5/25/21 1,165.29 144215%* 5/26/21 173.42
144202* 5/25/21 418.39 144216 5/25/21 418.82
144203 5/25/21 200.00 144217 5/26/21 306.39
144204 5/25/21 872.00 144225* 5/27/21 8,689.28
144205 5/26/21 2,127.89 144251* 5/27/21 26.25
144206 5/28/21 116.38 144258* 5/28/21 131.45
144207 5/21/21 11,888.50 144279* 5/28/21 275.00

144208 5/25/21 153.45
* = out of Sequence Check

DAILY BALANCE SUMMARY

-Balance Date- -Balance Date- -Balance Date- -Balance Date-
21,354,817.43 4/30 21,883,749.42 5/10 21,897,077.19 5/18 21,602,899.03 5/26
21,350,528.36 5/03 21,966,771.70 5/11 21,874,393.36 5/19 21,567,704.19 5/27
21,293,340.77 5/04 22,005,069.74 5/12 21,877,760.31 5/20 21,564,294.18 5/28
21,409,579.76 5/05 21,986,403.84 5/13 21,634,325.97 5/21 21,573,384.58 5/31
22,140,082.19 5/06 21,941,515.29 5/14 21,745,114.38 5/24
21,886,312.42 5/07 21,948,607.57 5/17 21,646,383.33 5/25

Interest Paid Year to Date is 44,052.13
Low Balance for Period was 21,293,440.77
Average Ledger Balance for Period was 21,727,378.64
Average Collected Balance for Period was 21,723,478.79
Current Interest Rate is .3500%

*¥*%¥END OF STATEMENT®**

NOTICE: SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR IMPORTANT INFORMATION

EQUAL HOUSTG
LENDER /



To Balance Your Account Follow These Easy Steps
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EXHIBIT B
AUTHORITY TO BIND AGREEMENT

The Christian County Commission will be accepting sealed bids from Christian County
Banking Institutions which desire to be selected as the depository of Christian County
Funds for the next four years, with an option to re-bid in each odd-numbered year, All
banking institutions should comply with the provisions of Chapter 110 of the Revised
Statutes of the State of Missouri.

BID Deadline and Location: Pursuant to 110.140 Any banking corporation or association
in the county desiring to bid shall deliver a sealed bid marked SEALED BID DO NOT OPEN
RE: BANK BID to County Commission 100 West Church, Room 100, Ozark, MO. 65721, no

later than 8:45 a.m. the 21s' day of June.

Opening Date/ Time/Location: The Christian County Commission, in compliance with
RsMO 110.150.1, will publicly open the bids on the 215 day of June 2021 at 9:00 a.m. in
the Commission Chamber on the first floor of the historic courthouse located at 100
West Church, Room 100 Ozark, MO., and cause each bid to be entered upon the
records of the Commission pursuant to 110.150.1, but the Commission may reject any
and all bids.

Award Date/Location: After review of the bid, the Christian County Commission shall
award bid by the last Monday of June.

Questions or Additional Information Requested: Please e-mail all questions regarding
the Bank Bid to the County Commission Office at:
countycommission@christiancountymo.gov. All questions must be submitted prior to the
bid opening and no later than Monday, June 215!, 2021. Al questions will be answered in
writing or emailed to all known potential bidders in Christian County,

1|Page



The undersigned certifies that they have the authority to bind this company in an
agreement to supply the commodity or service in accordance with all terms, conditions,
and pricing specified herein or to offer a “No Bid.” Please type or print the information
below. Bidder is REQUIRED to complete, sign and retum this form with their submittal of
Bid as well as all pages initialed. *An authorized signature is mandatory; lack thereof will
result in a determination of “"Non-Responsive”. Also required is a direct email address in
order to receive award results. We do not use USPS for direct results notification, only
email,

OZARK BANK JOHN R. HEDGPETH

Company Name Authorized Person (Print)

106-112 N. 2ND AVE

Address iepratdre

OZARK / CHRISTIAN / MO / 65721

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

City/County/State/Zip Tifle

417-581-2321 417-581-2235 6/21/2021 44-0380840
Telephone # Fax # Date Tax ID #
Jjhedgpethl@ozarkbank.com CORPORATION

E-mail Entity Type (Corporation, LLC, Sole
Proprietor, Partnership)

Bids received after 8:45 on the 215t day of June 2021, will be considered untimely
and will not be opened.

2|Page



Central Bank
of the Ozarks

06/18/2021

Madi Hires, Executive Administrative Assistant
Christian County Government

100 W. Church Street, Room 100

Ozark, MO 65721

417-582-4300

Dear Ms. Hires and review panel members:

Central Bank of the Ozarks is excited to submit its proposal to Christian County (herein referred
to as “the County”) for Depository and Banking Services. Enclosed you will find details of highly
competitive pricing and innovative solutions that will benefit the County both now and in the future.
Most importantly, local, dedicated and professional Central Bank employees who provide concierge-
level service back these solutions.

Price is not everything, but we understand it is very important when it comes to utilizing every
tax doltar effectively. A review of information provided by the County indicates your current depository
is paying the County .66% on its first $10MM, and .35% on anything over that on collected balances.

I'am hopeful you will see that Central Bank of the Ozarks proposed a competitive rate, given
our current environment, but also creative ways to earn the County additional income such as utilizing
our Commercial payments services (Integrated Payables & Multi-card program) to take advantage of
our revenue share. Combining these creative revenue share opportunities with our proposed
rate on your deposits would yield an aggregate return of .13% on your relationship with us.

As a leading member of our banking community, Central Bank of the Ozarks is proud to service
customers throughout Christian County for over 64 years. Our history and expertise demonstrates we
are a proven and exceptionally strong financial partner. Forbes Magazine recognizes us as the 4t
Best Bank in America in 2021, and the #1 Bank in Missouri for the second consecutive year. In
addition, we are a local Missouri-based bank with multiple locations throughout Christian County,
capable of serving the County’s sophisticated banking needs.

Our expertise in public funds and current relationships set us apart from other institutions, and
make us best suited for this contract. We currently maintain large cash management refationships with
many entities similar in size to the County as well as larger organizations, such as the State of
Missouri’s Department of Revenue and the Missouri State Treasurer's Office. Our employees work
face-to-face with our customers on common goals and address any issues that may arise. We know
the importance of accuracy and strive for it in everything we do.

Central Bank is also committed to future technology by continually investing in various delivery
4% Best Bank in America

channels. We will deliver customized and innovative ways for the
County to manage its funds, based on the requirements and goais
outlined in the Request for Proposal.

Forbes 2021

BEST
BANKS IN

You will notice best-in-class services throughout our proposal, as
well as flexible options tailored to meet the complex needs of a
large public organization like Christian County. Below are just a
few additional reasons the County should select our bank:

2021 FORBES MEDIA LLC_ WSED WITH PERMISSION

AS PART OF CENTRAL BANCOMPANY

Al



Legendary Service

Central Bank of the Ozarks prides itself on delivering legendary, concierge-level service to
each of our customers. We will partner with you to collaborate on dynamic issues and create
industry-leading solutions. In addition, we have extensive experience with large-scale
municipal and statewide cash management and investment operations.

Easy Implementation

County staff will work closely with knowledgeable, experienced senior managers as well as a
dedicated team of highly skilled banking professionals when you choose Central Bank of the
Ozarks. A handpicked and dedicated implementation team will ensure a smooth transition to
the products and services you select. A senior, single point of contact for the County to work
with directly after implementation will ensure communication is timely and clear, and allow any
unexpected issues to be resolved promptly.

Proven Pariner

Central Bank of the Ozarks is committed to our local region. Our bank does not employ a
national tax strategy like some of our competitors. [n 2019, our company paid over $8.4 million
in state corporate income tax, ensuring those dollars stay right here in Missouri, supporting
Missouri families, businesses, farms, infrastructure, and local governments.

We live and work right here in the Ozarks, and all of us along with our neighbors, friends, and
family members benefit from the County's services and sound financial management. The
well-being and financial strength of our County government is important to us and we view this
opportunity as an important partnership ensuring the best for all of our communities.

Cutting-edge, cost effective services

Central Bank knows the importance of doing more than just meeting your needs; our goal is
to exceed expectations by providing products and services that are fully customizable and
provide you with added value. Our banking, merchant services, purchasing card, investment
and safekeeping services can be tailored in a variety of ways to fit the County’s needs.

Based on payment data provided by the County, our proposal includes a valuable opportunity
for the County to implement our integrated payables solution- known as Commercial
Automated Payments- creating more than $452,500 in cash rebates for County
government over the life of this contract. When coupled with our MuitiCard purchasing
card program, the total rebate we can provide will be even greater. That is value
commissioners will recognize and appreciate, and local taxpayers will, too.

As bank president and CEQ, | have the authority to bind Central Bank of the Ozarks in this

proposal and the subsequent contract, and itis my pleasure to submit our bid proposal. We are excited
about the opportunity to collaborate with Christian County and our employees are poised to answer
questions or provide additional information at your request. We look forward to being your hometown
solution.

Sincerely,

@M@%ﬁ\gﬁf\

Joselyn Baldner
President and CEO




Central Bank
» of the Ozarks

Strong roots. Endless possibilities*
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Ralph Phillips
Christian County Commission e ommeene
100 W. Church Street Room 100 O issioner
CHRISTIAN Ozark, Missouri 65721 _
,, (417)582-4300 Hosea Bilyeu

Western Commissioner

invitation to Bid: County Depository Bank Services

CONTACT: Madi Hires, Executive Administrative Assistant
ADDRESS: Christian County Government

100 W. Church $t., Room 100

Ozark, MO 65721

PHONE: {417) 582-4300
EMAIL: countycommission@christiancountymo.gov

The email address listed above Is for information requests only and shall not be used for submission of proposals or
modifications to proposals. Such submissions will be rejected and deleted without notification to the sending party.

RETURN BID TO: Christian County Commisston
100 West Church Street, Room 100
Ozark, Missouri 65721

NOTE: Please provide (4) four copies and one unbound original of your detailed bid proposal

The bidder hereby declares understanding, agreement, and certification of compliance to provide the items
and/or services, at the prices quoted, in accordance with all requirements and specifications contained herein
and the Terms and Conditions for this proposal. The bidder further agrees that the language of this RFP shall
govern in the event of a conflict with his/her bid. The bidder further agrees that upon receipt of an authorized
purchase order frorm the Christian County Commission or when an Agreement for Contract Services is cerfified
by the Christian County Auditor, a binding contract shall exist between the Bidder and the County of Christian,
State of Missouri.

Christian County maintqins ¢ list of vendors interested in bidding on products and services for Christian County.
itis the vendor's responsibility to update contact information. Vendors are removed from the list if they are
invited to bid, but do not participate. The Christian County Commission office is not abligated to send
invitations to vendors. Due to the volume of request and postage costs, the Commission Office does not send
bids to all interested vendors. Christian County fulfills its legal requirements by posting a notice in the local
paper.



(1) SUBMITTAL INSTRUCTIONS:

Please print the due date on the outside of the package and return this entire document with your bid
submission. Mark your sealed envelope “OFFICE SUPPLIES - BID DOCUMENTS — DO NOT OPEN". Seadled
bids must be received at the Christian County Commission by the return date and time. No bid
transmitted by fax machine or email will be accepted. Bids are opened in public meetings on the
opening date and time specified above. Any interested persons may attend. Bids must be delivered
no later than fifteen {15) minutes before bid opening time mentioned above. If the Commiission office
receives a container which is not identifiable as a bid/proposal, the container will be opened in order
to determine the contents. If the contents are determined to be a bid/proposal, the container will be
resedled, and the date and time received wil be noted on the outside. All bids will remain sealed until
they are opened and read aloud during the Christian County Commission meeting at the specified
time. Bids which are not received in the Commissioner's Office at least 15 minutes prior to bid opening
date and time shall be considered |ate, regardless of the degree of lateness, and normally will not be
presented or opened, except as stated below. At the fime fixed for opening of proposals, the content
will be made public for the vendor and other interested persons. Vendors are cautioned to review their
bid very carefully. Any additional information, specifications, drawings, etc. should be attached. Bids
should be signed and dated. It shall be the responsibility of persons submitting bids to acquire the
necessary specifications.

(2) LATE BIDS:

Under extraordinary circumstances, the Commission may authorize the opening of a late bid when the
bid was turned over to the physical control of an independent postal or courier service with o promised
delivery time prior to the time set for the opening of bids. The County Commission is not responsible for
bids sent to the wrong address, faxed, emailed, or received after the cut-off date and time. Remember
fo address or hand-deliver your bid. Bids will not be accepted by fax or email because we must have
the original signed document. Bidders must consider the postal service or courier time schedules when
sending their bids and provide ample time for delivery. The following guidelines may be utilized to
determine the criteria for an extraordinary circumstance: Christian County offices were closed due to
inclement weather conditions, postal or courier services were delayed due to labor sirikes or
unforeseen "Acts of God", or postal or courier services did not meet the delivery time promised to the
vendor. In such case, the vendor must provide written proof that promised delivery time was prior to
the time set for the bid opening. All such decisions are at the sole discretion of the Commission.

(3) Bid Withdrawal:

After the bid opening, a vendor may be permitted to withdraw a bid prior to the award at the sole
discretion of the County Commiissioners if there is a verifiable error in the bid and enforcement of the
bid would impose an unconscionable hardship on the vendor. The withdrawal will be considered only
after receipt of a written request supporting documentation from the vendor. Withdrawal shall be the
vendor's sole remedy for an error other than the obvious clerical error.

(4) Product Samples:

The Commission may request samples for evaluation purposes. Any samples requested must be
provided free of charge. Samples which are not destroyed by testing will be returned at the vendor's
expense if return of the samples is stipulated in the vendor's bid. Samples submitted by a vendor who
receives the award may be kept for the duration of the contract for comparison with shipments
received.
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(5) ltemization of Psoposal:

Vendor must clearly identify in his/her bid and on the pricing worksheet, all components. It is
mandatory that vendors submit with their proposal documents, itemization of all goods and services
proposed. The breakdown must be itemized by model/part number, description of goods or services,
and unif cost.

(6} Minority Business Participation:

Christian County encourages the participation and utilization of minority business enterprises in all
projects of the county. Christian County will provide equitable and fair opportunity to minority
businesses o submit bids and proposals and to receive an award. By responding to this invitation, the
vendor agrees that it does not discriminate on the basis of race, religion, creed, national origin, age,
sex or disability, and that it will refrain from any unlawful employment practices.

(7) Communication with County Employees:

Vendors shall not communicate with any county employee regarding this Invitation to bid with the
exception of the county confact written on the first page. Vendors shall ensure that no improper,
unethical, or illegal relationships or conflict of interest exists between vendor, the county, any
employee, officer, director, or principal of vendor or the county and any other party. The county
reserves the right to determine the materiality of such relationships, when discovered or disclosed,
whether intended or not. The county also reserves the right to decide at its sole discretion whether
disqualification of vendor and/or cancellation of award shall result.  Such disqualification or
cancellation shall be without fault or liability to the county.

(8) Collusion:

By submitting a proposal in response to this invitation to bid, vendor and each person signing on behalf
of the vendor, certify under penalty of perjury, that to the best of his/her belief the prices in the proposal
were arrived at independently and without collusion, consultation, communication, or agreement for
the purpose of restricting competition as to any matter relating to such prices with any other vendor,
or any other competitor. Unless otherwise required by law, the prices in the bid have not been
knowingly disclosed by vendor, and will not be knowingly disclosed by vendor, prior to opening, directly
orindirectly, to any other vendor or competitor. No attempt has been made or will be made by vendor
or any other person associated with this invitation to bid, partnership, corporation, or entity fo submit
or not to submit a proposal in response to this bid for the purpose of restricting competition.

(9) Incurred costs:

The county is not liable for any costs incurred by a vendor in the preparation or production of its
proposal or for any work performed prior to the issuance of a valid contract under Missouri law. Such
exemption from liability applies whether such costs are incurred by vendor or indirectly through vendors
agent, employees, assigns or others, whether related or not to vendor.

(10) For Construction Services:

All on site employees of vendors and sub vendors must complete required safety training. Required
safety training is OSHA 10 training. (A ten (10) hour course in construction safety and health faught by
an OSHA approved instructor}, or similar program at least as stringent as OSHA 10 iraining. For more
informaftion contact the Missouri Division of Labor Standards. Christian County requires documentation
showing that the on-site employee/s have completed the required fraining.

(11) Vendor's Personnel Qualifications:
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Christian County reserves the right to approve or disapprove the vendor's personnel providing services
for Christian County Government. Christian County also reserves the right to request replacement of
any person assigned to provide services. Unless the situation regarding the personnel requires
immediate replacement, the vendor shall be allowed at least fourteen (14) days after notification to
replace unsafisfactory personnel,

If requested, the vendor shall provide a list of names, social security numbers, and dates of birth for
each such personnel who will be providing services at Christian County buildings. In addition, the
vendor must notify Christian County of any additions or changes to the list. Christian County reserves
the right to accept or reject any of the vendor's personnel assigned to the contract to provide services.

(12) Discount applicable:

Vendor will provide information on any quantity discounts that may apply to the equipment or
services utilized in developing their pricing structure. State the length of time the discounts are
available post-installation.

(13) Insurance:

The vendor shall understand and agree that Christian County cannot save and hold harmless and or
indemnify the vendor or employees against any fiability incurred or arising as a result of any activity of
the vendor, or any activity of the vendor's employees related to the vendor's performance under the

contract. Therefore, the vendor must acquire and maintain adequate liability insurance in the form (s)

and amount (s) sufficient to protect Christian County, its agencies, its employees, its clients, and the

general public against any such loss, damage and/or expense related to his/her performance under
this contract. The vendor shall fake out and maintain during the life of the contract comprehensive

general liability insurance which names Christian County, Misscuri and its elected officials and

employees as additional named insureds in an amount sufficient to cover the sovereign immunity limits

for public entities as calculated by the Department of Insurance and published annually in the Missouri

Register per section 537.610, RSMo. For the life of the contract, vendor shall maintain comprehensive

general liability insurance coverage for all claims arising out of a single accident or occurrence of at.
least $3,000,000.00 and for any one person in a single accident or occurrence of at least $500,000.00
Vendor shall maintain during the life of the contract Workers Compensation Insurance for Vendor's
employees coverage that shall meet Missouri statutory limits or $1,000,000 for each accident,

whichever is greater. General and other non-professional fiability insurance shall include an

endorsement that adds Christian County and their respective officials and employees as an additional
insured. Self-insurance coverage or another alternative risk financing mechanism may be utilized

provided that such coverage is verifiable and irrevocably reliable and Christian County is protected

as an additional insured.

(14) Vendor Liability:

The vendor shall be responsible for any and alt personal injury {including death) or property damage
as aresult of the vendor's negligence involving any equipment or service provided under the terms
and conditions, requirements and specifications of the coniract. In addition, the vendor assumes the
obligation to save Christian County, including its agencies, employees, and assignees, from every
expense, liability, or payment arising out of such negligent act. The vendor also agrees to hold
Christian County including its agencies, employees, and assignees, harmless for any negligent act or
omission committed by any subconiractor or other person employed by or under the supervision of
the vendor under the terms of the contract. The vendor shall not be responsible for any injury or
damage occurring as a result of any negligent act or omission committed by Christian County,
including its agencies, employees, and assighees.
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(15) Business Compliance:

The vendor must be financially sound and must not be operating under the protection of the United
States Bankruptcy Code. The vendor must be in compliance with the laws regarding conducting
business in the State of Missouri. The vendor certifies by signing the signature page of this original
document and any amendment signature page(s} that the vendor and any proposed subcontractors
either are presently in compliance with such laws or shall be in compliance with such laws prior to any
resulting contract award, The vendor shall provide documentation of compliance upon request by
Christian County. The compliance to conduct business in the state shall include but may not be limited
to:

- Registration of business name. (if applicable)

- Certificate of authority to fransact business/certificate of good standing. (if applicable)

- Taxes {e.g.. city/county/state/federal)

- State and local certifications (e.g. Professions/occupations/activities)

- Licenses and permits (e.g., city/county license, sales permits)

- Insurance (e.g., worker's compensation/unemployment compensation)

16) Terms and Conditions:

The vendor is cautioned when submitting pre-printed forms containing terms and conditions or other
type material to make sure such documents do not contain other terms and conditions which confiict
with those of this agreement and its contractual requirements. The vendor agrees that in the event of
conflict between any of the vendor's terms and conditions and those contained in this agreement,
that this agreement shall govern. Taking exception to Christian County terms and conditions may
render a vendor's bid non-responsive and remove it from consideration for award.

BANKING DEPOSITORY SPECIFICATIONS

Agreement must include effective date of 18 day of July 2021, by and between the COUNTY OF CHRISTIAN, STATE
OF MISSOURI, a political subdivision consisting of a county of the first classification, without a charter form of
government (hereinafter referred to as the “"County"), and the Bank and each hereby state
In compliance with the provisions of Chapter 110, RSMo., the County, on the 28t day of June 2021, will select and
designate the Bank as the official depository to receive the funds of the County from the 15t day of July 2021
through the 30t day of June 2023, and the Bank has accepted said designation and agreed to act as sqid
depository. The County and the Bank agree that the confract would have an option to be extended for the
period of the 30t day of June 2023 through the 30t day of June 2025, unless one or both of the parties pravides
written notification not [ater than the 30% day of May 2023, that the contract will not be extended. The Bank shall
noftify the Christian County Commission and any other office or department utilizing the County's Tax ID in writing
and the County will provide written notification to the Bank through the officer assigned pursuant to 4.4 of the
proposed agreement.

A binding contract shall consist of: (1) the RFP or invitation to bid, amendments thereto, with RFP bid invitation
changes/additions, (2) the vendor's proposal and (3) the County Commission's acceptance of the proposal by
"notice of award” or by "purchase order”. All Exhibits and Attachments included in the RFP or bid invitation shall
be incorporated into the contract by reference.

The contract expresses the complete agreement of the parties and performance shall be governed solely by the
specifications and requirements contained therein.

Any changes fo the contract, whether by modification and/or supplementation, must be accomplished by o
formal coniract amendment signed and approved by and between the duly authorized representative of the
vendor and the County Commission or by a moedified purchase order prior to the effective date of such
modification. The vendor expressly and explicitly understands and agrees that no other method and/or no other
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document, including correspondence from the County Commission, acts, and oral communications by or from
any person, shall be used or construed as an amendment or modification to the contract.

(17) Employee Bidding/Conflict of Interest:

Vendors who are elected or appointed officials or employees of Christian County or any political
subdivision thereof, serving in an executive or administrative capacity, must comply with sections
105.450 to 105.458, RSMo, regarding conflict of interest. If the vendor or any owner of the vendor's
organization is currently an elected or appointed official or an employee of Christian County or any
pofitical subdivision thereof, please provide the following information:

- Name and title of the elected or appointed official or employee of Christian County or any
Political subdivision.

- What is the percentage of ownership interest in the vendor's organization held by elected or
appointed official or employee of Christian County or political subdivision thereof?

(18) Independent Contractor:

The vendoris an independent contractor and shall not represent the vendor or the vendor’s
employees to be employees of Christian County or an agency of Christian County. The vendor shall
assume all legal and financial responsibility for salaries, taxes, FICA, employes fringe benefits, workers
compensation, employee insurance, minimum wage requirements, overtime, etc.

{19) Substitutions:

The vendor shall not substitute any item(s) without the prior written approval of the Christian County
.Commissioners. In therevent an item becomes unavailable, the vendor shall be responsible for
providing a suitable substitute item. The vendor's failure to provide an acceptable substitute may
result in cancellation or termination of the contract. Any item substitution must be a replacement of
the contracted item with a product of equal or better capabilities and quality, and with equal or
iower pricing. The vendor shall understand that Christian County reserves the right to allow the
substitution of any new or different product/system offered by the vendor. Christian County shall be
the final authority as to the acceptability of any proposed substitution. Any item substitution shall
require a formal contract amendment authorized by Christian County Commissioners prior to
Christian County acquiring the substitute item under the contract. The vendor shall not be relieved of
substituting a product in the event of manufacturer discontinuation or other reason simply for recasons
of unprofitability to the vendor.

(20) Replacement of Damaged Product:

The vendor shall be responsible for replacing any item received in damaged condition at no cost to
Christian County. This includes all fuel costs for returning non-functional items to the vendor for
replacement.

(21) Prices:

The vendor shall submit firm fixed prices on the Pricing Page {Exhibit A — Pg. 3 Exhibit 1}. All pricing shall
be considered firm for the duration of the contract period. Al pricing shall be quoted with all fees
included. Vendor's prices must be the lowest offered to any governmental or commercial consumer,
under the same terms and conditions.
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{22) Fuel charges:

Fuel charges shall be added into the quote for services. However, if the cost of #2 diesel as reported
by the Departmeni of Energy internet site and recorded as the “Weekly Retail On-Highway Diesel
Prices” for the Midwest Region exceeds $3.50 per gallon, the vendor will charge no more than 1 12 %
for each $.10 increase in the recorded cost of fuel above the $3.50 base line. It is expected, because
of the timeliness of the DOE report, the cost of fuel for a prior month shall be used as the basis for a
current month's fuel surcharge assessment. January's reported diesel cost shall be used o compute
any surcharge for February's services, etc. Vendor agrees that any additional charges related o fuel
increases must be agreed upon between vendor and Christian County before implementation by the
vendor.

(23) Description of Product:

The vendor should present a detailed description of the product proposed on the Pricing Sheet {(Exhibit
1] inresponse to this Invitation for Bid. It is the vendor's responsibility o make sure all products proposed
are adequately described in order to conduct an evaluation of the bid. At the time fixed for opening
of proposals, the content will be made public for the information of the bidder and others interested.

(24) Non-Exclusivity:

The Contract is non-exclusive and shall not in any way preclude the County from entering into similar
agreements and/or arrangements to acqguire equal or like goods and/or services from other vendaors.
The County may make multiple awards from a single solicitation document when such awards are in
the best interest of the county.

(25) Billing and Payments:

Invoices will be submitted to Christian County Commission, 100 W Church §t, Room 100, Ozark, MO
65721. It is estimated there are 25 various offices and departments requiring separate billing (if
applicable to bid products offered). Vendor shall provide the department with invoices and
statements of accounts on a monthly basis noting any amounts and invoices past due. Invoices should
be delivered with the materials and packing slip. Payment will be made within 30 days from receipt of
an accurate inveice.

Services or goods must be received before payment can be made. The vendor shall submit all reports
required herein and a copy of each inveice as supporting documentation with the monthly statement.
Other than the payments and reimbursements specified above, no other payments or reimbursements
shall be made to the vendor for any recason whatscever including, but not limited to taxes, shipping
charges, insurance, interest, penalfies, termination payments, attorney fees, liquidated damages, etc.
Notwithstanding any other payment provision of the contract, if the vendor fails to perform required
work or services, fails to submit reports when due, or is indebted to the United States, Christian County
may withhold payment or reject invoices under the confract.

Final invoices are due no later than thirty (30} calendar days after the expiration of the contract.
Christian County shall have no obligation to pay any invoice submitted after such date. If arequest by
the vendor for payment or reimbursement is denied, Christian County shall provide the vendor with
written notice of the reason(s) for denial.

If the vendor is overpaid by Christian County, upon official noftification by Christian County, the vendor
shall provide Christian County with a check payable as instructed by Christian County in the amount
of such overpayment. The vendor shall submit the overpayment to Christian County at the address
specified. The vendor shall agree and understand that Christian County shall be solely responsible for
payment for only those services requested by Christian County.
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(28) Return of Goods:
Christian County may cancel any purchase at any time for a full credit.
(27) Management of Materials:

The vendor agrees and understands that as the needs of the county change. the county will notify the
vendor of those changes. If requested by the county, the vendor shall make a corresponding
adjustment to the services. The vendor will implement the requested changes upon notification.

In the event changes occur during the effective period of this confract which are beyond the control
of the vendor that significantly increase or decrease the established cost, the vendor or Christian
County may request a corresponding modification to the established cost.

With such request, the vendor must provide documentation of the change and must demonstrate how
such change affects the cost. In addition, the vendor shall recommend an adjusted cost
accompanied by the resulting calculations. However, the vendor shall agree and understand that
any such request must be approved by the Christian County Commissioners.

The decision of the adjustment to the cost by Christian County shall be final and without recourse.

(28) Schedule:

The vendor shall ensure that services are performed in a manner so as to minimize any interference,
annoyance, or disruption to the operations of Christian County.

In the event the vendor does not perform in accordance with the vendor’s agreement, Christian
County shaill notify the vendor following determination of such. Vendor shall be responsive to the needs
of Christian County at all times. The vendor shall be responsible for all permits, fees, and expenses
related to the service. The vendor shall disclose to Christian County all information on sub vendor
conftracts/agreements, if applicable, including any rebates or incentives offered by sub vendors to the
contactor,

(29) Services:

The vendor agrees to provide a detailed description of the services to be provided, including any
additional information about the services on a separate sheet of paper if needed. The vendor will
provide an itemization of the amount the vendor will charge, the unit of measure for the services, and
specific increments and timeframes to submit invoices to the vendor and receive payments from the
vendor.

(30) Reporting Requirements;

On a monthly basis, the vendor shall submit a report to Christian County for each County building site,
identify the services provided and the dates of service.

The vendor must maintain financial and accounting records and evidence pertaining to the contract
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The vendor shall make all records,
books, and other documents relevant to the contract available to Christian County and the Christian
County Auditer in an acceptable format and at all reasonable times during the term of the contract,
and for three (3} years from the date of final payment on the contract or the completion of an
independent audit, whichever is later. If any litigation, claim, negoftiation, audit, or other actions
involving the records has been started before the expiration of the retention period, the vendor shall
retain such records until completion of the action and resolution of all issues which arise from it. Failure
fo retain adequate documentation for any service billed may result in recovery of payments for
services not adequately documented.
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The vendor shall permit the County Auditor or authorized representatives of Christian County or any
other division of government to have access, for the purpose of auditing or examination, to any of the
vendor's books, documents, papers, records, recording receipts and disbursements of any of the funds
paid to the vendor. The vendor further agrees that any audit exception noted by governmental
auditors shall not be paid by Christion County and shall be the sole responsibility of the vendor.
However, the vendor shall have the right to contest any such exception by any legal procedure the
vendor deems appropriate. Christian County will pay the vendor all amounts which the vendor may
ultimately be held entitled to receive as a resuli of any such legal action.

The vendor shall agree and understand that if contract monitoring reveals that an audit is warranted,
Christian County reserves the right to require the vendor to have an audit of financial records,
accounting records, and related contract documentation performed by an independent Certified
Public Accountant (CPA) in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Christian
County's determination of the need for the audit shall be final and without recourse.

(31) Liquidated Damages:

The vendor agrees and understands that the provision of the services in accordance with the
schedules and requirements stated herein and in accordance with the Christian County
Commissioner's approval are considered critical to the efficient operations of Christian County. Since
the amount of actual damages would be difficult 1o establish in the event the vendor fails to comply
with the schedules and requirements, the vendor shall agree and understand that the amount
identified below as liguidated damages shall be reasonable and fair under the circumstances:

In the event the vendor fails to perform the services, the vendor shall be assessed liguidated damages
in the amount of ten percent (10%} of the price for the services for each twenty-four (24) hour period
thereafter in which the identified requirement is not completed. If the fault lies with Christian County,
no assessment shall be made.

The vendor shall also agree and understand that such liquidated damages shall either be deducted
from the vendor's invoices pursuant fo the contract or paid by the vendor as a direct payment to
Christian County at the sole discretion of Christian County.

The vendor shall agree and understand that all assessments of liquidated damages shall be within the
discretion of Christian County and shall be in addition to, net in lieu of, the rights of Christian County to
pursue other appropriate remedies.

(32) Excused Performance:

Any failure or delay in performance or payment due to contlingencies beyond either party's
reasonable control, including sfrikes, riots, terrorist acts, compliance with applicable laws or
governmental orders, fires, and acts of God, shall not constitute a breach of this agreement.

{33) Cancelling Service:

The Christian County Commission reserves the right to discontinue service at any time by giving a
30-day notice. The vendor shall agree and understand that the vendor shall terminate the services
upon written nofification from Christian County. The decision by the Christian County Commissioners
shall be final and without recourse.

(34) Determination for Award:

The award shall be made to the lowest priced and best responsive vendor. Christian County reserves
the right to reject any bid which is determined unacceptable for reasons which may include but are
not necessarily limited to: 1) failure of the vendor to meet mandatory general performance
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specifications; and/or 2) failure of the vendor to meet mandatory technical specifications; and/or, 3)
receipt of any information, from any source, regarding delivery of unsatisfactory product or service by
the vendor within the past three years. - As deemed in its best interests, Christian County reserves the
right to clarify any and all portions of any vendor's offer.

Agreements signed by Christian County must be signed by at least a majority of the members of the
County Commission. Agreements must be attested by the County Clerk and approved to form by the
County Counselor. In addition, the County Auditor must certify that there is an unencumbered
balance available to pay the contract cost.

(35) Protesting bid award:

A bid award protest must be submitted in writing and must be received by the county within ten (10)
calendar days after the date of the award. If the tenth day falls on a Saturday, Sunday or state holiday,
the period shall extend to the next business day. A protest submitted after the ten [10) calendar day
period shall not be considered. The written protest should include the following information: {A] Name,
address, and phone number of the protester, (B) Signature of the protester or the protester's
representative, (C) Solicitation product, (D} Detailed statement describing the grounds for the protest;
and supporting exhibits, evidence, or documentation to substantiate the cleim,

(36) Suspension or debarment of Vendor:

The County Commission may suspend or debar a vendor for cause. The following shall be sufficient
cause for suspension or debarment. The list is not meant to be all inclusive but shall serve as a guideline
for vendor discipline and business ethics:

Failure to perform in accordance with the terms, conditions, and requirements of a contract/purchase
order.

Violating any federal, state, or local law, ordinance or regulation in the performance of a
contract/purchase order.

Providing false or misleading information on an application, in a bid, or in correspondence to county
offices,

Failure to honor a bid for the length of time specified.

Colluding with others to restrain competition. Obtaining information, by whatever means, related to o
proposal submitted by a competitor in response to a reguest for proposal in order to obtain an unfair
advantage during the negofiation process.

Contacting bid evaluators or any other person who may have influence over the award, without
authorization from the County Commission, for the purpose of influencing the award of a contract: or
giving gifts, medals, trips or any other thing of value or @ monetary advantage for personal benefit,
directly or indirectly, to an employee of the county or to any evaluator of bids/proposals.

The vendor may appeal suspension or debarment by submitting a written request to the County
Commission within fifteen (15) calendar days after receipt of the formal notice. The vendor must
provide specific evidence and reasons why the suspension or debarment is not necessary. On the
basis of this information, the suspension may be modified, rescinded, or affirmed. The decision shall be
final and mailed to all parties.
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(37) Declaraflon:

The vendor hereby decldres understanding, agreemant, and cerfificatior of compllance to provide
the items andfor services, at the prices. quoted, In accordence with all terms and -conditiens,

requiremerits, and specifications of this origingl Invite lon to bid.. The vendor further agrees that upon

recsipt of an authorized purchase order from the. Christian County Commission er when o Neflce of

Award Js signed-and Issugd by the Cemmission, « kindihg contract shall exist between the vendor and
. ot ‘-]"‘ R T e ) .

Christian County. Slanalre required beélow-gontiiming Uniderstanding ‘ofthis:statement:
Dolng Business s (BBA) Name Legal Names. of Entity/Individual Flled with IRS for this
. _ Tax 1D Ne.
Cermeac Baox of THEORRES|  <mue
Malling Address IRS Ferm 10992 Mdlling Addiess.
Noo S GLENSSTANE AVE S ME
City, 8tate, Zip Code Clly, State, Zip Code
SY QNG LD Mo LS’YQL‘ Samb
[Céntact Person Emall Address:
GKEC\BQ\,I GTZTTC\-‘ v C.&Eé\ /\‘2 \TC\-le‘@ CF—")T‘U\L%ﬂ“K NET
Phone Nurhber Fox Number;
Hin g1 4}, Y11 %41 43% 0
‘Audthorized Slgnature, Pate
}/WEQ o] 13| 792
> \ /\/'P; - CoMMERCIne. SEQVIES
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BIDDER BUSINESS REFERENCE INFORMATION

Name: City of Springfield Name: Evangel Unjversity

BAsc;ggess: 840 North Boonville Ave., Springafield, MO 65802 Address: 1111 North Glenstone Ave,, Springfield, MO
Tel No.: 417-864-1616 Tel No.: 417-865-2811

Fax No: 417-864-1625 Fax No none

Email: jvernon@springfieldmo.gov Email: edwardsd@evangel.edu\

Contact: Jody Vernon Contact: Dr. Robert H. Spence

Name: James River Assembly of God, Inc. Name: Cole County Collector of Revenue
Address: 6400 North 197 St., Ozark, MO 65721 Address: 311 East High St. Jefferson City MO
65101,

Tel No.: 417-581-5433 Tel No.:_573-634-9124

Fax No none Fax No 573-634-8060

Email: jfferquson@jamesriver.org Email: lvincent@colecounty.org

Contact: Jenna Ferquson Contact: ML, Larry Vincent, County Collector







(38) Contact Information:

Any additional information desired may be requested by mail to the address listed, or by telephone
to 417-582-4300. Information requests may dlso be e-mailed to
countycommission@christiancountymo.gov. This e-mail address is for information requests only and
shall not be used for submission of proposals or modifications to proposals. Such submissions will be
rejected and deleted without notification to the sending party.

Thank you for your consideration of this Invitation to Bid. We appreciate your participation in the
bidding process.

CHRISTIAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
Ralph Phillips, Presiding Commissioner
Hosea Bilyeu, Western Commissioner

Lynn Morris, Eastern Commissioner
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Bid Specifications
Bid Submissions

All bids must be received on or before June 215, 2021 at 8:45 a.m. Bids must be received In a sealed
envelope to the Christian County Commission office 100 W. Church Street Room 100 Ozark, MO 65721.
Clearly mark the envelope with your company name and address. No faxed or emailed bids will be
accepted. All bids must be filled out on Christian County bid forms supplied in the attached specifications.
If you have any products, additional services, or price adjustments please fist these in the addifional
charges/conditions sections. All bids must be signed and have the company's information included. If you
are bidding on more than one product or service, please include the company'sinformation and sign every
form you are bidding on. All bids must be in the format requested in the bid forms. Any variance from this
can causé rejection of the bid. The bid forms are the only part that must be returned in your envelope. The
specification details may be kept by the bidder. Any bid that is submitted must be honored for 30 days
from the opening without any increase or change to price or penalty, Failure 1o comply with the above
listed requirements may result in the rejection of the bid.

Bid Withdrawal

Any bid can be withdrawn up o 8:45 a.m. on June 21, 2021 for any reason without penalties, but any bid
not withdrawn by this fime will be subject to honor the pricing and services stated within that bid.

Any bid can be withdrawn up to 8:45 a.m. on February 28, 2019 for any reason without penalties, but any
bid not withdrawn by this fime will be subject fo honor the pricing and services stated within that bid.

Bid Opening

All bids will be opened and read aloud on June 21, 2021 at 9:00 a.m. at the Christian County Commission
Office. The bidders and public are welcome to attend the formal bid opening. No decisions relating to the
award of any contract or agreement will be made at the bid opening. Copies of all bids will be available
to anyone.

Bidder Responsibility

Itis the responsibiiity of the bidder to have the bid submitted on or before the deadline stated in this packet
on the proper forms. It is also the responsibility of the bidder to ensure that the prices they submit are firm
and not subject to contingency or increases. If a bidder's prices are subject in increases, penalties,
surcharges, or any additional costs or fees it must be stated on the additional charges/conditfions section
on each bid form. Any increase or decrease in a price is subject to affect the awarding of a contract. If g
bidder fails to honor a stated price as submitted in the bid form or contract, Christian County Commission
reserves the right to obtain the same product or service from the next lowest bidder who submitted o bid
price for the same product or service. The original bidder shall then be responsible for the difference in
price. It is the responsibility of the bidder to examine and review projects and specifications. All bidders are
responsible to verify the quality, availability, and schedule of any products that they may need for this bid.

4|l Page



FINAL MANDATORY COMPLIANCE CHECKLIST:

Please use the below table to ensure your bid is fully compliant before you seal it for submission. If
you have any questions regarding any of these items, please call:

Madi Hires, Executive Administrative Assistant
{(417) 582-4300

countycommission@christiancountymo.gov

FINAL COMPLIANCE CHECKLIST (v)

| am submitting my bid prior to the specified deadline. {Page 2, Section 2)

| understand that no faxed or elecironically transmitted bids will be accepted. (Page 2,
Section 1)

[ have filled out, signed, and dated the declaration page. and 1 understand that failure
to do so will result in rejection of my bid. {Page 11, Section 37)

I am including one {1} unbound criginal and four (4) copies of my bid. | understand that
I must include The Price Sheet found in Exhibit A, Page 3 - Exhibit 1, and all pages
thereafter.

I am enclosing my bid in a sealed envelope, and | am marking the envelope “SEALED
BID — DO NOT OPEN". (Page 2, Section 1)

I have filled out, signed, and dated the Authorized to Bind Agreement, and understand
that failure to do so will result in rejection of my bid. (Exhibit B, Page 2).

NSNS TS ST

| am indicating on the envelope the good/service that | am bidding on.
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For the 13th year in a row,
our holding company, Central
Bancompany, has been recognized
as one of America’s Best Banks
by Forbes magazine.
Ranked #4 in America 2021.

Forbes 2021

BEST

BANKS IN

AC PART NF CENTRAL RANCAUPANY

ﬁ |
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OUR PROMISE
We pledge to our clients the strength

that is proven by our history, stability
and resources. Our commitment is
a parinership to help our valued
customers reach their goals-proven
through our community focus and
local decision making that delivers a
wealth of possibilities.

ﬁ
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OUR BACKGROUND

Central Bank of the Ozarks began in 1956 on the outskirts of Springfield (at that time)
at the corner of Glenstone & Sunshine. We started as the vision of a handful of local
merchants and entrepreneurs who collectively put their money to work for themselves
and the community. As long time Central Bank of the Ozarks employee (over 50 years)
Floyd Tucker says about that point in our history... “Everybody knew everybody back
then. We knew most of the business community and would greet each customer as they
came in as if they were longtime friends” This is still true today. Central Bank of the
Ozarks has been able to stay focused on our original mission - to provide the financial
services and solutions of a “big” bank with the decision-making of a community bank.

Our promise to our valuable clients is simple. Central Bank of the Ozarks is here to
meet or exceed our customers’ expectations by offering quality financial services and
products at a competitive price. We also pledge to our clients the strength and stability
of solid financial products and services that are proven by our long history of service in
our community. Qur commitment is a partnership... to help our valued customers reach
their goals — with local decision making that delivers a wealth of possibilities.

Our strength and stability can also be validated by third party recognition such as
Forbes Magazine. For 13 years running (2008-2020) our holding company as well as
Central Bank of the Ozarks has been named one of the top banks in America on Forbes
Magazine’s top 100 Banks list. This is an honor that we can attribute to our great
customers. We can only be as successful as the people we serve and the communities we
serve.

Strong Roots. Endless Possibilities. This powerful statement is the culmination of
the strong values that the Central Bank of the Ozark’s name brings to the table. This
statement stands for someone who values a reliable, honest and proactive banking
relationship. A relationship that helps them simplify the complicated world of money
matters, and make better financial decisions.

BUSINESS SOLUTIONS Central Bank

MEMBER FDIC of the Ozarks



Central Bank of the Ozarks has been serving southwest Missouri since 1956 and offers a host
of community based banking and financial services in Springfield, Nixa, Ozark, Highlandville,
Marshfield, Strafford, Fair Grove, Pleasant Hope, Republic and Battlefield. Central Bank of the
Ozarks is part of Central Bancompany, a $17 billion, Missouri-based bank holding company
with 13 full-service community banks and more than 250 locations in 78 communities serving
consumers and businesses in Missouri, Kansas, Illinois, Oklahoma, Tennessee, North Carolina,
and Colorado,

COMPANY INFORMATION

Main Office: 1800 South Glenstone, Springfield, MO 65808
Phone: 417-881-3100, Fax: 417-841-4283
Top Executives: Joselyn Baldner, President & CEQ
Russ Marquart, Chairman of the Board
Asset Size: $1 Billion+
Deposit Size: $1 Billion+
Branches: 23 located in Springfield, Nixa, Ozark, Highlandville,

Marshfield, Strafford, Fair Grove, Pleasant Hope, & Republic.

250+
Employees:
64 (Since 1956)
Years in Business:
Community based banking and financial services.
Services:
Russ Marquart (Chairman), Michael Williamson, Mark
Board of Directors: Cook, Judi Samuel, John Twitty, Chris Nattinger, Tom
Rankin, Mark Walker, and Mark McNay

ﬁ
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CENTRAL BANK OF THE OZARKS- EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Russell R. Marquart Chairman of the Board

Joselyn Baldner President, Chief Executive Officer

Bob Berlin Executive Vice President, Chief Lending Officer
Jim Nacy Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer

Central Bank of the Ozarks is a Subsidiary CENTRAL BANCOMPANY

In its brief history, Central Bancompany has become one of the largest bank holding companies in Missouri with
total assets of over $12.5 billion, It also has the strongest capital ratio of any multi-bank holding company in the
Eighth Federal Reserve District.

On November 6, 1970, Central Bancompany was incorporated in the State of Missouri as a bank holding company
with Central Trust Bank being the first bank to become a part of the Bancompany in December of 1971. Today,
Central Bancompany consists of thirteen holding company banks as well as three other subsidiaries. These include:

BANK OR SUBSIDIARY LOCATION DATE ACQUIRED/FORMED
Central Bank Jefferson City, Missouri 1971 ‘
Jefferson Bank of Missouri Jefferson City, Missouri 1972

Central Bank of St. Louis Clayton, Missouri 1972

Guaranty Trust Company St. Louis, Missouri 1973

Central Bank of Boone County Columbia Missouri 1974

Central Bank of Audrain County Mexico, Missouri 1977

City Bank of Moberly Moberly, Missouri 1980

Central Bank of the Ozarks Springfield, Missouri 1980

Central Bank Lake of the Ozarks Lake Ozark, Missouri 1985

Central Bank of Branson Branson, Missouri 1988

Central Bank of Sedalia Sedalia, Missouri 1992

Central Bank of the Midwest Lee’s Summit, Missouri 1993

Central Bank of Warrensburg Warrensburg, Missouri 1997

Central Technology Services Jefferson City, Missouri 1998

Central Mortgage Company Jefferson City, Missouri 2000

Central Bank of Oklahoma Tulsa, Oklahoma 2004

Bank Central Denver, Colorado 2019

ﬁ
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LOCATIONS AND FINANCIAL SERVICES

SPRINGFIELD . _

LD,

GHELD REGIONAL /#.
WAIRPOR s

*. 'REPUALIC RO

SPRINGFIELD/GREENE COUNTY

1.

9.

Main Bank ~ Sunshine & Glanstone**
1800 S. Glenstone - 881-3100

Lobby: Mon.Fri. $am - Spm

“*VIM;: Mon.-Sal. 7am - 7 pm

Ceniral Bank South Glenstone®

3212 8. Glenstone - 887-0771

Lobby: Mon.-Frl, 9am - Spm, Sal. Yam « 12pm
Drive-Up: Mon.Fri. 8am - 6pm, Sat. am - 12pm
Central Bank Glen Isle” - Glen l:la Conter
1434 $. Glenstone - 881-3100

Lebby: Mon.-Fri, 9am - Spm, Sat. %am - 12pm
Drive-Up: Mon.-Fri. 7am - 7pm, Sat, 9am - 12pm
Springfeld Plaza*® - 881-3100

3720 W. Sunshine Street

Lobby: Mon.-Fri. $am « 5pm, Sal. Yam - 12pm
Drive-Up: Mon.-Fri. 8am - Spm, Sob, 9am - 12pm
“*VIM: Man.-Sat. 7am - 7 pm

Cantral Bank Kearney**

2960 E. Keorney - B81-3100

Lobby: Mon.-Fri. Pem - 5pm

Drive-Up: Mon,-Fri. $am - Spm

**VTM: Mon.-Sat. 7am - 7 pm

Central Bank North Glenstone*

3555 N. Glenstons Ave, - 881-3100

Lebby: Man.Fri, Fom - Spm

Drive-Up: Mon.-Fri. 8:300m - Spm

Central Bank North Kansas — Kansas & Kearmey
2501 N Konsas - 881-3100

Lobby: Mon.-Fri. Sam « Spm, Sat. Pam - 12pm
Drive-Up: Men.Fri. 8am - 6pm, Sat. Yam - 12pm
Centra) Bank Hammens Tower*

P01 St Lovis Street - 869-2100

Lobby: Mon.-Frl. 9am - Spm

Drive-Up: Mon.-Fri. 8:30em - Spm

Central Bank South National™® - 5. Nafienal & Walnut Lewn
3333 5. Nafional - 881-5100

Lobby: Mon.-Fri, 9am - Spm, Sat. %am - 12pm
Driva-Up: Men.-Fri. Bam - 5pm, Sat. Sam - 12pm,
**VIM: Mon.-Sab Zam - 7 pm

BUSINESS SOLUTIONS

MEMBER ¥DIC

10.

12.

14.

16.
17.
18.
19.
20.

21.

Central Bank Campball**

4221 5. Campbel] - 887-5025

Labby: Mer.-Fri, 9am - Spm, Sel, 9am - 12pm
Drive-Up: Mon.Fri, 8:30am - Spm, Sab. 9am - 12pm
*"VIM: Mon.-8al. 7am - 7 pm

Central Bank Chasterfield Village*

1940 W, Chesterfiald Bivd, - 823-9000

Lebby: Mon.-Fri, Sam - Spm, Sal. fam - 12pm
Drive-Up: Mon.-Fri. Sam - Spm, Sat. $am - 12pm
Central Bank Republic**

1110 E. Independence - 732-8065

Lobby: Men.-Fri. 9am - Spra, Sal, 9am - 12pm
Drive-Up: Mon.Fd. Bam - Spm, Sat. Yam - 12pm
"*VTM: Mon.-8at. 7am - 7 pm

Contral Bank Strafford®

213 E. Old Revte 65 - 736-3555

Lebby: Mon.-Fri, am - Spm, Sat. fam - 12pm
Drive-Up: Mon.-Fri. 8:30am - 5:00pm, Sat, Pam - 12pm
Central Bank Fair Grove

21 Nerth Orchard Blvd, - 7592593

Lobby: Men.-Fri, 9am - 4pm, Sal. $am - 12pm
Drive-Up: Mea,-Fri. 8:30am - 5pm, Sat. $am - 12pm
Central Bank Blackman Read & Sunshine®*
F10E. Sunshine

Lobby: Men.Fri. 9am - Spm

Drive-Up: Mon.-Fri, Pam » Spm

**VIM: Mon.-Sat, 7am - 7 pm

Automatic Teller Machine (ATM}*

Plaza Towers - 1915 S. Glenstona Ave

Autematic Teller Machine (ATM)

Marcy = 1235 E, Cherokee

Automatic Teller Machine (ATM)*

Southern Hills Shepping Cenler - 2900 E. Sunshina
Avtomatic Tellar Machine (ATM}

Evangel College = 1111 N, Glonstone

Automatic Teller Machine [ATM)
Springfield-Branzon Notioral Airpert— 2300 Airport Bhvd.
Autamatic Teller Machine {ATM})

219 Park Central Seuth

Central Bank

of the Ozarks



'PLEASANT
HOPE -

22,  Automatic Teller Machine (ATM)
Harnmens Field - 955 €, Trafficway
23. Automatic Teller Machine {ATM)
Framont Comers — 1380 E. Republic Rd.
24. Avutomatic Teller Machine {ATM}
Casey's Springfield — 4124 West Chestnut Expy.
25. Avtomatic Teller Machine (ATM)
Casay’s Springfield — 703 §. Scanic
26. Avtomatit Tellar Machine [ATM)
Cosey's Springfield - 249 . Grant Ave.
27. Avtomatic Teller Machine [ATM)
Casey’s Springfiald = 2715 ‘W, Chestut Expy.
28. Automatic Teller Machine [ATM)
Springfield Cothefiz High Schoo! — 2340 5. Eastgale Ave.
29. Automatic Teller Machine [ATM)*
Murfin's Market ~ HWY 180 & Miller Rd, Willord
30, Automatic Teller Machine (ATM)*
Baflefield, MO - 5021 5. State Hwy. FF

CHRISTIAN COUNTY

31. Central Bank Nixa®
, 160 & 14 - 725-2611
tobby: Mon-Fri. Pam - Spm, Sat. Yam - 12pm
Drive-Up: Mon.-Fri. 7:30am - épm, Sak. Pom - 12pm
32. Central Bank Highlandville*
. 160 & EE - 443-3813
tobby: Mon.-Fii. Pam « 5pm
Drive-Up: Mon.-Fri. $am - Spm
33. <Central Bank Ozark Nerth®
1520 W. Jackson - 581-9474
Lobby: Mon.-Fri. 9am - Spm, Sot. $am ~ 12pm
Drive-Up: Mon.-Fri. Bam - 5pm, Sot. Pom - 12pm
34. Contrul Bank Ozark South*
1910 W. Morler - 582-7700
Lobby: Men.-Fri. Pom - Spm, Sat. Pam - 12pm
Drive-Up: Mon.-Fri, Bam - 5pm, Sat. $am - 12pm

ﬁ

BUSINESS SOLUTIONS

MEMBER EDIC

35. Automatic Teller Machine (ATM)*
1407 W. State Hwy. J, Ozark

WEBSTER/POLK/DALLAS COUNTIES
356. Central Bank Marshfiefd**
1197 Spur Drive - 859-2040
Lobby: Men.-Fri. Sam - Spm, Sal, am - 12pm
Drive-Up: Mon.-Fri. 8am - 5pm, Sat. $am - 12pm
**¥TM: Mon.-Sal. 7am - 7 pm
37. Central Bank Pleasant Hope®
103 5. Main Sireet - 267-2211
Lobby: Mon.-Fri. 9am - 4pm
Drive-Up: Mon.-Fri. 8:30am - Spm
38. Avtomatic Teller Machine (ATM)
Casey's Bolivar — 328 E Broadway, Bolivar
39. Automatic Teller Machine (ATM)*
Hwy. 65 & Truman Rd, Bufdlo

Note: Autornatic Teller Machines are available at alf banking facilities.
* Indicates Image Enabled Deposit ATM ot this location.
@* * Indicates a Fucility with Video Teller Machine {VTM) where you

can inferact with a live video teller from 7:00 am — 7:00 pm
Monday-Saturday.

Central Bank

of the Ozarks



MEET YOUR BUSINESS BANKING SERVICES TEAM '

Central Bank of the Ozarks Business Banking Services team is committed to ensuring you receive

knowledgeable help and great measures of support. Each person listed will be involved in some
direct way with your banking needs.

Business Banking Staff

Business Banking Director - Gregory Ritchie
Operations Manager/AVP - Katie Carlisle
Business Banking Support Specialist - Alex Keenan
Business Banking Support Specialist - Maggie Lee
Business Development Specialist - Heather McGuigan
Business Development Specialist - Jessica Gilmore
Business Development Specialist - Kacie Joyce

ﬁ
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EXHIBIT A

BANKING SPECIFICATIONS

1. Complete the attached PROPOSED COST SCHEDULE (Exhibit 1).

Central Bank of the Ozarks would like to propose a fixed, flat monthly fee of $800 in lieu of
itemized pricing. This fixed cost will never change throughout the entirety of the contract
regardless of volume fluctuations and will include payroll processing and ACH services.

2. Detail costs, procedures and deadlines associated with ACH payroll processing. Give
computed ACH cost for one bi-weekly payroll with approximately 250 potential
paricipants. Detail deadlines for Friday morning account crediting.

Central Bank of the Ozarks provides a robust ACH processing system with live support
ready 1o assist. We offer same day processing up to 12PM, and next day processing up
to 7PM. Please see #1 to reference cost of payroll processing example.

3. Plecse state proposal for interest calculation as outlined in SECTION 2 of Conditions.
Interest rate paid on the accounts that are used to purchase United States
Government {or agency of the United States Government) security repurchase
agreements shall be stated as a specified number of basis points above or below the
most recent overnight Federal Funds Rate as published in Section C, Markets Diary in
the Wall Street Journal. Please consider including a Guaranteed Floor Rateof Interest
in your bid. This will be given consideration in determining our depositoryinstitution.

Option 1 - Central Bank of the Ozarks would like to propose a floating rate of 75% of the
Federal Funds Raie, with a floor of .10% (10bps) on all amounts and accounts with us
during the entirety of the contract.

4. Please Submit the proposal for compliance with collateralization reguirements
specified.

Central Bank of the Ozarks will provide receipt of pledges and monthly statements of
pledged securities, which include the par value, and market value of each security held.
This information can be found on the monthly bank statements, which is illustrated on the
following page.

1|Page



Investaccount

No. 001031819 Beginning Balance March 31, 2021 S 655,008.51
Irvestments Purchased
Amount Invested!
Date Market Vale
0401 Repo Investment Purchases 3e7.603.84
04/02 Repo Investment Purchases 307.603.84
0405 Repo Investment Purchases 410,343.88
04408 Repo Investment Purchases 433,184.05
0407 Repo Investment Purchases 474.431.00
0408 Repo Investmeant Purchases 513.032.93
0408 Repo Investment Purchases 45719531
04012 Repo Investment Purchases 765.160.81
04513 Repo Investment Purchases 765,023 BO
04/14 Rapo Investment Purchases 78737874
04015 Hepo lnvestment Purchases 1,.238,178.08
04415 Repo Investmant Purchases 1.242.414.08
0418 Repo Investment Purchases 1244 219,17
0420 Repo Investment Purchases 1.458.508.64
o421 Repo Investment Purchases 1.082,835.38
D422 Reapo Investment Purchases 13143441
0423 Repo Investment Purchases 1.313,017.689
04428 Rapo Investment Purchases 1.358,068.22
0427 Repo Investment Purchases 1,383,0¢8.00
04128 Repo Investment Purchases 1,188,318.65
0428 Repo Investment Purchases 1.186,318.65
04/30 Repo Investment Purchases 1,053.076.35
+$ 20.383,103.80
Imn/estmenis Matured
Amourt Invested’
Dats Market Value
04101 Repo Investment Maturites 655,808.51
0402 Repo investmenrt Maturities 3087,803.84
04005 Repo Investmert Matunties 387.003.84
0406 Repo Investment Maturiies 410.343.88
0487 Repo Investment Maturities 433.184.05
0408 Rapo Investment Maturities 474.431.06
04008 Rapo Investmeant Maturities §13.032.93
04,12 Repo Investment Maturibes 457.165.31
04713 Repo [nvestment Maturities 785.160.81
0414 Repo Investment Maturities 765,022 89
04115 Repo Investment Maturities TBT.378.74
04/18 Repo Investment Maturities 1.235,176.08
04519 Reapo Investment Maturities 1242 414.06
0420 Repo Investment Maturities 124421897
04421 Repo Investmant Maturities 1.456.506.64
D422 Repo Investment Maturities 1.082,835.26
04123 Repo Investment Maturfiies 131428441
04/28 Repo Investment Maturities 1,313,817.88
o427 Repo Investment Maturities 1,350,608.22
04,28 Repo Investment Maturides 1,363,008.90
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Additionally, a copy of our current FDIC registration is included beiow.

RESOURCES

Heme > Rescurces > Data Tools > BankFingd Sulte > Find insttutions by Name & Location
(B mi s |
Central Bank of The Ozarks

Institution Details

FOIC Cert#
17633
Established
07/3011856
Sfr?nlecn!.'ln!;ﬂl;:;ga Bank Charter Class
Siate Charierad Banks. membar of the Federal Reserve Syster

Primary Federal Regulator
Faderal Reserve Board

5. ON-LINE
ELECTRONIC BANKING SERVICES

a.

C.

'3 | -Pog'e

The depository's ability to provide interactive access through the internet that
allows account balance inquiry, account transfers, ACH processing. stop
payments, wire transfers, and direct deposit of payroll checks to various
banking institutions. Include setup charges, on-line charges, and monihly
charges, per transaction costs that are in addition to, or in lieu of traditional
costs quoted in Part 1 of this proposal.

Detail whether memo post information is available and whether entered data
is accepted immediately or batch processed by the depository af a later time.
Detail how much history is available (i.e., current month, prior, month, six
months, year, efc.) and whether or not query processing is available for
specified date ranges.

The depository's ability to download files on demand from the depository
computer to County's network containing check-clearing information. Include
record format of downloaded files and any costs over and above monthly
account access charges.

Detail whether downloaded files will contain current information, prior day
fransactions or weekly/monthly batch information. If downloading files directly
is not available, detail proposed alternatives (i.e.. magnetic fape or diskette
transfer) and charges associated with the alternative. Approximately 50,000
items will kedownloaded during the course of the Agreement.



e. The depository’'s ability to upload ASCI! files containing information necessary
for ACH debit process, include record format required for file acceptance and
all costs associated with file transfer for ACH processing. Detail any costs that is
in addition to or in lieu of cost quoted in Part A, of this proposal for ACH debit
fransactions.

f. Provide a minimum of two references of cument users of your electronic
banking services proposed.

Central Bank of the Ozarks understands and agrees to this requirement. We are
proud to offer the County the same capabilities of the country's largest banks
while providing the level of personal and knowledgeable service that only a
community bank provides.

Qur electronic banking platform, BusinessLink, provides authorized personnel
with industry-leading capabiiities, including generating scheduled as well as
on-demand wire transfers, and provides robust, layered user security roles.

v Value Added Feafure- Single Sign-on

Unlike some competitors, our online system provides single sign-on {SSO) which allows
users to sign in one fime to access all of Central Bank's online services, including wire
fransfer capabiiity.

Central Bank of the Ozarks continues to enhance our security features to ensure users
online-fransactions and transmission of files remains completely secure. Multi-factor
authentication, out-of-band verification, and dual approval workflows along with
secure email and file transmission protocols that utilize the latest and strongest forms
data encryption represent our commitment to safeguarding our customers' financial
data.  Multi-factor authentication is a term used to describe an authentication
rmechanism where more than one piece of information is required o authenticate a
user. We have chosen a small, digital token device to provide users with a random
code that changes every few seconds. The user utilizes this unique code, combined
with his or her User ID and Password, to access Business Online Services.

Your User ID in combination with your password and the PIN displayed on your token
device will grant you secure access once you have been “authenticated”.

We offer two options for foken access — hard or mobile. These options give our
customers the same high level of security in two unique devices. An example

of the mobile app used to obtain a PIN is shown on the left, and a hard token

used to obtain your PIN is on the right.

323825
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After receiving a PIN, users enter the code along with their unique information
at the Login screen, shown below.

Yoo QrocmumsaThes o sl Carcer

€) Central Bank g e e e
’ Sign in to Central Bank's
% webslite,
§ tog into your account : G . busi Enter your User ID and
B reront | puanes 7 rowing your business select Log In.
et starls with strong roots.
crames : G t Started Toda: Enter in your Password and
‘el olaried 1oday. PIN recaived from the Token
: device screen,fie.
612345403580}
Token Password = 612345
Token PIN = 403580

In the stepsillustrated below, the user has already logged in to Business Online
Services. The user hovers over the Payments tab and selects Access
ACH/Wires to begin the process.

£ urmess onine SeTvices 4 Moape ks £ scmmgs [ Help
€ Central Bank i) & =t = &
" Shong reoh. Endigas posabilifess Home Transfers Paymems Other Services Aderninrauon
Payments LloanPayments Bill Pa Security Tip!
Account Summary y ym o y lip
[, Make Loan Payment Bull Pay Center If you werite checks, consider utiizing
Senetuled Payments Make Single Payrnent our Positive Pay feature to help
ArLount Summary Accou Manage Payment Atcounts Make Expedited Payment E;:::“M?r: from check fraud.
Bill Pay Actvizy
You have D AGiny teme avweaitin
There are D Acoway ftems awatr ACH res My Payees
oy fema Actess ACH / Wires
Deposits
Nickname Type T s e Teate T T T

MUy

Once the page appears, users select the Wire Transfer tab to access all wire transfer
opftions available.

Businesslink

Messages

Welcome to Bt

Wi il s i e E—————

5|Page



Wire Transfer Initiation of a single fransaction
The process for initiating a single transfer is illustrated below.

Businesslink t
Admingration ‘Wire Trans MH

- (R B el bebausmaass S
Wire Tramsfer—Se P

TO nformation

Seleez Prufile tnformaben

m Profils O Create New (Create Payment Without ng

Profile: | ﬁ

Account: | ~ Currensys l-__
Payment Mathod: [

PaymentType | -

Cutaff Time:

0=

The user enters the appropriate information here. If using an existing profile, this
information would be prefilled. The screen below shows a sample of what the
information would look like ofter being completed.

Businesslink

Ndrhuindiraten P i -
S QMR G METacde  Lemleat Awhal Roietemmune reow

O ea Exitiog Prefle @ Create Niw (S0t Payment Without 2 Profie)

Prafile Hame: g

Payment Hethed:  [PQUOBTIC ki TR

%

“er Informatsn
Bending Attovmt Humben® poamm.)- 3T Eafiema W] Curreney Codu: Fua

famer # A3 T OnIZIon a7 Addrss B0 P 123 -~
iﬂl“(l}ﬂﬂ CITF W3 43102-3233 w
N

ey

Process Date: F M’I‘TDIF

Besafionry Infarmation

P o
Benaliclary Aiceunt Mumben® (133436700

Ranehiciary 1110 Typei

I

éiPoge



Once the user has completed the required information above they would click on

"Submit and Continue" if they had more wires to initiate or "Submit and End" if this
was the only or last wire 1o be sent.

BT o SRR
Sender Irformation
Sending Arcount Rumber:™ | IRFARH TN L GENER L AICONT

v  Cumrency Code: |uS0

Name:  [335 15 TEST LUPGRADE Address: 2100 STEWART DRIVE A
JEFFERSON CITY MO 63109 v
usa
Amount:* | 1.2 [oso » Yalue Date:* [c2caante
Process Date: farosiza1s
Benelidary Informaticn
Banaliclary Namg:* [E8E DRtotR hddress 1 123 MAIN
Filary bert (123456789 Beneficlary Address 2: icwo
eeneficlary Address 3: |
FED ama ~
Vs b Uk ity b vy FI Mames* Joa cenTRaL BANK
it mbareiatien chzhmp Address:

i the apprepriate stibimt botlen

|33 manizon s

@r th |  SubmitmEnd | Meddy | Cancat

If the wire transfer is a repetitive wire, a profile can be established by selecting
Profile Maintenance. )

BusinesslLink

Adtwinkseration  Wire Transfer | ACH
Create Singla Transter Create Mult-Transfer Batch Import Approval

Wire Transfer: Summary

Wire Transfer Summary Data

Profita Maintenance Repocts

To create a new profile, users select the + sign and enter the appropriate information.

BusinessLinlc

Adminigtration Wire Transfer I ACH

Sﬁrnmary Create Singla Transfer Creste Muki-Transfer Barch Impé:r:

Wire Transfer: Profile Maintenance

Profile Maintenance

Approval Profile Maintenance Repars

Profile Type Cutoff Time




Users complete the profile name and description, choose domestic or international
wire from the drop-down menu and select next.

Profile Name:™ h‘e:t Wire i

Description: [Test wire

Financial Institution:* |01 CENTRAL BANK {v]

Profile Type:* LRepctitivc VI

Paymant Method:* LDOMEST.IC WRE TR V_I

Cutoff Time: WE‘
. Cancel I

Users complete the required information and select Save.

' -Sender/Recelver

Sender Information

Sending Account Number:* ~|  Currency Code: r_
Name: fror Gov T orvision TeST Address: PO BOX 1053
JEFFERSQN CITY MD £5102-1052
USA

Amount:® [ : J | vl Value Date:™ I
Process Date: |

Beneficiary Information

Beneficiary Name:* I J Address 1: I I
Beneficlary Account Number:* [ | Beneficiary Address 2: | ]
Beneficary Address 3: { |
Beneficiary F1 ID Type: [ FED ABA V| S i |
F110:* [:j Address; = l
Select A1
Other Information:

Additional Information

L
L _ J
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Once users are ready fo create the wire transfer, they complete the steps outlined
and select Use Existing Profile. The remaining steps and reports are the same
regardless of whether it is a single or repetitive wire.

We strongly recommended that the County utilize our Dual Approval feature when
submitting wire transfers. Dual approvalis an industry best practice, and provides a
third level of verification and strongest level of security for online wire fransactions.

v' Value Added Feature- Triple Layered Security

Within BusinessLink and our wire transfer platform, the County benefits from three
(3} layers of robust security, described below.

BusinesslLink Wires and ACH Triple Layered Security

Multi-factor Authentication

Only users approved by the County will be given
permissions into the Wires / ACH Control area of
BusinessLink, In addition to a User ID and Password,
users will also be assigned a token which presents a
new, randomly generated code every 60 seconds. To
access Business Online Services, the user will submit
their personal User ID, Password and cumrent token
code.

System Alerts and 24/7 Profile Monitoring

Auser has the abflity to create alerts to notify them
when payment instructions have been changed, a
payment is pending approval, or @ payment has been
sent. This silent, vigilant, and autsmatic menitoring
keeps your payment profile information secure and
niotifies you immediately of any unauthorized changes.

Tiered / Multiple Approval Levels

The system offers the ability to employ parameters
which mandate wire transfer approval structures at the
system level as well as the transaction and user

level. While one user may be authorized to submit
payment instructions, a second or even third may be
required to approve the release of the transaction to the
bank for procession and transmissicn.

Payment Instruction and Profile
Manitoring f User Alerts

BusinessLink Wire /
ACH initiation
Multipile Approval
Architecture
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To approve a wire transfer:
For Dual Approval, the second user would have to approve the wire before the wire is
released to Central Bank. To approve a wire the user would iake the following steps:

Select Approval:

BusinesslLink

Administration Wire Transfer ACH

Summzry Creste Single Transfer Cresta Multi-Transfer Batch Impor, Prefile Maincenance Reports
Wire Transfer: Approval Summary

Approval Summary

Highlight the wire fransfer waiting approval, right click on it and choose either View &
Approve or Quick Approval.

Process Qate | Entry Date Value Date Satus Payment brofle | Type Sending Account 8 | Sendiag Accoust Kame | Beacficary Account 8 | Beneficary Keme

042212016 D4/22/2018 04/32/2016 ! Bunding 1 Abpivvil ‘vl_f_-ﬁni!v:l:lm______ | oroRaL - OPEAATING L Member Processing
Q£/2272016 C4/2272016 Q4/31/2016 | Beadiag 1 Aamvnwﬂu‘:k‘mr GLOBAL - OPERATING i 39 Spaaker's Connuli
od/22/d0d oujaisatik 0423018 | Pending'l Approval | {POI TRwpetitlve {4 QLOBAL - SOERATING |49 BREMIUN DESTINK
BHz2016 04/22/2018 | 04/22/2016  |Pending 1 Anproval PO NE Kepatitirs |4 GLORAL - OZERATING 1y PREMEUM DESTINA

Once the wire transfer is reviewed, the approver selects Approve.

Canca |

Confirmation of the transaction is received by either fax or email. A sample confirmation is
illustrated below.

CEMNTRAL BANMNCOLA PO NY
INCOMIING VAARE TRAMNSFER
LHOCNICE OF CREONT

E-NMAIL NOTIFICATION

Customeor Name: CENTRAL TRUST BARK
Account Sredited:

Oallar Admount: 549 002 71
FED OMAD Roeforonce &: 2AQILS0OACSHERT7OIIOOODISIOAONSILIZZEFTOR

WVIRE TRANSFER INFORMATION:

..... - e o e e = e o e S e
Sending Bank: OULAR I A

Sending Bank ABA: O7I0COZES

Origloncoes CORe
Origlnator Account:
Criglinater Info: WISSOUIRY
SOITE SO0
OVERLAND PARK,KS, GES2 L0
Sriginazing Bank:
IMztructing Bank:

Gomoeficlars
BonaTicisry ACootamt:
Bensfickary Info: PO BOMN 2
JEFFERSOM CiTY MO 55202 US

Intermaedinry Bank:
Denceficiam, Bank:s

Refoerence for GNF:
Crriglnator to BNF Information: MAARCH ZIOL1L6
Sank to Bank iInformasicon:




6. FINANCIAL STABILITY- Provide financial data required.

Please see attachment 1,

7. Provide a copy of the most recent IDC Financial Ratings for this financial institution.
Please see attachment 2.

8. FUNDS AVAILABILITY SCHEDULE-include a copy of your Funds Availability Schedule
All funds clearing on a domestic financial institution will be available on the next day. The
timing of the credit to the county's accounts depends on the type of fransaction:

o Checks: Next-day credit up to 7PM

e ACH: Next-day credit up to 11PM.

+ Same Day ACH - same day credit up to 3PM
¢ Wires: Same day availability up to 4PM

9. BANK STATEMENT- include a sample copy of your bank statement.
Please see Online Services above.

10. Include a CD-ROM (or other approved format) with Sample images of cleared

checks and deposit items.
Central Bank of the Ozarks understands and agrees to this requirement. We will provide
either a secure downloadable file or a CD-ROM with the corresponding software. Both
options are detailed below:
Image Export Files
We can transmit files of images of paid items, over a secure internet connection directly
to the County. This ability to transmit a file containing an export of the images of paid
items provides additional flexibility to manage the electronic storage of the check
images.
CD-ROM
We can provide paid check images on CD-ROM rather than returning your canceled
checks or providing images with your statement. CD-ROM is a convenient aliernative to
storage and record keeping for your accounts.
Additiondlly, County staff will be able to easily perform on-demand searches for specific
paid items through our electronic online banking system, BusinessLink, as well as our
Positive Pay System.
Images of paid items {front and back) are maintained for 18 months on
Businesslink, and up to 7 years on our services at our wholly owned technology
company, Central Technology Services (CTS). Below is an example of how County
staff will be able to obtain images of a paid item through BusinessLink on demand.

74y

Cleared Activity

Enier Jeamh crieny Deinw.

StartDate (05132018 | End Die [05/19/2016

bt I Check numbers will
PR s LR m— appear here, along with
Jicount Transters. =~ z . .
R o W L B— an & icon that displays
GRAETS M Dptresati e Deposes a0a Wicrawals the front db K of

Starch WMM.WG!EE Next 38 dys Resat S4arch e on Gn GC ©

Printer Frendty Cleared Aoty [P0 /

OIVHAE  Aeoune Transtars TR 300 e

OIS Actount Transters wCTB K1 a1 Fry)
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11. Provide a detailed list of any exceptions to TERMS AND CONDITIONS.

Central Bank of the Ozarks does not take any exception to Christian County's Terms and
Conditions as set forth in the Request for Proposal.,

12. Provide a listing of business teller service locations and hours.

Central Bank of the Ozarks provides convenient locations throughout Christian County and
the surrounding area. In the about us section of this proposal is a map and list of our full
service locations along with ITM and ATM information.

13. Please state whether this financial institution would provide other County
Officeholders and departments including, but not limited to the County Sheriff,
Recorder, Circuit Clerk, Juvenile, Drug Court, Law Library, Collector and Circuit Court,
with checking accounts and banking services based upon the PROPOSED COST
SCHEDULE of Exhibit "1™ of this Agreement. If not, please desciibe the costs for
maintaining such accounts.

Please see Attachment 4.

14. Securities Deposit: RSMO. 110.20; The value of the securifies deposited and
maintained by a legal depositary under Section 110.010 shall at alf fimes be noft less
than one hundred percent of the actual amount of the funds on deposit with the
deposifary. less the amount, if any, insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation.
~ Central Bank of the Ozarks understands and agrees to this requirement.
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EXHIBIT 1

PROPQOSED COST SCHEDULE
ITEM PROPOSED COST VOLUME
Deposi’f ltems Included in flat monthly fee 33,000
Checks Paid Included in fiat monthly fee 4500
Returned Checks Included in flat monthly fee 55
Account Transfers Included in flat monthly fee 50
Stop Payments Included in flat monthly fee 40
ACH Transactions Included in flat monthly fee 1500
incoming Included in flat monthly fee
Qutgoing Direct Deposit Included in flat monthly fee 90 Files
Wire Transfers Included in flat monthly fee
Incoming Included in flat monthly fee 25
Qutgoing Included in flat monthly fee 250
Account Maintenance Included in flat monthly fee Per month
Monthly Bank Statements Included in flat monthly fee Per month
w/account analysis 13 monthly 2quarterly
Security Safekeeping Included in flat monthly fee
Safe Deposit Box-List size Included in flat monthly fee One 3x10, One 5X10,
and location with pricing One 10x10
Credit Card Fees Please see attachment 3. Collector 2.5%
Treasurer 2.89% &
0.18 cents
4.13% & 0.18 cents Monthly
Fixed @29.75
Debit Card Fees Same As Above
Other costs: itemized on
separate sheet of paper

OTHER FEES

ITEM

PROPOSED COST

Deposited Checks Returned

Included in flat monthly fee

Recleared Deposited ltems

Included in flat monthly fee

ACH Retumn ltems

Included in flat monthly fee

ACH File Reversals

Included in flat monthly fee

ACH ltem Reversal

Included in ftat monthly fee

Image Copies of Checks

Included in flat monthly fee

Research and Reconciling

Included in flat monthly fee

Special Statement

Included in flat monthly fee

Statements on CD

Included in flat monthly fee

Monthly Internet Banking Fee

Included in flat monthly fee
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BANKING DEPOSITORY SPECIFICATIONS

Agresment must include effective date of 15t day of July 2021, by and between the
COUNTY OF CHRISTIAN, STATE OF MISSOURI, a political subdivision consisting of a county
of the first classification, without a charter form of government (hereinafter referred to as
the "County”), and the Bank and each hereby state;

In compliance with the provisions of Chapter 110, RSMo., the County, on the 28t day of
June 2021, will select and designate the Bank as the official depository to receive the
funds of the County from the 15 day of July 2021 through the 30t day of June 2023, and
the Bank has accepted said designation and agreed to act as said depository. The
County and the Bank agree that the contfract would have an opfion to be extended for
the period of the 30" day of June 2023 through the 30t day of June 2025, unless one or
both of the parties provides wiitten nofification not later than the 30t day of May 2023,
that the contract will not be extended. The Bank shall notify the Christian County
Commission and any other office or department utilizing the County's Tax ID in writing
and the County will provide written notification to the Bank through the officer assigned
pursuant to 4.4 of the proposed agreement.

SECTION 1-ACCOUNTS

1.1 Provide full service checking account with two copies of the monthly bank

© statement and account analysis reflecting monthly beginning balance, plus

deposits, less check honored each month. One copy shall be provided to the

County Treasurer and one copy to the County Clerk as required in Chapter 110,

RSMo., and for the County Collector's accounts, one copy shall be provided to

the County Collector and one to the County Auditor and for the Recorder of
Deeds one copy shall be provided.

1.2 Thisdepository wiltserve as a clearinghouse for accounts through which alldeposits
will be made all check drawn.

121 One (1) CERF account for the Treasurer shall be an investment account where
deposits are made but no checks are drawn. ACH debits and credits are drawn
on this account. Qutgoing wire fransfers are also processed through this account.

1.2.2 Ten {10) regular checking accounts two (2) for Treasurer {one of which will require
outgoing wire transfers for payroll), two {2) for County Clerk, one (1) for Recorder
of Deeds, four (4} for Collector, one (1) for Assessor, shall be maintained upon
which deposits will be maintained and checks will be drawn as needed.

1.2.3 A checking account shall be maintained for the School Account.
1.2.4 Two [2) regular interest-bearing savings accounts shall be maintained for the

Collector to deposit tax protest payments and surtaxes: said accounts to earn
interest at the rate designated in paragraph 2.2 of this Agreement.
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1.2.5 The costs for all current and future accounts shall be based on the Depository
Proposal for Christian County Public Funds in the attached Exhibit “17. The County
Treasurer shall have the right to add or remove or change the designation of any
account throughout the course of this agreement and the Bank will charge fees
monthly according to the Proposed Cost Schedule for Christian County Public
Funds for ihe configuration of the accounts determined by the County Treasurer.

1.3 The Bank will serve as both sending and recelving bank on ACH system. Christian
County will pay charges as detailed in the Proposed Cost Schedule for Christian
County Public Funds of Exhibit 1" of this agreement.

1.4 State and Federal payroll and CERF payments are posted over the internet and
shalll be billed according to the Proposed Cost Schedule for Christian Count Public
Funds attached to this Agreement.

SECTION 2-INVESTMENT

2.1 The Bank will maintain all accounts, except any accounts designated by the
Treasurer as a non-interest-bearing account pursuant to law, as interest bearing
checking accounts. The interest rate designated in 2.2 of this agreement will be
paid on closing ledger balances in the accounts and no reserve requirement will
be assessed. These accounts will be fully collateralized as reguired by Missouri law

in Sections 110.020, 110.010, and 30.270, RSMo. An account analysis can be
provided for each account. :

22  The interest rate paid on closing ledger balances will be as follows:

The Bank will pay inferest on all Christian County checking accounts current and future
(currently 16 accounts: 9 for Treasurer, 4 for Collector, 2 for County Clerk, and 1 for the
Recorder of Deeds) and all Christian County savings accounts current and future
(currently 2 for the County Collector} covered by the Depository Agreement. As
requested, rates are quoted in relation to the most recent Overnight Federal Funds Rate,
as published in the Wali Street Journal, adjusted weekly.

221 Monthly bank statements shall reflect daily interest earned on these investment
purchdadses.

222 The County will separately bid out ol or part of ifs excess funds outside the
depository agreement that arises from this Request for Proposal. From time 1o time,
County may desire to purchase government securities through the depository.

SECTION 3-COLLATERALIZATION

The Christian County Treasurer will invest funds outside the Depository Agreement.

3.1 Bank Depository shall collaterdlize and secure all deposits and investments as
required by Missouri law in Chapters 110 and 30, RSMo., including Sections 110.020,
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3.2

3.3

3.4

110.010, and 30.270 RSMo. The maximum amount at any one fime that has to be
collateralized under alf of the accounts will be $80,000,000.00 {80 million dollars).

All security so pledged and not able to be held by a Federal Reserve Bank shall
be held by a third-party institution. The Proposal shall state who will be designated
to be the third-party institution.

The County and the Office Holders require that the market value of the pledged
security/collateral be 100% of the amount of funds on deposit at afl times, less the
amount that is insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, (FDIC).

Safekeeping receipts for pledged collateral and securities shall be delivered to
the Christian County Treasurer and said collateral and securities shall be released
by the third-party institution only when authorized by County through a statement
signed by the County Treasurer. County shall designate a backup for signing
releases if the County Treasurer is not available (Currently the Deputy Treasurer).

3.4.1 Authorization for release of pledged collateral shall be in writing (fax acceptable)

3.5

3.5.1

3.52

3.6

37

3.8

with phone confirmation. Verification of replacement securities will be required
prior to release.

The depository agrees to have the third-party holder provide the County Treasurer
with a quarterly listing of security pledged as authorized by section 30.270 RSMo.,
on or before the tenth day of each quarter. County currently receives these listing
viainternet access. -

The quarterly listing shall detail the holdings as of the last working day of the
immediately preceding quarter.

The quarterly listing shall include the purchase date, the coupon interest rate, the
maturity date, the par value of each security, the total par value of all securities,
the market value of each security and the total securities.

The County Treasurer reserves the right to reject or request replacement of any
security pledged.

Safekeeping receipts for pledged collateral and securities shall be delivered
showing description, cusip number, maturity, pledged par value, and market
value.

A listing of acceptable securities under Missouri law is found in section 30.270 RSMo.
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SECTION 4-ACCOUNT SERVICES

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.8.1

4.8.2

4.8.3

4.9

410

The depository shall provide regular business teller service and availability of
branch facilities for deposits. The depository shall provide a method for after hour's
deposit.

Deposits can be made and shall be considered same day business until 5:00 pm
centfral standard time. It is anticipated that there be one deposit per day per
account except during peak tax season {last two weeks of December when more
than two deposits per day to the Investment Account may occur).

Pre-encoded, pre-printed deposits slips and checks for each account listed in
Section 1 hereof, shall be provided to the County at no cost.

Designation of one bank officer for communication and investment purposes.

The Bank shall provide any necessary MICR encoding requirements to County's
check printing system.

A CD Rom [or other media accepted by the County) shall be provided monthly
with images of all checks cleared and deposit items. Software necessary to view
and print any item shall be included with the CD. A sample CD shall be provided
with the proposal. '

The County shall be able to transfer funds between accounts at no charge.
Funds availability schedules shall be provided with the proposal.

At a minimum, the County is o be given credit as collected funds for all items
cleared through the Bank on same day as deposit.

ltems deposited that clear af institutions within the same Federal Reserve region
shall be considered collected within one business day at a maximum.

Incoming wire transfers shall be credited as collected on the day received if
received by or before 3:00 pm central standard time.

The County Treasurer shall be the contact and working person by and between
the bank depository and the Treasurer's accounts. The County Collector shall be
the contact and working person by and between the bank depository and the
Collector's accounts. Any other office or department that request services will
have their own accounts and shall designate in writing their own contact person.

Service charges on dll current and future accounts shall be totaled and billed
monthly 1o the County Treasurer, Collector, Recorder of Deeds, Clerk, and any
other offices or departmenis that may request services for their respective
accounts,
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411 Any future accounts established by the County shall be compuied under the
terms of this contract as long as no new requirements are established by the
County.

4.11.1 Any new account that involves funds under the control of the County Treasurer
that uses the County’s tax identification number, shall be set up through the
County Commission and the County Treasurer.

4.11.2 Any new accounts involving funds under the control of the County Treasurer shalll
require the signatures of the County Treasurer and/or her designee.

4.11.3 Any new account that involves funds under the control of the County Clerk that
uses the County’s tax identification number, shall be set up through the County
Commission and notification to the County Treasurer.

4.11.4 Any new accounts involving funds under the control of the County Clerk shall
require the signatures of the County Clerk and/or her designee.

4.11.5 The County Treasurer's accounts for the County will be required to have two
signatures with the County Treasurer or their facsimile stamp as one and the
Presiding Commissioner or their facsimile stamp as the second signature. The
Treasurer's School account is required to have two signatures one being the
County Treasurer and her designee. The CERF accounf is done online through ACH
transfers and can be performed by the Treasurer or her designee. Please see
Exhibit “2" in its entirety.

4.11.6 Any new account that involves funds under the conirol of the County Collector
that uses the County's tax identification number shall be set up through the County
Collector in cooperation with the County Commission and nofification to the
County Treasurer.

4.11.7 Any new account that involves funds under the control of the County Collector
shall require the signatures of the County Collector and his designee.

4.11.8 Any new account that involves funds under the confrol of the County Recorder
that uses the County's taxidentification number shalt be set up through the County
Recorder in cooperation with the County Commission and notification of the
County Treasurer.

4.11.9 Any new account that involves funds under the control of the Recorder of Deeds
shall require the signatures of the Recorder of Deeds and her designee.

4.11.10 Any department that sets up a new account that uses the County’s Tax

identification number shali be set up through the County Commission and the
department and nofification to the County Treasurer.
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SECTION 5-ONLINE BANKING SERVICES

Under the proposal submitted by the bank and incorporated herein as Exhibit 1", all
online banking services shall be provided under the following terms and conditions. The
costs shall be calculated pursuant to Section V of the Proposal Response Form and the
Proposed Cost Schedule and billed monthly.

5.1

52

5.3

5.3.1

5.3.2

533

The County cuirently has electronic banking services via the intemet to the
depository bank for use in processing wire transfers, stop payments, ACH
processing, remote deposits capture, account transfers and account balance
history. Routine account fransfers can be set up one time and generated upon
request without reentering data.

The County has the ability to download checks cleared data on demand for use
in account balancing. This is currently done daily for the investment account and
can be done for selected periods on any account.

The proposal form contains request for a proposal for electronic banking services
which addresses the following:

The depository's ability fo provide interactive services through the internet that
allows account balance inquiry, account transfers, ACH processing, stop
payments, remote deposits capture and wire fransfers. Please include set up
charges, on-line charges, monthly charges, per transaction costs that are in
addition to orin lieu of traditional costs quoted in this proposal. :

Detail whether memo post information is available and whether entered data is
accepted immediately or batch processed by the depository at a later time.
Detail how much history is available, detail proposed alternatives (i.e. magnetic
tape or diskette transfer) and charges associated with alternative. Approximately
50,000 items will be downloaded per year.

Provide a minimum of two references of current users of your electronic bank
services proposed.

SECTION-6 OTHER SERVICES

6.1

6.2

6.3

Bid three (3) safety deposit boxes, one {1) with dimensions 3x10, one (1} with
dimensions 5x10, and one (1) 10x10. Safety deposit boxes costs shall be charged
as detailed in the Depository Proposal for Christian County Public Funds of Exhibit
ll’l !l-

Incoming and outgoing wire transfers initiated over the internet shall be billed at
the rate in the Proposed Cost Schedule attached hereto.

Bid bank services for Positive Pay.
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SECTION 7-COUNTY COMMISSION AND COUNTY AUDITOR VERIFICATION OF ACCOUNTS

7.1 The County Commission and the County Auditor shall have access to the Christion
County Treasurer's Accounts for the purpose of verifying account balances. That
verification shall be through and by the authority of the County Treasurer in the
form of going online to the depository Bank in the County Treasurer's office.

7.2 The County Commission and the County Auditor shall have access to the Christian
County Clerk’s and Collector’s accounts for the purpose of verifying account
balances. The Bank will be given permission from the County Clerk or County

Collector to release a full account record being copied and/or given to the
County Commission or the County Auditor upon request.

SECTION 8-WIRE TRANSFERS AUTHORIZATION POLICY STATEMENT

8.1 All' wire transfers are to be handled by the Policy Statement-Wire fransfers
Authorization referenced in its entirety as Exhibit "2".

SECTION 9-MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS

9.1 Bank must remain a banking corporation incorporated under the laws of the State
of Missouri or the United States of America.

2.2 Bank must maintain a home office or full service branch within the boundaries of
Christian County, Missouri.

9.3 In addifion to all other charges previously detailed, County shalt pay charges as
outlined in the Proposed Cost Schedule attached.

Central Bank understands all above listed requirements for the Depository Agreement and,
if selected, will comply to each requirement for the entirety of the contract.
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Exhibit 2
Policy Statement
Wire Transfers Authorization

This statement is provided to further clarify the depository agreements between Christian
County Government and the County Banking service provider. The below clarification
statements are effective as of the date set forth below, until changed by County
Treasurer or the Deputy County Clerk with the County Commission approval.

CERF-Summary of County Contributions-CERF Administrative Retirement System

The retirement program CERF {County Employees Retirement Fund) obtains funding from
several different sources. These funds which are deposited in a special County bank
account shall then be forwarded to Administrative Retirement System for credit to CERF's
account, this process requires a wire transfer from the County bank account to CERF's
Administrative Retirement System account. This wire fransfer is a predefined single
purpose fransaction, where the parameters are fixed. The only factor subject to variation
is the dollar amouni. The sources of funds (Employee Contributions) are the result of
payroll deductions and therefore results | a wire fransfer each pay cycle. The sources of
funds (Assessor late fee’s, Collector merchant license fees, Collector delinquent fees,
Recorder of Deeds document filing fees, County interest and County Contributions) are
received on a calendar monthly cycle and therefore usudally result in a wire transfer each
calendar month. The authorization to and responsibility for these fransactions is assigned -
to the County Treasurer, who manages the depositing and forwarding of these funds for
the County.

EFTPS Payroli Taxes

The preparation of the County's payroll creates a liability of Federal Payroll Taxes that
must be deposited in a timely manner by the method required by the Internal Revenue
Service. This process, called EFTPS (Electronic Federal Tax Payment System), requires a
wire transfer each pay cycle. The wire transfer is a predefined single purpose transaction,
where the parameters are fixed. The only factor subject to variation is the dollar amount.
This transaction is accomplished by an internet entry in the IRS EFTPS network. The
authorization to and responsibility for this fransaction is assighed to the Deputy County
Clerk, who manages the payroll operations of the County.

ACH Credit Payroll Taxes

The preparation of the County’s payroll creates a liability of State Payroll Taxes that must
be deposited in a timely manner by the method required by the Missouri Department of
Revenue, the Division of Taxation and Collection. This process, called ACH Credit
{Automated Clearing House Credit) requires a wire transfer each pay cycle. This wire
transfer is a predefined single purpose transaction, where the perimeters are fixed. The
only factor subject to variation is the dollar amount, This transaction is accomplished by
an internet entry in the State ACH network. The authorization to and responsibility for this
fransaction is assigned to the Deputy County Clerk, who manages the payroll operation

of the County.
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EXHIBIT B
AUTHORITY TO BIND AGREEMENT

The Christian County Commission will be accepting sealed bids from Christian County
Banking Institutions which desire to be selected as the depository of Christian County
Funds for the next four years, with an option to re-bid in each odd-numbered year. All
banking institutions should comply with the provisions of Chapter 110 of the Revised
Statutes of the State of Missouri.

BID Deadline and Location: Pursuant to 110.140 Any banking corporation or association
in the county desiring to bid shall deliver a sealed bid marked SEALED BID DO NOT OPEN
RE: BANK BID to County Commission 100 West Church, Room 100, Ozark, MO. 65721, no

later than 8:45 a.m. the 215t davy of June.

Opening Date/ Time/Location: The Christian County Commission, in compliance with
RsMQO 110.150.1, will publicly open the bids on the 21¢ day of June 2021 at 9:00 a.m. in
the Commission Chamber on the first floor of the historic courthouse located at 100
West Church, Room 100 Ozark, MO., and cause each bid to be entered upon the
records of the Commission pursuant to 110.150.1, but the Commission may reject any
and all bids,

Award Date/Location: After review of the bid, the Chrls’rlcm County Commission shoII
award bid by the last Monday of June.

Questions or Additional Information Requested: Please e-mail all questions regarding
the Bank Bid to the County Commission Office at:
countycommission@christiancountymo.gov. All questions must be submitted prior to the
bid opening and no later than Monday, June 21%, 2021. All questions will be answered in
writing or emailed to all known potential bidders in Christian County.
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The undersigned certifies that they have the authorly to bind this company In an
agresment to:supply the-commodity or service In accordance with all terms, condltions,
and priging specliied herein or to offer a "No Bld." Plecse type or grint the Information
below. Bidder js REQUIRED to complets, sign and retum this form with thair submittal of
Bid as well as all pages initidled., *Ah cuthorized signeiture:Js rrandatory: lack thereof will
result in a-determination of "Norn-Responsive”; Also required is a direct email address in
order to receive dward results. We de: not use USPS for direct results nafification, only
email.

Cendind Bk §F fhe D2adg JD%/\/V\, o\ diner
Company Name Authotized Persen (Print)

190 5 Glenthine e

Agldrass
nncglield [ Greene] o
Citp/CoupiyiState/zid ' Title '
{17-881-3 (0o 0190024 et
Telephone # - Fex# Date Tax 10 # ’
TS E0 N RN o pawm aLBanK Ca®
© Bmail ' = Entity Type (Corporation, LLC, Sole

Proprietor, Parthetshilp).

Bids received dfter 8:45 en the 21+ day of Jupe 2021, will be: considered untimely

and will not be epened.
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Financial Highlights
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Year in Review

CENTRAL BANCOMPANY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

For the Year 2020 2019
Interest Income $534,087,000 538,614,000
Interest Expense 40,732,000 73,595,000
Net Interest Income 493,355,000 465,019,000
Provision for Loan Losses 27,153,000 14,025,000
Non-Interest Income 274,214,000 190,262,000
Non-Interest Expense 429,625,000 368,928,000
Income Taxes 70,015,000 62,685,000
Net Income 240,776,000 209,643,000
Average Daily Assets 16,721,466,000 13,635,347,000
Average Daily Deposits 12,910,023,000 10,321,184,000
Average Daily l.oans 10,067,989,000 8,670,796,000
At Year End

Total Assets $18,299,657,000 14,960,940,000
Investment Securities 5,413,954,000 3,633,572,000
Loans 10,374,452,000 9,475,093,000
Deposits 14,391,324,000 11,566,917,000
Stockholders’ Equity 2,330,655,000 2,126,063,000
Number of Qutstanding Shares 4,425,085 4,425,085
Per Share

Net Income $54.41 47.38
Dividends 10.10 8.50
Stockholders’ Equity 526.69 4180.46
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To Our Shareholders

Unprecedented. That’s a word we've heard over and over in the la.st twelve ma
And yer, despite the pandemic, in a year of one of the maost contenuous
elections in modern history, there is one other i xmportant and good thin
to the list of unprecedented events we saw last year - your Com
year of record carnings. . o [SupF

How did that occur? For more than 2 century,
unprecedented times like the Roa.rmvaenu , Bla
Depression, Seagflation, and the Great Rccessm
No matter what the pundu:s name the crisisgxg

S. Biyan Cook,
Chairmian and Chief Executive Qfficer




That is not to say that it was an easy year. [t
was not. Applying precedents in a threatening
environment requires creativity and discipline.
Just as occurred in each of our personal lives, the
coronavirus disrupted almost every facet of our
operations. As did many of your families, our
co-workers lost loved ones and dear friends. We took
steps to protect our employees and our customers
from the virus while innovating to keep our services
and our performance at the highest level. Once again,
Forbes Magazine recognized our company by naming
us the 4% "Best Bank in America" among the 100
largest banking companies and the top-rated bank in
four states; Missouri, Kansas, Illinois, and Oklahoma.

When we reported to you at this time last year, we knew
a new virus was quickly spreading across America. No
one really knew how bad it would get. The markets
reacted with the fear that uncertainty often brings. A
decline in publicly traded equities and interest rates
showed that fear. We knew from our history that the
low-rate environment would squeeze our net interess,
margin and thus earnings. But we have said that
within our DNA is to prepare for the worst and hope
for the best. So as the economic turbulence increased,
we tightened our seatbelts and flew on. We saw our
employees work harder, think more creatively, and
plan together.

"...Forbes Magazine
recognized our company by
naming us the 4" "Best Bank
in America" among the 100
largest banking companies..."

Difficult times don’t create character, they reveal it.
Your Company benefitted from the value added by
the people with whom we are honored to work with.
These employees redesigned work processes on the fly
yet found creative ways to work safely and continue

to provide excellent service to our customers. In
March, we had just welcomed John Ross (JR), our
new President and Chief Operating Officer to our
company. With JR’s experience added to the mix,
we turned our attention to two important priorities:
staying open for business to help our customers and
keeping our employees safe.

We kept our drive-up branches open throughout the
pandemic and found new ways to provide banking
services electronically and in person. More and
more customers learned about our excellent internet
and mobile banking products that were developed
before the pandemic and used them frequently.
As customer's behavior changed, we evolved. Your
Company’s historic commitment to technology
prepared us well for these times.

Here are some of the highlights that reveal our
character.

The government introduced a program designed to
help our small businesses customers meet payroll and
to keep them operating throtigh the pandemic. The
Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) was launched in
March by the Small Business Administration {(SBA).
The start-up was difficult and key provisions changed
frequently but it was very successful in helping our
businesses meet payroll. Our dedicated lending staff
was in communication daily with the SBA as the
program was rolled out at record speed. Because it
was believed there was not enough federal funding to
meet the demand, our lenders came to work the first
day at 11:00 p.m. just to be ready for the midnight
opening of the government's application portal. They
worked throughout the night and the weekend to help
as many customers as possible. Within a few days,
they had completed 9,400 applications for more than
$941 million. Our hard work and effort made us the
top PPP lender in the state of Missouri and in just
about every market we serve. This is truly an amazing
accomplishment.

‘We also had a record year in mortgage banking, Because
the Federal Reserve slashed key interest rates to near
zero, our customers began to refinance their mortgages
into lower rates. Once again, our employees stepped
up to the task. Our mortgage leaders redesigned

Strong roots. Endless possibilities. 6



the lending process and enhanced our Mortgage
Fulfillment Center so we could accommodate more
customers. Our loan originators and processors got
busy and worked tirelessly to make sure customers got
the benefits of lower mortgage payments. As a resulr,
we had a record year in mortgage originations which
conuibuted significantly to a record year of earnings. In
toral, we originated $3 billion in loans and continued
the expansion of our footprint in Nashville, TN and
Colorado. We are now well positioned to improve on
our strategic goal of being the best in class in residential
mortgage lending.

These efforts are highlighted because they tell the story
of who we are, and were large contributors to this
year’s unprecedented results. Big things result from
countless small acts done exceedingly well, time and
time again, by people who know that excellence is a
way of life. We are so very fortunate that our Central
Bank family, who were with us well before the crisis, are
committed to excellence. Their character was revealed
as 2020 unfolded. -

s

Now, some of the financial highlights.

Your Company achicved excellent financial results in
2020 summarized as follows;

¢« Net Income of $240.7 million in 2020, an
increase of $31.1 million or 14.9% compared to
net income of $209.6 millicn in 2019.

« The return on average assets was 1.44% in 2020
and the return on equity was 11.32%.

NET INTEREST INCOME (in millions)

490
480 $493.355
470

460

450

2019 2020

¢ Total revenue increased by $112.3 million or
17.19 in 2020 ro $767.6 million as net interest
income increased by $28.3 million or 6.1% and
non-interest income increased from $190.3 million
to $274.2 million in 2020 driven by a $78.7
million increase in mortgage banking income.

» The Company's efficiency ratio was 55.8% in
2020 and 56.0% in 2019.

¢  The reserve for loan losses, net of PPP loans,
increased from 1.40% in 2019 to 1.57% in 2020.
Ner loan charge-offs were $9.6 million in 2020 —
0.10% of loans and $9.1 million in 2019 —0.11%
of loans.

» Total assets on December 31, 2020, were $18.3
billion compared to $15.0 billion the prior
year-end. Total deposits increased from $11.6
billion at the end of 2019 to $14.4 billion on
December 31, 2020, while total loans increased
from $9.5 billion to $10.4 billion on December
31, 2020. i K

+ Total stockholders' equity was $2.331 billion at
the end of 2020 or $526.69 a share compared to
$480.46 a share on December 31, 2019.

Earnings per share amounted to $54.41 in 2020
and $47.38 a share in 2019. Dividends per share
were $10.10 in 2020 and $8.50 in 2019.

A detailed discussion of the financial results for your
Company can be found in the Financial Review and
the Audited Financial Section of the report

Innovation to Serve and Grow

The year 2020 may have brought several things to a halt,
but our ability to innovate and improve our customer
experience was not one of them. Like most indusrries,
banking had to quickly learn to work differently to avoid
disruption. Central’s culture of embracing technology
allowed us to seamlessly move customner interactions to
video, allowing us to still have face-to-face conversations
and remain connected to our customers. We rapidly
improved our ability to electronically share documents
and capture a customer’s signature, permitting us to close
loans, including our large PPP portfolio, remotely. We



were forcunate that in 2019, the Company invested in
a new online account opening platform. This system
played a vital role in our continued growth in 2020 as
we instituted limited access to our lobbies due to the
pandemic. These new forms of communication, along
with strengthening our abilities to work remorely and
enhancements to our mobile banking, became the
foundation of our success in 2020.

Mortgage lending has been a strength of our company
for decades. Over the years, we have invested in
technology to make the experience easy for the
customers and have built a solid infrastructure to
bring efficiencies to the back office. This allowed for
increased loan production throughout our network.
More importantly, it allowed us to look beyond our
wraditional footprint and in the fourth quarter of
2020 we launched Online Central, a consumer-direct
mortgage team. This operation is entirely online and
over the phone, and originates mortgages nationwide.
Online Central’s six loan officers, along with our strong
back office, quickly proved that we could compete
nationwide against the best in the industry.

We have a long history of providing our business
and retail customers a’ competitive credit card that
also has local customer service. This combinarion
was the cornerstone of our success. However, while
our customer service remained strong, we recognized
that new technology and innovation with other card
providers was making it harder to compete. We issued
a request for proposal for a new partner and chose
TSYS, a Global Payments company headquartered
in Georgia, to help us improve our card products. In
November, we successfully complered a full conversion
of our card portfolio to TSYS and are now positioned
to enhance our offers, strengthen our rewards, and
improve the payment experience for our base.

Robotics is a term you often hear with innovation. We
tend to think of large machinery performing a task
along an assembly line. But robotics can also bring
incredible efficiencies to an operation such as ours, In
2020, we began to identify repetitive tasks that could
be handled by Robotics Process Automation (RPA).
We use this technology to rapidly create software
‘bots’ that replace common manual tasks executed

"Mortgage lending has been
a strength of our company for
decades.. Online Central quickly
oroved that we could compete
nationwide against the
best in the industry.”

by our staff such as data entry, form validation, and
customer onboarding requests. During the second half
of 2020, the RPA team created 11 ‘bots’ that process
more than 50,000 transactions each month and save
over 400 man-hours of effort each month. We expect
these solutions to reduce the need to add staff as our
volumes continue to grow and to frec up resources to
spend more time on ‘value-added” activiries. We will
continue to expand the use of this technology and
expect to exponentially increase this output in 2021.

Looking Ahead

Whilewe are proud of the recognition by Forbes, we have
never rested on past accomplishments. Your management
team has builta well-diversified model thac has prospered
throughout economic cycles so we are planning on another
strong year in 2021. But, to continue to improve, we must
invest in top-line talent and technology.

On the talent front, we have hired Piyush Agarwal to be
our new Chief Financial Officer. Piyush is our second
senior executive hire in two years to join us from one
of the largest and most respected banks in the U.S.
Additionally, we are fortunate enough to promote the
next generation of bank management from our own
talent pool. Four of our markets are transitioning in
2021 with new Presidents: Joselyn Baldner, Springfield;
Dan Stephen, St. Louis; Ed Scavone, Columbia; and
Marshall Abney, Warrensburg, In addition to these
promotions, we have recruited Greg Eby to join our
company as President of our bank in Sedalia. We are
pleased to have a breadth of diverse talent across the
Company to lead us into the future, but we will need to

Sirong roots. Endless possibilities. 8



develop more talent in critical positions which requires
us to keep compensation and benefits competitive with
banking and other industries.

On the technology front, we have invested in the
development of a new online commercial banking
platform and will spend 2021 building a more robust
and mobile-first application for our business customers.
For our retail customers, we are developing stronger
financial tools inside our mobile banking application that
include easier ways to save, set goals, and give the abilicy
to do online investing. We believe these enhancements
will keep our offerings strong and competitive against
the many Fin'Tecs threatening disintermediation. We are
also beginning the work to upgrade our core processor
and general ledger. We will continue to balance the cost

CORE MIX

TOTAL CORE FUNDING
$14,391,324,000

10%
TIME DEPOSITS
$1,490,779,000

37 %

MON-INTEREST BEARING
DEMAND DEPOSITS
$5,345,070,000

53%

SAVINGS & INTEREST
BEARING DEPOSITS
$7,555,475,000

benefits of technology investments, but we cannot fall
behind in these strategic decisions.

Looking at our financial performance, we project a
further decline in our net interest margin with historic
low interest rates for potentially two more years resulting
in compressed yields on earning assets. In addition, our
balance sheet has grown dramatically with an influx of
deposits, which result from federal deficit spending and
the Federal Reserve’s quantitative easing. As the Federal
Reserve accommodates unprecedented deficits, their
balance sheet has grown to over $7 willion. This has
resulted in monetary expansion and growth in bank
deposits. It is difficult to invest this inflow of funds in
quality earning assets. However, with continued low
interest rates, mortgage volume will again boost earnings
in 2021. Many consumers have already refinanced,
so mortgage fees will not be as robust as in 2020 and
competition will squeeze margins. It will be a challenge
to overcome these headwinds.

On the positive side; we are somewhat optimistic the
worst of the pandemic is behind us. We believe there
is pent up demand as consumers and businesses want
to return to their pre-pandemic lives and get together
with friends and family. With these develo pinents, there
is a good chance that the economy will outperform
expectations and we will see higher growth in business
investment and consumer spending. Better economic
growth should translate into better loan growth which
we think will improve in the third or fourth quarter
of 2021.

We also anticipate our core banking, payments, and
wealth management businesses will see renewed strength
on the back of a recovering economy. We have invested
in these businesses and are optimistic we will see good
returns in future years.

While we believe we are well positioned for 2021,
we will continue to monitor the horizon for a
number of emerging competitive threats, including
potential payments disruption from new market
entrants, technologies, or digital currencies, as well as
macroeconomic threats, including the prospects of a
return to higher inflation,



One bright spot is in our new markets. Colorado
has proven to be a strong market for mortgage
production and now, as a full-service branch, we
have had success in commercial loan production
and we will expand into other markets where we
see the potential for loan growth and fee income.

Organizational Change

I want to share a significant change in our company
structure that we have been studying for quite some
time. Over the years, we have watched virtually all
multi-bank holding companies change from operating
multiple charters to one charter. Five years ago, we
decided to change most of our bank names to Central
Bank to provide better customer awareness and service
to our customers. We also enabled them to bank across
affiliate lines more efficiently and allowed access to
more locations. These changes improved our ability
to serve customers, but we still have limitations.

There are advantages to operating under a single
charter, many of them around technology and
accounting/regulatory operations. However, the
key advantage is the improvement to our customer
experience. We will be able to fully serve every customer,
no matter where they are or how they began their

relationship with our company. This is something
we have been trying to accomplish for many years.

Therefore, we have decided to eliminate the separate
bank charters and operate as one bank. This change
is more of a legal change than it is fundamental. We
will continue to operate as Central Bank and serve
our customers in the same legendary way.

In closing, while it was another record year for your
company, we are eager to close the books on 2020.
The challenges it brought were heavy for our employees
and their families. I believe 2021 will bring dramatic
improvements to our post-pandemic way of life, but it
will also bring a new set of challenges for our company.
I can assure you that our employees will be working
as hard as they have in the past to bring in another
excellent year of core growth and profitability. Finally,
I want to thank our shareholders, directors, customers,
and employees for their continued support.

S. Bryan Coolk, Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Strong roots. Endless possibilities. 10






Our Employees Are Essential

Early in the year, the State of Missouri, along with other
states, issued a stay-at-home order for non-essential
workers. The banking industry, as with every crisis, was
deemed essential to ensure financial stability during this
pandemic. Our employees’ health and safety became
the top priority as we simultaneously asked them to
step up and continue to serve our communities.

Tharnks to the hard work and creative problem solving
of our Central Technology team, we were able to offer
more than one-third of our employee base the ability to
work from home. With additional infrastructure and
improvements to our Virtual Private Network (VPN),
at home employees were able to continue their work
uninterrupted. Most importantly, this immediately
reduced the risk of COVID-19 infection to all employees.

We recognized eatly on that we would be asking our
front-line/customer-facing employees to continue
serving the public. In an effort to minimize the risk,

we increased sanitation efforts and several branches
went to drive-thru only services or by appointment
only. Still, our Pandemic team felt we should do more
and approved extra compensation for this group.

As we navigated this pandemic, it became clear that
each and every life would be impacted. We found some
employees needed to stay home to care for children,
and were unable to work remotely. We allowed these
employees to do so without exhausting their paid
time off and kept them at 60% to 100% of their pay.
Employees who were directly affected by the virus or
had to care for someone infected with the virus, received
100% of their regular pay. Central Bancompany did
not lay off any employees as a result of the pandemic.

Our employees are critical to our success and the
success of our communities. While this pandemic
has been challenging, we have focused on accommo-
dating the needs of our employees. They, in turn,
have risen to the occasion and found innovative ways
1o serve our customers, both in person and remotely.

Strong roots. Endless possibilities: 12



Our Customers Need Us

The aforementioned investment in information
technology (IT) has increased every year since 2014,
so when the company needed to be mobilized and
work remotely, it was ready. This investment and
infrastructure support played a large role in the
company’s involvement in the CARES Act and the
Small Business Administration’s (SBA) Paycheck
Protection Program (PPP). The company largely
offered new credit via chis program to support the
payroll and operations of small businesses through the
issuance of government-guaranteed loans that include
a “forgiveness” feature for borrowers that satisfy the
requirements of the PPP. From April 34 10 August 8%,
the time in which the program was open, the company
booked more than 9,400 loans with a total balance
of approximately $941 million. All of the lenders

Jan, 3, reports of
mysterious virus

from home

13

z o
"Paooaoccouaggoggae"

March 1, CDC officially declares
COVID-19 "a global pandemic"
and BCP Protacols are enacted

from across the company came together to help each
other figure out and navigate the uncharted waters
of this program — most of which worked Jate nights,
weekends, and holidays. Due to these efforts, Central
Bancompany was ranked #1 in number of loans made
for the state of Missouri and #66 nationally.

This accomplishment should not go understated — this
was significant for our communities. Withour the
hard work and dedication of so many employees, the
company would not have been in such a grear position
to help businesses keep employees on the payroll, and
play a role in saving thousands of jobs and businesses
in our foorprint.

The company made the decision to limit access to the
majority of its public lobbies through the scariest and
unknown part of early 2020. This would not have
been possible without the strength of our online and
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mobile channels. While account openings in the branch
ground to 2 halt, our online account opening more than
doubled, allowing us to continue to grow the corpany
without our traditional infrastructure. The use of our
mobile banking app increased significantly as customers
who had avoided technology learned to embrace it.
But the largest shift in customer behavior happened
on April 15%, the day we electronically received the
majority of consumer stimulus payments. On this
day, logins to online and mobile banking more than
doubled, setting a one-day record high. Several banks
around the country experienced difficulty handling the
volume, but thanks to Central Technology and proper
planning, our customers experienced no disrupdon. The
next day, we opened the largest number of accounts
via our new opline account opening platform, roughly
2 Va times higher than the previous year.

May 3, Missouri sees
more than 300 average

We Are Dedicated Service Professionals

It all started with the late Sam B. CooKs vision of
Legendary Scrvice Standards and this continues as a
beacon today. As Legendary Service Standard number
one states, “it is our duty to provide legendary service
to our customets.” While COVID-19 continues to be
an uphill battle, the Central Bancompany family has
proven it can rise in the face of adversity and come
together for the greater good of our communities.
Under the current conditions of our economy, and
challenges we face, we look to Legendary Service
Standard 13: “Know No Boundaries — always be sure
to search for alternative solutions to help customers,
think outside the box, and be creative.”

Strong Roots. Endless Possibilities.
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President aned Chief Operatisg Officer

Central Bancompany Welcomes
John “JR” Ross as President

On March 30, 2020, Central Bancompany welcomed
John “JR” Ross as the Company’s new President and
Chief Operating Officer. A Mustang, Oklahoma
native, JR attended the University of Oklahoma while
completing the University’s accounting program. After
graduating from Oklahoma, he obrained a Masters of
Public Administration from the Kennedy School of
Government at Harvard Universiry.




JR brings a wealth of knowledge and expertise in the
barking industry to Central Bancompany, with nearly
20 years of experience working in and leading the
Banking division of ].P. Morgan’s Investment Bank.
With focus and persistence guiding his leadership style,
JR opined on his goals for Central Bancompany, "the
first principal is to do no harm, this is a wonderful
company,” he said. "All banks are facing pressure
to be innovative and agile in the face of increasing
competition from large banks and Silicon Valley. I
like the hand we have, we will just need to continue
to press our advantages and invest thoughtfully."

JR spent the majority of 2020 learning about the
company and helping to navigate the COVID-19
pandemic, while himself and the leadership team
guided Central Bancompany to another record
year. "It has been inspiring to watch the team
rally together to support customers during the
pandemic, as best demonstrated in our efforts
to support businesses with the implementation
-, of the Paycheck Protection Program," he said.

Central Bancompany and its family of banks
are notorious for its community focus and

involvement. JR plans to continue fosteting
this relationship with the local communities

and encourage employees to continue to find
community involvement opportunities. JR noted,
"Whether it’s redoubling efforts to increase internal
dialogue and collaboration across your Company or
to support the entirety of our local communities, I
think the pandemic has reminded us that we are better
together.” In conjunction with a community-service
mindset, JR will continue to push for our markets to
expand and grow with the proliferation of technology.
He will continue to support the success of Central
Bancompany employees to deliver the best in banking
to consumers and businesses.

On a personal note, JR is married to his high school
swectheart and has two daughters Mayumi and Jun,
13 and 11, respectively. His family spent the last year
adjusting to life in St. Louis and their daughters to
new schools. The transition from New York has been
successful for the Ross family.

- "Ousside of the office, I enjoy spending quality

time with my family, playing tennis, and reading ~
in that order, "JR said." Now that I am here, [ am
also excited about the opportunity to be imbedded
in a community, which has been harder to do in the
places I've lived the past 25 years."
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Financial Review

Results of Operations

Central Bancompany, Inc., recorded net income
of $240,776,000 in 2020, a $31,133,000 increase
compared to 2019 net income of $209,643,000.
Two key bank performance measures we focus on
are the return on assets and the return on equity.
The company’s return on average assets was 1.44%
in 2020 compared to 1.54% in 2019. The return on
equity was 11.32% in 2020 and 10.77% in 2019.

Average daily assets for the Company were $16.721
billion in 2020 compared to $13.635 billion in 2019.
Consolidated assets of the Company on December
31,2020 were $18.299 billion. Deposits increased by
24.4% o $14.391 billion on December 31, 2020 and
loans increased by 9.5% to $10.374 billion. Included
in the year end 2020 loans were $780 million loans
made under the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP)
of the 2020 Cares Act.

"On August 1, 2019 the Company acquired Bank
Liberty in Liberty, Missouri with total assets of $533
million and on December 2, 2019 the Company
acquired Platte Valley Barik of Missouri in Placte
City, Missouri with total assets of $599 million.
Bank Liberty was merged into Central Bank of the
Midwest on December 6, 2019 and Platte Valley
Bank was merged into Central Bank of the Midwest
on April 3, 2020.

Total stockholders' equity increased by 9.6% to
$2,330,655,000 on December 31, 2020. Book value per
share was $526.69 on December 31, 2020 compared
to $480.46 on December 31, 2019. The Company’s
2020 year-end tangible equity to asset ratio was
11.73% compared to 13.13% in 2019. Net income
per share was $54.41 in 2020 compared to $47.38
per share in 2019, a 14.8% increase; total dividends
paid by the Company in 2020 were $44,693,000 or
$10.10 per share compared to $37,613,000 in 2019
or $8.50 per share, an 18.8% increase.

Total revenue in 2020 amounted to $767.6 million,
a $112.3 million, or 17.1% increase from 2019.
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Non-interest expense in 2020 was $429.6 million, a
$60.7 million or 16.5% increase compared to 2019,
And the provision for credit losses in 2020 amounted to
$27.2 million an increase of $13.1 million. Following
is a breakdown of the different components of each
category and a discussion of the changes.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income comprises the major source of
earnings for the Company. Net interest income is the
difference between interest and fees carned by the
Company from loans, securities, and other interest-
bearing investments less interest paid on deposits and
other interest-bearing liabilities.

In measuring net interest income, we evaluate all
elements on a fully taxable equivalent basis (FTE).
FTE adjusts for che tax-exempt status of interest earned
on state and municipal investments and loans of the
Company and the nondeductible interest expense
associated with funding certain ta.x—free investments.

Net interest income is affected by two factors: The
volume of carning assets utilized by the Company and
the net interest rate spread, which is the difference in
the rate earned on loans and investments and the overall
rate paid on deposits and other funding liabilities.

In 2020, net interest income was $493.4 million, up
$28.3 million or 6.1% from 2019. The volume of
average earning asscts was $15.882 billion in 2020,
a 23.1% increase compared to 2019. Average loans
increased by 16.1% to $10.068 billion while average
deposits increased by 25.1% to $12.910 billion. The
Company’s level of investment securities and short-term
investments averaged $5.814 billion in 2020, 2 37.4%

increase.

The Company’s net interest margin decreased from
3.64% in 2019 to 3.16% in 2020.

The loan portfolio yielded 4.66% in 2020 and 5.04%
in 2019 while the yield on the investment portfolio was
1.38% in 2020 and 2.53% in 2019. The Company’s
cost to fund the earning assets was 0.26% in 2020
and 0.57% in 2019.



Allowance for Loan Loss

The Company accounts for losses experienced in its loan
portfolio on a reserve basis. The reserve is funded with
provisions that are charged to expense, thereby lowering
operating earnings. Loan losses represent charges to
the reserve at such time that a loan is determined to
be uncollectible. The reserve is maintained at a level
to cover possible losses in the loan porfolio.

The Company’s provision for loan losses was $27.2
million in 2020 compared to $14.0 million in 2019.
Net loan charge-offs were $9.6 million in 2020 and $9.1
million in 2019. Net loan charge-offs as a percentage
of average loans were 0.10% in 2020 and 0.11% in
2019. The reserve for possible loan losses was $150.5
million on December 31, 2020 or 1.45% of outstanding
loans; this compares to a reserve of $132.9 million on
December 31, 2019 or 1.40% of loans. Excluding the

PPP loans at year end 2020, the reserve for possible
loan losses amounted to 1.57% of outstanding loans.

Non-interest Income

Non-interest income is comprised of fees and
commissions that are received from the products and
services we provide to our customers. For 2020, total
non-interest income was $274.2 million compared to
$190.3 million in 2019, an $83.9 million or 44.1%
increase driven by a $78.7 million or 232.2% increase
in mortgage banking revenue which was enhanced by
the expansion of the Company's mortgage banking
effort with new physical locations in Colorado, North
Carolina, and Tennessee as well as offering online
morgage loans throughout the United States. Also
with historic low interest rates refinancing activity
increased. Following is a comparison by major categories
of 2020 non-interest income with 2019:

(1n_millions) 2020 2019 ~$ Change % Change
Service charges and ‘

commissions $50.0 50.6 (0.6) (1.2)%
Bankcard and merchant fees 56.2 47.9 8.3 17.3%
Fees for fiduciary services 32.8 30.7 2.1 6.8%
Mortgage banking revenues 112.6 33.9 78.7 232.2%
Brokerage fees 16.3 14.5 1.8 12.4%
Investment securities gains (losses) (0.7 7.9 (8.6) _—
Other 7.0 4.8 2.2 45.8%
Total non-interest income $274.2 190.3 83.9 44.1%

Non-interest Expense

Non-interest expense for 2020 was $429.6 million compared to $368.9 million in 2019, an increase of $60.7
million or 16.5%. Changes from 2019 to 2020: 1) approximately $18.0 million of the increase was du¢ to the
two bariks acquired during 2019 and included for the full year of 2020, 2) Incentive based compensation was up
$20.8 million or 62.1% mainly due to commissions with the additional revenue in the mortgage banking area,
3) Bank card costs increased $6.5 million or 23.2% in 2020 due to higher volume and conversion costs to the

Strong roots. Endless possibilities: 18



"TSYS platform, and 4) an increase in the write off of mortgage servicing rights of $5.9 million or 83.1% in 2020
with refinancing of existing mortgages. Changes in non-interest expense by major category between 2020 and
2019 follows:

{In millions) 2020 2019 $ Change % Change
Salaries and wages $211.0 174.0 37.0 21.2%
Employee benefits and payroll taxes 499 44.7 5.2 11.6%
Occuparncy expenses 26.7 248 1.9 7.7%
Equipment costs 146 129 1.7 13.2%
Marketing and business development 9.6 10.0 0.4 -4.0%
Computer software and maintenance 15.6 13.2 24 18.2%
BankCard processing and other costs 344 279 6.5 23.3%
Management and consulting 9.0 82 0.8 9.8%
FDIC insurance 09 0.5 04 80.0%
OMSR amortization 13.0 7.1 5.9 83.1%
Information services 5.6 5.2 0.4 7.7%
Correspondent bank charges ) 3.8 " 35 03 8.6%
FDIC indemnification amortization 0.0 1.6 -1.6 _
Loan collection and other reaf estate

costs 29 3.1 -0.2 -6.5%
Travel, meetings, and entertainment 2.6 4.2 -1.6 -38.1%
Printing, telecommunications, postage 85 8.4 01 1.2%
Legal fees 11 i3 0.2 -15.4%
Intangible asset amortization 41 19 22 115.7%
Other 163 16.4 0.1 -0.6%
Total non-interest expense $429.6 368.9 60.7 16.5%

The Company's consolidated efficiency ratio for 2020 was 55.8% compared to 56.0% for 2019.

Income Taxes

For 2020, the Company recorded an expense for income taxes of $70.0 million compared to $62.7 million in
2019. The 2020 expense is comprised of $57.2 million in Federal income tax, $9.1 million in State income tax,
and $3.7 million in amortization of tax credit costs,

‘The Company’s effective tax rate (Federal and State) amounted to 22.5% in 2020 and 23.0% in 2019.
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5 YEAR Consolidated Average Balance Sheet

CENTRAL BANCOMPANY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Assels 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Cash & Due From Banks S 190,398,000 168,642,000 167,414,000 178,101,000 189,278,000
Investment Securities 4,567,481,000 3,363,369,000 2,949,581,000 3,386,506,000  3,197,151,000
Money Market Obligations  1,246,672,000 868,795,000 813,716,000 649,626,000 721,583,000
Loans Less Unearned Income  10,067,989,000 8,670,796,000 8,263,526,000 7,977,585,000 7,593,567,000
Allowance for Loan Loss {140,457,000) (132,228,000} {129,565,000) {126,816,000) (126,391,000}
Net Loans 9,927,532,000 8,538,568,000 8,133,961,000 7,850,769,000  7,467,176,000
Other Assats 789,383,000 695,973,000 629,118,000 647,671,000 669,523,000
Total Assets $16,721,466,000 13,635,347,000  12,693,790,000 12,712,673,000 12,245,111,000

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

Non-interest Bearing

Demand Deposits S 4,607,624,000 3,368,629,000 3,132,724,000 3,175,488,000 3,041,476,000
Savings, NOW, and

Money Market Deposits 6,732,864,000 5,438,204,000 5,109,279,000 4,946,129,000 4,574,425,000
Time Deposits 1,569,535,000 1,514,251,000 1,418,183,000 1,546,619,000 1,573,276,000
Total Deposits 12,910,023,000 10,321,184,000 9,660,186,000 9,668,236,000 9,189,177,000
Federal Funds Purchased &

Repurchase Agreements 1,301,060,000 1,016,169,000 976,546,000 1,129,666,000 1,240,600,000
Borrowed Funds 5,000,000 2,296,000 14,000 0 1,175,000
Other Liabilities 251,335,000 217,341,000 196,097,000 193,746,000 183,422,000
Total Liabilities 14,467,418,000 11,556,990,000 10,832,843,000 10,991,648,000 10,614,374,000
Stockholders’ Equity 2,254,048,000 2,078,357,000 1,860,947,000 1,721,025,000 1,630,737,000
Total Liabilities and

Stockholders’ Equity $16,721,466,000 13,635,347,000 12,693,790,000 12,712,673,000 12,245,111,000
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5 YEAR Consolidated Summary of Operations

CENTRAL BANCOMPANY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Interest income

Interest Expense

Net Interest Income

Provision for
Loan Losses

Non-Interest Income

Non-interest Expense

Income Before Taxes

Income Taxes

MNet ihcome
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2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
$534,087,000 538,614,000 470,009,000 425,328,000 400,910,000
40,732,000 73,595,000 51,479,000 33,378,000 22,862,000
493,355,000 465,019,000 418,530,000 391,950,000 378,048,000
27,153,000 14,025,000 15,880,000 18,142,000 14,982,000
274,214,000 190,262,000 162,487,000 161,012,000 167,972,000

429,625,000 368,928,000 339,013,000 335,288,000 329,572,000
310,791,000 272,328,000 226,124,000 199,532,000 201,466,000
70,015,000 62,685,000 48,548,000 62,505,000 59,438,000
$240,776,000 209,643,000 177,576,000 137,027,000 142,028,000




Financial Data of Affiliate Banks

As of December 31, 2020

Total Investment Stockholders'
Bank Assets Leans Securities Deposits Equity
Central Bank of the
Midwest, Lee's Summit $3,677,114,000 5$2,151,646,000 $895,788,000  $3,031,912,000 $503,823,000
Central Trust Bank,
Jefferson City 3,470,233,000 1,310,635,000 1,782,938,000 2,401,316,000 242,622,000
Central Bonk of Boone
County, Columbia 2,746,579,000 1,372,672,000 900,140,000 2,240,365,000 190,561,000
Central Bank of St. Louis,
C|Qy10n 2,289,164,000 1,744,291,000 319,273,000 1,673,229,000 235,335,000
Ceniral Bank of the
Ozarks, SpringField 1,718,716,000 1,174,381,000 342,319,000 1,489,497,000 154,820,000
Central Bank of lake of the .
Ozarks, Osage Beach 1,027,497,000 484,840,000 390,042,000 900,103,000 85,368,000
Jefferson Bank of Missouri,
Jefterson ley 761,476,000 587,381,000 90,031,000 641,985,000 70,782,000
Central Bank of
Oklahoma, Tulsa 755,994,000 618,605,000 41,484,000 588,067,000 136,455,000
Cenfral Bank of Sedalia,
Sedalia 551,957,000 286,099,000 170,197,000 481,939,000 44,493,000
Cenlral Bank of Branson,
Branson 459,336,000 252,447,000 128,097,000 392,307,000 40,500,000
Central Bank of Warrensburg,
Wcrrensburg 295,974,000 172,892,000 85,060,000 248,179,000 38,117,000
Central Bonk of
Avdrain County, Mexico 236,398,000 92,290,000 84,686,000 211,872,000 16,516,000
Centratl Bank of Moberly,
Moberly 227,526,000 106,261,000 86,961,000 198,636,000 17,654,000
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KPMG LLP

Suite 1100

1000 Walnut Straet

Kansas City, MO 64108-2162

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors
Central Bancompany, Inc.:

Repert on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Central Bancompany Inc. and
subsidiaries (the Company), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2020 and
2018, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and
cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Staterments

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consclidated financial statements
in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial
staternents that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstaternent.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consclidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit alsa includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficiant and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,

the financial position of Central Bancompany, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

KPNIG LLP 15 2 Delawarg Iirmited hability partnership and the U S. member
I of the KPMG network ol independant member lvms aMilisted wath
KFMG Intarnational Cogparame: [MEPLIG lraanapanal™), & Swhas entivy.
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We also have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Slates of
America, the Company’s internal control over financial reporling as of December 31, 2020, based on criteria
sstablished in Internai Control — Infegrated Framework {2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission {COS0) and our report dated March 26, 2021 expressed an
unmodified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal conirol over financial reporting.

KPM LP

Kansas City, Missouri
March 26, 2021
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CENTRAL BANCOMPANY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2020 and 2019

Assets
Cash and due from banks
Short-term interest-bearing deposits
Interest-bearing deposits
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under
agreements to resell

Investment securities (note 2);
Available for sale (AFS)
Held to maturity (fair value of $29,927 000 and
$58,019,000, in 2020 and 2019, respectively)

Equity
Trading

Total investment securities

Loans (note 3)
Less allowance for loan losses (note 4)

Net loans

Loans held for sale

Land, buildings, and equipment, net (notes 6 and 14)

Deferred tax assets (note 8)

Foreclosed assets held for sale

Goodwill (note 7)

Core deposit and other intangibles (note 7)
Mortgage servicing rights (note 5)

Bank owned life insurance

QOther assets

Total assets

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2020 2019
277,207,000 234,609,000
1,536,646,000 692,406,000
28,679,000 60,220,000
10,238,000 200,831,000

5325.801,000 3 520,920,000
29569000 57,222,000
58 368 000 55 322,000
216,000 108,000
5 413,954,000 3 633,572,000
10,240 018,000 9,404,755 000
(150 457,000) (132,949,000)

10,089,561,000

9,271,806,000

137,695,000 70,338,000
219,930,000 227,931,000

- 839,000

10,580 000 9,756,000
348,237,000 348,907,000
21,088,000 25,122,000
27,153,000 20,474,000
23,401,000 22,848,000
155,288,000 141,281,000
18,299,657 000 14,960,940 000




CENTRAL BANCOMPANY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Depogits:
Noninterest-bearing demand 5,345 070,000 3,739,782,000
Savings and interest-bearing demand 7.555,475,000 6,197,083,000
Time (note 9) 1.490,779,000 1.630,052 000

Total deposits

Federal funds purchased and securities sold under

14,391,324,000

11,566,917.000

agreements to repurchase (note 10) 1,315,747,000 1,022,348,000
Trust preferred securities and other borrowed
funds (note 11) 5,000,000 6,702,000
Deferred tax liabilities, net (note 8) 1,966,000 -
Other liabilities (note 14) 254,965,000 238,910,000
Total liabilities 15,969,002,000 12,834,877 000
Stockholders' equity:
Class A voting common stock, $1 par value. Authorized,

3,093,779 shares; issued, 1,993,779 shares 1,994,000 1,994,000
Class B nonvoting common stock, $1 par value. Authorized,

7962 278 shares; issued, 3,962,278 shares 3,962,000 3,962,000
Capital surplus 5,250,000 5,250,000
Retained earnings 2,449 521,000 2253 438,000
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (note 17) (50,653,000) (59,162,000)

2.410,074,000 2.205.482,000
Less treasury stock of 447,682 shares of Class A
yoting common stock in 2020 and 2019 respectively;
1,083 290 shares of Class B nonvoting common stock in
2020 and 2019, respectively (79419,000) (79,419,000)
Total stockholders' equity 2,330,655,000 2,126,063,000
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity 18,299,657,000 14.960,940,000

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CENTRAL BANCOMPANY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income
December 31, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
Interest income:
Loans $ 467,580,000 435465000
Investment securities 61 498,000 83203000
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements
to resell 5,009,000 19,946,000
Total interest income 534 087000 538,614,000
Interest expense:
Deposits 345,157,000 58,880,000
Federal funds purchased, securities sold under agreements 1o
repurchase, and borrowed funds 4575000 14,715,000
Total interest expense 40,732,000 73,595,000
Net interest income 493,355,000 465,019,000
Provision for loan losses (note 4) 27,153,000 14025000
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 466,202,000 450,994,000
Qther income:
Service charges and commissions ) 50,000,000 50,615,000
Bankcard and merchant services 56,246,000 47.913,600
Brokerage services 16,253,000 14,548,000
Fees for fiduciary services 32,841,600 30,739,000
Mortgage banking revenues {note 5) 112,587,000 33,917,000
Other income 7,020,000 4,656,000
Investment securities {losses) gains, net {733 .000) 7.874,000
Total other income 274,214,000 190,262,000
Other expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits (note 12) 259,924,000 217,792,000
Net occupancy (notes 6 and 14) 26,676,000 24,837,000
Equipment (notes 6 and 14) 14 627,000 12,827,000
Computer sofiware and maintenance 15,558,000 13,158,000
Marketing and business development 9,558,000 10,041,000
FDIC insurance 895,000 482,000
Management and consulting fees 9,048,000 8,261,000
Bankcard 34,374,000 27,938,000
Other expenses 58,965,000 53,592,000
Total other expenses 429,625,000 368,928,000
Income before income taxes 310,791,000 272,328 000
Income taxes {note 8} 70,015,000 62,685,000
Net income $ 240,776,000 209,643,000

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements,
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CENTRAL BANCOMPANY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

December 31, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
Net income $ 240,776,000 209,643 000
Change in unrealized gain on AES securities,
net of income taxes 18,655,000 16,385,000
Change in pension (loss), net of income taxes {10,146,000) (9,055,000)
Other comprehensive income 8,509,000 7,330,000
Total comprehensive income $ 249,285,000 216,973,000

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CENTRAL BANCOMPANY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders' Equity

December 31, 2020 and 2019

Common Stock:
Balance at beginning and end of year, Class A, voting
Balance at beginning and end of year, Class B, nonvoting

Capital Surplus:
Balance at beginning and end of year

Retained Eamings:
Balance at beginning of year
Adoption of ASU 2016-02
Net income
Cash dividends ($10.10 per common share in 2020 and $8.50 per
common share in 2019)

Balance at end of year

Accumulated other comprehensive loss:
Balance at the beginning of the year
Other comprehensive income

Balance at end of year

Treasury Stock:
Balance at beginning and end of year

Total Stockholders' Equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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$

2020 2019

1,994 000 1,994,000
3,962,000 3,962,000
5,250,000 5,250,000
2253 438 000 2.081,588,000
- (180,000)

240,776,000 209,643,000
(44,693 000) (37,613 000)
2,449,521,000 2,253 438,000
(59,162,000) (66,492 000)
8,509,000 7,330,000
(50,653,000) (59,162,000)
(79,419,000) (79,419,000)

2,330,655,000

2,126,063,000




CENTRAL BANCOMPANY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
December 31, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 240,776 000 209,643,000
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Cash flows from financing activities:

Depreciation and amortization 33,520,000 24,319,000
Accretion of discounts and amortization of premiums, net 17,624,000 2,020,000
Deferred income taxes 131,000 4,429 000
Provision for loan losses 27,153,000 14,025,000
Gain on sale of loans, net (95,816,000) (25.498,000)
Purchases of trading securities (5.438,000) (1,899,000
Sales of trading securities 5,325,000 1,918,000
Investment securities losses (gains), net 733,000 (7.874,000)
Originations of mortgage loans held for sale (2,644,312 ,000) (1,084,430,000)
Proceeds from sales of mortgage loans held for sale 2,722,280.000 1,104,733,000
Increase in other assets (34,224 000) {1,367,000)
Increase in other liabilities 3,931,000 1,221,000
Net cash provided by operating activities 271,683,000 241,240,000
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of available-for-sale securities (7,201,436,000) (5,081,402,000)
Purchase of equity securities (9,114,000 (7,946,000)
Purchase of held-to-maturity securities (200,000) {1,402,000)
Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities 230,233,000 360,384,000
Proceeds from sales of equity securities 5,514,000 29,966,000
Proceeds from marurities of available-for-gale securities 5,173,111,000 4,072,663 000
Proceeds from marturities of held-to-maturity securities 27,800,000 22,290,000
Net change in interest bearing deposits 31,541,600 (20,863,000}
Purchase of bank, net of cash acquired — (100,712,000)
Net increase in loans (894.,997,000) (299,967.000)
Purchase of land, buildings, and equipment (13,610,000) 23,668,000y
Proceeds from sale of land, buildings, and equipment 4,309,000 6,886,000
Net cash used in investing activities (2,646,849,000) (1,043,771 ,000)

Increase in deposits 2,824 407 000 465,240,000
Increase in federal funds purchased and securities sold under
agreements to repirchase 293,399 0G0 64 438,000
Proceeds from borrowed funds 5,000,000 —
Repayment of borrowed funds (6,702,000) —
Dividends paid (44,693,000) (37,613,000)
Net cash provided by financing activities 3,071.411000 492 065,000
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 696,245,000 (310 466 ,000)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

1,127,846,000

1,438,312,000

1,824,091,000

1,127,846,000

Cash and due from banks 277,207,000 234,609,000
Short-term interest bearing deposits 1,536,646,000 692 406,000
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell 10,238,000 200,831,000

Total cash and cash equivalents

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

§  1,824,091,000

1,127 846,000

Interest paid 3 43 355,000 75,218,000
Income taxes paid 65,775,000 48,588,000
Loans transferred to foreclosed assets held for sale 10,076,000 6,029,000

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CENTRAL BANCOMPANY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

{2

@)

(¢)

(@)

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Central Bancompany,
Inc. and its subsidiary banks and companies (the Company). All intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated. The Company evaluated subsequent events for recognition or
disclosure through March 26, 2021, the date on which the consolidated financial statements were
issued. The ongoing COVID-19 pandemic and measures intended to prevent its spread have adversely
affected, and may continue to adversely affect our business activities, financial condition, and results
of operations and such effects will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain and
difficult to predict. Global health concerns relating to the COVID-19 pandemic and related
government actions taken to reduce the spread of the virus have negatively impacted the
macroeconomic environment, and the pandemic has significantly increased economic uncertainty and
abruptly reduced economic activity. The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic impacts our
business, results of operations and financial condition will depend on future developments, which are
highly uncertain and are difficult to predict, including, but not limited to, the duration and spread of
the pandemic, its severity, the actions to contain the virus or treat its impact, and how quickly and to
what extent normal economic and operating conditions can resume, :

Use of Estimates

Management has made a nurnber of estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting of assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities to prepare these consolidated financial
statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the conselidated statements of cash flows, the Company considers cash and due from
banks, short-term interest-bearing deposits maturing within 90 days, and federal funds sold and
securities purchased under agreements to resell maturing within 90 days to be cash equivalents.
Interest-bearing deposits are interest-bearing securities held at other financial institutions but are not
considered cash and cash equivalents.

Investment Securities

The Company classifies investment securities in one of four categories: equity, trading,
available-for-sale, or held-to-maturity. Trading securities are bought and held principally for the
purpose of selling them in the near term. Held-to-maturity securities are those that the Company has
the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. All other debt securities are classified as
available-for-sale.

Held-to-maturity securities are recorded at amortized cost. Trading, equity, and available-for-sale
securities are recorded at fair value. Unrealized holding gains and losses on equity and trading
securities are included in earnings. Unrealized holding gains and losses, net of related tax effect, on
available-for-sale securities are excluded from earnings and are reported as a separate component of
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) until realized. Realized gains and losses upon
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disposition of available-for-sale securities are included in income using the specific-identification
method for determining the cost of the securities sold.

Securities are evaluated for other-than-temporary impairments in accordance with guidance provided
in Accounting Standards Codification (ASC)320-10-35, Invesiments—Debt Securities-Overall-
Subsequent Measurement. For securities with other-than-temporary impairments, the entire loss in fair
value is required to be recognized in current earnings if the Company intends to sell the securities or
believes it likely that it will be required to sell the security before the anticipated recovery. If neither
condition is met, but the Company does not expect to recover the amortized cost basis, the Company
determines whether a credit foss has occurred, which is then recognized in current earnings. The
noncredit-related portion of the overall loss is reported in other comprehensive income (loss).

_Purchased premiums and discounts on investment securities are amortized/accreted into interest

income using the constant yield method based upon the remaining contractual maturity of the asset,
adjusted for any expected prepayments.

Loans held for sale-morigage banking

Loans held for sale-mortgage banking are accounted for at fair value pursuant to the fair value option
permitted by ASC 825, Financial Instruments. The Company elected to take the fair value option for
loans held for sale permitted by ASC 825, Financial Instruments beginning January 1, 2020.
Previously the Company recorded loans held for sale at the lower of cost or fair value. Gains and
losses from the changes in fair value are included in mortgage banking revenues, net.

Loans

Interest on loans is accrued and credited to income based upon the principal amount outstanding using
primarily a simple interest calculation. Fees associated with the origination of loans are deferred and
amortized over the life of the loans and are shown as an adjustment to interest income using the
straight-line method, which materially approximates the level-yield method. The accrual of interest on
loans is discontinued when, in management’s judgment, the interest is uncollectible in the normal
course of business. When a loan is placed on non-accrual status, any interest previously accrued but
not collected is reversed against current income. Interest received on nonaccrual loans is recognized
on a cash basis. The loan is returned to accrual status only when the borrower has brought all past-due
principal and interest payments current and, in the opinion of management, has demonstrated the
ability to make future payments of principal and interest as scheduled.

Provision for Loan Losses

The Company performs ongoing reviews of its loan portfolio to assess collectability, with a detailed
review as of the close of each calendar quarter. The balance in the allowance for loan losses account
reflects the Company’s estimate of the losses inherent in the portfolio based on these reviews. Whila
these estimates are based on generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and industry norms for
assessing collectability, actual outcomes may differ from estimated results.

In compliance with ASC 310-10, individual loans determined to be impaired are reviewed quarterly
for impairment. Impaired loans consist of all troubled debt restructurings and most non-accrual loans.
To determine the individual impairment on these loans, the Company applies regulatory requirements
to either charge the loan down or establish a reserve for any incurred loss. Impaired loans that are
collateral dependent are charged down to the fair value of collateral less selling costs.

Loans which are not impaired are segregated into pools of loans with common risk characteristics as
required by ASC 450-20. The historical annualized loss rate for each pool is determined and then
adjusted by an appropriate loss emergence period. In accordance with regulatory guidance, these
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historical loss rates are then adjusted for factors which, in the opinion of management, are expected to
cause future loss rates to be higher or lower than past loss rates. Some of these factors are external,
such as current economic conditions and trends, and others are internal, such as changes in the
composition and performance of the current [oan portfolio. The Company’s ending allowance balance
is the sum of the estimated required reserve on the various pools of loans plus the estimated required
reserve o impaired loans,

Land, Buildings, and Equipment

Land, buildings, and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is
computed on the straight-line or declining balance method depending upon the type of asset. The
Company generally assigns depreciable lives of 25-30 years for buildings; 15 years for building
improvements; 15 years for land improvements; and 3-7 years for furniture, equipment, and software.
Maintenance and repair costs are charged to expense as incurred. Major improvements are individually
considered and are capitalized or expensed as the facts dictate.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over equity in net assets of entities acquired. The Company
accounts for goadwill in accordance with ASC 350, Mtangibles — Goodwill and Other. Under
ASC 350, goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but rather
tested at least annually for impairment. Intangible assets that have finite useful lives continue to be
amortized over 7 to 20 years.

Foreclosed Assets

Foreclosed assets consist of property that has been formally repossessed. Collateral obtained through
foreclosure is comprised of commercial and residential real estate and other non-real estate property,
including automobiles. The assets are initially recorded at the lesser of the loan balance or fair value
less estimated selling costs at the time of foreclosure, with any valuation adjustments charged to the
allowance for loan losses. Subsequenily, the asset is carried at fair value. Future operating results,
including unrealized losses and realized gains and losses on sale, are recorded in other expense.

Income Taxes

The Comtpany and its subsidiaries file a consolidated federal income tax return. Certain income and
expense items are accounted for differently for financial reporting purposes than for income tax
purposes. Deferred income taxes are provided in recognition of these temporary differences at rates
expected to be in effect when such differences reverse,

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income is defined as the change in equity (net assets) of a business enterprise during
a period from transactions and other events and circumstances from nonowner sources. For the
Company, this includes net income, changes in unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale
investment securities, and the net periodic benefit cost related to the Company’s defined benefit
pension plan, net of applicable tax effects. The amounts recognized in accumulated other
comprehensive loss related to the defined benefit pension plan are adjusted out of accumulated other
comprehensive loss when they are subsequently recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost.

Morigage Banking

The fair value of retained mortgage servicing rights related to loans originated and sold is capitalized
as an asset in accordance with ASC 860, Adccounting for Servicing of Financial Assets, thereby
increasing the gain on sale of the loan by the amount of the asset. Such mortgage servicing rights are
amortized in proportion to and over the period of estimated net servicing income, considering
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appropriate prepayment assumptions. Any remaining unamortized amount is charged to expense if the
related loan is repaid prior to maturity.

Management monitors the capitalized mortgage servicing rights on a disaggregated basis by stratum
for impairment based on the fair value of those rights. Any impairment is recognized through a
valuation allowance.

Derivative Financial Instruments

ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging, establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative
instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, and for hedging
activities. Accordingly, the Company records all derivatives at fair value. The Company enters into
interest rate lock commitments on certain mortgage loans related to mortgage banking operations on
a best efforts basis, which are commitments to originate loans whereby the interest rate on the loan is
determined prior to funding. The Company also has corresponding forward sales contracts related to
these interest rate lock commitments. In August of 2020, the Company began to originate and sell
certain loans related to mortgage banking operations on a2 mandatory delivery basis. To hedge interest
rate risk the Company sells short positions in martgage backed securities related to the loans sold on
a mandatory delivery basis. The commitments to originate and short positions are accounted for as
derivatives and carried at fair value in other assets and other liabilities with changes in fair value
recorded in mortgage banking revenues, net.

Securities Sold under Agreements to Repurchase

The Company enters into sales of securities under agreements to repurchase as of a specified future
date. Such repurchase agreements are considered financing agreements, and accordingly, the
obligation to repurchase assets sold is reflected as a liability in the consolidated balance sheet of the
Company. Repurchase agreements ate collateralized by securities that are under the control of the
Company.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Credit Losses — In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Measurement of Credit Losses on
Financial Instruments. The update replaces the current incurred loss methodology for recognizing
credit losses with a current expected loss model, which requires the measurement of all expected credit
losses for financial assets held at the report date based on historical experience, current conditions,
and reasonable and supportable forecasts. The amendment broadens the information that the entity
must consider in developing its expected credit loss estimates. Additionally, the update amends the
accounting for credit losses on AFS debt securities. The update requires enhanced disclosures to help
investors and other financial statement users better understand significant estimates and judgments
used in estimated credit losses, as well as the credit quality and underwriting standards of a company’s
loan portfolio. The ASU is effective for annual periods beginning January 1, 2023. The Company is
currently evaluating the effects of this pronouncement on its consolidated financial statements.

Goodwill — In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-04, Simplifying the Test for Goodwill
Impairment. The ASU simplifies the accounting for goodwill impairments and are effective for
financial statements issued for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2020. The change did not
have a significant effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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Intangible Assets - The FASB issued ASU 2018-15, "Customer's Accounting for Implementation
Costs Incurred in a Cloud Computing Arrangement That Is a Service Contract”, in August 2018, Under
current guidance, the accounting for implementation costs of a hosting arrangement that is a service
contract is not specifically addressed. Under the new amendments, the requirements for capitalizing
implementation costs incurred in a hosting arrangement that is a service contract are aligned with the
requirements for capitalizing implementation costs incurred to develop or obtain internal-use software
or hosting arrangements that include an internal-use software license. The guidance was effective
January I, 2020. The change did not have a significant effect on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

Income Taxes - The FASB issued ASU 2019-12, "Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes", in
December 2019. The amendments in the ASU eliminate certain exceptions under current guidance for
investments, intraperiod allocations, and the methodology for calculating interim income tax. In
addition, the amendments also add new guidance to simplify accounting for income taxes. The
amendments were effective January 1, 2021. The change did not have a significant effect on the
Company's consolidated financial statements.

Reference Rate Reform- The FASB issued ASU 2020-04, "Reference Rate Reform,", in March 2020,
The amendments in the ASU provides optional expedients and exceptions for applying GAAP to loan
and lease agreements, derivative contracts, and other transactions affected by the anticipated transition
away from LIBOR toward new interest rate benchmarks. For loan and lease agreements that are
modified because of reference rate reform and that meet certain scope guidance (i) modifications of
loan agreements should be accounted for by prospectively adjusting the effective interest rate, and the
madifications would be considered "minor" with the result that any existing unamortized origination
fees/costs would carry forward and continue to be amortized and (ii) modifications of lease agreements
should be accounted for as a continuation of the existing agreement, with no reassessments of the lease
classification and the discount rate or remeasurements of lease payments that otherwise would be
required for modifications not accounted for as separate contracts. ASU 2020-04 also provides
numerous optional expedients for derivative accounting, ASU 2020-04 is effective March 12, 2020
through December 31, 2022. An entity may elect to apply ASU 2020-04 for contract modifications as
of January 1, 2020, or prospectively from a date within an interim period that includes or is subsequent
to March 12, 2020, up to the date that the financial statements are available to be issued. Once elected
for a Topic or an Industry Subtopic within the ASC, ASU 2020-04 must be applied prospectively for
all eligible contract modifications for that Topic or Industry Subtopic. The Company anticipates that
ASU 2020-04 will simplify any modifications executed between the selected start date and December
31, 2022 that are directly related to LIBOR transition by allowing prospective recognition of the
continuation of the contract, rather than extinguishment of the old contract that would result in writing
off unamortized fees/costs. Management will continue to actively assess the impacts of ASU 2020-04
and the related opportunities and risks involved in the LIBOR transition and does not believe it will
have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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The table below includes the fair value of equity securities as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 including,
Federal Home Loan Bank Stock, Federal Reserve Bank Stock, and equity securities with no readily
determinable value:

Equity Securities 12/31/2020 12/31/2019
Common and preferred stocks with readily
determinable fair vakie $ 4,500,000 4,957,000
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 19,643,000 19,357,000
Federal Reserve Bank stock 25,097,000 21,288,000
No readily determinable fair value 9,128,000 9,720,000
Total equity securities $ 58,368,000 55,322,000

During 2020, $552,000 in losses were recorded on the net decline in market value of the common and
preferred stock, consisting of $15,000 in gains realized on sales during 2020 and $567,000 in net unrealized
losses on the portfolio. $2,000 of the 85,000,000 in common and preferred stocks were sold in 2020. In
2019, $7,841,000 in gains were recorded on the net increase in market value of the common and preferred
stock, consisting of $6,337,000 in gains realized on sales during 2019 and $1,504,000 in net unrealized gains
on the portfolio. $23,500,000 of the $27,000,000 in common and preferred stocks were sold in 2019,
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The following tables show the carrying amount, gross unrealized holding gains, gross unrealized holding
losses, and fair value of AFS and HTM securities by security type at December 31, 2020 and 2019.

Gross Gross
Amortized unrealized unrealized
cost gains losses Fair values
2020
Available for sale:
United States government
obligations and government-
sponsored enterprises $  5,057,365,000 33,643,000 (3,729,000)  5,087,279,000
Obligations of states and
political subdivisions 102,646,000 2,121,000 (37,000) 104,730,000
Other securities 134,973,000 416,000 {1,597,000) 133,792,000
$  5,294,984,000 36,180,000 (5,363,000)  5,325,801,000
Held to maturity:
United States government
obligations and government-
sponsored enterprises $ 73,000 — — 73,000
Obligations of states and
political subdivisions 20,496,000 358,000 — 26,854,000
$ 29,569,000 358,000 — 29,927,000
Gross Gross
Amortized unrealized unrealized
cost gains losses Fair values
2019
Available for sale:
United States government
obligations and government-
sponsored enterprises $ 2,908,712,000 11,209,000 (4,447,000  2,915,474,000
Obligations of states and
political subdivisions 178,292,000 2,384,000 (68,000) 180,608,000
Other securities 427,633,000 316,000 (3,111,000) 424,838,000
$  3,514,637,000 13,909,000 (7,626,000)  3,520,920,000
Held to maturity:
United States government
obligations and government-
sponsored enterprises $ 90,000 4,000 — 94,000
Obligations of states and
political subdivisions 57,132,000 895,000 {102,000) 57,923,000
3 57,222,000 899,000 (102,000) 58,019,000




The amortized cost and fair value of available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities at December 31, 2020,
by contractual maturity, are shown below:

United States government
obligations and government- Obligations of states
sponsored enterprises and political subdivisions Other secarifies
Amortized Amortized Amoriized
cost Fair value cost Fair value cost Fair value
Available for sale:
Within [ year $ 857,388,000 857,572,000 26,799,000 26,873,000 72,762,000 72,908,000
After { but within 5 years 1,370,040,000 1,570,285,000 60,467,000 61,401,000 40,035,000 38,638,000
After 5 but within 10 years 78,259,000 78,262,000 13,826,000 14,361,000 — —
After 10 years —_ — 1,554,000 1,595,000 — —_—
Mottgage — and asset-backed
securities 2,551,678,000 2,581,160,000 — — 22,476,000 2,246000

$  5,057,365,000 5,087,279,000 102,646,000 104,730,000 134,973,000 133,752,000

Held to maturity:
Within | year $ — — 3.918,000 3,939,000 — -
After 1 but within 5 vears — — 19,208,000 19,430,000 - —
After 5 but within 10 years — — 6,323,000 6,438,000 — —
After 10 years — — 47,000 47,000 — —
Mortgage — and asset-backed
securities 73,000 73,000 — — — —

$ 73,000 73,000 29,496,000 29,854,000 — —

Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities in 2020 and 2019 were $230,233,000 and $360,384,000,
respectively. Net losses of $181,000 and net gains of $33,000 were recognized on the sale of available-for-
sale securities in 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Other securities consist primarily of corporate bonds.

Investment securities and money market obligations with a carrying value of approximately $3,657,000,000
and $2,712,000,000 were pledged to secure public deposits, repurchase agreements, and borrowed funds at
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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Gross unrealized losses on available-for-sale investment securities and the fair value of the related securities,
aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous
unrealized loss position, at December 31, 2020 and 2019 were as follows:

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair value losses Fairvalue losses Fair value losses
2020
Available for sale:
United States government
obligations and government-
sponsored enterprises $ 1,322,720,000 (2,903,000 56,364,000 (827,000) 1,419,284,000 (3,729,000}
Obligations of states and
political subdivisions
and other securities 5,334,000 {2,000) 35,983,000 (1,631,600) 41,317,000 (1,634,000}
$ 1,328,054,000 (2,505,000) 132,547,000 (2,458,000) 1,460,601,800 (5,363,000)
Less than 12 months 12 manths or more Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair value losses Fair value lasses Fair value losses
2019
Available for sale:
United States government
obligations and government-
sponsored enterprises $ 981,508,000 (1,971,000) 172,782,000 (2,476,000} 1,154,290,000 (4,447,000)
Obligations of states and
political subdivisions
and other securities 265,179,000 {212,000) 93,431,000 {2,967,000) 358,660,000 (3,179,000)
$  1,246,687,000 (2,183,000) 266,263,000 {5,443,000) 1,512,950,000 (7,626,000)

Gross unrealized losses on held-to-maturity invesiment securities and the fair value of the related securities
were $0 and $8,000 at December 31, 2020. The Gross unrealized losses cn held to maturity investment
securities and fair value of the related securities aggregated by investment category and length of time that
individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at December 31, 2019 were as

follows:



Less than 12 months 12 mopths or more Total

Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair value losses Fair value fosses Fair value losses
2019
Held to maturity:
Obligations of states and
polifical subdivisions § = — — 576000 (1020000 576000 (102,000)
h) — — 576,000 (102,000) 576,000 (102,000)

For the investments in the tables above, management has determined that the unrealized losses are temporary
in nature. A primary factor considered in making that determination is management’s intent and ability to
hold each investment for a period of time sufficient to allow for an anticipated recovery in fair value.
Management has the positive intent and ability to hold each investment until the earlier of its anticipated
recovery or maturity. Additional factors considered in determining whether a loss is temporary include:

¢ The length of time and the extent to which fair value has been below cost
¢ The severity of the impairment
* The cause of the impairment and the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer

s Activity in the market of the issuer, which may indicate adverse credit conditions

Other-than-temporary impairment may arise in future periods, due to further deterioration in the general
economy and national housing markets, and changing cash flows, loss severities, and delinquency levels of
the securities® underlying collateral, which would negatively affect the Company’s financial results.

The Company’s impairment policy requires a review of all securities for which fair value is less than
amortized cost for a period of 12 months. Special emphasis and analysis is placed on securities whose credit
rating has experienced a negative credit rating event. These securities are placed on a watch list, and for all
such securities, further credit analysis, research, and rating agency outlook is evaluated for further action
considerations. Securities below investment grade with risk of bankruptey filing or uncertain financial
outlook are considered for OTTI impairment. There were no securities on the watch list as of December 31,
2020 and 2019 that were considered other than temporarily impaired.

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company had no recorded other than temporary
impairment. Securities that were temporarily impaired at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are shown above,
along with the length of the impairment period. Out of the total available-for-sale securities portfolio,
consisting of 3,149 individual securities at December 31, 2020, 585 securities were temporarily impaired.
Of these securities, 133 securities, amounting to 2.5% of the available-for-sale portfolio, were temporarily
impaired for 12 months or longer.

With respect to United States government obligations and government-sponsored enterprises, the unrealized
losses on investments in securities of U.S. government obligations and government-sponsored enterprises
were caused by interest rates moving sharply lower by mid-year and then starting to trend upwards towards
the end of the year. While interest rates were lower year over year, the timing of purchases did cause some
current mark to market loss positions. The contractual terms of these investments do not permit the issuer to
settle the securities at a price less than par. Because the Company has the ability and intent to held these
investments until a market price recovery or maturity, these investments are not considered
other-than-temporarily impaired. These securities represent 73% of all securities at a loss for greater than
12 months.
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The unrealized losses on investments in obligations of states and political subdivisions were caused by
interest rate changes and other market conditions. The contractual terms of these investments do not permit
the issuer to settle the securities at a price less than par.

With rates moving lower year over year and corporate bond spreads tightening throughout the year, the
legacy corporate bond portfolio held, with any mark to market exposure being driven by size and structure
more than the overall economic environment. All individual corporate bond investments remain investment
grade and within policy limits. Because the Company has the ability and intent to hold these investments
until a market price recavery or maturity, these investments are not considered other-than-temporarily
impaired.

Loans

Loans consisted of the following at December 31, 2020 and 2019:

: 2020 2019

Commercial § 7,973,991,000 7,135,456,000
Real estate 1,051,298,000 1,046,003,000
Individual 1,272,763,000 1,266,345,000
10,298,052,000 9,447.804,000

Iess unearned income ) 45,225,000 26,714,000
Less fair value adjustment 12,809,000 16,335,000
Total loans $ 10,240,018,000 9.404,755,000

The Company funded $941,223,000 of PPP loans during 2020, all of which were fixed rate loans carrying a
1% interest rate. For these loans, the Company collected fees paid by the SBA totaling $35.5 million, of
which $15.4 million were recognized in net interest income during 2020.

With the purchase of BankLiberty and Platte Valley Bank of Missouri in 2019 as discussed in detail in
Footnote #18 - Acquisitions, the Company purchased certain loans that included deterioration of credit
quality for which payment of contractual amounts were subject to default (PCI loans). At December 31,
2020, the contractual balance, carrying value, and accretable discounts for PCI credits and non PCI credits
carried at fair value are as follows:



Contractual

Loan Carrying Accretable
At December 31, 2020: Balance Value Discount
PCI Loans
From Prior Acquisitions S 19,546,218 15,562,489 4,279,287
Non PCI Loans
From Prior Acquisitions 512,662,871 512,662,871 4,546,300
S 532,209,089 528,225,360 8,825,587
Accretion moved from non-accretable to accretable in 2020 S 1,069,960
Discount accretion recognized as interest income in 2020 from accretable S 3,736,123
Contractual
Loan Carrying Accretable
At December 31, 2019: Balance Value Discount
PCI Loans
From Prior Acquisitions 8 13,917,000 11,355,000 4,605,000
BankLiberty - 10,815,000 8,213,000 —
Platte Valley Bank of Missouri 141,000 123,000 —
Non PCI Loans _
BankLiberty 369,271,000 369,271,000 3,i24,000
Platte Valley Bank of Missouri 442.222.000 447 223,000 3,424,000
S 836,366,000 831,185,000 11,153,000
Accretion moved from non-accretable to accretable in 2019 $ 332,000
Discount accretion recognized as interest income in 2019 from accretable 5 2,401,000

Loans acquired by the Company were $0 and $850,522,000 in 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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Loans made to officers and directors of the Company, including subsidiary banks and their related businesses
are summarized below. They were made in the ordinary course of business at market rates.

2020
Balance at beginning of year § 472,575,000
New loans 150,160,000
Repayments (96,643,000)
Other changes 2,801,000
Balance at end of year § 528,893,000

Mortgage loans held-for-sale at December 31, 2020 and 2019 totaled approximately $137,695,000 and
$70,339,000 respectively. The Company determines at the time of grigination whether mortgage loans will
be held for the Company’s portfolio or sold to the secondary market. Loans originated and intended for sale
in the secondary market are recorded using the fair value option. The election of the fair value option aligns
the accounting for these loans with the related economic hedges discussed in Note 19. The loans held for
sale are included in loans on the balance sheets of the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Nonaccruing loans at December 31, 2020 and 2019 totaled approximately $27,671,000 and $51,743,000,
respectively. The interest income recorded on nonaccrual loans was approximately $1,478,000 and
$1,132,000 in 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Restructured loans at December 31, 2020 and 2019 totaled $15,855,000 and $26,883,000, respectively.
The interest income recognized on restructured loans at December 31, 2020 and 2019 was approximately
$380,000 and $979,000, respectively.

Section 4013 of the CARES Act was signed into law on March 27, 2020, and includes a provision that short-
term modifications are not troubled debt restructurings, if made on a good-faith basis in response to COVID-
19 to borrowers who were current prior to December 31, 2019. The Company follows the guidance under
the CARES Act when determining if a customer’s modification is subject to troubled debt restructuring
classification. If it is deemed the modification is not short term, not COVID-19 related or the customer does
not meet the criteria under the guidance to be scoped out of troubled debt restructuring classification, the
Company will evaluate the loan modifications under its existing framework which requires modifications
that result in a concession to a borrower experiencing financial difficulty be accounted for as a troubled debt
restructuring,

The initial guidance issued under the CARES Act was due to expire on December 31, 2020. During January
2021, the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021 was enacted and extended relief offered under the CARES
Act related to the accounting and disclosure requirements for troubled debt restructurings as a result of
COVID-19. The Company elected to adopt the extension of this guidance.

The Company has entered into commitments to lend additional funds to the borrowers whose loans have
been restructured and included in the totals disclosed above of approximately $51,000 at December 31,
2020. The table below shows the outstanding balance of loans classified as troubled debt restructurings
(TDR) at December 31, 2020 and 2019. Nonperforming TDRs include all past-due and nonaccrual TDR
loans. As of December 31, 2020, the Company had 19 TDRs totaling $3,391,000 that were past-due.
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2020 2019
Periorming Nonperforming — Total Performing Nonperforming  Total™

TDRs TDRs TDRs TDRs TDRs TDRs

Commercial $ 5252000 4334,000 9,586,000 10,494,000 7533000 18,027,000
Real estate 3490,000 2,731,000 6,221,000 5,199,000 3,600,000 8,799,000
Individual 48,000 — 43,000 30,000 7,000 57,000

Total loans $ 8790000 7065000 15855000 15743000 11,140,000 26,883,000

The Company has outstanding commitments to provide loans to customers and also has issued letiers of
credit, Loan commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination ¢lauses and may require
payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total
commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. Letters of credit are conditional
commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party. The credit
risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as is involved in extending loan facilities to
customers. At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company had unfunded loan commitments of
$3,054,194,000 and $2,706,598,000, respectively. Outstanding letters of credit as of December 31, 2020 and
2019 amounted to $66,349,000 and $65,138,000, respectively.

The Company evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral
obtained, if deemed necessary, by the Company upon extension of credit is based on management’s credit
evaluation of the customer. Collateral held varies, but may include accounts receivable, inventory, property,
plant, equipment, and income-producing commercial properties. The Company’s banking subsidiaries are
located throughout the states of Missouri, Kansas, Illinois, Oklahoma, Colorado, North Carolina and
Tennessee, and the Company’s loan portfolio has no unusual geographic concentrations of credit risk beyond
its market areas.

Allowance for Loan Losses
The following is a summary of activity in the allowance for loan losses:

Commercial and
commetrcial Residential

real estate real estate Individual Total

For the year ended December 31, 2020:

Balance at beginning of year  § 88,427,000 23,430,000 21,092,000 132,949,000
Provision for loan losses 17,222,000 1,771,000 8,160,000 27,153,000
Loans charged off (6,251,000) (838,000) (9,494,000 (16,583,000)
Recoveries on loans

previously charged off 2,456,000 797,000 3,685,000 6,938,000
Balance at end of year 5 101,854,000 25,160,000 23,443,000 150,457,000
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Commercial and

commercial Residential

real estate veal estate Individual Total
For the year ended December 31, 2019;
Balance at beginning of year  § 85,757,000 22,089,000 20,199,000 128,045,000
Pravision for loan losses 5,246,000 1,058,000 7,721,000 14,025,000
Loans charged off (4,787,000) (666,000) {10,612,000) (16,065,000)
Recoveries on loans

previously charged off 2,211,000 949,000 3,784,000 6,944,000

Balance at end of year b 88,427,000 23,430,000 21,092,000 132,949,000

The following table provides the balance in the allowance for loan losses at December 31, 2020 and 2019,
and the related loan balance by impairment methodology. Loans evaluated under ASC 310-10-35,
Receivable—Overall-Subsegquent Measurement, include loans on nonacerual status, which are individually
evaluated for impairment, troubled debt restructurings, and other impaired loans deemed to have similar risk
characteristics. All other loans are collectively evaluated for impairment under ASC 450-20, Loss
Contingencies. Although the allowance for loan losses is comprised of specific and general ailocations, the
entire allowance is available to absorb credit losses.

Commercial and

commetrcial Residential
real estate real estate Individual Total
At December 31, 2020:
Allowance for loan Josses:
Individually evaluated
for impairment b3 694,000 20,000 — 714,000
Collectively evaluated
for impairment 101,160,000 25,140,000 23,443,000 149,743,000
Total $ 101,854,000 25,160,000 23,443,000 150,457,000
Loans outstanding:
Individually evaluated
for impairment $ 23,991,000 2,573,000 — 26,564,000
Collectively evaluated
for impairment 7.892,592,000 1,182,662,000 1,272,634,000 10,347,888,000
Total $ 7.916,583,000 1,185,235,000 1,272,634,000 10,374,452,000
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Coemmercial and

commercial Residential
real estate real estate Individual Total
At December 31, 2019:
Allowance for loan losses:
Individually evaluated
for impairment § 802,000 149,000 — 951,000
Collectively evaluated
for impairment 87,625,000 23,281,000 21,092,000 131,998,000
Total b3 88,427,000 23,430,000 21,092,000 132,949,000
Loans outstanding:
Individually evaluated
for impairment b 29,462,000 6,223,000 — 35,685,000
Collectively evaluated
for impairment 7,063,677,000 1,109,519,000 1,266,212,000 9,439,408,000
Total $  7,093,139,000 1,115,742,000 1,266,212,000 9,475,093,000
The following table presents information on impaired loans at December 31:
2020 2019
Impaired loans with a specific allowance provided
Commercial and commercial real estate b 9,524,000 7,333,000
Residential real estate 1,015,000 1,493,000
Individual — —
10,539,000 8,826,000
Impaired loans with no specific allowance provided
Commercial and commercial real estate 25,450,000 33,863,000
Residential real estate 1,858,000 7,917,000
Individuai — —
27,308,000 41,780,000
Total impaired loans 3 37,847,000 50,606,000
Allowance related to impaived loans
Commercial and commercial real estate ¥ 694,000 202,000
Residential real estate 20,000 149,000
Individual — —
Total allowance related to impaired loans $ 714,000 951,000
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Total average impaired loans during 2020 and 2019 are shown in the table below.

2020 2019
Restructured Restructured
and still and still
Nonaccrnal aceruing Total Nanacerual accruing Total
Average Impaired Loans:
Commercial and
commercial real estate 3 25,100,500 7,922,000 33,022,500 23,515,000 11,803,000 35,318,000
Residential real estate 10,717,000 4,344,500 15,061,500 12,856,000 6,105,000 18,961,000
Individual 3,889,500 45,000 3,938,500 3,503,000 51,000 3,554,000
Total § 39,707,000 12,315,300 52,022,500 39,874,000 17,959,000 57,833,000
Age Analysis of Past Due and Nonaccrual Loans
Current or 90 Days
less than past due
30 days 30— 89 Days and still
past due past due accruing Nonaccrual Total
At December 31, 2020:
Commercial and
commercial real estate $ 7,889,808,000 10,075,000 342,000 16,338,000 7.916,583,000
Residential real estate 1,170,447,000 6,619,000 833,000 7,336,000 1,185,235,000
Individual 1,260,929,000 7,285,000 443,000 3,977,000 1,272,634,000
Totai $ 10,321,184,000 23,979,000 1,618,000 27,671,000 10,374,452,000
Current or 90 Days
less than past due
30 days 30—89 Days and still
past due past due accruing Nonaccrual Total
At December 31, 2019:
Commercial and
commercialreal estate  §  7,047,642,000 11,626,000 29,000 33,843,000 7,093,140,000
Residential real estate 1,089,695,000 11,384,000 565,000 14,098,000 1,115,742,000
Individual 1,252,798,000 9,154,000 457,000 3,802,000 1,266,211,000
Total $  9,390,135,000 32,164,000 1,051,000 51,743,000 9,475,093,000

The following table provides information about the credit quality of the loan portfolio using the Company’s
internal rating system reflecting management’s risk assessment. Loans are placed on watch status when (1)
one or more weaknesses which could jeopardize timely liquidation exists; or (2) the margin or liquidity of
an asset is sufficiently tenuous that adverse trends could result in a collection problem. Loans classified as
substandard are inadequately protected by the current sound worth and paying capacity of the obligor or of
the collateral pledged, if any. Loans so classified may have a well-defined weakness or weaknesses that
jeopardize the repayment of the debt. Such loans are characterized by the distinct possibility that the
Company may sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected. Loans are placed on nonaccrual status
when (1) deterioration in the financial condition of the borrower exists for which payment of full principal
and interest is not expected, or (2) upon which principal or interest has been in default for a period of 90
days or more and the asset is not both well secured and in the process of collection.
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Commercial and

commercial Residential
real estate real estate Individual Total
At December 31, 2020:
Watch $ 119,329,000 13,618,000 652,000 133,599,000
Substandard 69,152,000 11,706,000 2,439,000 83,297,000
Nonaccrual 16,358,000 7,336,000 3,977,000 27,671,000
Total $ 204,839,000 32,650,000 7,068,000 244,567,000

Commercial and

cormercial Residential
real estate real estate Individual Total
At December 31, 2019:
Watch $ 91,413,000 10,843,000 395,000 102,651,000
Substandard 79,077,000 12,276,000 2,406,000 93,759,000
Nonaccrual 33,843,000 14,098,000 3,802,000 51,743,000
Total $ 204,333,000 37,217,000 6,603,000 248,153,000

Mortgage Banking Activities

Certain subsidiary banks of the Company originate mortgage loans and sell those loans to the Federal Home
Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMQC), Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA), and other private
investors. Typically, these loans are sold with servicing retained by the subsidiary banks. Loans sold with
servicing retained in 2020 and 2019 aggregated $2,073,882,000 and $751,482,000, respectively. Loans
serviced for investors aggregated $4,329,148,000 and $3,544,243,000 at December 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively. Included in mortgage banking revenues in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income for 2020 and 2019 are gains on the sale of mortgage loans totaling $93,686,000 and $25,350,000, as
well as gains on interest rate lock commitments (JRLC) hedge of $9,462,000 and $0, respectively, for
additional detail on this item see note 19. Servicing fees recorded by the banks, which are also recorded in
mortgage banking revenues and recorded when collected, aggregated $9,439,000 and $8,567,000 in 2020
and 2019, respectively.

Included in gain on sales of mortgage loans during 2020 and 2019 are capitalized mortgage servicing rights
aggregating $19,644,000 and $6,605,000, respectively.

The following assumptions were used in determining the fair value of the capitalized mortgage servicing
rights:

2020 2019
Discount Rate 10.20% 10.01%
Prepayment Speed 16.38% 14.23%
Delinquency Rate 0.65% 0.70%
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A summary of the mortgage servicing rights is as follows:

2020 2019
Balance at beginning of year $20,474,000 $20,950,000
Capitalized mortgage servicing rights 19,644,000 6,605,000
Amortization (12,698,000) (6,996,000)
Less valuation allowance (267,000) (85,000)
Balance at end of year $27,153,000 $20,474,000

The valuation allowance at December 31, 2020 and 2019 was $267,000 and $85,000 respectively.

The following table shows the estimated future amortization expense based on existing asset balances and
the interest rate environment as of December 31, 2020, The Company’s actual amartization expense in any
given period may be different from the estimated amounts depending upon the addition of new intangible
assets, changes in mortgage interest rates, prepayment speeds, and other market conditions.

Year:
2021 3 5,363,000
2022 4,136,000
2023 3,356,000
2024 2,788,000
Thereafter 11,510,000

(6) Land, Buildings, and Equipment
A summary of land, buildings, and equipment at December 31, 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

2020 2019
Land $ 61,192,000 62,428,000
Buildings and improvements 269,663,000 267,506,000
Equipment 79,182,000 83,637,000
Right to use assets, net of amortization 34,159,000 34,696,000
444,196,000 448267000
Less accumulated depreciation 224,266,000 220,336,000

$ 219,930,000 227,931,000

The following table shows the estimated future depreciation expense based on existing asset balances as of
December 31, 2020.

Year:
2021 $ 15,592,000
2022 13,079,000
2023 10,782,000
2024 §,203,600
2025 8,026,000
Thereafter 67,896,000
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Depreciation of buildings and equipment charged to operating expense was approximately $16,765,000 and
$15,426,000 in 2020 and 2019, respectively, and is included in net occupancy and equipment expense on the
consolidated statements of income.

() Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill and core deposit intangible assets are summarized in the following table:

2020 201%
Gross Gross
carrying Accumulated Net carrying  Accumulated Net
amount amonrtization amount amount amortization amoeunt

Amottizable intangble assets:
Core deposit intangible assets  § 26,335,000 (8073000) 18,262,000 26311000 (4366000) 21,945,000
Trust customer intangible asset 6,100,000 (3.274,000) 2,826,000 6100000  (2923,000) 3,177,600
Goodwill 348,237,000 — 348237000 348,907,000 —  348507,000

Aggregate amartization expense on core deposit and other intangible assets for the years ended December 31,
2020 and 2019 was $4,057,000 and $1,898,000, respectively. The following table shows the estimated future
amortization expense for the next five years based on existing asset balances and the interest rate
environment as of December 31, 2020. The Company’s actual amortization expense in any given period may
be different from the estimated amounts depending upon the addition of new intangible assets and other
market conditions.

Year X
2021 $ 3,996,000

2022 3,531,000

2023 3,520,000

2024 3,388,000

2025 3,227,000
Thereafier 3,426,000

(8) Income Taxes

The components of income tax expense on operations for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are

as follows:
2020 2019
Current income tax expense:
Federal 3 60,816,000 47,179,000
State 9,068,000 10,912,000
Total current income tax expense 69,884,000 58,091,000
Deferred income tax expense:
Federal 133,000 4,918,000
State (2,000} (324,000)
Total deferred income tax expense 131,000 4,594,000
Total income tax expense on operations $ 70,015,000 62,685,000
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The reasons for the difference between the effective tax rates of 22.5% and 23.0% for 2020 and 2019,
respectively, and the current federal statutory income tax rate of 21%, are as follows:

2020 2019
Amount Percent Amount Percent

Income tax expense at federal

statutory rate $ 65,266,000 21,0 § 57,189,000 21.0
Increase (reduction) in incorne

taxes resulting from:

Tax-exempt interest (2,268,000) (0.7 {2,906,000) (1.1}
Dividend exclusion {57,000 (0.0) (39,000) 0.0
State income taxes, net

of federal income tax 7,162,000 23 8,364,000 3.0
Nondeductible expenses 258,000 0.1 439,000 0.2

Federal tax credits, net of
low income housing tax

credit partnership
amortization (460,000) (0.2) {385,000) (0.1
Other, net 114,000 0.0 23,000 0.0

$ 70,015,000 225 & 62,685,000 23.0

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are presented below:

2620 2019
Deferred tax assets:
Loans, principally due to allowance for loan losses  § 36,419,000 32,242,000
Accrued expenses 28,010,000 24,524,000
Buildings and equipment 1,412,000 1,212,000
Defined beneftt plan 23,202,000 20,026,000
Total gross deferred tax assets 89,043,000 78,004,000
Deferred tax liabilities:
Prepaid pension expense 7,538,000 7,787,000
Mortgage servicing rights 6,480,000 4,886,000
Goodwill 28,128,000 26,213,000
Lease financing 35,378,000 33,019,000
Unrealized gain on equity securities 1,229,000 1,123,000
Urnrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 7,347,000 1,498,000
QOther 4,909,000 2,639,000
Total gross deferred tax liabilities 91,009,000 77,165,000
Net deferred taxes $ (1,966,000) 839,000

The Company has not recorded a valuation allowance related to the net deferred tax assets at December 31,
2020 or 2019 due to historical and expected future earnings of the bank subsidiaries.

On June I, 2018, Senate Bill No. 884 (“S.B. §84”) was signed into Missouri state law. S.B. 8§84 reduced the
Missouri corporate income tax rate from 6.25% to 4.00%, effective January 1, 2020,

The Company classifies interest and penalties on uncertain tax benefits as income tax expense. In the normal
course of business, the Company provides for uncertain tax positions and the related interest and penalties
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and adjusts its unrecognized tax benefits and related interest and penalties accordingly. Unrecognized tax
venefits decreased by $400,000 during 2020, totaling $2.5 million at December 3 1, 2020.

The Company’s U.S. federal and state income tax returns for years prior to 2016 are no longer subject to
examination by the tax authorities.

Deposits

Maturities of time deposits are as follows at December 31, 2020:

Year

2021 $1,167,602,000

2022 206,094,600

2023 70,980,000

2024 28,165,000

2025 17,528,000
Thereafter 410,000
$1,490,779,000

Time deposits include certificates of deposit of $250,000 and over, totaling approximately $316,828,000 and
$308,240,000 at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Interest expense on such deposits amounted to
$3,105,000 and $5,702,000 in 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Securities Sold under Agreements to Repurchase

The Company’s obligation to repurchase securities sold at December3l, 2020 and 2019 totaled
$1,050,430,000 and $856,958,000, respectively. These are short-term borrowings that generally have one
day maturities. Information concerning securities sold under agreements to repurchase during the year is as
follows:

2020 2019
Average monthly balance during the year $ 1,002,524,000 825,270,000
Maximum month-end balance during the year 1,090,969,036 874,338,000
Average interest rate during the year 0.35% 1.27%

Assets and liabilities relating to securities purchased under agreements to resell (resale agreements) and
securities sold under agreements to repurchase (repurchase agreements) are presented gross in the
consolidated balance sheet and the Company is not party to any offsetting arrangements associated with
these agreements. Resale and repurchase agreements to purchase/sell securities are subject to an obligation
to resell/repurchase the same or similar securities and are accounted for as collateralized financing
transactions, not as sales and purchases of the securities portfolio. The securities collateral accepted or
pledged in resale and repurchase agreements with other financial institutions also may be sold or re-pledged
by the secured party, but is usually delivered to and held by third party trustees.

The table below shows the remaining contractual maturities of repurchase agreements outstanding at
December 31, 2020, in addition to the various types of marketable securities that have been pledged as
collateral for these borrowings.
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Remaining Contractual Maturity of the Agreements

Overnight and Greater than
continuous Up to 90 days 90 days Total
December 31, 2020
Repurchase agreements, secured by:
U.S. government and federaf
agency obligations ] 159,918,000 -_— 39,539,000 199,457,000
Gavernment-sponsored enterptise
obligations 22,273,000 — 58,889,000 81,162,000
Mortgage-backed securities 285,774,000 — 515,715,000 801,489,000
Other — — — —
Total Repurchase agreements,
gross amount recognized 3 467,965,000 § — 3 614,143,000 1,082,108,000

{11) Trust Preferred Securities and Other Borrowed Funds

The Company, with the acquisition of Platte County Bancshares, Inc. on December 2, 2019, acquired $6.7
million of Trust preferred security debt instruments consisting of 1) $3,000,000 of Trust preferred securities
issued on July 31, 2001 with a 30 year maturity and a floating rate of 3.58% above three month LIBOR set
quarterly. The rate at December 31, 2019 was 5.51%. 2) $3,500,000 of Trust preferred securities issued on
Decernber 30, 2003 with a 30 year maturity and a floating rate of 2.85% above three month LIBOR set
quarterly. The rate at December 31, 2019 was 4.99%. 3) $202,000 of Trust preferred securities from the
proceeds of the sale of the securities that were loaned to Platte County Bancshares, Inc. under subordinated
debentures issued to the Trust pursuant to an indenture with payment terms identical to the preferred
securities.

The Company’s Trust preferred securities were retired in the first quarter of 2020,

Borrowed funds at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

2020 2019
Notes payable to the FHLB of Topeka at a .37% fixed rate
of interest, secured by certain qualifying mortgage
loans of the Company with a maturity in 2022 S 5,000,000 —

(12) Employee Benefit Plans
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The Company has a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan, the Central Bancompany, Inc. Retirement
Plan (the Plan), available to qualified employees, as defined under the Plan. On November 14, 2013, the
Company’s Board of Directors approved an amendment to freeze the Plan, effective December 31, 2018.
After December 31, 2018, participants in the Plan stopped accruing additional benefits for future service or
compensation. Participants retained benefits accumulated as of December 31, 2018 in accordance with the
terms of the Plan.

The Company’s funding policy is to contribute funds to an account maintained by the pension plan trustee,
as necessary, to provide for the normal cost and amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability.



Assets held in the Plan are primarily government and government agency obligations, common stock,
corporate bonds, mutual funds, and money market accounts. Certain executives also participate in a
supplemental pension pian (the CERP) that the Company funds only as retirement benefits are disbursed.
The CERP carries no segregated assets.

Benefit obligations of the CERP are shown in the table immediately below. In all other tables presented, the
pension plan and the CERP are presented on a combined basis, even though the CERP is unfunded.

2020 2019
Projected benefit obligation $ 23,584,000 23,085,000
Accumulated benefit obligation 21,423,000 22,332,000

The following items are components of net pension cost for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019;

2020 2019
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation $ 11,195,000 12,591,000
Expected return on plan assets (11,547,000) (11,768,000)
Amortization of net foss 2,160,000 920,000
Net periodic pension cost $ 1,808,000 1,752,000

The following table sets forth the pension plans® funded status, using valuation dates of December 31, 2020
and 2019:

2020 2019

Change in projected benefit obligation:

Projected benefit obligation at prior valuation date §  325986,000 287,007,000

Interest cost 11,194,000 12,591,000

Benefits paid (16,471,000) (15,833,000)

Actuarial {gain) loss 34,888,000 42.221,000

Projected benefit obligation at valuation date 355,597,000 325,986,000
Change it plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 252,200,000 224,264,000

Actual return an plan assets 30,952,000 42,747,000

Employer contributions 1,680,600 1,022,000

Benefits paid {16,471,000) {15,833,000)

Fair value of plan assets at end of year 268,361,000 252,200,000

Funded status and net amount recognized at
December 31 $  (87,236,000) (73,786,000)
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Amounts recognized on the December 31 balance sheet are as follows:

2020 2019
Prepaid pension asset $ 31,511,000 32,548,000
Accrued benefit Lability (118,747,000) (106,334,000)
Net amount recognized at December 31 $  (87,236,000) (73,786,000)

Amounts not yet reflected in net periodic benefit cost and included in accumulated other comprehensive loss,
on a pretax basis, at December 31, 2020 are as follows:

Prior service agset 3 —

Accumulated loss (97,324,000)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, pretax (97,324,000)

Cumulative employer contributions in excess of net periodic benefit cost 10,088,000

Net amount recognized on the December 31, 2020 balance sheet $  (87,236,000)

The following weighted average assurnptions have been used at December 31, 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019
Determination of benefit obligation at year-end:
Discount rate 2.80% 3.45%
Determination of net periodic benefit cost for the year ended:
Discount rate 3.45% 4.45%
Expected long-term rate of return on Plan assets 5.00 5.00

The expected return on pension plan assets is developed using inflation expectations and risk factors to arrive
at a long-term nominal expected return for each asset class. The nominal expected return for each asset class
is then weighted based on the target agset allocation to develop the expected long-term rate of return on plan
assets.

The following table shows the Company’s employer contributions and benefits paid for the years ended
December 31, 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019
Employer contributions $ 1,680,000 1,022,000
Benefits paid 16,471,000 15,833,000



The weighted average asset allocations as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, by asset category, are as follows:

Plan assets as of December 31,

2020 2019
Equity securities 76% 73%
Fixed income 23% 25%
Cash and equivalents 1% 2%
Total 100% 100%

The Plan’s Investment Policy focuses on efficient allocation of capital among various asset classes to create
a diversified portfolio in order to achieve the Plan’s investment return objective of 5.0%. In making capital
allocation decisions, the Trustee considers the expected return, standard deviation, and correlation of returns
of various asset classes, as well as the current term structure of interest rates and current market conditions.
In order to generate returns sufficient to meet actuarial estimates of the Plan’s future obligations, the majority
of the Plan’s assets are typically invested in asset classes with higher expected rates of return, specifically
equity securities. In order to limit risk, a lesser allocation is made to fixed income securities. Within strict
policy ranges, the Trustee has discretion to increase or decrease the equity and fixed income allocations in
response to changing market conditions. The Plan allocates a small percentage to real assets in the form of
precious metals trusts.

The following benefit payments are expected to be paid:

2021 $ 14,691,000
2022 15,153,000
2023 15,875,000
2024 16,097,000
2025 16,545,000
2026 — 2030 86,352,000

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value in the Pian:

Cash egquivalents — Money market funds are valued at the closing price reported on the active market on
which the funds are traded.

U.S. government and agency obligations - Federal agencies are priced utilizing industry-standard models
that consider various assumptions, including time value, yield curves, volatility factors, prepayment speeds,
default rates, loss severity, current market, and contractual prices for the underlying financial instruments,
as well as other relevant economic measures. Substantially all of these assumptions are observable in the
marketplace, can be derived from observable data, or are supported by observable levels at which
transactions are executed in the marketplace. Municipal and corporate securities are valued using a type of
mafrix, or grid, pricing in which securities are benchmarked against the treasury rate based on credit rating.
These model and matrix measurements are classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

Mutual funds and common stocks — The fair value of these investments is based on quoted market prices
from national securities exchanges.
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The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the pension plan’s assets at fair vaiue
as of December 31, 2020:

Fair value measurements at report date using

Quoted prices
in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical unobservable unohservable
December 31, assets inputs inputs
2020 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Cash equivalents § 2,732,000 2,732,000 — —
U.S. government and agency
obligations — — — —
Common stocks 72,716,000 72,716,000 — —
Mutual funds - fixed income 59,903,000 59,903,000
Mutual funds 133,010,000 133,010,000 — —
Total $ 268,361,000 268,361,000 — —

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the pension plan’s assets at fair value
as of December 31, 2019:

Fair value measurements at report date using

Quoted prices
in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical unobservable  unobservable
December 31, assets inputs inputs
2019 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Cash equivalents $  7.457,000 7,457,000 — —
U.S. government and agency
obligations 13,679,000 — 13,679,000 —
Common stocks 60,102,000 60,102,300 — —
Mutual funds - fixed income 46,367,000 46,367,000
Mutuai funds 124,595,000 124,595,000 — —
Total $ 252,200,000 238,521,000 13,679,000 —

The Company has established a Voluntary Employees Beneficiary Association Trust (VEBA) to fund an
employee benefit plan covering medical and dental benefits. For the years ended December 31, 2020 and
2019, the Company contributed $16,590,000 and $15,183,000, respectively, to the VEBA,

The Company has established an employee savings plan under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code
(the Code). Under this plan, employees are allowed to contribute a maximum of 75% of their base pay,
subject to certain IRS limitations. The Company’s matching contribution is equal to one-half of the
employee’s contribution up to a maximum of 6% of the employee’s base pay. For the years ended
December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company contributed $4,020,000 and $3,768,000, respectively, to the
401(k) plan.



(13)

In 2019, with the freezing of the defined benefit pension plan effective December 31, 2018, the Company
added to the defined contribution plan two additional benefits. Effective January 1, 2019, a Non-Elective
Contribution (NEC) of 4% was given to all employees, except employees who are drawing a pension. NEC
eligibility has an immediate entty date for employees age 18 or older. For the years ended December 31,
2020 and 2019, the Company contributed $6,909,000 and $6,214,000, respectively, to the 401(k) plan related
to this benefit.

Also, in effect as of January 1, 2019, a Supplemental NEC of an additional 4% was given to employees who
have been active ten plus years as of January 1, 2019 and not drawing a pension. This contribution will be
given for five years, For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company expensed $2,694,000
and $2,600,000, respectively, related to the 4% contribution for ten year plus employees.

The Company has established a deferred compensation plan. The liability for the plan, aggregating
$39,028,000 and $38,421,000 at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, is recorded in other liabilities
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Total expense under these arrangements included in
salaries and employee benefits was $5,602,000 and $3,695,000 for the years ended December 31, 2020 and
2019, respectively.

Capital Adequacy

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the banks to maintain
minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below on a consolidated basis, amounts in thousands) of
total and Tier 1 capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets, and of Tier 1 capital to average
assets. At December 31, 2020, the Company met all capital requirements to which it is subject, and the
Bank’s capital position exceeded the regulatory definition of well-capitalized.

The Basel Il minimum required ratios for well-capitalized banks (under prompt corrective action
provisions) are 6.5% for Tier I common capital, 8.0% for Tier I capital, 10.0% for Total capital and 5.0%
for the leverage ratio.
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A summary of the Company’s and its significant subsidiaries’ (greater than $1.0 billion in assets) capital
ratios at December 31, 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

(in 000's) Minimum capital adequacy Well-capitalized
Actual requirement requirement
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2020:
Total risk-based capital (to
risk-veighted agsels):
Company 3 2,178,246 19.73% 3 843,086 8.00% § — —%
Central Bank of 5. Louis 229,344 12,47 147,194 8.00 183,999 10.00
Central 'I' nust Bank 1585 1681 129,179 3.00 161,474 10,00
Central Bank of Boone County 214,616 14.04 122,310 800 152,888 10.00
Central Bank of the Midwest 128,525 14.34 183,232 8.00 229,040 10.00
Central Bank of the Uzarks 163,933 13.56 Y6,716 8.00 120,895 10,00
Central Bank of Lake of the Ozarks 87,314 17,24 40,510 8.0 50,437 1008
Tier 1 capital (10 risk-weighted
assels):
Company 2,040,111 13.48 652,315 6,00 — —
Central Bank of 8. Louis 206,340 11.21 110,399 6.00 147,199 8.00
Central ‘U'rust Bank 234,208 1431 Yb,884 6,00 129,179 8.00
Central Bank of Boone County 195,496 12,79 91,733 6.00 122,310 E00
Central Bank of the Midwest 302,309 13.22 137,424 4.0t 143,232 $.00
Central Bank of the Ozarks 148,783 12,3t 72,537 $.00 496,716 8.00
Central Bank of Lake of the Ozarks 80,952 15.99 10,382 400 40,5410 $.00

Ter 1 common equity capital
(to risk-weighted assets):

Company 2,040,111 18.4% 495,736 4,50 — -
Central Bank ot 8. Lows 206,340 11.21 §2,800 4,50 119,599 6.50
Centrat Trust Bank 239,208 14.81 12,663 .50 104,954 6.50
Central Bank of Boone County 196,496 1279 68,800 4,50 49,377 6.50
Central Bank ol the Midwest 302,809 13.22 103,068 4.50 143,876 6.50
Central Bank of the Uzarks 148,783 1231 54,403 4.50 78,582 5.50
Central Bank of Lake of the Uzarks 80,952 1599 227¢7 4,50 32914 0.50
Tier 1 capital (to average assets);
Company 2,040,111 11,73 695,435 400 — —
Central Bank of $t. Lows 206,340 911 90,527 4.00 113,158 5.00
Central Trust Bank 239,208 111 134,554 4.00 163,199 5.00
Central Bank of Boone County 195,496 7.84 99,781 4,00 124,726 3.00
Ceniral Bank ol the Midwest 302,804 478 137,896 440 172,370 5.00
Central Bank of the Ozarks 148,783 3.75 68,025 4.00 §5,031 5.00

Central Bank of L.ake of the Ozarks 50,952 8.04 40,256 400 50,320 3.00



{in }00's) Minimum capital adequaey Well-capitalized

Actual requirement requirentent
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2019
‘Total nsk-based capital {to
tisk-weighted assefs):
Company H 1,976,634 11.98% 3 879,384 s0% § - )
Central Bank ot §t. Louis 223,106 12,60 141 655 3.0¢ 177,069 10,00
Central {'rust Bank 214,42) 13.87 123,712 500 154,641 10.00
Central Sank of Boone County 194,094 13.20 117,625 .00 147,032 10.00
Central Bank of the Midwest 222,095 11.52 154,218 .00 192,762 16,00
Ceatral Bank of the (zarks 147,002 12,64 93,071 B.00 156,339 10,08
Central Bank of Lake of he Ozarks 75,291 14.42 41,776 3.00 52,210 1040
Tier | capital (to nsk-weighted
assels):
Company 1,842,162 16.76 659,538 6.0 — —
Central Bank of 8, Louis 200,563 11.35 106,241 6.00 141,655 800
Central l'rust Bank 197,341 12.7% Y2,784 6.00 123,712 500
Central Bank of Baone County 175,719 11.95 83,21y 4.00 117,625 §.00
Central Bank of the Midwest 202,933 10.33 115,657 640 154,210 $.00
Central Bank of the Uzarks 132,441 11,33 69,804 6,06 93,071 5.00
Central Bank of Lake of the Ozarks 68,741 13.16 31,332 6.00 41,774 800
‘T1er 1 common equity capital
{to risk-weighted assets):
Conpany 1,835,460 16.70 494,657 450 — -
Central Bank of &, Lous 200,963 1135 79,681 4.50 115,095 6.50
Central Trust Bank 197,341 12.76 64,588 4.50 100,516 6.50
Central Bank of Boone County 175,11y 11.95 66,164 4.5¢ 95,571 &350
Central Bank of the Midwest 202,939 10.53 £6,743 4,50 125,293 6,50
Central Bank of the Uzarks 132,441 1138 52,353 4.50 25,621 .50
Central Bank of Lake of the Qzarks 48,741 13.15 23,494 4,50 33,943 5.50
‘lier 1 capuial (1o average assels). : :
Cotnpany 1,542,162 13.13 561,174 400 — —
Central Bank of 3, Lows 140,963 1G.62 75,704 4.0 494,630 500
{Central 1 rust Bank 197,341 143 106,148 4.00 132,736 5.00
Central Bank ot Boone County 175,719 446 §3,0M0 4.00 103,837 5.00
Central Bank of the Midwest 202,939 11.27 2,00 4,00 50,013 5,00
Central Bank of the Ozarks 132,441 4.51 55,714 4.00 69,642 5.00
Central Bank of Lake of the Ozarks 63,744 13.16 31,270 400 39,087 5.00

{(14) Leasing

Effective for 2019, the Company adopted ASU 2016-02, which required premises and equipment leased to
be recaorded as right to use assets with a corresponding lease liability. Leases are recorded at market values
at the inception of the lease and may contain escalations based on indexes tied to the consumer price index
or other factors for an increase in the amount of the lease payment. Escalators are included in valuing of
right to use assets under certain conditions. Lease value cash flows are discounted to present value in
recording the right to use asset based on Federal Home Loan Bank advance rates. The Company has made
the election not to separate lease and non-lease components for existing real estate leases when determining
consideration within the lease contract. All of the Company’s lease agreements are classified as operating
leases under ASC 842, Application of the new standard resulted in an $180,000 charge to the opening
balance of undivided profits net of tax as of January 1, 2019, due to the Company adopting the transition
using the effective date as the date of initial application allowed by the new standard.

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company’s assets included right to use assets that had a weighted
average lease term remaining of 27.6 years and 28.2 years and a weighted average discount rate of 3.7% and
3.8%, respectively. Operating lease cost recorded in occupancy and equipment expense amounted to
$3,370,000 and $3,191,000 in 2020 and 2019, respectively. Operating cash flows from operating leases were
$3,171,000 and $2,974,000 in 2020 and 2019, respectively. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the right to
use assets, reported within premises and equipment, net, totaled $34,159,000 and $34,696,000, respectively.

Strong roots. Endless possibilities. 60



(3)

(16)

61

The lease liability, reported within other liabilities, recognized on the Company’s financial statements as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019 totaled $34,837,000 and $35,173,000, respectively.

As of December 31, 2020, undiscounted operating lease liabilities are scheduled to mature as foilows:

Year
2021 $3,114,403
2022 2,950,873
2023 2,832,519
2024 2,737,105
2025 2,301,904
Thereafter 43,867,215

Operating expense and short-term lease costs totaled $3,672,000 and $3,600,000 in 2020 and 2019,
respectively. Amortization of right to use assets charged to operating expense was approximately $2,090,000
and $1,860,000 in 2020 and 2019, respectively, and is included in net occupancy and equipment expense on
the consolidated statements of income.

Litigation

The Company and its subsidiaries are defendants in various claims, legal actions, and complaints arising in
the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of management, after consultation with legal counsel, all such
matters are adequately covered by insurance or reserves recorded by management or are of such nature that
the unfavorable disposition of any, or ali, such matters would not have a material adverse effect on the
financial position of the Company.

Fair Value Disclosures
Fair Value Hierarchy

The Company uses fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain financial and
nonfinancial assets and liabilities and to determine fair value disclosures. Various financial instruments such
as available-for-sale and trading securities are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis. Additionally, from
time to time, the Company may be required to record at fair value other assets and liabilities on a
nonrecurring basis, such as loans, loans held for sale, mortgage servicing rights, and certain other investment
securities. These nonrecurring fair value adjustments typically involve lower of cost or market accounting,
or write-downs of individual assets.

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Depending on the nature of the
asset or liability, the Company uses various valuation techniques and assumptions when estimating fair
value, which are in accordance with ASC 820. ASC 820 establishes a three-level valuation hierarchy for
disclosure of fair value measurements. The valuation hierarchy is based upon the transparency of inputs to
the valuation of an asset or liability as of the measurement date. The three levels are defined as follows:

. Level 1— inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets
or liabilities in active markets.

. Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and
liabilities in active markets, and inputs that are observable for the assets or liabilities, either
directly or indirectly {such as interest rates, yield curves, and prepayment speeds).



. Level 3 —inputs to the valuation methodology are uncbservable and significant to the fair value.
These may be internally developed, using the Company’s best information and assumptions that
a market participant would consider.

When determining the fair value measurements for assets and liabilities required or permitted to be
recorded or disclosed at fair value, the Company considers the principal or most advantageous market in
which it would transact and considers assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
agset or liability. When possible, the Company looks to active and observable markets to price identical
agsets or liabilities. When identical assets and liabilities are not traded in active markets, the Company
looks to market observable data for similar assets and liabilities.
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Valuation Methods for Instruments Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

The following table presents assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis (including
items that are required to be measured at fair value} at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019.

Fair value measurements at report date using

Quoted prices
in active Significant
markets for other Significant
Fair Value identical observable unobservable
December 31, assets inputs inputs
2020 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets:
Loans held forsale L 137,695,000 137,695,000 — —
Available-for-sale investment securities:
Money market 2,784,000 2,784,000 — —
U.8. treasuries 866,472,000 866,472,000 — —
Agencies 1,639,647,000 — 1,639,647,000 —
Fixed rate MBS pools 894,430,000 — 894,430,000 —
Floating rate and hybrid ARM
MBS pools _ 163,605,000 — 163,605,000 ) —
SBA pools ‘ 298,666,000 — 298,666,000 —
Fixed rate CMOs 707,588,000 - 707,588,000 —
Floating rate CMOs 516,871,000 — 516,871,000 —_
Tax-exempt municipal bonds 88,606,000 — 88,606,000 —
Taxable municipal bonds 16,124,000 — 16,124,000 —
Corporates 131,008,000 — 131,008,000 —
Equity investments 58,368,000 4,500,000 53,868,000 —
Trading securities:
Taeexempt municipal bonds 216,000 — 216,000 —
Derivatives * 29,680,000 —_ 29,680,000 —
Total assets $  5,551,760,000 1,011,451,000 4,540,309,000 —
Liabilities:
Derivatives * $ 24,045,000 — 24,045,000 —
Total liabilities § 24,043,000 — 24,045,000 —

* The fair value of each class of derivative is shown in Note 19,
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Fair value measurements at report date using

Quoted prices
in active Significant
markets for other Significant
Fair Value identical observable unobservable
December 31, assets inputs inputs
2019 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets:
Availablefor-sale investment securities:
Meney market $ 1,881.000 1,881,000 — —
U.S, treasuries 357,623,000 357,623,000 —_— —
Agencies 819,104,000 — 819,104,000 —_
Fixed rate MBS pools 418,933,000 —— 418,933,000 —
Floating rate and hybrid ARM
MBS pools 265,784,000 — 265,784,000 —
SBA pools 250,083,000 — 290,083,000 —
Fped rate CMOs 448,715,000 — 448,715,000 —
Floating rate CMOCs 315,234,000 — 315,234,000 —
Tax-exempt municipal bonds 126,850,000 — 126,850,000 —
Taxable municipal bonds 53,757,000 — 53,757,000 —
Corporates 422,956,000 — 422 956,000 e
Equity investments 55,322,000 4,957,000 50,365,000 —
Trading securities:
Taxexempt municipal bonds 108,000 — 108,000 —
Total $  3,576,350,000 364,461,000 3,211,889,000 —

Following is a description of the Company’s valuation methodologies used for instruments measured at fair
value on a recurring basis:

Available-for-Sale Investment Securities

Available-for-sale securities are accounted for in accordance with ASC 320, with changes in fair value
recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). This portfolio comprises the majority of the
assets the Company records at fair value. Most of the portfolio, which includes federal agency,
mortgage-backed, and asset-backed securities, are priced utilizing industry-standard models that consider
various assumptions, including time value, yield curves, volatility factors, prepayment speeds, default rates,
loss severity, current market and contractual prices for the underlying financial instruments, as well as other
relevant economic measures. Substantially all of these assumptions are observable in the marketplace, can
be derived from observable data, or are supported by observable levels at which transactions are executed in
the marketplace.

Municipal and corporate securities are valued using a type of matrix, or grid pricing in which securities are
benchmarked against the treasury rate based on credit rating. These model and matrix measurements are
classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. Where quoted prices are available in an active matket, the
measurements are classified as Level 1. Most of the Level 1 measurements apply to exchange-traded
equities.
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The estimated fair value of the Company’s equity securities is based on bid prices published in financial
newspapers or bid quotations received from security dealers. Stocks which trade infrequently are classified
as Level 2.

Trading Securities

The majority of the securities in the Company’s trading portfolios are priced by averaging several broker
quotes for identical instruments, and are ¢lassified as Leve] 2 measurements.

Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale are carried at fair value. The portfolio consists primarily of residential real estate loans
that are originated with the intent to sell. The Company contracts to sell the loans to the FHLMC, FNMA,
and other private investors. Fair value measurements on these loans held for sale are based on quoted market
prices for similar loans in the secondary market and are classified as Level 2. No write-down was necessary
at December 31, 2020 and 2019,

Derivatives

The Company’s derivative instruments include interest rate swaps, interest rate lock commitments (IRLC)
and TBA contracts for hedging our mortgage loan pipeline. Valuations for interest rate swaps are derived
from a proprietary model whose significant inputs are readily observable market parameters, primarily yield
curves used to calculate current exposure. The results of the model are constantly validated through
comparison to active trading in the marketplace. The fair value measurements of interest rate swaps and
floors are classified as Level 2 due to the observable nature of the significant inputs utilized. Derivatives
relating to residential mortgage loan sale activity include commitments to originate mortgage loans held for
sale, forward loan sale contracts, and forward commitments to sell TBA securities, The fair values of loan
commitments and sale contracts are estimated using quoted market prices for loans similar to the underlying
loans in these instruments. The valuations of loan commitments are further adjusted to include embedded
servicing value and the probability of funding. These assumptions are considered Level 2 inputs and are
significant to the loan commitment valuation; accordingly, the measurement of loan commitments is
classified as Level 2. The fair value measurement of TBA contracts is based on security prices published on
trading platforms and is classified as Level 2.

Valuation Methods for Instruments Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis

Following is a description of the Company’s valuation methodologies used for other financial instruments
measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis:

Mortgage Servicing Rights

The Company initially measures its mortgage servicing rights at fair value, and amortizes them over the
period of estimated net servicing income. They are periodically assessed for impairment based on fair value
at the reporting date. Mortgage servicing rights do not trade in an active market with readily observable
prices. Accordingly, the fair value is estimated based on a valuation model, which calculates the present
value of estimated futture net servicing income. The model incorporates assumptions that market participants
use in estimating future net servicing income, including estimates of prepayment speeds, market discount
rates, cost to service, float earnings rates, and other ancillary income, including late fees. The fair value
measurements are classified as Level 3. A fair value adjustment of $267,000 was recorded on the mortgage
servicing rights at December 31, 2020.

Collateral Dependent Impaired Loans

While the overall portfolio is not carried at fair value, adjustments are recorded on certain loans to reflect
partial write~-downs that are based on the value of the underlying collateral. In determining the value of real



estate collateral, the Company relies on external appraisals and assessment of property values by its infernal
staff. In the case of non-real estate coliateral, reliance is placed on a variety of sources, including external
estimates of value and judgments based on the experience and expertise of internal specialists.

Because many of these inputs are not observable, the measurements are classified as Level 3. The carrying
value of these impaired loans and the allowance related to these loans was $26.7 million and $.7 million at
December 31, 2020 and $35.7 million and $.9 miilion at December 31, 2019, respectively. Impaired loans
carried at fair value were $26 million at December 31, 2020 and $34.8 million at December 31,2019.

Foreclosed Assels

Foreclosed assets consist of loan collateral, which has been repossessed through foreclosure. This collateral
is comprised of commercial and residential real estate and other non-real estate property. Foreclosed assets
are recorded as held for sale initially at the lower of the loan balance or fair value of the collateral less
estimated selling costs. Subsequent to foreclosure, valuations are updated periodically, and the assets may
be marked down further, reflecting a new cost basis. Fair value measurements may be based upon appraisals,
third-party price opinions, or internally developed pricing methods. These measurements are classified as
Level 3.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of financial instruments held by the Company, in addition
to a discussion of the methods used and assumptions made in computing the estimates, are set forth below.

Cash and Due from Banks, Short-term Interest-Bearing Deposits, Federal Funds Sold and Securities
Purchased Under Agreement to Resell, and Accrued Interest Receivable

The carrying amounts for cash and due from banks, short-term interest-bearing deposits, and federal funds
sold, and securities purchased under agreements to resell, and accrued interest receivable approximate fair
value because they mature in 90 days or less and do not present unanticipated credit concerns.

Time Deposits

The fair value of time deposits is based on the discounted value of cash flows. Discount rates are based on
the Company’s approximate cost of obtaining similar maturity funding in the market. Their fair value
measurement is classified as Level 3.

Investment Securities

The estimated fair value of the Company’s debt and equity securities is based on bid prices published in
financial newspapers or bid quotations received from security dealers. The fair value of certain state and
municipal securities that are not available through market sources is based on quoted market prices of similar
instruments.

Loans

The estimated fair value of the Company’s loan portfolio is based on the segregation of loans by type -
commercial, residential mortgage, and consumer. Each loan category is further segmented into fixed and
adjustable-rate interest categories. In estimating the fair value of each category of [oan, the carrying amount
of the loan is reduced by an allocation of the allowance for loan losses. Such allocation is based on
management’s loan classification system, which is designed to measure the credit risk inherent in each
classification category.

The estimated fair value for variable rate Joans is the carrying value of such loans, reduced by an allocation
of the allowance for loan losses based on management’s loan classification system.
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The estimated fair value of fixed-rate loans is calculated by discounting the scheduled cash flows for each
loan category — commercial, residential real estate, and consumer. The cash flows through maturity for each
category of fixed-rate loans are aggregated for each of the Company’s subsidiary banks. Prepayment
estimates for residential real estate and installment consumer loang are based on estimates for similar
instruments in the secondary market with similar maturity schedules and interest rates. Estimated credit
losses affecting the scheduled cash flows have been reflected as a reduction in the scheduled cash flows in
the discounting model. Discount rates used for each loan category of fixed rate loans represent rates the
Company believes are reflective of what the Company could sell loans for based on market conditions and
the Company’s assessment of credit quality.

Deposits

The fair value of deposits with no stated maturity is equal to the amount payable on demand. Such deposits
include savings and interest and non-interest-bearing demand deposits. The fair value of demand deposits
does not include the benefit that results from the low-cost funding provided by deposit liabilities compared
to the cost of borrowing funds in the market. Because they are payable on demand, they are classified as
Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value of time deposits is based on the discounted value of cash
flows. Discount rates are based on the Company's approximate cost of obtaining similar maturity funding in
the market. Their fair value measurement is classified as Level 3.

Federal Funds Purchased and Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase

The estimated fair value of federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase
approximate their carrying values because of the short-term nature of these borrowings.

Trust Preferred Securities and Accrued Mierest Payable

The estimated fair value of Trust Preferred Securities of the Company is determined by discounting the
contractual cash flows using discount rates for similar instruments currently being offered. The estimated
fair vaine of accrued interest payable approximates the carrying value because of the short term nature of the
liability.



The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments are as follows:

December 31,2020
Carrying Estimated Fair Value
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assels
Cash and due fiom banks

and short-term interest

bearing deposits b 1,813,853,000 1,813,853,000 — —
Interest bearing deposits 28,679,000 — — 28,763,000
Federal funds sold and

securities purchased under

agreements to resell 10,238,000 10,238,000 — —
Investment securities (1)

Available for sale 5,325,801,000 $69,255,000 4,456,346,000 —

Held to maturity 29,569,000 — 24,569,000 —

Equity 38,368,000 4,500,000 53,868,000 —

Trading 216,000 — 216,000 —
Loans (2}

Commercial loans 7,814,728,000 — — 7,847,971,000

Real estate loans 1,023,642,000 — — 1,047.472,000

Individual loans 1,249,191,000 — — 1,237,138,000
Loans held for sale 137,695,000 137,695,000
Derivatives 29,680,000 29,680,000
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Financial Assets
Cash and due from banks
and shot-term interest
bearing deposits
Interest bearing deposits
Federal funds sold and
securities purchased under
agreements to resell
Investment securities (1)
Available for sale
Held to maturity
Equity
Trading
Loans (2)
Commercial loans
Real estate loans
Individual loans
Loans held for sale

Derivatives

Financial Liabilities
Noninterest-bearing demand
Savings and interest-bearing
demand
Time deposits
Total deposits
Federal funds purchased and
securities sold under
agreements to repurchase
Trust Preferred Securities &
other borrowed funds
Accrued interest payable
Derivatives

December 31,2019

Carrying Estimated Fair Value
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
$ 927,015,000 927,015,000 — —
60,220,000 — — 60,654,000
200,831,000 200,831,000 — —
3,520,920,000 359,504,000 3,161,416,000 —
57,222,000 — 57,443,000 677,354
55,322,000 4,957,000 50,365,000 —
108,000 — 108,000 —
7,003,980,000 — — 6,996,640,000
1,022,572,000 — — 1,030,294,000
1,243,253,000 — — 1,248,514,000
70,339,000 — 70,339,000 —
6,267,000 — 6,267,000 —
December 31,2020
Carrying Estimated Fair Value
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
5,345,070,000 5,345,070,000 — —
7,555,473,000 7,553,475,000 — —
1,490,779,000 —_ — 1,485,598,000
14,391,324,000 12,900,545,000 — 1,485,398,000
1,315,747,000 1,315,747,000 — —
5,000,000 5,000,000
2,337,000 2,337,000 — —
24,045,000 24,045,000



Financial Liabilities
Noninterest-bearing demand )
Savings and interest-bearing

demand
Time deposits

Total deposits $

Federal funds purchased and

securities sold under

agresments to repurchase 3
Trust Preferred Securities
Accrued interest payable

Derivatives

Limitations

December 31,2019

Carrying Estimated Fair Value
amount Level 1 Lewel 2 Level 3
3,739,782,000 3,739,782,000 — -
6,197,083,000 6,197,083,000 — —
1,630,052,000 — — 1,626,809,000
11,566,917,000 9,936,865,000 — 1,626,809,000
1,022,348,000 1,022,348,000 — —
6,702,000 6,702,000
4,960,000 4,960,000 — —
6,467,000 — 6,467,000 —

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on relevant market information and
information about the financial instruments. These estimates do not reflect any premium or discount that
could result from offering for sale at one time the Company’s entire holdings of a particular financial
instrument. Because no market exists for a significant portion of the Company’s financial instruments, fair
value estimates are based on judgments regarding future loss experience, current economic conditions, risk
characteristics of various financial instruments, and other factors. These estimates are subjective, involve
uncertainties and cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the

estimates.
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(17) Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

The table below shows the activity and accumulated balances for components of other comprehensive loss.

Unrealized
Gains/Losses Pension
on AFS Securities Plan Total
Balance December 31, 2018 $ (11,571,000)  (54,921,000)  (66,492,000)
Other comprehensive
income (loss) before reclassifications 21,864,000 (10,332,000) 11,532,000
Amounts reclassified from accumulated
other comprehensive loss (14,000) 0 (14,000
Current period other comprehensive
income (loss), before tax 21,850,000 (10,332,000 11,518,000
Income tax (expense) benefit (5,465,000) 1,277,000 (4,188,000
Current period other comprehensive
income (loss), net of tax 16,385,000 (9,055,000) 7,330,000
Balance December 31, 2019 $ 4,814,000 (63,976,000  (59,162,000)
Other comprehensive
income (loss) before reclassifications $ 24,534,000 (13,322,000) 11,212,000
Amounts reclassified from accumulated
other comprehensive loss (30,000 0 (30,000)
Current period other comprehensive
income (loss), before tax 24,504,000 (13,322,000) 11,182,000
Income tax (expense) benefit (5,849,000) 3,176,000 (2,673,000
Current period other comprehensive
income {loss), net of tax 18,655,000 (10,146,000) 8,509,000
Balance December 31, 2020 $ 23,469,000 (74,122,000 (50,653,000

(18) Acquisitions
Liberty Bancorp, Inc.

On August 1, 2019, the Company acquired Liberty Bancorp, Inc. (LBI) located in Liberty, Missouri and its
100% owned subsidiary BankLiberty. The purchase was a cash transaction resulting in the purchase of 100%
of the common stock of LBI.

BankLiberty operates as a retail and commercial bank within a 13 branch network in Liberty, Missouri and
the surrounding area. Total bank assets at the acquisition date were $533 million with loans of $411 million
and deposits of $458 million. Subsequent to the merger, on December 6, 2019, BankLiberty was merged
into Central Bank of the Midwest, a subsidiary of the Company located in the Kansas City, Missouri area.
Also, the borrowed funds and subordinated debt of BankLiberty were paid off at the time of the merger into
Central Bank of the Midwest.
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Goodwill of $43.9 million was recorded with the purchase of LBL

The goodwill recorded is not tax

deductible. A summary of the historical balances acquired and the adjustments to arrive at fair value follows:

LBI Fair Value Fair
August I, 2019 Adjustments Value
Assets
Cash and due from banks 3 8,529,600 — 8,529,000
Due from banks interest bearing 57,274,000 —_ 57,274,000
Investment securities 13,011,000 21,000 13,032,000
L.oans 411,389,000 757,000 406,175,000
{5,971,000)
Allowance for loan loss (5,143,000) 5,143,000 —
Premises and equipment 14,257,000 {1,915,000) 12,342,000
Other real estate owned 4,457,000 {2,237.000) 2,220,000
Bank owned life insurance 19,927,000 — 19,927,000
Goodwill 3,927,000 (3,927,000) —
Core deposit intangible 1,893,000 (1,993,000} 10,292,000
10,292,000
Other assets 3,790,000 2,047,000 3,402,000
(2,435,000)
Total assets h 533,411,000 (218,000) 533,193,000
Liabilities and equity
Non-interest bearing demand 3 124,036,000 — 124,036,000
Interest bearing demand and savings 270,964,000 — 270,964,000
Time deposits 63,642,000 63,642,000
Total deposits 458,642,000 — 458,642,000
Fed funds and repurchase agreements 4,226,000 — 4,226,000
Other borrowed funds 3,500,000 — 3,500,000
Subordinated debt 2,504,000 1,105,000 3,609,000
Other liabilities 4,493,000 — 4,493,000
Total liabilities 473,365,000 1,105,000 474,470,000
Equity 60,046,000 (60,046,000) —_
Total liabilities and equity $ 533,411,000 (58,941,000) 474,470,000
Net acquired fair value 58,723,000
Purchase price 102,646,000
Goodwill 43,923,000

During 2020, the Company finalized the valuation resulting in the adjustments to state the balance sheet at

fair value which reduced goodwill.

The Company's operating results from August 1, 2019 include the operating results of the acquired assets

and liabilities of BankLiberty.

Strong rocts. Endless possibilities:
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Platte County Bancorporation Inc.

On December 2, 2019, the Company acquired Platte County Bancorporation Inc. (PCBI) located in Platte
City, Missouri and its 100% owned subsidiary Platte Valley Bank of Mo. (PVBM). The purchase was a cash
transaction resulting in the purchase of 100% of the common stock of PCBI.

PVBM operates as a retail and commercial bank within a 9 branch network in Platte City, Missourl and the
surrounding area. Total assets acquired were $599 million, loans were $448 million and deposits amounted
to $528 million. As of year-end 2019, PVBM was operating as a subsidiary of the Company. In the second
quarter of 2020, PVBM was merged into Central Bank of the Midwest.

Goodwill of $45.9 million was recorded with the purchase of PCBI. The goodwill recorded is tax deductible.
A summary of the historical balances acquired and the adjustments to arrive at fair value follows:

/3

‘ PCBI Fair Value Fair
December2,2019  Adjustments Value
Assets
Cash and due from banks b 5,709,000 — 5,709,000
Due from banks interest bearing 38,384,000 —_— 38,384,000
Investment securities 92,135,000 183,000 92,318,000
Loans 447924000 {4,156,000) 443,768,000
Allowance for loan loss (5,463,000) 5,463,000 —
Premises and equipment 12,802,000 (641,000) 12,161,000
Goodwill 178,000 (178,000) —
Core deposit intangible —_ 10,206,000 10,206,000
Other assets 7,081,000 — 7,081,000
Total assets $ 598,750,000 10,877,000 609,627,000
Liabilities and equity
Non-interest bearing demand $ 159,197,000 — 159,197,000
Interest bearing demand and savings 270,633,000 — 270,633,000
Time deposits 98,053,000 335,000 98,388,000
Total deposits 527,883,000 335,000 528,218,000
Fed funds and repurchase agreements 9,536,000 — 9,536,000
Subordinated debt 6,702,000 — 6,702,000
Other liabilities 2,714,000 — 2,714,000
Total liabilities 546,835,000 335,000 547,170,000
Equity 51,915,000 (51,731,000) 184,000
Total Liabilities and equity  $ 598,750,000 (51,396,000) 547,354,000
Net acquired fair value 62,273,000
Purchase price 108,203,000
Goodwill 45,930,000




(19)

During 2020, the Company finalized the valuation resulting in the adjustments to state the balance sheet at
fair value which increased the goodwill.

The Company's operating results from December 2, 2019 include the operating results of the acquired assets
and liabilities of PCBI and PVBM.

The following was the process used to determine the fair value amounts:

1) For cash and due from banks, due from banks interest bearing, bank owned life insurance, other assets,
and other liabilities — historical balances as of the acquisition date were used for opening fair value
balances.

2) Investment securities are adjusted to market value at acquisition date.

3) The fair value of the loan portfolio was determined by calculating the future cash flows associated with
the loans factoring in amortization schedules, prepayments, defaults, current interest rates relative to the
loan rates, and other factors discounted back to present value in determining the fair value as of the
acquisition date.

4) The core deposit intangible was determined using an income approach as to the cost savings method
which recognizes the cost savings represented by the expense of maintaining the core deposit base versus
the cost of an alternative open market funding source by calculating the present value of the future benefit
stream related to the acquired deposits.

5) Premise and equipment’s fair value was determined by taking historical values and adjusting the values
lower if the appraised value for individual assets were lower than historic values.

6) Time deposit fair value adjustment was determined by a present value calculation based upon current
market rates for comparable time deposits.

7) Trust Preferred Securities are a floating rate instroment and therefore were brought over at book value.

The fair value for loans, core deposit intangible, and time deposits was determined by an independent third
party.

Derivative Instruments

Prior to August 2020, the Company’s mortgage banking operation made commitments to extend fixed rate
loans secured by 1-4 family residential properties, which are considered to be derivative instruments. These
commitments have an average term of 60 to 90 days. The Company’s general practice was to sell such loans
in the secondary market. During the term of the loan commitment, the value of the loan commitment changes
in inverse proportion to changes in market interest rates. The Company abtaing forward sale contracts with
investors in the secondary market in order to manage these risk positions. Most of the contracts are matched
to a specific loan on a *‘best efforts’* basis, in which the Company is obligated to deliver the loan only if the
loan closes. Hedge accounting has not been applied to these activities. The unrealized gain on the forward
sales contracts, which has not been recognized in the Company’s consolidated statements of income given
its insignificance, amounted to $332,000 and $323,000 for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.

In August 2020, the Company changed its mortgage banking operation for originating loans (interest rate
locks) to be sold into the secondary market. Under this new process, the Company does not enter into a
commitment to sell these loans at the time of the interest rate lock but instead enters into an agreement to
sell the Joan(s) after funding. The Company enters into free—standing derivatives to protect against
movement in interest rates once the loan commitment is entered into. These derivatives are in the form of
commitments to sell to-be-announced (TBA) securities which move in value in the opposite direction of the

Strong roots. Endless possibilities. 74



75

fixed rate loan commitments thereby economically protecting the Company from movement in interest rates
during the period from the interest rate lock date to the date the loan is sold into the secondary market.

As of December 31, 2020, the amounts reflected in the Company’s balance sheet in assets and liabilities for
the value of the interest rate lock commitments, funded loans held for sale, and the corresponding
commitments to sell the TBA securities were as follows:

Noticnal Value Market Value

Interest Rate Loan Commitments $ 395,841,000 11,764,000
Loans Closed - Market Value Loans Held for Sale 111,247,000 3,261,000
TBA Derivative Value 457,500,000 (4,227,000)

The market value of the Loan Commitment Pipeline and the Loans Closed Held for Sale is net of expenses.

The Company maintains an overall interest rate risk management strategy that permits the use of derivative
instruments to modify exposure to interest rate risk. The Company’s interest rate risk management strategy
includes the ability to modify the repricing characteristics of certain assets and liabilities so that changes in
interest rates do not adversely affect the net interest margin and cash flows, Interest rate swaps may be used
on a limited basis as part of this strategy. The Company also sells interest rate swap contracts to customers
who wish to modify their interest rate sensitivity. The Company offsets the interest rate risk of these swaps
by purchasing matching contracts with offsetting pay/receive rates from other financial institutions. These
Back-to-Back swap contracts comprised a portion of the Company's swap portfolio at December 31, 2020
and 2019 with total notional amounts of $438.1 million and $332.9 million, respectively. The Company’s
“Back-to-Back™ swaps are accounted for as free-standing derivatives, and changes in their fair value are
recorded in current earnings.

The Company also employs the use of “Critical Terms” swaps. While this strategy does not directly involve
customers of the banks, they are used to swap the interest rate structure of individual loans. By using Critical
Terms, the bank is able to mark-to-market the loan as well. For derivatives designated and that qualify as
fair value hedges, the gain or loss on the derivative as well as the offsetting loss or gain on the hedged item
attributable to the hedged risk are recognized in earnings. The Company includes the gain or loss on the
hedged items in the same line item as the offsetting loss or gain on the related derivatives. These structures
had a notional amount of $25.3 million, with a fair value of $(1,902,000) and $24.3 million, with a fair value
of (3200,000) at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Derivative Assets Derivative Liabilities Derivative Assets Derjvative Liabilities

12/31/20 12/31/20 12/31/19 12/31/19
Back to back swaps § 17,916,000 {17,916,000) 6,018,000 {6,018,000)
Fair value hedges {1,902,000) 249,000 (449,000)




(20) Revenue Recognition

Revenue should be recognized to reflect the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services. Revenue from financial instruments, including revenue from loans and securities, is not
included within this guidance. Noninterest revenue items that are subject to this guidance mainly include
fees for bank card, trust, deposit account services, and consumer brokerage services and are discussed
below and summarized in the table that follows.

Fees for Fiduciary Services

Trust and asset management income is primarily comprised of fees earned from the management and
administration of trusts, setilement of estates, and other similar duties where Central Trust Company serves
in a fiduciary capacity. The Company’s performance obligation is generally satisfied over time and the
resulting fees are recognized monthly, based upon the average monthly value of the assets under
management and the applicable fee rate or otherwise as negotiated as a fee for service. Other transactional-
based services, including but not limited to, tax return preparation and financial planning are available.
The performance obligation for these services is generally satisfied and related revenue recognized, at the
completion of the service.

Deposit Accounts and Other Fees

Service charges on deposit accounts consist of account analysis fees (i.e., net fees earned on analyzed
business and public checking accounts), monthly service fees, check orders, and other deposit account
related fees. The Company’s performance obligation for account analysis and monthly service fees is
generally satisfied, and the related revenue recognized, when the service is provided and received
immediately or in the following month.

The Company provides corporate cash management services to its business customers to meet their various
transaction processing needs. Such services include deposit and check processing, lockbox, remote
deposit, reconciliation, online banking, and other similar transaction processing services. The Company
maintains unit prices for each type of service, and the customer is billed based on transaction volumes
processed monthly.

Overdraft fees are charged to customers when daily checks and other withdrawals to customers’ accounts
exceed balances on hand. The daily overdraft charge is calculated and the fee is posted to the customer’s
account each day.

Other deposit related fees such as check orders, foreign ATM processing fees, stop payment fees, and
cashier’s checks are largely transactional based, and therefore, the Company’s performance cbligation is
satisfied, and related revenue recognized, when the transaction is processed.

Bankeard Transaction Fees

Fees, exchange, and other service charges are primarily comprised of debit and credit card income, ATM
fees, merchant services income, and other service charges. Debit and credit card income is primarily
comprised of interchange fees earned whenever the Company’s debit and credit cards are processed
through card payment networks such as MasterCard. The fees earned are established by the settlement
network and are dependent on the type of transaction processed but are typicaily based on a per unit charge.
Interchange income is settled daily through the networks.
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Consumer Brokerage Services

Consumer brokerage services revenue is comprised of commissions received upon the execution of
purchases and sales of mutual fund shares and equity securities, in addition to certain limited insurance
products in an agency capacity. Also, fees are earned on managed advisory programs. Payment from the
customer is upon settlement for purchases and sales of securities, upon purchase for annuities and insurance
products, and upon inception of the service period for advisory programs.

Other Non-Interest Income from Contracts with Customers

Other non-interest income consists mainly of gains on foreclosed assets as well as bank premises and
equipment. Performance obligations for these services consist mainly of the execution of transactions for
sale of various properties. Fees from these revenue sources are recognized when the performance
obligation is completed, at which time cash is received by the Company.

2020 2019
Service charges and commissions
Deposit account and other fees $40,256,000 40,963,000
Other non-ASC 606 revenue 9,744,000 9,652,000

$50,000,000 50,615,000

Bankcard and merchant service fees
Bankcard transaction fees $56,246,000 47,913,000

Brokerage services
Consumer brokerage service fees $16,253,000 14,548,000

Fees for fiduciary services

Fiduciary service fees $32,841,000 30,739,000
Other

Gain on sale of bank premises and equipment $§ 469,000 566,000

Other non-ASC 606 revenue 6,551,000 4,090,000

$ 7,020,000 4,656,600




Company History

1970

Central Bancompany incorporates as a
multi-bank holding company that includes

i The Central Trust Bank and Jefferson
¢ Bank of Missouri, both in Jefferson City,
: MO

10721

First National Bank of Clayton joins

: Central Bancompany

1973 ¢

Acquired — The Guaranty Trust Company,

¢ Clayton, MO

1974

1977

Acquired — Boone County National Bank,
Co?umbia, MO

Acquired — First National Bank of Mexico,

¢ Mexico, MO

Deployed first autornated teller
! machine [ATM)

1979

Acqgired — City Bank & Trust Company,

i Moberdy, MO

1980

1984
1985

Acquired — Empire Bank, Springfield, MO
Reached $1 Billion in Total Assets

Central Trust Bank acquires Lake

1 National Bank of Tuscumbia, Tuscumbia,

: MO

1986

Acquired — Bank of the Lake of the

: Qzarks, Osage Beach, MO
Launched Credit Card Division

jo88:

Central Bank of Lake of the Ozarks acquires

: Camden County Bank, Camden, MO

i Acquired — Ozark Mountain Bank,
¢ Bransen, MO

1991}

Empire Bank acquires Nixa Bank, Nixa,

i MO

1992:

Acquired ~ Third National Bank of

Sedalia, Sedalia, MO

1993

Acquired — First National Bank of Lee’s

! Sumumit, Lee’s Summit, MO

Added our 50™ Location

79

1994 :

Boone County National Bank acquires South

County Bank, Ashland, MO

FNB of Audrain County acquires Laddonia
: State Bank, Laddonia, MO

¢ Launched InvestorServices,

i a full-service brokerage division

1995 :

FNB of Missouri (previously FNB of Lee’s

: Summit) acquires First State Bank of Buckner,
: Buckner, MO

Empire Bank acquires Webster County Bank and
¢ Pleasant Hope Bank, Springfield, MO

1997 :

: Acquired — Bank of Warrensburg, Warrensburg,

MO and renamed First Central Bank

Acquired — Farmers & Traders Bank,
: California, MO

Boone County National Bank acquires
¢ Mercantile Bank of Boonville, Boonville, MO

1998 :

First Central Bank acquires Bank of

: Higginsville, Higginsville, MO

: FNB of St. Louis (previously ENB of Clayton)
: acquires Colonial Bank,
Des Peres, MO

Launched Internet Banking

1999

Acquired — Bank of Jacomo, Blue Springs, MO

i Boone County National Bank acquires State
¢ Bank of Hallsville and Sturgeon State Bank,
* Boone County, MO

Central Trust Bank acquires Fulton Savings
Bank, Fulton, MO

Farmers and Traders Bank, California, MO merges
i+ with Central Trust Bank, Jefferson City, MO

2000

Central Trust Bank acquires deposits from

¢ Union Planters Bank, California, MO

i Reached $5 Billion in Total Assets

2001 |

FNB of St. Louis acquires Mid America Bank

¢ of St. Clair County, O’Fallon, IL



Expanded into the State of
: linois

4

Added our 100 Location

2004 :

Bank of Jacomo collapses into FNB of

+ Missouri

Acquired — Community Bank and Trust
: Company, Tulsa, OK

First Central Bank acquires Higginsville,
: MO, branches of Bank Midwest

: Expanded info the State of
: Oklahoma

2007 :

L |

The Guaranty Trust Company collapses
into the Central Trust Company, Jefferson

: City, MO
Acquired — ONB Bank, Tulsa, OK

: Community Bank and Trust collapses into

¢ ONB Bank

Acquired — Metcalf Bank, Overland Park,
: KS§

Acquired — First Kansas Bank & Trust
: Company, Gardner, KS

i FNB of St. Louis acquires First National
¢ Bank of Millstadt, Millstadt, IL

i Expanded into the State of -

! Kansas

2008 :

ENB of Missouri, First Kansas Bank, and

¢ Metcalf Bank merge with Metcalf Bank,

i the surviving name

Empire Bank acquires The Greene County
Bank, Strafford, MO

First Central Bank acquires Bank of
: Holden, Holden, MO

2009

Mertcalf Bank acquires, through purchase
and assumption agreement, American

: Sterling Bank, Sugarcreek, MO

2009§

Central Trust Company acquires Springfield

¢ Trust Company, Springfield, MO

20105

2011
Bank, Sedalia, MO
2012

: and assumption agreement, Heartland

Bank, Leawood, KS

i Reached $10 Billion in Total
i Assets

2013
: partial assets from Shelter Financial
: Bank, Columbia, MO

2014
¢ Belton, MO

Recognized by Forbes as being a
TOP TEN bank in America

Empire Bank acquires Citizens National
Bank, Springfield, MO

TINB of Sedalia acquires Union Savings

Metcalf Bank acquires, through purchase

Boone County National Bank acquires

Metcalf Bank acquires Bank of Belton,

! FNB of Audrain County acquires
¢ rthe Vandalia branch from First State
: Community Bank :

2015 :
Douglas County Bank, Lawrence, KS

Central Bank of the Midwest acquires

Twelve of 13 charters are renamed
: under the Central Bank name

2017 :
: Lake of the Ozarks acquires Bank Star
! One, New Bloomfield, MO

Central Trust Bank and Central Bank of

Central Trust Bank creates Mortgage
i Central and opens offices in Colorado

Expanded into the State of
i Colorado

2018
: Springs, CO

2019
¢ BankLiberty, Liberty, MO

Full service branch opens in Colorado

Central Bank of the Midwest acquires

! Central Bank of the Midwest acquires
: Platte Valley Bank, Platte City, MO

2020
! Assets

Surpassed $15 Billion in Total
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Central Bancompany Directors & Senior Leadership

S. Bryan Cook, Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Robert M. Robuck, Yice Chairman

E. Stanley Kroenke, President & (0, The Kroenke Group

Rohert R, Hermann, Ir., fresident & CEQ, Hermann Companies, Inc.
Cherles E. Kruse, Fresident Charles Keuse Farms, Inc.

S. Bryun Cook, Chaimon & Chisf Executive Officer
John T. Ross, Prsidant & Chief Dperating Gfficer
Rebert M. Robuck, Vice Chairmion

Stephen E. Erdel, Vice Chgirman

Board of Directors

Senior Leadership

Richard H. McClure, President (Retived), UniGroup, Inc.

Michoel K, Farmer, President. Farmer Companies

Edward D. "Chip” Robertsan, Jr., Attomey; Barfimus Fricleton Robertson Rader PC.
Charles Digges, Jr., President, The Insurance Group - Columbia

Henneth W, Littletield, Vice Chairman, Chief Adminishiative Officer
and Chief Financial Officer

Donald R. Perdue, Senior Fxecutive Vice Fresident, lnvestments

Russell L. Goldammer, Exeative Vice Fresident, Chief Information Officer
David P. Minton, Exscutive Vice President Morlgage Banking

Gregory D. Omer, Fxeasive Vice residen;, Corporate Secretary & General
Counse
™
N -

David W. Roehl, Bxeative Vice Fresident Chief lnvestment Officer

Daniel G. Stephen, Exeative Vice Fresident, Senior Credit Officer & Chief

Risk Cfficer
Duniel H. Westhues, Fxecufive Viee Fresiclent, Chief Markefing Officer & Retail
Banking, 3,

-

Robert M. Carr, Jr., Senior Vice Fresident Managing Director, Ceniral
Investment Advisors

Christine K. Ellinger, Senior Vice Presiient, Chief Human Resoorces Officer
Seott M. Kellett, Senior Vice Fresident Trust and Asset Monagement

Pavl ). Kletfner, Senior Vice President, Monaging Director, Auditing

Peter ). Langston, Senior Vice President; Loan Review

Lisu J. Pittman, Senior Vice President Controller

\ Alan F. Stonum, Senior Vice Presidant, Manoging Director, BankCard

Services
Shannon M. Thomason, Senior Vice President, Chief Compliance Officer

Matthew T. Tollerton, Senior Vice President Monnging Dtrednr D:gnul
Banking

Shawn D. Yon Tulge Senior Yice Prfsﬂdenf Monguge Bonkmg

‘... Shown here is the main iacility trom the Plafte Valley Bank ccquisition
that occurred in 2019, and convert ed o Centrol Bank in 2020.




The Central Trust Bank -
Joined Central Boncompony in 1970
PreSIden’r&CEO David P.-Minton > Brcnches. 15 = Employees: 569

In so many ways, 2020 was a chaflenge and as always, Ceniral Bank respo_nded,.

Qur Paycheck Protection Program [PPP) lending resulted in nearly $10C million in volume, which assisted more than 900
local businesses. This had o profound effect on the communities and people we serve. It is not an-exaggeration to say this
PPP produciion was crifical in helping keep our locel economy infect. Despite the pandemic, Central Bank had o fanfastic
year. Deposiis grew by more than $600 million and-loans fexclusive of PPP loans) grew by mare than $80 million, led by

strong loan growth in Colerado of $70 million. Cerral Bank hod a record year in both purchase and refinance mortgage
production, mere than doubling the number of morlgages made i in 2019 and totaling nearty $1 Gillion. Total Net

Income for 2020 was more than $48 million, a nearly 40% incieass over the prior year. Our online-only morigage

solution was launched in Q4-20. This new business, "Orline Central," is on imporiont componentin cur overall -

' stralegy c:nd will become a significant contributor to.our morigage | hne of busmess 2021, . =

In November Centrol Bank ladnched a 'Celebrate: Kmdness mmohve tothe communny This was a morkehng
' “campaign thet soliciied publlc nominafions of th .e"'who are’ known for acts.of kmdness big ¢z smalt
Hundreds were rominated, and each weekday in November orie person was awarded $500 for his
o her kindness. 2020 olso saw Ceriral Bank employees give back and-give back a lot.-Amid:he -
pandenic, despite a dramatic decrease in public: events and gatherings, Cen?rol Bank emoloyees found
. woys | fo gwe melr time and pcsston fo mclke the communmes we serve éven songe

Bourd ol: Dtrecfors

2020 PPP LOAN PRODUCTION

Total Number of Loans: 204
Total $ amount of Loans: $96,187,932




- Jefferson Bank of MISSOUI‘I
Jomed Centrol chcompcmy in 1970 e e
President & CEO: L. Kenton Theroff * Branches: 4o Employees 100

The sirength and stability of Jefferson Bank were tested in 2020. The COVID-19 pandernic resulted in o nohonmde
stoyothome order requiring our lobbies to close for 60 days and making it necessary lo relocate staff to limit exposure to
illness. Despite the disruption, we continued to provide important lending and reloil services. Contactless banking services
allowed us to maintain customer relationships while supporting the greatest household growth in a decade. When a
massive Mid-Missouri hail storm severely domaged cars, homes, and businesses, our staff processed insurance claims for
repairs and prepared new loan controcts for total vehicle replacements. COVID-19 challenged local businesses irying to
odapt o new restrictions, while also seeking to ovoid closure and layoffs. $522 billion in SBA relief funds were mode
available through the Paycheck Protection Program {PPP). Qur lending team responded by processing more than
$54 million in loans, aiding 539 businesses; the highest perietration of PPP loans to commercial loans in the Holding
Company. With record low interest rates, the mortgage lending team processed 1,184 home loans, lotaling $206
million in annual volume, despite limited real estate inventory. Our commitment to service was highlighted in the Jefferson
City Magazine and Jefferson Bank was nomed the 2020 "Most Philanthropic Company.” This past year proved that with
a dedicated team and community support, growth is possible under any circumstance.

Board of Directors

Harold W. Westhues, Chairman of the Board, Refired, efferson Bank
Robert L. Bryant, EVF, CFO and COQ, Jefferson Bank
Robert . Wankum, MD, Refired, JCMG Ophthalmology
Bernard J: Fechtel, Owner, Fechtel Beverage & Sales
C. Roger Schrimpf, Owner, Schrifpf Management
Jeffrey L. Patrick, MD, Radiologist, JCMG President

Serving the Jefferson City arec

2020 PPP LOAN PRODUCTION

Total Number of Loans: 539
Total $ amount of Loans: $54,268,950




Ceni‘ral Bank of St. Louis

‘ _ Joined Central Bancompany in 1972
Chairman & CEQ: S. Bryan Cock ® Branches: 16 ¢ Employees: 249

Central Bank of St. Louis, like everyone else, dealt with the challenging and unique circumstances of 2020.
We implemented new ways of doing businéss in o diligent effort 1o keep our Central Bank family of employees and
customers safe, all while confinuing fo prowde legendary service fo meet the needs of our cusiomers. Through alf of
the changes, we were able to increase nef income by more than 30%, increase deposits by more than 20%, Increase |
loan volume by more than 14%, and achieve a record year in mortgqge lending. The dedication fo our customers and
community s spotlighted by how our employees worked seven days a wesk and around the clock o help local busmesses ‘
secure funding from the government to keep their doors open "ond our economy moving. In @ short peried of fime, -we
helped more than 1 OOO businesses secure over $180,000,000. We heloed cusiomers ranging from hair salons and
restaurants fo manufu' rers. qnd contractors. We take great pnde in'being part of the solution that helped keep local -
businesses gomg We look forward'tor -;bnght ond healthy 021 wnh a new Pres:deni c:nd COO M. Dcnlel Stephen

Bocrd of Dlreciors “

Rlchard Bagy Ir; Pres:denf Chief Operating Officer

" . Daniel G. Stephen, £VP, Central Bancompany.
Woyne R. Baker, President, Warrerion O Company
Daniel B. Bruns, Prasident/Owner, Kienstra Company
R.ob-'rtC Byrne I, Owner Byrne & Jones Enterpnses Inc ,

St Lowis City 18A0) 31 Lowz Courry (440 St Ck 0r| T
St Clair Coerry il 4 = Courty (1

2020 PPP LOAN PRODUCTION

Total Number of Loans: 1,054
Total $ omount of Loans: $182,641,088

Strong roots. Endless possibilities.” 84




Central Bank of Boone County
Ioinsd Cantrel Bancompany, in 1974
Chairman & CEQ: Stephen E. Erdel ® Branches: 15 ¢ Employees: 368

What an extraordinary year. At the beginning of 2020, we could never have expected the turmoil and triumph we
would experience due to the emerging pandemic. Through it all, our incredibly talented and committed employeas
took exceptional care of the bank, each other, our customers, and our community.

Nothing demonstrated this commitment more than the Small Business Administration Paycheck Protection Program
(PPP). Within just a few weeks, our talented people managed to assist more than 1,080 smell businesses secure
$99 million in loans. That is four fimes more than our competitors and 85% of those loans were less than
$150,000, truly helping the smallest businesses. The entire process was new and challenging, made more so by
the need for employees to social distance ond, in some cases, work remotely. Through it all our customers were
welltaken care of. More importantly, we made o difference in our community by supporting a bedrack of our local
ecoromy.

2020 also brought changes to our leadership as Ed Scavone was named president of the bank in July. Ed has
a long, distinguished career with both the Central Bancompany and Central Bank of Boone County. We have
no doubt that he will bring oll those talents te bear on a bright future for our

organization in the years to come.

Central Bank of Boone County is exceptionally proud of its 2020 results
given the challenges we all faced. While we are a long way from
moving chewd:of these challenges, we Khow that the future holds greaf
things for our drganization because of our exceptional peaple.

Board of Directors .

Joseph T. Henderson, Central Bancompeny
Mark A. Adams, MD, President, Columbio Orthiopcedic Group
Jason A. Burchfield, President, Siver Tree Companies
Chc:rles W. D:gges Jr Presrdenr The Insurcince Gr '

2020 PPP LOAN PRODUCTION

Total Number of Loans: 1,080
Total $ amount of Loans: $99,544,586




Board of Directors

Audroin County including Communities of Mexico, Vandalio, Laddomo
Rush Hill, Vondiver Village, Benton City, Middletown, and Auxvasse

2020 PPP LOAN PRODUCTION

Total Number of Loans: 106
Total $ amount of Loans: $5,200,087

Strong roots. Endless possibilities. 86




Central Bank of Moberly

Joined Central Bancompany in 1979
President & CEO: W. Michael Riffel ® Branches: 3 ¢ Employees: 28

Central Bank of Moberly is proud fo be the leading bank in the Moberly area, a position we hove held for more than
25 years. Despite a low rate environment, 2020 brought deposit account growth of 16% as well as a large increase in
Morgage Loan volume, growing 179% from 2019, resulting in a record year in earnings. This growth was only made
possible by o dedicoted group of employees. While the pondemic presented ¢ unique sef of challenges in 2020, cur
team worked tirelessly fo confinue to provide the legendary service ows customers have come fo expect.

rd_of Directors

olin S. Meystrik, Senior Vice President, Centrel Bank of Moberly
- K:'Mack Hils, Refired, Mack Hils Inc.
|, Richard Truesdell, Retired, Truesdell Brothers Grain, Inc.
Barbara A. Westhues, Chief Operating Officer, Orscheln Industries

Randolph, Howard, Chariton, and Monroe Counties

2020 PPP LOAN PRODUCTION

Total Number of Loans: 73
Total $ amount of Loans: $8,519,400




Central Bank of the Qzarks

Jeined Central Bancompany in 1980
Chairman, President, & CEO: Russell R. Marquart ¢ Branches: 22 e Employees: 255

Central Bank of the Ozarks continues o be  leader in the Springfield arec through its dedication to the communities

we serve. The bank hos donated its second “Tiny Home" to Eden Villoge 2, the second community in Springfield that
provides housing fo disabled and hameless people. Bank teammates regularly visit and help the resident at our Dogwood
House #1, and now, Dogwood House #2. Cur Central Connect group Ts in its sixth ysor and is crucial fo the growih

of our next generation of bankers in becoming leaders in the community and our company. Despite the many challenges
with the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020, the bank had o successful yeor with significant increases in Nei Income, up

11%, and growth in ali other key melrics. We helped many businesses, organizations, and familiss in our area affected
by the pandemic with a very successful SBA Paycheck Prolection Pragram [PPP). With the low rate environment, our
Morigage Leons have mare than daubled in 2020 with volumes hitting $224 million and 1,210 loans serviced.

Board of Direciors

Michael J. Williamson, Retired, Central Bark of the Ozarks

Chris W. Natfinger, President, Skyline lnvestment Co, LLC

John R. Twitty, General Manager & CEQ, Missouri Public Utllity Alliance
Judi M. Samuel, Broker

J. Mark Cock, CEQ, Central States Industrial Equipment

Mark M. McNay, Sr. Vice Presideni, SMC Packaging Group .
Thomas B. Rankin, Sr. Advisor/Broker, Sperry Van Ness/Rankin Compary

Mark L. Walker, Chairman & CEO, Transland

Springfield, Nixa, Ozark, Highlendvills,
Marshfield, Straffard, Fair Grove, Pleasant Hope,
Republic, and Batiefield
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2020 PPP LOAN PRODUCTION

Total Number of Loans: 1,256

Total $ amount of Loans: $112,044,469
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Central Bank of Lake of the Ozarks

Joinzd Central Bancompany in 1986
CEO: James D. Judas, Jr. ® Branches: 8 ¢ Employees: 155

There was much to be proud of as Ceniral Bank of Lake of the Ozarks had a record-breaking year in 2020.
Not only was our bank financially successful, exceeding our Mortgoge lending goals for the year; but,

we also remained committed to giving back to the Lake community. In 2020, we had 16 employees help
customers secure Paycheck Protection Program (PPP} loans to keep the econemy going. Those employees »
consisted of Commercial Loan Officers, Credit Analysts, loan Processors, and Servicers. We approved 816
PPP Loans, for o total amount near $41 million, which assisted 6,781 jobs. Lake of the Ozarks restaurants
and retailers remained open to the public during 2020 which continued to drive our local economy. Several
events were hosted al the Lake and many new residents moved to the area, and tourism was stronger than
ever at Lake of the Ozarks in 2020. e

Board of Directors

James W. Mead, Senicr Vice President Chairman

Joe Jurgensmeyer, Chwner | & M Farms

Robert E. Mason, D.O. lake Regional Clinics

Danny D. Opie, Cwaer, Opig's Transport

Belinda K. Phillips, Owner, Four Seasons Storage

George Stanton, Ow ney, Stanton Manufacturing
Robert C. Frazee, Reiidl: Central Bonk of lake of the Ozarks

filler Comder & Mmgan Counlizs
Qraze Beach labe Orork Comdarion Eldon and Lauriz Communitizs
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2020 PPP LOAN PRODUCTION

Total Number of Loans: 816
Total $ amount of Loans: $40,867,550
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Central Bank of Branson
Joined Central Bancompany in 1988
Chairman, President, & CEQ: Joseph F. Loth, Ir. ® Branches: 5  Employees: 66

Central Bank of Branson rolled into 2020 excited to celebrate cur 70" anniversary with staff, customers, and
the community! Plans of celebrations and promotions swifily changed in the face of the globat pandemic, and
we were instead challenged with protecting public health and safety while working to help more than 280 local

- small businesses through the Paycheck Profection Program [PPP). The unforeseen mortgage refinance boom had @
-major |mpc1ct on'the bank as well, with cur morigage production increasing 67% over the prior year. Overall, our
pretax earnings were up 5.93% yearoveryear, making 2020 Ceniral Bank of Branson’s third consecutive record-
breaking year. We celebrated our 70" anniversary by standmg strong For our community durlng unprecedenred and
widespread economic hordshlp, ond we could riot be more: prou :

Board of Directors

Brian Burney, Pharmacisi, Assistant Drrecror Convemenf CoreP
Patrick Cox, Co-Owner, Starboard’ Marinas, Inc.

Ann M. McDowell, Owner, McDowell Consulling

Daniel Ruda, President Thousand Hills Golf Resart

Rick Todd, Refired, Herschend Family Entertainment

Chris Vinton, Owner, Vinton Commerqgl Reol?y
Ny
Stone and Tcney Counhes ' LN

2020 PPP LOAN PRODUCTION

Total Number of Loans: 283
Total $ amount of Loans: $21,244,200

Strong roots. Endless possibilities. @0




communily and helplng the small businesses that are vnol to Sedalia ond the surroundlng crea5'

Board of Directors

Charles G. Kempton, Owner, Dugan Paint

David Albrecht, Refired, Septagon Construction
Charles G. Marshall, Cwner, McDenald's
Kenneth D. Weymuth, Owner, W-K Chevrolet
Chris Squires, an Owner, SMC Electric Supply
Ruth Ferguson, Co-Owner, Robert Taylor Insurance

Sedalia, Pettis County, ond surrounding Counties

2020 PPP LOAN PRODUCTION

Total Number of Loans: 260
Total $ amount of Loans: $15,563,232




are domg great things in our communities. These parmershlps were even more prevol' 020 dis we faced unprecs -
edented times with the COVID-19 pandemic. Qur associates showed tremendous spirit worklng through the pqndemlc
while keeping our doors open and complefing the conversion of Platte Valley Bank in the Northland area of Kansas Cih/
QOur lending teoms worked diligently to process Paycheck Protection Program {PPP) loanis and placed us:i
Kansas City and #1 spot in Lawrence, Kansas, for the volume of loons produced. We are proud o b

Board of Directors

Thomas B. Fitzsimmons, Chairman of the Board
John T. Carper, Retired, Senior Advisor, Husch Blackwell Sonders LP.-
James Person, Chief, Belton Police Department  *~ - R B
James L. Hix, Refired, BosslerHix Personriel / Refired, Overlond Park Cny Counculu, T , P
Robert Rogers, President, Mid-State Aerospace, Inc. o L
Kenneth P. Woodward, Retired, Owner, Woddward, Hunt & Associates, CPAs

Joseph A. Flannery, President Weaver's, Inc. | .

Laura Crowley-Coy, General Manager, Crowley Furniture g = b

Serving the Grealer Kansas City and Llawrence areas.

2020 PPP LOAN PRODUCTION

Total Number of Loans: 2,421
Total $ amount of Loans: $269,277.166




Central Bank of Warrensburg

Joined Central Bancompany in 1997
Chairman & CEQO: Stephen L. Abney * Branches: 5 ® Employees: 56

2020 was an extiremely challenging year and our cmazing and dedicated staff rose to the moment,

Thanks 1o the investment in technclogy by Central Bancompany, we were dble to provide excellent customer
service while focusing on the safety of our staff, customers, and communities with innovative contactless
service delivery. Through the efforis of our entire staff, we were able to implement and deliver the first round
of the Paycheck Profection Pregram (PPP] loans to both customers and non-customers, originating 327 loans
iotaling $14,148,700 for small businesses and non-profit organizations. Central Bank of Warrensburg ws:
recognized as the #1. provider of PPP funding in boih Johnson and Lafayetie counfies in 2020, We were
also proud to be ranked in the top 25 in SBA 7la) tean volume in the Kansas City region, providing
- i'addmoncl lendmg resources to small businesses-in o time of uncertainty. Our sialf confinuesito voluntesr

. ond be ochve in the communmes we serve. We were especm"y proud fhar our Chcnrmcn Stepheh

2020 PPP LOAN PRODUCTION

Total Number of Loans: 327
Total $ amount of Lloans: $14,148,700




The historical issues of COVIL
there to helo with the ne

Business owners were anxig
sations with our business ¢u
keep people employed ant

and busingsses in our ¢

Board of Directors
S Doug Terry, Execunve VJce Presrdenr and ClO, CBOK

George s. Shclrp, Presrdenf Sharp Morigage Co. ALP
Cltﬁon Tquibert Pres:denf anchCEQ, The Freemount Corpoldtion
o Rick Willhour, Rancher

John Woolmcn Prasident, McGraw Realtors

Tulsa/Tulsc County, Owasso/Tulsa County,
Scpulpc/Creek County, Stillwater/Payne County,
Edmond/Ohohoma County

2020 PPP LOAN PRODUCTION

Total Number of Loans: 361

Total $ amount of Loans:$37,673,658
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4" Best Bank in America
by Forbes Magazine

Forbes 2021

BEST
BANKS IN E
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Central Bancompany

Sirong roots. Endless possibilities”

238 Madison Street, Jefferson City, Missouri 65101



IDC Rank of Financial Ratios 2020-Q4: 289

Superior (200 - 300)

CAMEL Analysis

Capital Ratios - A Foundation for Safety and Soundness

T 1 Capaat i Tiar toAsasts 57
Risk 8zses Ceoitat % Risk 32520 Assets 134%
) Tierl Capral : Rizk Basec Asssts 1235
i
. Well Capitalized
Adequacy of Capital and Loan Loss Reserve to Cover Loan
Delinquency
Loan Loss Reserve 35 Tier | Capizl 12.2%%
 Loans 20 Days Deiinguent % Tier 1 Caoite 8.0%
i
02ns Noraocrugl = REQ 3 Tier | Caons 8.5







CASH MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS - MERCHANT SERVICES

Merchant Services provides you with cutting edge technology, superior
customer service and competitive rates coupled with a variety of options
in processing methods to help you operate your business better. With our
customized solutions we can help reduce the time that you spend handling
payments and allows you to focus on serving your customer’s needs and
growing your business. Point of Sale (POS) Terminals.

Merchant Services gives the customer the ability to accept payment cards for
their business. The service has many options and can deposit into any checking
account.

FEATURES:

. Multiple platforms for the customer to pick from.

. Purchase of the equipment can be spread out over time.
. Customizable pricing is available.

Next day funds availability with Central Bank account.

BENEFITS:

. Muitiple platforms allow the customer to find the system that is most advantageous to them.
. Qur equipment purchase options allow for better cash management.

. Pricing can be modified based on volume history and transaction totals.

. Better funds availability with our services and a Central bank account.

DIAL PAY

. Use any touchtone telephone (including cell) to call in transactions.

. May use Manual Imprinter to swipe card and provide receipt to customer.

. Sales slips furnished by bank.

STAND ALONE TERMINAL

. EMYV Ready Terminals.

. Connect to analog phone line or Internet connection through router and Ethernet (Cat 5) cable.
WIRELESS TERMINAL

. Uses GPRS connection. Runs on battery or can be plugged into power source.

. In addition to standard transaction fees, have a monthly fee and a setup fee.

Easy to use, fast and affordable: Offering Dial-up; Internet or Wireless connectivity options.

ﬁ
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MEMBER FDIC of the Ozarks






June 18, 2021
Proposal for Merchant Processing

Credit Card Pricing

Monthly Fees

Discount Rate: BankCard Cost of Interchange Plus 0.30 %**
Authorization Fee: $ 0.05 per authorization -
Voice Authorization Fee: ~ $§  0.60/per authorization

Transaction Fee: $ 0.00/per transaction

Chargeback Fee: $ 25.00/chargeback occurrence

Retrieval Fee: § 5.00/occurrence

Monthly Account Fee $ 5.00/month

Monthly DataGuardian $ 14.95/month

**BankCard Interchange Cost can vary. The cost depends on the type of credit card and the
method of acceptance. See websites below for MasterCard, Visa and Discover interchange rates.
(MasterCard, Visa and Discover control these costs and they are subject to change.)
www. mastercardmerchant.com
www. usa.visa.com/merchants
www. discovernetwork.com

Equipment

Set-up, Training, and Customer Support

We will provide on-site setup/training for any terminal or software purchased through Bank at no
additional charge.

The merchant location will also be provided with a user’s guide and any promotional (e.g., decals,
counter signs) at no charge.

A 24-hour, 7-day-per-week, toll-free terminal and software support number will be available to all
member locations for processing procedures and transaction inquiries. Bank personnel may be
contacted during bank hours (8:00 am - 5:00 pm CST) for back-up support as needed. (i.e.
accounting, file maintenance, supplies orders, etc).






PREMIUM OFFERS RESERVED JUST FOR:

Employees of Christian County

At Ceniral Bank, you have access fo a host of financial services, all from one place as part of
our preferred client program.

Following are a few Premium Benefits we’ve reserved just for you.

* Open a qualifying Checking Account and get $1501
o $300 off closing costs of a new residential real estate loan2

s A .25% Discount on any posted consumer loan rate3

* FREE Medium 3x10 Sale Deposit Box at the facility of your choice (or credit applied to a another
box)4

* FREE Standard Personal Checks>

* Included at no exira charge:
- FREE Second Opinion from our Central Investment Advisors
- S0OS (Second Opinion Service) on your investment accounts, including an in-depth analysis of

asset allocation, fees and performance

For additional information:

Please bring in this flyer to any Central Bank of the Ozarks location before
12/31/2021 to toke advantage of these special offers.

OFFERS EXPIRE 12/31/2021 1, Minimum fo open any qualifying checking cccount is $50. No minimum balcnce required fo receive incentive for o qualifying checking account.
Incentive for apening a qualifying checking accountis §150., Avuiﬁ:ble to new account customers only. If checking accaunt is clased within first 90 days a fee may be imposed.
Incentives will ﬁ:ndeposiked to the qualifying checking account within 90 business days after the account is Funclec? Promoticn ends 12/31/2021. Incentive reported as interest to the
IRS. One offer per household. We reserve ﬂw right io not open accounts for cuslomers cutside our morket area. 2. $300 off closing costs is available anly for new residential real estofe
locns from Central Bank Merigage. Subject fo approval. 3. Fixed rate close ended consumer loan subject o underwriting and leon cpproval. .25% discount available on any posted
consurmer installment loan for consumer purpose only, excluding fixed rate mortgages. Mot to be combined with ather consumer loan promotional rates or offers. Posted consumer loan
inferest rates are subject fo change, 4. Requires acfive loan or cﬁaposit relationship. 5. Limit one box of standard chedks per order. Al cffers are subject to change. Not ol offers are
avoiloble ot oll affiliates of Centrol Bancompeny. Flease contact Central Bank for more details.

ﬁ
Central Bank

of the Ozarks ™™™
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EMPLOYMENT MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS - BANKCARD OPTIONS

3-_:_ Central Bank

3o
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CARDHOLLER NANE

Small Business Card
(1 Card)

» Free Rewards to use toward
travel, merchandise or gift
cards.

« Earn ] point for every dollar
plus bonus point options.

» Revolving balance with
purchase APR.

« Extended Warranty Coverage.

+ MasterRental® Insurance.
+ 0% Fraud Liability.
+ NO Annual Fee.

3 Central Bank

L

: business
S k5U12 7512 341@ 345k
' +% G0/00

A§CARDH0LLER HANE

Mid-fier Business Card
(2-10 Cards)

» Customized cards (fees apply).

» Travel & Merchandise Rewards
or Cash Rebates.

» Revolving balance with
purchase APR.

»  Full administrator access
for user updates, monitor &
control spending limits.

+ Individual or consolidated
statements.

+  Multiple billing cycle options.

0% Fraud Liability.

* NO Annual Fee.

Fiy
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Commercial Multi Card
(More than 10 Cards)

Customized cards (fees apply).
Revenue share cash back.
Consolidated volume means
more revenue shares.

Allin one card: corporate
card, purchasing card, fleet
card.

" Full administrator access

for user updates, monitor &
control spending limits,
Custom Reports.

Individual or consolidated
statements.

Multiple billing cycle options.
0% Fraud Liability.

NO Finance or Annual Fee.

When it comes to saving you money,
we’re all business.

BankCard Services

' mastercard
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EMPLOYMENT MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS - HSA CENTRAL ﬂ
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HSA Central
A Better Way to Manage your Hedlth Care — Today and Tomorrow

Retain and recruit talented employess with healthcare spending control and an easyto-use refirement
savings tool. Get access to a team dedicated to help through enrollment, eligibility, reporting,

and employee communication, as well as an employer portal with flexibility to update employee
information and contributions.

What this means for you:

Your employer portal is a HIPAAcompliant, reaMime interfoce that empowers HR staff to have secure
access o everything they need, such as reports and employee data. Features include:

* Employee Management: Online lookup helps employers respond fo employee quesfions and issues.

* Enrollment and Eligibility Management: Enroll, update, and change employment status via the portal.

* Account Funding & Contribution Management: Multiple options available for funding accounts,
including scheduled and recurring contributions, and filebased contribution submission.

* Robust, Flexible Reporting: Automatically scheduled, as well s ondemand reports of your fingertips,
available in multiple file types.

What this means for your employees:

Your employees have 24,/7 access to manage their healthcare funds from the HSA Central Mobile
App [dedicated specifically o their HSA) or our new online platform. Features include:

* Fund and Account Management: View the account balance, status of historicol and pending activity
from contributions and funding sources, plus bil pay and debit card ransactions. Employees can even
snap pictures of receipts with the dedicated HSA Central Mobile App.

* Self-Service: View and updote personal data; sign up for and manage direct deposit and card status;
enrol in text and email communications.

* Investing Tools: Ecsily plan and budget for future healthcare expenses, including managing HSA invesiments
and sefting a threshold on your cash account to automatically invest when funds reach a cerlain amount,

* Controlled Expenses: HSA Central Debit Mastercord® helps prevent ineligible health core items from
being purchased ot refal, drug, and grocery stores. -

BUSINESS SOLUTIONS Central Bank

MEMBER FDIC of the Ozarks






ATTENTION:
Madi Hires, Executive Administrative Assistant
Christian County Commission
100 W Church Street Room 100
Ozark, MO 65721

June 21, 2021

-
N2 Southern
—BANK-—

Strong Roots. Strong Branches.



June 21, 2021

Ms, Madi Hires

Christian County Commission
100 W Church Street Room 100
Ozark, MO 65721

Dear Ms. Hires:

Southern Bank appreciates the opportunity to provide this proposal to serve as depository for Christian
County Commission (“the County”}. Below you will find a bid indicating that Southern Bank can provide
services to the County at no charge, while providing a competitive earnings rate and meeting all
expectations of the County for security, ease of processing, and information reporting. Equally, Southern
Bank is committed to providing improved and responsive service daily to the County.

Southern Bank is a state-chartered commercial bank, headquartered at 2991 Oak Grove Road in Poplar
Bluff, Missouri. Southern Bank was founded in 1887, and at December 31, 2020, reported total assets of
$2.6 billion. We operate 49 locations in Missouri, Arkansas and Iinois. Southern Bank is a well-capitalized
financial institution experienced in providing banking services to city, county, and other governmental
units, including school districts and utilities. Examples of public units using our banking services include
the Greene County Treasurer, Dunklin County Treasurer, the City of Kimberling City, Reeds Spring R-4
Public Schools, Blue Eye R-V School District, PWSD #1 of Stone County, and Logan-Rogersville R-VIIl School
District.

We look forward to our ongoing partnership and improving our processes to better meet the needs of the,
County. The primary contact for your banking relationship will be Susie Ballard, Branch Retail Manager.
To make banking easy for the County, our Remote Deposit Capture, Payroll, Cash Management and other
services will be offered at no charge. If we are selected as your primary banking partner, we will be able
to provide timely communication to the County for returns, potential check fraud and payroll related
issues.

Southern Bank proposes to serve as the County depository with no charges for all of the following:
account activity, statements, or maintenance; access to our internet banking and commercial cash
management program, including Positive Pay (see below for description of services); cashier’s checks;
wire transfers; stop payment orders; deposit bags; deposit slips; checks; and endorsement stamp.
Southern Bank does not provide a courier service for cash deposits.

For any protested warrants Christian County may present as well as any future indebtedness during this
four year period, Southern Bank will purchase tax anticipation notes or similar short term debt issuances
assuming compliance with the bank’s lending policy and safe and sound banking practices at a yield equal
to the published WS) prime rate. A bid will be provided at the opening or renewal time for any CD’s for
the county.



Service Reguired Yes/No | Monthly Fee, if Compensating Balance Requirement,
any if any

Offer demand deposit accounts Yes None N/A
Serve as depository for federal withholding None
deposits Yes N/A
Deliver statement by 5th of month Yes None N/A
Provide canceled checks, deposit slips & None
returned items Yes N/A
Furnish at no cost:

Ledger Credits

Deposited Items : Yes None N/A

Ledger debits

Controlled disbursement debits
Provide printed duplicate deposit tickets Yes None N/A
Provide printed checks Yes None N/A
Provide coin bags, allow bulk coin deposits Yes None N/A
Provide cashier's checks Yes None N/A
Provide safe deposit box Yes None ' N/A
Wire transfers and transfers within None
depository Yes N/A
Stop payment orders Yes None N/A
Provide direct deposit of payroll Yes None N/A

Our internet banking and cash management program includes the following services:

s ACH Credit Origination: allows the County to make deposits directly to other accounts, which is
useful if you want to offer direct paycheck deposit to your employees (Direct Deposit).

s ACH Debit Origination: allows the County to process withdrawals directly from other accounts,
which is useful if you want to offer users the convenience of paying bills automatically (Auto Debit
or Direct Payment).

+ Balance Reporting: allows the County to create balance reports on individual accounts or any
combination of accounts, which can be created for the current day, for a prior day, or for the
current and a prior day.

e Account Transfers: allows the County to make account-to-account transfers within Southern Bank
to manage your cash flow. 7

e Check Reconciliation (Positive Pay): allows the County to monitor checks clearing your account(s)
to prevent check fraud.

+ EFTPS: allowing the County to pay federal taxes by direct deposit.

» NACHA Import: allows the County to import NACHA-formatted files that include both credit and
debit items.




Secure File Transfer: allows the County to send an encrypted file of sensitive information to
Southern Bank via encrypted email.

Wire Transfers Requests: allows the County to send wire transfer requests directly to Southern
Bank, selecting an Online Banking account that will be debited for the transaction.

We would like to provide the County with the below option for earnings on funds held in Southern Bank
accounts utilizing our Insured Cash Sweep (ICS*) program:

Earnings Rate: A floating earnings rate equal to 80% of the 91-day (13 week) Treasury
bill. The rate would be set on the first business day of each month using the yield on the
91-day Treasury bill {13 week) as published in the Wall Street Journal. As of June 18,
2021, the 91-day T-bill rate was 0.025% which would have yielded an earnings rate of
0.02%.

Floor Rate: While your earnings rate as outlined above may increase, Southern Bank will
also include a floor-rate of 0.20% so your interest-bearing accounts will not fall below
this rate during the duration of this agreement.

* To improve your earnings while still fully complying with Missouri or Federal law regarding
security and collateralization of deposits, we will arrange that your deposits are covered by
FDIC insurance, while managing your full account balance through Southern Bank, using an
insured Cash Sweep (ICS)™ provided by our partner, Promontory Interfinancial Network,
LLC. Through 3,000 partner financial institutions nationwide {including 74 headquartered in
Missouri), Promontory provides the ability to maximize FDIC insurance coverage through the
use of reciprocal deposit relationships. This arrangement is specifically authorized under
Missouri law at RSMo. 67.085, and I've included some information on this programin this
packet.

When we are required to hold collateral for deposits, we purchase investment securities
issued by government-sponsored enterprises such as Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, which
operate nationally. If effect, your deposits at any bank in the Christian County market, when
collateralized by these types of securities, mostly leave community. Because we operate at
a community bank, we’d prefer to invest your deposits through loans in our community:
security your deposits using FDIC insurance maximized under the ICS™ program allows us to
do that. The deposits you place through Southern Bank will be transferred to other financial
institutions in Missouri and elsewhere, but they’ll be exchanged on a reciprocal basis,
meaning we receive back the same amount of deposits, which we can invest locally in home,
business, construction, and development lending.

In addition to the services above, Southern Bank is pleased to offer all County Employees a Health Savings
Account {HSA) earning a 0.50% Annual Percentage Yield with no monthly service charges

Susie Ballard at our Ozark location located at 2471 W Jackson Ozark, MO, will be your primary local
contact and can be reached at 417-724-5105.



Again, Southern Bank would appreciate the opportunity to serve The Christian County Commission, and
we look forward to hearing from you. Please contact me with any questions.

Sincerely,




Ralph Phillips

Christian County Commission e commeen

Lynn Morris
100 W. Church‘STree.’r Room 100 Eastern Commissioner
Ozark, Missouri 65721 _
(417)582-4300 Hosea Blyey

Western Commissioher

Invitation to Bid: County Depository Bank Services

CONTACT; Madi Hires, Executive Administrative Assistant
ADDRESS: Christian County Government
100 W. Church §t., Room 100
Ozark, MO 45721
PHONE: {(417) 582-4300
EMAIL: countycommission@christichcountymo.gov

The emall address Histed above Is for information requests only and shall not be used for submission of proposals or
modiflcations to proposals, Such submissions will be rejected and deleted without notlifcation fo the sending party.

|
|
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RETURN BID TO: Christian County Commission
100 West Church Streel, Room 100
Ozark, Missouri 65721

NOTE: ‘Please provide (4) four copies and one unbound orlginal of your detailed bid proposal
The bidder hereby declares understanding, agreement, and certification of compliance to provide the items
and/or services, at the prices quoted, In accordance with all requirements and specifications contained herein
and the Terms and Conditions for this proposal. The pidder further agrees that the language of this RFP shall
govern in the event of a conflict with his/her bid. The bidder further agrees that upon receipt of an authorized
purchase order from the Chistion County Commission or when an Agreement for Contract Services is cerfified

by the Christian County Auditor, & binding contract shall exist between the Bidder and the County of Christian,
State of Missourl, -

Christian County maintains a list of vendors interested in bidding on products and services for Christian Counly.
it is the vendor's responsibility to update contact information. Vendors are removed from the list if they are
invited to bid, but do not participate. The Christian County Commission office is not obligated fo send
invitations to vendors. Due to the volume of request and posiage costs, the Commission Office does not send
bids 1o all inferested vendors, Christian County fulfills its legal reguirements by posting a notice in the local
naper,



(1) SUBMITTAL INSTRUCTIONS:

Please print the due date on the outside of the package and return this entire document with your bid
submission. Mark your sealed envelope "OFFICE SUPPLIES - BID DOCUMENTS - DO NOT OPEN", Sealed
bids must be received at the Christian County Commission by the return date and time. No bid
transmitted by fax machine or email will be accepted. Bids are opened in public meetings on the
opening date and time specified above. Any interested persons may attend. Bids must be delivered
no later than fifteen {15) minutes before bid cpening time mentioned above. If the Commission office
receives a container which is not identifiable as a bid/proposal, the container will be opened in order
to defermine the conients, If the contents are determined fo be a bid/proposal, the container will be
resealed, and the date and time received will be noted on the outside. All bids will remain sealed until
they are opened and read aloud during the Christian County Commission meeting at the specified
time. Bids which are not received in the Commissioner's Office at least 15 minutes prior to bid opening
date and time shall be considered late, regardless of the degree of lateness, and normally will not be
presented or opened, except as stated below. At the time fixed for opening of proposcls, the content
"~ will be made public for the vendor and other interested persons, Vendors are cautioned fo review their
bid very carefully, Any additional information, specifications, drawings, efc. should be attached., Bids
should be signed and dated. It shall be the responsibllity of persons submitiing bids to acquire the
necessary specifications.

(2) LATE BIDS:

Under exiraordinary circumstances, the Commission may authorize the opening of a late bid when the
bid was furned over to the physical control of an independent postal or courler service with a promised
delivery time prior to the time sei for the opening of bids. The County Commission is not responsible for
bids sent to the wrong address, faxed, emailed, or received affer the cut-off date and time., Remember
to address or hand-deliver your bid. Bids will not be accepted by fax or email because we must have
the original signed document. Bidders must consider the postal service or courier fime schedules when
sending their bids and provide ample time for delivery, The following guidelines may be utilized to
determine the criteria for an extraordinary circumstance: Christian County offices were closed due to
inclement weather conditions, postal or courler services were delayed due fo labor strikes or
unforeseen-"Acts of God", or postal or courier services did not meet the delivery time promised to the
vendor. In such case, the vendor must provide written proof that promised delivery time was prior fo
the time sef for the bid opening. Al such declsions are at the sole discretion of the Commission.

(3) Bid Withdrawal:

After the bid opening, o vendor may be permitted to withdraw a bid prior to the award at the sole
discretion of the County Commissioners If there is a verifiable error in the bid and enforcement of the
bid would impose ah unconscionable hardship on the vendor. The withdrawal will be considered only
after receipt of a written request supporting documentation from ihe vendor., Withdrawal shall be the
vendor's sole remedy for an error other than the obvlous clerical error,

(4) Product Samples:

The Commission may request samples for evaluation purposes. Any samples reguested must be
provided free of charge. Samples which are not destroyed by testing will be returned at the vendor's
expense If return of the samples is stipulated in the vendor's bid. Samples submitted by a vendor who
receives the award may be kept for the duration of the contract for comparison with shipments
received,

2|Page



(5) temization of Proposail:

Vendor must clearly identify in his/her bid and on the pricing worksheet, all components. 1t is
mandatory that vendors submit with their proposal documents, itemization of alt goods and services
proposed. The breakdown must be itemized by model/part number, description of goods or services,
and unit cost,

(8) Minority Business Participation:

Christian County encourages the participation and utllization of minority business enterprises in all
projects of the county. Christian County will provide equitable and fair opportunity to minority
businesses to submit bids and proposals and to receive an award. By responding 1o this invitation, the
vendor agrees that it does not discriminate on the basis of race, religion, creed, national origin, age,
sex or disability, and that it will refrain from any unlawful employment practices.

(7) Communication with County Employees:

Vendors shall not communicate with any county employee regarding this [nvitation to bid with the
exception of the county contact written on the first page. Vendors shall ensure that no improper,
unethical, or illegal relationships or conflict of interest exists between vendor, the county, any
employee, officer, director, or principal of vendor or the county and any other party, The county
reserves the right to determine the materiality of such relationships, when discovered or disclosed,
whether intended or not. The county dlso reserves ihe right fo decide at its sole discretion whether
disqualification of vendor and/or cancellation of award shall result.  Such disqudiification or
cancellation shall be without fault or tiability fo the county.

(8) Collusion:

By submitting a proposal in response to this invitation to bid, vendor and each person sighing on behalf
of the vendor, certify under penatty of perjury, that to the best of his/her belief the pricesin the proposal
were arrived at independently and without collusion, consultation, communication, or agreement for
the purpose of restricting competition as to any matter relating to such prices with any other vendor,
or any other competitor, Unless otherwise required by law, the prices in the bid have not been
knowlingly disclosed by vendor, and will not be knowingly disclosed by vendor, prior to opening, directly
or indirectly, to any other vendor or competitor, No atfempt has been made or will be made by vendor
or any other person associated with this invitation to bid, parthership, corporation, or entity to submit
or not to submit a proposal in response to this bid for the purpose of restiicting competition.

(9) Incurred costs:

The county is not liable for any costs incurred by a vendor in the preparation or production of its
proposal or for any work performed prior to the issuance of a valid contract under Missouri law. Such
exempftion from liability applies whether such costs are incurred by vendor or indirectly through vendors
agent, employees, assigns or others, whether related or not to vendor.

(10) For Construction Services:

All on site employees of vendors and sub vendors must complete required safely training. Reguired
safety training is OSHA 10 training. (A ten (10) hour course in construction safety and health faught by
an OSHA approved instructor), or similar program ot least as stringent as OSHA 10 training. For more
information contact the Missouri Division of Labor Standards. Christian County requires documentation
showing that the on-site employee/s have completed the required training.

(11} Vendor's Personnel Qualifications:
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Christian County reserves the right to approve or disapprove the vendor's personnel providing services
for Christian County Government. Christian County also reserves the right fo request replacement of
any person assigned to provide services. Unless the situation regarding the personnel requires
immediate replacement, the vendor shall be allowed at least fourteen (14) days affer nofification to
replace unsafisfactory personnel.

If requested, the vendor shall provide a list of names, soclal security numbers, and dates of birth for
edch such personnel who will be providing sefvices at Christian County buildings. In addition, the
vendor must notify Christian County of any additions or changes to the list, Christian County reserves
the right to accept or reject any of the vendor's personnel assigned to the contract to provide services.

{(12) Discount applicable:

Vendor will provide information on any quantity discounts that may apply to the equipment or
services utilized In developing thelr pricing structure. State the length of time the discounts are
available post-installation,

(13) Insurance:

The vendor shall understand and agree that Christion County cannot save and hold harmless and or
indemnify the vendor or employees against any liability incurred or arising as a result of any activity of
the vendor, or any activity of the vendor's employees related o the vendor's performance under the
confract. Therefore, the vendor must acquire and maintain adequate liability insurance in the form (s)
and amount (s) sufficient to protect Christian County, its agencies, its employees, its clients, and the
generdl public against any such loss, damage and/or expense related to his/her performance under
this contract. The vendor shall take out and maintain during the life of the contract comprehensive
generat liability insurance which names Christian County, Missourt and its elected officials and
employees as additional named insureds in an amount sufficient to cover the sovereign immunity fimits
for public entities as calculated by the Department of insurance and published annually in the Missouri
Register per section 537.610, RSMo. For the life of the contract, vendor shall maintain comprehensive
general liabilily insurance coverage for all claims arising out of ¢ single accident or occurence of at
least $3,000,000.00 and for any one person in a single accident or occurrence of at least $500,000.00
vendor shall maintain during the life of the contract Workers Compensation Insurance for Vendor's
employees coverage that shall meet Missourl statutory limits or $1,000,000 for each accident,
whichever is greater, General and other non-professional liability insurance shall inciude an
endorsement that adds Christian County and their respective officials and employees as an additional
insured. Self-insurance coverage or another afternative risk financing mechanism may be utilized
provided that such coverage is verlfiable and irevocably reliable and Chiristian County is protected
as an additional insured.

{14) Vendor Liability:

The vendor shall be responsible for any and all persenal injury (including death) of property damage
as o result of the vendor's negligence involving any equipment or setvice provided under the ferms
and conditions, requirements and specifications of the contract. In addition, the vendor assumes the
obligation to save Christian Counly, including its agencies, employees, and assignees, from every
expense, liabllity, or payment arising out of such negligent act. The vendor also agrees to hold
Christian County including its agencies, employees, and assignees, harmiess for any negligent act or
omission committed by any subcontractor or other person employed by or under the supervision of
the vendor under the terms of the contract. The vendor shall not be responsible for any injury or
damage occuring as a result of any negligent act or omission commifted by Christian County,
including its agencies, employees, and assignees.
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(15) Business Compliance:

The vendor must be financially sound and must not be operating under the protection of the United
States Bankruptcy Code. The vendor must be in compliance with the laws regarding conducting
business in the State of Missourl, The vendor certifies by signing the signature page of this original
document and any amendment signature page(s) that the vendor and any proposed subcontractors
either are presently in compliance with such laws or shall be in compliance with such faws prior to any
resulting contract award, The vendor shall provide documentation of compliance upon recuest by
Christian County, The compliance to conduct businessin the state shall include but may not be limited
to:

- Registration of business name. (if applicable)

_ Cerfificate of authority to transact business/certificate of good standing. (if applicable)

- Taxes (e.g., city/county/state/federal)

. state and local cerifications {e.g. Professions/occupations/activities)

. Lecenses and permits (e.g., city/county license, sales permits)

Insurance (e.g., worker's compensation/unemployment compensation)

14) Terms and Conditions:

The vendor is cautioned when submitting pre-printed forms containing terms and conditions or other
type material to make sure such documents do not contain other terms and conditions which confiict
with those of this agreement and its contractual requirements. The vendor cgrees that in the event of
conflict between any of the vendor's terms and conditions and those contdined in this agreement,
that this agreement shall govern. Taking exception to Christian County terms and conditions may
render a vendor's bid non-responsive and remove 1t from consideration for award,

BANKING.DEPOSITORY SPECIFICATIONS

Agreement must include effective date of 1# day of July 2021, by and between the COUNTY OF CHRISTIAN, STATE
OF MISSOURI, @ political subdivision consisting of a county of the first classiiication, without @ charter form of
government (hereinafter referred to as the “County”), and the Bank and each hereby state;
In compliance with the provisions of Chapter | 10, RSMo., the County, on the 28t day of June 2021, will select and
designate the Bank as the officlal depository to receive the funds of the County from the 1t day of July 2021
through the 30 day of June 2023, and the Bank has accepted said designation and agreed to act as said
depository, The County and the 8ank agree that the contract would have an option to be exiended for the
period of the 30" day of june 2023 ihrough the 30 day of June 2025, unless one or both of the parties provides
written notification not later than the 30t day of May 2023, that the contract will not be extended. The Bank shall
notify the Chrlstian County Commission and any other office or department utilizZing the County’s Tax 1D In writing
and the County will provide wiitten nofification to the Bank through the officer assigned pursuant to 4.4 of the
proposed agreement.

A binding contract shall consist of: (1) the RFP or invitation 1o bid, amendments thereto, with RFP bid invitation
changes/additions, {2) the vendor's proposal and (3) the County Commission's acceptance of the proposal by
"nolice of award" or by “purchase order™. All Exhibits ond Attachments included in the RFP or bid invitation shall
be incorporated info the contract by reference.

The contract expresses the complete agreement of the parties and performance shall be governed solely by the
specifications and requirements contained therein,

Any changes 1o the contract, whether by modification and/or supplementation, must be accomplished by a
formal contract amendment signed and approved by and between ihe duly authorized representative of the
vendor and the County Commission or by a modified purchase order prior fo the effective date of such
maodification. The vendor expressly and explicitly understands and agrees that no other method and/or no other
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document, including correspondence from the County Commission, acts, and eral communications by or from
any person, shall be used or construed as an amendment or modification to the contract.

(17) Employee Bidding/Conlflict of interest:

Vendors who are elected or appointed officials or employees of Christian County or any political
subdivision thereof, serving in an executive or administrative capacity, must comply with sections
105.450 to 105,458, RSMo, regarding conflict of interest. If the vendor or any owner of the vendor's
organization is cutrently an elected or appointed official or an employee of Christian County or any
political subdivision thereof, please provide the following information:

Name and title of the elected or appointed official or employee of Christian County or any
Political subdivision. '

- What is the percentage of ownership interest in the vendor's organization held by elected or
appolnted official or employee of Christian County or political subdivision thereof?

(18) Independent Contractor:

The vendor is an independent contractor and shall not represent the vendor or the vendor's
employees to be employees of Christian County or an agency of Christian County. The vendor shalll
assume all legal and financial responsibility for salaries, laxes, FICA, employee fringe benefits, workers
compensation, employee insurance, minimum wage requirements, overtime, efc.

(19) Substituilons:

The vendor shall not substitute any item(s) without the prior written approval of the Christian County
Commissioners. In the event an item becomes unavailable, the vendor shall be responsible for
providing a sultable substitute item., The vendor's failure to provide an acceptable substitute may
result in cancellation or termination of the contract. Any item substitution must be a replacement of
the contracted item with a product of equal or better capabilities and quality, and with equal of
lower pricing. The vendor shal understand that Christian County reserves the right to allow the
substitution of any new or different product/system offered by the vendor. Christian County shall be
the final authority as o the acceptability of any proposed substitution. Any item substitution shall
require a formal contract amendmeni authorized by Christian County Commissioners prior to
Christian County acquiring the substitute item under the contract. The vendor shall not be relieved of
substituting o product in the event of manufacturer discontinuation or other reason simply for reasons
of unprofitapility to the vendor. -

(20) Replacement of Damaged Product:

The vendor shall be responsible for replacing any item received in damaged condition at no cost fo
Christian County. This includes cll fuel costs for returning non-functional items to the vendor for
replacement,

{21) Prices:

The vendor shall submit firm fixed prices on the Pricing Page (Exhibif A ~ Pg. 3 Exhibit 1), Al pricing shall
be considered firm for the duration of the contract period. Al pricing shall be quoted with all fees
included. Vendor's prices must be the lowest offered to any governmental or commerclal consumer,
under the same terms and conditions.
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{22) Fuel charges:

Fuel charges shall be added into the quote for services, However, it the cost of #2 diesel as reported
by the Depariment of Energy internet site and recorded as the "Weekly Retail On-Highway Diesel
Prices” for the Midwest Region exceeds $3.50 per gallon, the vendor will chargeé no more than 1 %%
for each $.10 increase in the recorded cost of fuel above the $3.50 base line. It is expected, because
of the timeliness of the DOE reporl, the cost of fuel for a prior month shall be used as the basis for
current month's fuel surcharge assessment. January's reported diesel cost shall be used to compute
any surcharge for February's services, etc. Vendor agrees that any additional charges related to fuel
incrzases must be agreed upon between vendor and Christian County before implementation by the
vendor,

(23) Description of Product:

The vendor should present a detalled description of the product proposed on the Pricing Sheet (Exhibit
1} inresponse to this Invitation for Bld. It is the vendor's responsibility to make sure all products proposed
~ are adeguately described in order to conduct an evaluation of the bid. At the time fixed for opening
" of proposals, the content will be made public for the information of the bidder and others interested.

(24) Non-Exclusivity:

The Contract is non-exclusive and shall not in any way preclude the County from entering into sirnilar
agreements and/or arrangements to acquire equal or like goods and/or services from other vendors,
The County may make multiple awards from a single solicitation document when such awards are in
the best interest of the county.

(25) Bllling and Payments:

involces will be submitted to Chiistian County: Commission, 100 W-Church '$t"'Room :100; Ozark,:MO
45721, It is estimated there are 25 various offices and departments requiring separate billing (if
applicable to bid products offered). Vendor shall provide the departiment with involces and
statements of accounts on a monthly basis noting any amounts and invoices past due. Invoices should

be delivered with the materials and packing slip. Payment will be made within 30 days from receipt of
an daccurate invoice.

Services or goods must be received before payment can be made. The vendor shall submit all reports
required herein and a copy of each invoice as supporting documentation with the monthly statement.
Other than the payments and reimbursements specifled above, no other payments or reimbursements
shall be made to the vendor for any reason whatsoever including, but not limited 1o taxes, shipping
charges, insurance, Interest, penaities, termination payments, attorney fees, iquidated damages, efc.
Notwithstanding any other payment provision of the contract, if the vendor fails to perform required
work or services, fails to submit reports when due, oris indebted 1o the United States, Christian County
may withhold payment or reject invoices under the contract,

Final invoices are due no later than thirty ({30) calendar days affer the expiration of the contract.
Christian County shall have no obligation fo pay any involce submitted after such date, If a request by
the vendor for payment or reimbursement is deniad, Christian County shall provide the vendor with
written notice of the reason(s) for denial.

If the vendor Is overpaid by Christian County, upon official notification by Christian County, the vendor
shall provide Christian County with a check payable os instructed by Chiistian County in the amount
of such overpayment. The vendor shall submit the overpayment to Christian County ot the address
specified. The vendor shall agree and understand that Christian County shall be solely responsible for
payment for only those services requested by Christian County.

7| Page



(26) Return of Goods:
Christian County may cancel any purchase at any fime for full credit.
(27) Management of Materials:

The vendor agrees and understands that as the needs of the county change, the county will notify the
vendor of those changes. If requested by the county, the vendor shall make a corresponding
adjustment to the services. The vendor will implement the requested changes upon notification.

In the event changes occur during the effective period of this contract which are beyond the control
of the vendor that significantly increase or decrecse the established cost, the vendor or Christian
County may request a corresponding modification to the established cost.

With such request, the vendor must provide documeniation of the change and must demonsirate how
such change affects the cost. In addifion, the vendor shall recommend an adjusted cost
accompanied by the resulting calculations. However, the vendor shall agree and understand that
any such request must be approved by the Christian County Commissioners.

The decision of the adjustment to the cost by Christian County shall be final and without recourse.

(28) Schedule:

The vendor shall ensure that services are performed in a manner so as to minimize any interference,
annoyance, or disruption to the operations of Christian County.

in the event the vendor does not perform in accordance with the vendor's agreement, Crrlstian
County shall notify the vendor following determination of such, Vendor shall be responsive to the needs
of Christian County at all times. The vendor shall be responsible for all permits, fees, and expenses
related to the service. The vendor shall disclose to Christian County alf information on sub vendor
contracts/agreements, if applicable, including any rebates or incentives offered by sub vendors to the
contactor,

(29) Services:

The vendor agrees to provide a detailed description of the services to be provided, including any
additional information about the services on a separate sheet of paper if needed. The vendor will
provide an itemization of the amount the vendor will charge, the unit of measure for the services, and
specific Incremenis and fimeframes to submit invoices to the vendor and receive payments from the
vendor,

(30) Reporting Requirements:

On a monthly basis, the vendor shall submit a report to Christian County for each County building site,
identify the services provided and the dates of service.

The vendor must maintain financial and accounting records and evidence pertaining to the contract
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principtes. The vendor shall make all records,
books, and other documents relevant to the contract available to Christian County and the Chistian
County Auditor in an acceptable tormat and ot dli reasonable times during the ferm of the contract,
and for three (3) years from the date of final payment on the contract or the completion of an
independent audit, whichever is later, If any lifigation, claim, negotiation, audit, or other actions
involving the records has been started before the expiration of the retention period, the vendor shall
retain such records until completion of the action and resolution of all issues which arise from it. Fallure
to refain adequate documentation for any service biled may result in recovery of payments for
services not adequately documented.
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The vendor shall permit the County Auditor or authorized representatives of Christian County or any
other division of government to have access, for the purpose of auditing or examination, to any of the
vendor's books, documents, papers, records, recording receipts and disbursements of any of the funds
paid 1o the vendor, The vendor further agrees that any audit exception noted by governmental
auditors shall not be pald by Christion County and shall be the sole responsibility of the vendor.
However, the vendor shall have the right fo contest any such exception by any legal procedure the
vendor deems appropriate. Christian County will pay the vendor all amounts which the vendor may
ultimately be held enfitled fo receive as a result of any such legal action.

The vendor shall agree and understand that if contract monitoring reveals that an audit is warranted,
Christian County reserves the right fo require the vendor to have an audit of financial records,
accounting records, and related confract documentation performed by an independent Certified
Public Accountant (CPA) in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Christian
County's determingtion of the need for the audit shall be final and without recourse.

(31) Liguidated Damages:.

The vendor agrees and understands that the provision of the services In accordance with the
schedules and reauirements stated herein and In accordance with the Christian Counly
Commissioner's approval are considered crifical to the efficient operations of Christian County. Since
the amount of actual damages would be ditficult to establish in the event the vendor fails to comply
with the schedules and requirements, the vendor shall agree and understand that the amount
identified below as liquidated damages shall be reasonable and fair under the circumstances:

In the event the vendor fails to perform the services, the vendor shall be assessed liquidated damages
in the amount of ten percent (10%} of the price for the services for each twenty-four {24) hour period
thereafter in which the identified requirement is not compieted. if the fault lies with Christian County,
no assessment shall be made,

The vendor shall also agree and understand that such liquidated damages shall either be deducted
from the vendor's invoices pursuant to the contract or paid by the vendor as direct payment fo
Christian County at the sole discretion of Christian County, ,

The vendor shall agree and understand that all assessments of liquidated damages shall be within the
discretion of Christian County and shall be in addition 1o, not in lieu of, the rights of Christian County to
pursue other appropriate remedies,

(32) Excused Performance:

Any failure or delay in performance or payment due to contingencies beyond either party's
reasonable control, including strikes, rots, terrorist acts, compliance with applicable laws or
governmentai orders, fires, and acts of God, shall not constitute a breach of this agreement.

(33) Cancelling Service:

The Christian County Commission reserves the right to discontinue setvice at any time by giving d
30-day notice. The vendor shall agree and understand that the vendor shall terminate the services
upon written notification from Christian County, The decision by the Christian County Commissioners
shall be fina! and without recourse.

(34) Determination for Award:

The award shall be made to the lowest priced and best responsive vendor. Christian County reserves
the right to reject any bid which is determined unacceptable for reasons which may include but are
not necessarly limited fo! 1) failure of the vendor to meet mandatory general performance
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specifications; and/or 2] failure of the vendor to meet mandatory technical specifications; and/or. 3)
receipt of any information, from any source, regarding delivery of unsatisfactory product or service oy
the vendor within the past three yedrs. As deemed in its best interests, Christian County reserves the
right fo clarify any and all porticns of any vendor's offer.

Agreements signed by Christian County must be signed by at least a majority of the members of the
County Commission. Agreements must be attested by the County Clerk and approved to form by the
County Counselor. In addition, the County Auditor must certify that there is an unencumbered
balance available to pay the contract cost.

(35) Protesting bid award:

A bld award protest must be submitted in wiiting and must be received by the county within ten (10)
calendar days after the date of the award. If the tenth day falls on a Saturday, Sunday or state holiday,
the period shall extend fo the next business day. A protest submitted after the ten {10) catendar day
period shall not be considered. The written protest should include the following information: {A} Name,
address, and phone number of the protester, (B) Signature of the protester or the protester's
representative, (C) Solicitation product, (D) Detailed statement describing the grounds for the protest;
and supporting exhibits, evidence, or documentation to substantiate the claim.

(36) Suspension or debarment of Vendor:

The County Commission may suspend of debar a vendor for cause. The following shall be sufficient
cause for suspension or debarment. The ist is not meant fo be allinclusive but shall serve asd guideline
for vendor discipline and business ethics:

Failure to perform in accordance with the terms, conditions, and requirements of @ contract/purchase
order.

Violating any federal, state, or local law, ordinance or regulation in the performance of a
contract/purchase order.

Providing false or misleading information on an application, in a bid, or in correspondence o county
offices. ‘

Failure to honor @ bid for the length of fime specified.

Colluding with others to restrain competition. Obtaining information, by whatever medns, related to a
proposal submitted by a competitor in response to a request for proposal in order o obtain an unfdir
advantage during the negotiation process.

Contacting bid evaluators or any other person who may have influence over the award, without
authorization from the County Commission, for the purpose of influencing the award of a contract; or
giving gifts, medis, trips or any other thing of value or a monetary advantage for personal benefit,
directly or indirectly, to an employee of the county or to any evaluator of bids/proposals.

The vendor may appeal suspension or debarment by submitting a written request 1o the County
Commission within fifteen (15) calendar days after recelpt of the formal notice. The vendor must
provide specific evidence and reasons why the suspension of debarment is not necessary. On the
basis of this information, the suspension may be modified, rescinded, or affirmed. The decision shall be
final and mailed to all parties.
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(37) Declaration:

The vendor hereby declares understanding, agreement, and certification of compliance to provide
the items and/or services, at the prices quoted, In accordance with all terms and condifions,
requirements, and specifications of this origincil invitation to bid, The vendor further agrees that upon
receipt of an authorized purchase order from the Christian County Commission or when a Notice of
Award is signed and issued by the Commission, a binding contract shall exist between the vendor and
Christian County. Slanature reduired below confirming understanding of this statement.

Diﬁwg Business as (DBA) Name Legal Name of Entity/Individual Filed with IRS for this
Tax 1D No.
\ E}(l:HlM’n /m
Mdiling Address IRS Form 1099 Mailing Address
oA Dol frge fdd .
City, State, Zip Code City, State, Zip Code
il AL, 1. L&
S |

Coygfyct Person Email Address:
g’b&‘p @L‘Mdz gmd@ D@\ULLUEHISHJ’LWL.GV]

Phone Number Fax Number:
T AR SIS 417 -5 B
Authdrized Signdture Date

@/{M U/C‘;U ';20;[
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List three (3) business references:

1st

Company Name: Representative Name:

"Weods S.oriag B Sednoel Dis Gope. Dnianeoncgec

Address City State Zip

00031 Srade Wignung W Beeds Boclag TA0 (5T

Business Phone Business Fax Cellular Phone

(A A9-RITD  Eoer WO
email address if available %%“\““E\QW%Q{@LQQ\\) 25, KD ™o us

2nd
Company Name: Representative Name:
Phue Eye BV Bnool Oudracr  Chodin Soedeicly
Address City State Zip
LH3 Thade. NuowEER Ve Ty O LB L1
Business Phone Business Fax Cellular Phone

(LD 8- 530 ek D

email address if available TX reduci 'R © \Q\\,&%Q_ XKW mo LS
3rd

Company Name: Representative Name:

\_B(:S_\u{\_ ‘Y\)\D%QC uille (\)\m j)&lbnmij—- Mmdﬁ z
Address City State Zip

\QO E Nopok Sy (\\Q%Qm\f\\\e- Mo _LBINY

Business Phone Business Fax Cellular Phone
(D) AB-QF A

erdil address if available
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{38) Contact Information:

Any additional information desired may be requested by mail to the address listed, or by telephone
to 417-582-4300. Information requests may also be e-mailed to
countycommission@christiancountymo.gov. This e-mail address is for information requests only and
shall not be used for submission of proposals or modifications to proposals. Such submissions will be
relected and deleted without nofification to the sending party.

Thank you for your consideration of this Invitation to Bid. We appreciate your participation in the
bidding process.

CHRISTIAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
Ralph Phillips, Presiding Commissionar
Hosea Bilyeu, Western Commissioner

Lynn Morris, Eastern Commissioner
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Bid Specifications
Bld Submissions

All bids must be received on or before June 21¢, 2021 at 8:45 a.m. Bids must be received in a sedled
envelope to the Christian County Commission office 100 W, Church Street Room 100 Ozark, MO 65721,
Clearly mark the envelope with your company name and address. No faxed or emadiled bids will be
accepted. All bids must be filed out on Christian County bid forms supplied in the attached specifications.
If you have any products, additional services, or ptice adjustments please list these in the additional
charges/conditions sections. All bids must be signed and have the company's information included. If you
are bidding on more than one product or service, please include the company’sinformation dnd sign every
form you are bidding on. All bids must be in the format requested in the bid forms. Any variance from this
can cause rejection of the bid. The bid forms are the only part that must be retumed In your envelope. The
specification details may be kept by the bidder. Any bid that is submitted must be honored for 30 days
from the opening without any increase or change to price or penally. Failure o comply with the above
listed requirements may result in the rejection of the bid.

Bid Withdrawal

Any bid can be withdrawn up fo 8:45 a.m. on June 213, 2021 for any reason without penaities, but cany bid
not withdrawn by this time will be subject to honor the piicing and services stated within that bid,

Any bid can be withdrawn up to 8:45 a.m. on February 28, 2019 for any reason without penailties, but any
bid not withdrawn by this time will be subject fo honor the oricing and services stated within that bid,

Bld Opening

All bids will be opened and read aloud on June 21st, 2021 at 9:00 a.m. at the Christian County Commission
Office. The bidders and public are welcome to attend the formail bid opening. No decisions relating to the
award of any contract or agreement will be made at the bid opening. Coples of all bids will be available
to anyone.

Bidder Responsibility

It is the responsibility of the bidder to have the bid submitted on or before the deadline stated in this packet
on the proper forms. It is also the responsibility of the bidder to ensure that the prices they submit are firm
and not subject fo contingency or incredses. If a bidder's prices are subject in increases, penalties,
surcharges, or any addiional costs or fees it must be stated on the additional charges/conditions section
on each bid form. Any increase or decrease in a price is subject to affect the awarding of ¢ contract. Ifa
bidder fails to honor a stated price as submitted in the bid form or contract, Christian County Commission
reserves the right to obtain the same product or service from the next lowest bidder who submitted a bid
price for the same product or service. The original bidder shall then be responsible for the difference in
price. It is the responsibility of the bidder to examine and review projects and specifications. Al bidders are
responsible to verfy the quaiity, availability, and schedule of any products thai they may need for this bid,
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EXHIBIT 1

PROPOSED COST SCHEDULE
ITEM PROPOSED COST VOLUME
Deposit tems Neae 33,000
Checks Paid Sorne 46500
Returned Checks Neea, 55
Account Transfers ™Ce 50
Stop Payments e 40
ACH Transactions Acen 1500
Incoming nCwp
Outgoing Direct Deposit ™NCre 20 Files
Wire Transfers P
Incoming ‘Cep 25
QOuigoing e 250
Account Maintenance Sore Per month
Monthly Bank Statements Per month
w/account analysis Ncee 13 monthly 2quarterly
Security Safekeeping Doee
Safe Deposit Box-List size N One 3x10, One 5X10,
and location with pricing “eee One 10x10
Credit Card Fees Collector 2.5%
Treasurer 2.89% &
(.18 cents
4.13% & 0,18 cents Monthly
Fixed @29.75
Debit Card Fees Same As Above
Other costs: itemized on :
separate sheet of paper

OTHER FEES
ITEM PROPQSED COST
Deposited Checks Returned E(‘?e_
Reclearsd Deposited lfems Acre
ACH Return items "-.\_%ce,-a
ACH File Reversals Neee
ACH ltem Reversal {ti‘t_e
Image Copiles of Checks Bevs
Research and Reconcliling ‘%cme__
Special Statement xepe
Staiements on CD Nese
Monthly Internef Banking fFee "é_rree
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BANKING DEPOSITORY SPECIFICATIONS

Agreement must include effective date of 1 day of July 2021, by and between the
COUNTY OF CHRISTIAN, STATE OF MISSOURI, a political subdivision consisting of @ county
of the first classification, without a charter form of government (hereinafter referred to s
the “County"), and the Bank and each hereby state;

In compliance with the provisions of Chapter 110, RSMo., the County, on the 28" day of
June 2021, will select and designate the Bank as the official depository to receive the
funds of the County from the 15t day of July 2021 through the 30t day of June 2023, and
the Bank has accepted sald designation and agreed fo act as sald depository. The
County and the Bank agree that the contract would have an option to be extended for
the period of the 30t day of June 2023 through the 30 day of June 2025, unless one or
both of the parties provides written noftification not later than the 30" day of May 2023,
that the contract will not be extended. The Bank shall notify the Christicn County
Commisslon and any other office or department utilizing the County's Tax 1D in wiifing
and the County will provide written notification to the Bank through the officer assigned
pursucnt fo 4.4 of the proposed agreement,

SECTION 1-ACCOQUNTS

1.1 Provide full service checking account with two copies of the monthly bank
statement and account analysis reflecting monthly beginning balance, plus
deposits, less check honored each month, One copy shall be provided fo the
County Treasurer and one copy to the County Clerk as required In Chapter 110,
RSMo., and for the County Collector's accounts, one copy snall be provided fo
the County Collector and one to the County Auditor and for the Recorder of
Deeds one copy shall be provided.

1.2 This depository wil serve as d clearinghouse for accounts through which dll
deposits will be made all check drawn,

1.2.1 One (1) CERF account for the Treasurer shall be an investment account where
deposits are made but no checks are drawn. ACH debits and credits are drawn
on this account, Qutgoing wire transfers are also processed through this account.

1.2.2 Ten {10} regular checking accounts two (2) for Treasurer {one of which will require
outgoing wire transfers for payroll), two {2) for County Clerk, one (1) for Recorder
of Deeds, four {4) for Collector, one (1) for Assessor, shall be maintalned upon
which deposits will be maintained and checks will be drawn as needed.

1.2.3 A checking account shall be maintained for the Schoo! Account.
1.24 Two (2) regular interest-bearing savings accounts shall be maintained for the

Collector to deposit tax protest payments and surtaxes: said accounts to earn
interest at the rate designated in paragraph 2.2 of this Agreement,
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1.2.5 The costs for all current and future accounts shalt be based on the Depository
Proposal for Christian County Public Funds in the attached Exhibit "1". The County
Treasurer shall have the right to add or remove or change the designation of any
account throughout the course of this agreement and the Bank will charge fees
monthly according to the Proposed Cost Schedule for Christian County Public
Funds for the configuration of the accounts determined by the County Treasuret,

1.3 The Bank will serve as both sending and receiving bank on ACH system, Christian
County will pay charges as detailed in the Proposed Cost Schedule for Christian
County Public Funds of Exhibit “1" of this agreement,

1.4 State and Federal payroll and CERF payments are posted over the internet and
shall be billed according to the Proposed Cost Schedule for Christian Count Public
Funds attached to this Agreement.

SECTION 2-INVESTMENT

2.1 The Bank will maintain all accounts, except any accounts designated by the
Treasurer as a non-interest-bearing account pursuant to law, as interest bearing
checking accounts. The interest rafe designated in 2.2 of this agreement wil be
paid on closing ledger balances in the accounts and no reserve requirement wil
be assessed. These accounts will be fully collateraiized as required by Missouri law
ih Sections 110.020, 110.010, and 30.270, RSMo. An account analysis can be
provided for each account.

22 The interest rate paid on closing ledger balances will be as follows:

The Bank will pay interest on all Christian County checking accounts current and future
(currently 16 accounts: ¢ for Treasurer, 4 for Collector, 2 for County Clerk, and 1 for the
Recorder of Desds) and all Christion County savings accounts current and future
{currently 2 for the County Collector) covered by the Depository Agreement. As
requested, rates are quotedin relation to the most recent Overnight Federal Funds Rate,
as published in the Wall Streef Journal, adjusted weekly.

2.2,1 Monthly bank statements shall reflect daily interest earned on these investment
purchases,

2.9.2 The County wil separately bid out all or part of its excess funds outside the
depository agreement that arises from this Request for Proposal. From time fo time,
County may desire to purchase government securities through the depository.

SECTION 3-COLLATERALIZATION

The Christian County Treasurer will invest fundls outside the Depository Agreement,

3.1 Bank Depaository shall collateralize and secure all deposifs and investments as
required by Missouri law in Chapters 110 and 30, RSMo., including Sections 110.020,
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3.2

3.3

3.4

110.010, and 30.270 RSMo. The maximum amount at any one time that has to be
collateratized under all of the accounts will be $100,000,000.00 (100 million dollars).

All security so pledged and not able to be held by a Federal Reserve Bank shalf
be held by a third-party institution. The Proposal shall state who will be desighated
to be the thirg-party institution,

The County and the Office Holders require that the market value of the pledged
security/collateral be 100% of the amount of funds on deposit at all times, less the
amount that is insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, (FDIC}.

Safekeeping receipts for pledged collateral and securities shall be delivered to
the Christian County Treasurer and said collateral and securities shall be released
by the third-party institution only when authorized by County through a statement
signed by the County Treasurer, County shall desighate a backup for signing
releases if the County Treasurer is not avallable {Currently the Deputy Treasurer).

3.4.1 Authorization for release of pledged collateral shall be in writing {fax acceptable)

3.5

3.5.1

3.5.2

3.6

3.7

3.8

with phone confirmation. Verification of replacement securities will be required
prior to release.,

The depository agrees to have the third-party holder provide the County Treasurer
with a quarterly listing of security pledged as authorized by section 30,270 RSMo.,
on or before the tenth day of each quarter, County currently receives these listing
via internet access,

The quarterly listing shall detail the holdings as of the last working day of the
immediately preceding quarter.

The quarierly listing shall include the purchase date, the coupon interest rate, the
maturity date, the par value of each security, the total par value of alt securities,
the markst value of each security and the total securities.

The County Treasurer reserves the right to reject or request replacement of any

security pledged.

Safekeeping receib’fs for pledged collateral and securities shall be delivered
showing description, cusip number, maturity, pledged par value, and market
value.

A listing of acceptable securities under Missouri law is found in section 30.270 RSMo.
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SECTION 4-ACCOUNT SERVICES

4.1

4,2

4,3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7
4.8

4.8.1
4.8.2
4.8.3

4.9

4.10

The depository shall provide regular business teller service and availability of
branch facilities for deposits_{ The depository shall provide a method for after hour's

deposit. SU/ -

Deposits can be made and shall be considered same day business until 5:00 pm
central standard fime. It is anticipated that there be one deposit per day per
account except during peak fax season (last two weeks of December when more
than two deposits per day to the Investment Account may occur),

Pre-encoded, pre-printed deposits siips and checks for each account listed in
section | hereof, shall be provided to the County at no cost.

Designgtion of pne bank officer for communication and investment purposes.
UG I%Ma/af- -

The Bank shall provide any necessary MICR encoding requirements to County’s
check printing system.

A CD Rom (or other media accepted by the County) shall be provided monthly
with images of all checks cleared and deposit ltems. Software necessary to view
and print any item shall be included with the CD. A sample CD shall be provided

with the proposal. ﬁgu\prm)i ob,j‘/lu.s Surviée

The County shall be able to transfer funds between accounts at no charge.

Funds availabiiity schedules shall be provided with the proposal. SU— a_:H-M,A_ﬂA_,

Al a minimunﬁ, the County is to be given credit as collected funds for all items
clecred "rhrough the Bank on same day as deposit.

ltems deposited that clear at institutions within the same Federal Reserve region
shall be considered collected within one business day at a maximum.

Incoming wire transfers shall be credited as collected on the 'dqy received If
recelved by or before 3:00 pm central standard time.,

The County Treasurer shall be the confact and working person by and between
the bank depository and the Treasurer’s acecounts, The County Collector shall be
fne contact and working person by and between the bank depository and the
Collector's accounts. Any other office or department that request services wil
have thelr own accounts and shall designate in writing their own contact person.

Service charges on all current and future accounts shall be totaled and billed
monthly to the Couniy Treasurer, Collector, Recorder of Deeds, Clerk, and any
other offices or departments that may request services for their respective
accounts,
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411  Any fulure accounts established by the County shall be computed under the
terms of this coniract as long as ho hew requirements are established by the
County,

4.11.1 Any new account that involves funds under the control of the County Treasurer
that uses the County's tax Identification number, shall be set up through the
County Commission and the County Treasurer.

4.11.2 Any new accounts involving funds under the control of the County Treasurer shall
require the signatures of the County Treasurer and/or her designee,

4.11.3 Any new account that involves funds under the control of the County Clerk that
uses the County's tax identification number, shall be set up through the County
Commission and nofification to the County Treasurer,

4.11.4 Any new dccounts involving funds under the control of the County Clerk shall
require the signatures of the County Clerk and/or her designee.

4.11.5 The County Treasurer's accounts for the County will be required to have fwo

signatures with the County Treasurer or their facsimile stamp as one and the

~ Presiding Commissioner or their facsimile stamp as the second signature. The

Treasurer's School account is required to have two signatures one being the

County Treasurer and her designee. The CERF account is done online through ACH

transfers and can be petformed by the Treasurer or her designee. Plecse see
Exhibit *2" in its entirety.

4.11.6 Any new account that involves funds under the control of the County Collector
that uses the County's tax identification number shall be set up through the County
Collector in cooperation with the County Commission and notification o the
County Treasurer.

4.11,7 Any new account that involves funds under the controt of the County Collector
shaill require the signatures of the County Collector and his designee.

4.11.8 Any new account that involves funds under the control of the County Recorder
that uses the County's tax identification number shall be set up through the County
Recorder in cooperation with the County Commission and notification of the
County Treasurer,

4.11.9 Any new accounf that involves funds under the control of the Recorder of Deeds
shall require the signatures of the Recorder of Deeds c:r_\d her designee.

4.11.10 Any department thot sets up a new account that uses the County's Tax

idenfification number shall be set up through the County Commission and the
department and notification to the County Treasurer.
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SECTION 5-ONLINE BANKING SERVICES

Under the proposal submitted by the bank and incorporated herein as Exhibit "1%, all
online banking services shall be provided under the following terms and conditions. The
costs shall be calculated pursuant 1o Section V of the Proposal Response Form and the
Proposed Cost Schedule and billed monthily.

5.1

5.2

53

531

53.2

533

The County currently has electronic banking services via the internet to the
depository bank for use in processing wire transfers, stop payments, ACH
processing, remote deposits capture, account transfers and account balance
history. Routine account transfers can be set up one time and generated upon
request without reentering data.

The County has the ability to download checks cleared data on demand for use
in account balancing. This is currently done daily for the investment account and
can be done for selected periods on any account.

The proposal form contains request for a proposal for etectronic banking services
which addresses the following:

The depository’s ability to provide interactive services through the internet that
allows account balance inguiry, account transters, ACH processing, stop
payments, remote deposifs capture and wire fransfers. Please include set up
charges, on-line charges, monthly charges, per iransaction costs that are in
addition to or in lisu of traditional costs quoted in this proposal.

Detail whether memo post information is available and whether entered data is
accepted immediately or batch processed by the depository at a later time.
Detail how much history is avaltable, detall proposed alternatives {i.e. magnetic
tape or diskette transfer) and charges associated with alternative. Approximately
50,000 items will be downloaded per year.

Provide a minimum of two references of curent users of your electronic bank
services proposed.  Syag ng 1Q

SECTION-6 OTHER SERVICES

6.1

6.2

6.3

Bid three (3) safety deposit boxes, one (1) with dimensions 3x10, one (1) with
dimensions 5x10, and one (1} 10x10. Safety deposit boxes costs shall be charged
as detailed in the Depository Proposal for Christian County Public Funds of Exhibif

S EVQ-Q.,

Incoming and outgoing wire fransfers initiated over the internet shall be billed at
the rate in the Proposed Cost Schedule attached hereto,

Bid bank services for Positive Pay.
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SECTION 7-COUNTY COMMISSION AND COUNTY AUDITOR VERIEICATION OF ACCOUNTS

7.1

7.2

The County Commission and the County Auditor shall have access to the Christian
County Treasurer's Accounts for the purpose of verifying account balances. That
verification shall be through and by the authority of the County Treasurer in the
form of going online to the depository Bankin the County Treasurer's office.

The County Commission and the County Auditor shall have access to the Christian
Couniy Clerk's and Collector's accounts for the purpose of verifying account
balances. The Bank will be given permission from the County Clerk or County
Collector to release a full account record being copied and/or given to the
County Commission or the County Auditor upon request.

SECTION 8-WIRE TRANSFERS AUTHORIZATION POLICY STATEMENT

8.1

All wire transfers are to be handled by the Policy Statement-Wire transfers
Authorization referenced in its entirety as Exhioit n,

SECTION 9-MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS

9.1

9.2

9.3

Bank must remain a banking corporation incorporated under the laws of the State
of Missouri or the United States of America.

Bank must maintain @ home office or full service branch within the boundaries of
Christian County, Missourl,

In addition to all other charges previously detailed, County shalll pdy charges as
outlined In the Proposed Cost Schedule attached.
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Exhibif 2
Policy Statement
Wire Transfers Authorization

This statement is provided to further clarify the depository agreements between Christian
County Government and the County Banking service provider, The below clarification
statements are effective as of the date set forth below, until changed by County
Treasurer or the Deputy County Clerk with the County Commission approval,

CERF-Summary of County Contribuiions-CERF Administrative Retirement System

The retirement program CERF (County Employees Retirement Fund) obtalns funding from
several different sources. These funds which are deposited In a special County bank
account shall then be forwarded to Administrative Retirement System for credit to CERF's
account, this process requires a wire fransfer from the County bank account to CERF's
Administrative Refirement System account. This wire fransfer is a predefined single
purpose transaction, where the parameters are fixed, The only factor subject to variation
is the dollar amount. The sources of funds [Employee Contributions} are the result of
payroll deductions and therefore results | o wire fransfer each pay cycle. The sources of
funds {Assessor late fee's, Collector merchant license fees, Collector delinquent fees,
Recorder of Deeds document filing fees, County interest and County Contributions) are
recelved on a calendar monthly cycle and therefore usuailly result in a wire fransfer each
calendar month. The cuthorization to and responsibility for these transactions Is assigned
io the County Treasurer, who manages the depositing and forwarding of these funds for
the County.

EFTPS Payroll Taxes

The preparation of the County's payroll creates a liability of Federal Payroll Taxes that
must be deposited in a timely manner by the method required by the Internal Revenue
Service. This process, called EFTPS (Electronic Federal Tax Payment System), requires d
wire transfer ecich pay cycle. The wire transfer is a predefined single purpose transaction,
where the parameters are fixed. The only factor subject to variation is the dollar amount.
This transaction is accomplished by an Intemet entry in the 1RS EFTPS network. The
authorization to and responsibility for this transaction is assigned to the Deputy County
Clerk, who manages the payrolt operations of the County.

ACH Credilt Payroll Taxes
The preparation of the County's payroll creates a liability of State Payroll Taxes that must

be deposited in a timely manner by the method required by the Missouri Department of
Revenue, the Division of Taxation and Collection. This process, called ACH Credii
{Automated Clearing House Credit) requires a wire transfer each pay cycle. This wire
transfer is a predefined single purpose fransaction, where the perimeters are fixed. The
only factor subject to variation is the dollar amount. This transaction is accomplished Ly
an internet entry in the State ACH network. The authorization to and responsibility for this
transaction is assigned to the Deputy County Clerk, who manages the payroll operation

of the County.
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FINAL MANDATORY. COMPLIANCE CHECKLIST:

Slagse use the below table to ensure your bid is fully compliant before you seal it for submission. If

you have any guastions regarding any of these itemns, please call:
Madi Hires, Executive Administrative Assistant
{417) 582-4300

countycommission@chtistigncountymo.goy

FINAL COMPLIANCE CHECKLIST

()

| am submitting my bid prior to the specified deadline. {Page 2, Section 2

understand that no faxed or electronically transmitted bids will be accepted. (Page 2,
Section 1)

i have filled out, signed, and dated the declaration page, and | understand that failure
to do so will result in rejection of my bid. {Page 11, Section 37)

| am including one (1} unbound original and four (4} coples of my bid, | understand that
| must include The Price Sheet found in Exhibit A, Page 3 - Exhibit 1, and dll pages
thereafter.

v Spund
v’ Sw
LS Bulas

I am enclosing my bid in a sealed envelope, and | am marking the envelope “SEALED
BID - DO NOT OPEN". (Page 2, Section 1)

S

I have filled out, signed, and dated the Authorized 1o Bind Agreement, and understand
that failure to do so will result in rejection of my bid, (Exhibit B, Page 2).

s

[ am indicating on the envelope the good/service that | am bidding on.

K nadlds
it o
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Raleh Phillips

Christian County Commission "o commsent

) 100 W. Church Sireet Room 100 lé\é‘r:?e?f\ogiimmissioner
N QOzark, Missouri 65721 .
(41 7)582-4300 Hosea Bilyeu

Waestern Commissionar

CHRIAIA
M‘EM

Invitation to Bid: County Depository Bank Services

ADDENDUM NO. é
DATE; 18 JUNE 2021 !

CONTACT: Madl Hires, Executive Administrative Assistant
ADDRESS; Christlan County Government

100 W. Church $t., Room 100

Ozark, MO 65721

PHONE: (417) 582-4300 :

EMAIL: couniycommission@chrlsﬁancouniymo.gov

The email address Usted above Is for Informatlon requests only and shall not be used for submlssion of proposals or
modliications to propesals, Such submissiens will be rejected and deleted without nofification fo the sending porty,

RETURN BID TO: Christian County Commission
100 West Church Street, Room 100
Ozark, Missourl 65721

This Addendum provides clarification and answers to questions received by email. The following modiflcations, _
additions, or deletions or hereby incorporated into ihe contract documents. The above referenced ITB is ;
hereby amended and clarified as follows:

Bidder Questions: |

Question 1! In reviewing the documents, the amount indicates $80 million, Is this the peak balance during the
year or an average balance throughout the year?
Response: That would be during ihe peak tax season in December.

Question 2: Can you tell me what the average balances are outside of the peak tax season?
Response: Please review the attachment and see if that will answer your guestion concerning account
balances. [Please see Attachment No. 1)

Question 3: Please provide account analysis statements for the last 12 months of the County's accounts that
maintain balances jnon-ZBA).

Response: | have attached a list of accounts with account balances for the past year, {Please see Attachment
No. 1)



Question 4: What is the current rate of interest the Counly is receiving on deposits?
Response: The cument rate of interest Is accounts balances to 10 milion are .66 Anything over 10 million is .35.

Question 5: What are the key elements you enjoy with your current banking relationship? What are scme of the
challenges, or areas you would like to gain improvement on via the bid process?

Response: Our current bank has always been very helpful with any questions or problems that we have ever
had. They are also very close in proximity, There are d couple of more up to date things that they do noft
ofter. One would be Positive Pay and Commercial Payments.

Question 6: Does the County Issue a separate bid for p-cards, or any other card programs? If not, how many
cards does the County maintain, and can you provide spending amounts®

Response: We do not have P-Cards. We have some credit cards. We have 5 Visa accounts. Two have
10,000.00 limits and three have 5,000.00 limits, We have a Lowes's Business credit card with a limit of
17,100.00. We also have a Walmart Community {now with Capital One} with a fimit of 3,500.00. We have two
Commercial Client Services cards, One has a limit of 20,000.00 and the other one has d limit of 10,000.00.

Question 6a; Health Savings Accounts?
Response: We currently do nol have anyone with a Health Savings Account.

Question 7: Is a rating from o national rating agency required as a component of the bid, or will the County
accept other evidence of financlal strength, such as capitalization ratios, and other qualitative ratings?
Response: Paragraph 7 of the County's RFP requires all banks submitting < bid to: “Provide a copy of the mosi
recent IDC Financial Ratings for this financlal institution." Per our County Counselor, the County cannot accept
other evidence of a bank's financial status.

Question 8: 1just wanled to verify that page 12 (List three business references) of the attached ITB - Bank
Depository Services does not need to be completed and submitted as part of the bid, 1s that correct?

Also, in regards to the updated information provided, 1just wanted to let you know that we do have the
posifive pay feaiure and we began testing it before COVID-19 took place. We have brought that back fo the
table to complete our testing and will have that feature available to the County going forward in the event we
are the selected depository institution. '

Response: Thank you for the update regarding positive pay. Concerning ihe bid, page 12 of the ITB does need
to be completed and submitted as part of the bid.

Scrivener's Errors:

Page 2 Paragraph 1 Submittal Instructions:

Original line: “Mark your sealed envelope "OFFICE SUPPLIES - BID DOCUMENTS — DO NOT OPEN"."

Corrected line; “Mark your sedled envelope "COUNTY DEPOSITORY BANK SERVICES - BID DOCUMENTS — DO NOT
OPEN""

Page 14 Paragraph 2 & 3 Bid Withdrawal;

Original line: "Any bid can be withdrawn up to 8:45 a.m, on June 219, 2021 for any reason without penalies, but
any bid not withdrawn by this time will be subject to honor the pricing and services stated within that bid,
{Duplicated Line)

Any bid can be withdrawn up to 8:45 a.m. on February 28M, 2019 for any reason without penalties, but any bid
not withdrawn by this fime will be subject to honor fne pricing and services stated within that bid.

Corrected line: Any bid can be withdrawn up 1o 8:45 a.m, on June 211, 2021 for any reason without penalties,
bul any bid not withdrawn by this time will be subject to honor the pricing and services stated within that bid.

Question 9: } have attached a form that Eneed filled out for the bank in regards to our bid. | am gusssing
your guys may have dlready done one if other banks have reached out. Let me know if you have any
guestions. If you could make sure | get this back ASAP so | can bring bid by weeks end. (See atfachment
no. 2)

Response: Please look over the attachments and see if this answers most of your questions. {See
attachments no, 3 &4).
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Question 10: | wanted Yo follow up on one item included in the Exhibif A - Bainking Specifications form. Section
3 _ Collateralization, number 3.1 states thal the maximum amount at any one fime that has 1o be collateralized
under all of the accounts will be $80,000,000.00 {80 million doliars). In preparing our bid we see that the County
funds {all accounts with the Christian County tax number)} acludlly reached a high of $94,166,318 in January of
ihis yedar,

Response: Thank you so much for bringing this to our aitention. We will be revising our bid documents to reflect
a total of $100,000,000.00 (100 million doflars). Please let me know if you have any additional guestions or
CONCerns.

Exhibit A updated 1o reflect this oversight:

Originai Section 3 {pg. 5)
Bank Depository shall collateralize and secure all deposits and investments as required by Missouri law in
Chapters 110 and 30, RSMo., including Sections 110,020, 110.010, and 30,270 RSMo. The maximum
amount at any one time that has to be collaieralized under alt of the accounts will be $80,000,600.00
{80 million dollars).

Updated section 3 {pg. 3)
Bank Depository shall collateralize and secure all deposits and investments as required by Missouri law In
Chapters 110 and 30, RSMo., including Sections 110.020, 110.010, and 30.270 RSMo. The maximum
amount at any one time that has fo be collateralized under alt of the accounts will be $100,000,000.00
{100 million dollars}.

Updated atiachments per Question #. Attachment No. 5: Attachment No. é; Attachment No. 7.
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EXHIBIT A

BANKING SPECIFICATIONS

1. Complete the attached PROPOSED COST SCHEDULE (Exhibit 1.

2. Detdil costs, procedures and deadlines associated with ACH payroll processing.
Give computed ACH cost for one bi-weekly payroll with approximately 250
potential participants. Detail deadlines for Friday morning account crediting.

3. Plecse state proposal for interest calculation as outlined in SECTION 2 of Condlitions.
Interest rate paid on the accounts that are used to purchase United States
Govemment (or agency of the United States Government) securlty repurchase
agreements shall be stated as a specified number of basis points above or below
the most recent overnight Federal Funds Rate as published in Section C, Markets
Diary in the Wall Streetf Journal. Please consider including a Guaranteed Floor Rate
of Interest in your bid. This wili be given consideration in determining our depository
institution,

4, Pledse Submit the proposal for compliance with collateralization requirements
specified.

5. ON-LINE ELECTRONIC BANKING SERVICES

a. The depository's abllity to provide interactive access through the infernet that
allows dccount balance inguiry, account iransfers, ACH processing, stop
payments, wire transfers, and direct deposit of payroll checks to various
banking institutions. Include setup charges, on-line charges, and monthly
charges, per fransaction costs that are in addition to, or in lieu of traditional
costs quoted in Part 1 of this proposal. '

b. Defai whether memo post information is available and whether entered data
is accepted immediately or batch processed by the depository at a later time.
Detail how much history is available (i.e., curent month, prior, month, $ix
months, year, etc.) and whether or not query processing is available for
specified date ranges.

e, The depository's ability to download files on demand from the depository
computer to County's network containing check clearing information. Include
record format of downloaded files and any costs over and above monthly
account access charges.

d. Detall whether downloaded files will contain current information, prior day
transactons or weekly/monthly batch information. if downloading files directly
is not avallable, detail proposed alternatives (i.e. magnetic tape or diskette
transfer)

and charges associated with the alternative. Approx
be downloaded during the course of the Agreement.

mately 50,000 ftems wil
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e. The depository's ability to upload ASCII files containing information necessary
for ACH debit process, include record format required for file acceptance and
all costs associated with file transfer for ACH processing. Detail any costs that
i< in addition to or in lieu of cost quoted in Part A, of this proposal for ACH debit
transactions.

f. Provide @ minimum of two references of current users of your electronic
banking services proposed,

6. FINANCIAL STABlLITY-I Provide financial data required.

7. Provide a copy of the most recent IDC Financial Ratings for this financial institution.
8. FUNDS AVAILABILITY SCHEDULE-include a copy of your Funds Availability Schedule
2. BANK STATEMENT- include a sample copy of your bank statement.

10. Include a CD-ROM {or other approved format} with Sample images of cleared
checks and deposit items,

11. Provide a detailed list of any exceptions 1o TERMS AND CONDITIONS.
19. Provide a fisting of business tefler service locations and hours,

13. Plecse state whether this financial institution would provide other County
Officeholders and departmenis including, but not limited to the County Sheriff,
Recorder, Circuit Clerk, Juvenile, Drug Court, Law Library, Collector and Circuit
Court, with checking accounts and banking services based vpon the PROPOSED
COST SCHEDULE of Exhibit “1" of this Agreement. If not, please describe the costs
for maintaining such accounts.

14. Securities Deposit: RSMO. 110.20; The value of the securities deposited and

maintained by a legal depositary under Section 110,010 shafl at all imes be not less
than one hundred percent of the actual amount of the funds on deposit with the
depositary, less the amount, If any, insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation.
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8/19/2021 SQ \. QOzark Branch 1nformati0n
ehon Y. @‘%om‘r DRV
W

Ozark Branch Information

OZARK

Branch History

Branch Information
Branch Team Members
Building Laycut

Critical Branch Contacts

Lobby Hours
Monday - Friday | 8:30am - 5:00pm
Drive Thru Hours
Monday - Friday | 8:30am - 5:00pm
Fax Number
{417) 581-4638

Hunt Group Extension

edge:/inewtab

14




6/18/2021

Qzark Branch. Information

71570

Branch Address

2471 W. Jackson | Ozark, MO 65721

ATM X
Cashiers Checks X
Coin Counter

Instant Debit Card Issue X
iT™

Money Orders X
Night Deposit X
Notary X
Safe Deposit Box X

adgae:/inewtab

214
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.‘I’.. Southern Funds Availability Policy Disclosure

BANK—

Strong Roots. Strong Branches.

Updated 08.14.2020

Southern Bank ® PO Box 520 ¢ 2991 Oak Grove Road ® Poplar Bluff, MO 63901  1-855-452-72 72
PURPOSE OF THIS DISCUOSURE S 77 oms i 2 R A S L U
T}}c information here describes our policy of holding deposited items in a transaction account before funds are made available to you for
withdrawal. This is our Funds Availability Policy, In summary our policy is to make your funds available on the first Business Day after
the day deposit. Please refer to the section DETERMINING THE AVAILARBILITY OF YOUR DEPOSIT for the complete policy.

For purposes of this disclosure, the terms "you"/"your" refer to the customer and the terms "ourt/"we"/M"us" refer to Southern Bank,
Generally, transaction accounts are accounts which would permit an unlimited number of payments by check to third persons, and also
an unlimited number of telephonic and preauthorized transfers to third persons or other accounts you may have with us.

o

HERMINING THI AVATLABILITY OF YOUR DEPOSIT. "\ ) S e
he fength of the delay varies depending on the type of deposit and is explained below. When we delay your ability to withdraw funds
from a deposit, you may not withdraw the funds in cash, and we will not pay checks you have writien on your account by using these
funds. Even after we have made funds available to you and you have withdrawn the funds, you are still responsible for checks you

depostt that are returned to us unpaid and for any other problems involving your deposit.

When we delay your ability to withdraw funds, the length of the delay is counted in Business Days from the day of your deposit, The
term "Business Day" means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or federally declared legal holiday, and the term "Banking Day"
means that part of any Business Day on which we are open to the public for carrying on substantially all of our banking functions. The
term " nonbusiness day," means Saturday, Sunday or a federally declared legal holiday.

in order to establish that a deposit is made on a particular Business Day, you must make your deposit before the branch or ITM closes
for it to be considered to have been made on that Business Day. The branch hours vary by location please visit
www .bankwithsouthern.com for a list of our branches and hours.

All funds deposited at a branch will be credited on same business day that we are open, we will consider that day to be the day of your
deposit. Any deposit made on a Saturday will be considered to be deposited on the next business day which we are open,

TELEBANKING: If you make a deposit transfer through telebanking before 7:00 pm on a Business Day, we will consider that day to
be the day of your deposit. However, if you make a deposit transfer through telebanking after 7:00 pm on a Business Day or at any time
on a nonbusiness day, we will consider the deposit made on the next Business Day we are open. A deposit transfer through telebanking
made on a Saturday at any time will be considered to be made on the next Business Day we are open.

INTERNET BANKING: If you make a deposit transfer through internet banking before 7:00 pm on a business day, we will consider
that day to be the day of your deposit. However, if you make a deposit transfer through internet banking after 7:00 pm on & Business
Day or at any time on a nonbusiness day, we will consider the deposit made on the next Business Day we are open. A deposit transfer
through internet banking made on a Saturday at any time will be considered to be made on the next Business Day we are open.

AUTOMATED TELLER MACHINE (ATM): If you make a deposit at an automated teller machine (ATM) that is owned and
operated by us before 7:00 pmona Business Day we will consider that day to be the day of your deposit. However, if you make a
deposit at an ATM that is owned and operated by us after 7:00 pm on a Business Day or at any time on a nonbusiness day, we will
consider the deposit made on the next Business Day we are open. A deposit made at an ATM that is owned and operated by us on a
Saturday at any time will be considered to be made on the next Business Day we are open,

INTERACTIVE TELLER MACHINE: (ITM): If you make a deposit at an interactive teller machine (ITM) that is owned and
operated by us before 7:00 pm on a Business Day we will consider that day to be the day of your deposit. However, if you make a
deposit at an [TM that is owned and operated by us after 7:00 pm on a Business Day or at any time on a nonbusiness day, we will
consider the deposit made on the next Business Day we are open. A deposit made at an I'TM that is owned and operated by us on &
Saturday at any time will be considered to be made on the next Business Day we are open,

MOBILE BANKING APP: If you make a deposit on the Southern Bank mobile app before 4:00 pm on a Business Day that we are
open, we will consider that day to be the day of your deposit. However, if you make a deposit after 4:00 pm on a business day or at any
time on a nonbusiness day, we will consider that deposit made on the next Business Day we are open. A deposit made through the
Southern Bank mobile on a Saturday at any time will be considered to be made on the next Business Day we are open.
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REMOTE DEPOSIT: If you make a deposit using Southern Bank remote deposit services before 6,00 pm on a Business Day that we
are open, we will consider that day to be the day of your deposit. However, if you make a deposit after 6:00 pm ona business day or at
any time on a nonbusiness day, we will consider that deposit made on the next Business Day we are open. A deposit made through
Southern Bank remote deposit services on a Saturday at any time will be considered to be made on the next Business Day we are apen,
Gur policy is to make funds from your cash and check deposits available to you on the first Business Day after the day we receive your i
deposit. Electronic direct deposits will be available on the day we receive the deposit. Once the funds are available, you can withdraw
them in cash and we will use them to pay checks that you have written.

'HOLDS ON- OTHER FUNDS FOR CHEGK CASHING ™ = .05 7 f i v 0 I
If we cash a check for you that is drawn on another financial institution, we may withhold the availability of a corresponding amount of
funds that are already in your account. Those funds will be available at the time funds from the check we cashed would have been
available if you had deposited it and we decided to delay availability on the deposit. '

If we accept for deposit a check that is drawn on another financial institution, we may make funds from the deposit available for
withdrawal immediately but delay your availability to withdraw a corresponding amount of funds that you have on deposit in another
account with us, The funds in the other account would then not be available for withdrawal until the time periods that are described
elsewhere in this disclosure for the type of check that you deposited and we decided to delay availability on the deposit.

“Tnso : ot make all of the funds that you deposit by check available to you according to the previously stated
availability schedule. Depending on the type of chieck that you deposit, funds may not be available until the first Business Day after the
day of your deposit the first $300.00 of your deposits, however, may be available on the first Business Day after the day of deposit.

If we are not going to make all of the funds from your deposit available to you according to the previously stated availability schedule, :
we will notify you at the time you make your deposit. We will also tell you when the funds will be available. If your deposit is not made
directly to one of our employees, or if we decide to take this action after you have left the premises, we will mail you the notice by the
day after we receive your deposit. If you will need the funds from a deposit right away, you should ask us when the funds will be ‘ E
available. :

|
Funds you deposit by check may be delayed for a longer period under the following circumstances: (a) if we believe a check you i
deposit will not be paid; (b) if you deposit checks totaling more than $5,600 on anyone day; (c) if you redeposit a check that has been 7
returned unpaid; () if you have overdrawn your account repeatedly in the last six months; or (¢) if an emergency condition arises that
would not enable us to make the finds available to you, such as the failure of computer or communications equipment.

We will notify you if we delay your availability to withdraw funds for any of these reasons, and we will tell you when the funds will be |
available. They will generally be available no later than the seventh Business Day after the day of your deposit. If you will need the ,
funds from a deposit right away, you should ask us when the funds will be available. |

If you are a new customer, the following special rules may apply during the first 30 days your account is opened.
Funds from electronic direct deposits to your account will be available on the day we receive the deposit, Funds from deposits of cash,
wire transfers, and the first $5,600 of a day's total deposits of cashier's, certified, teller's, travelers, and federal, state and local
government checks will be available on the first Business Day after the day of deposit if the deposit meets certain conditions, Far
example, the checks must be payable to you {and you may have to use a special deposit slip). The excess over $5,600 will be available
on the ninth Business Day after the day of your depasit. If your deposit of these checks (other than a U.S. Treasury check) is not made

in person to one of our employees, the first $5,600 will not be available until the second Business Day after the day of deposit.

Funds from all other check deposits will be available on the ninth Business Day after the day of your deposit.

Provisional Payment:

Credit is given by us to you with respect to an automated clearing house credit entry is provisional until we receive final settlement for
such entry through the Federal Reserve Bank. If we do not receive such final settlement, you are hereby notified and agree that we are
entitled to a refund of the amount credited to you in connection with such enfry and the party making payment to you via such eniry
shatl not be deemed to have been paid you in the amount of such entry.
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V. Southern
BANK

" 4 -»
Strang Rools. Strapg Branches.

2991 Oak Grove Road Poplar Bluff, MO 63901

ADDRESS SERVICE REQUESTED

Statement Ending 05/31/2021

Page 1 of 6

Customer Number: 300

Summary of Accounts

Account Type Account Number Ending Balance
SM Bus Interost KRXHXX $416,371.86
SM Bus Interest-XXXXXXXX9656
Account Summary Interest Summary
Date Description Amount  Description Amount
05/01/2021 Beginning Balance $314,340.55  Annual Percentage Yield Earned 0.15%
& Credit(s) This Period $327,374.53  Interest Days at
48 Debil(s) This Period $225,343.22  Interest Earned $0.00
05/31/2021 Ending Balance $416,371.86  Interest Pald This Period $37.61
Interest Pald Year-to-Date $68.15 -
Minimum Balance $142,919.40
Average Ledger Balance $205,229.70
Average Available Balance $0.00
Deposits
Date Descripiion Amount
05/24/2021 __ Deposit $320,4569.42
05/26/2021 Wire Fee Rev $20.00
05/26/2021 _ Wire Fes Rev $20,00
05/26/2021  INGOMING WIRE $5,822,50
FCS OF AMERICA Wires
05/31/2021 Acor Earning Pymt $37.61
Added to Account
Electronic Credits
Date Description Amount
05/07/2021  ACH Deposlt $1,015.00
FLEX0004954821 EDI PYMNTS EDI
Electronic Deblts
Date Description Amount
05/04/2021  ACH Payment $697.60
PAYROLL PAYROLL
05/04/2021  ACH Payment $1,262.43
PAYROLL PAYROLL
Membey

EQUAL HHSUG Fch
LENDER



G NPT OO0 Statement Ending 06/31/2021 Paga 2 of B

TRTS FORM IS PROVIDED TO RELP YOU BALANCE

YOUR STATEMENT
WITHDRAWALS OUTSTANDING - BEFORE YOU START-
N ED
OT GHARGED TO AGCOUNT PLEASE BE SURE YOU HAVE ENTERED IN YOUR REGISTER ALL
Mo, [] AUTOMATIC TRANSACTIONS SHOWN ON THE FRONT OF YOUR
STATEMENT.
YOU SHOULD HAVE ADDED YOU SHOULD HAVE SUB-
IF ANY OCCURRED: TRACTED IF ANY OCCURRED:
1. Loan advances. 1. Automnatic loan payiments,
2. Gredit menws. 2. Automatic savings transfers.
3. Other aulomatic deposits. 3. Servioe charges,
4, Deblt memos.
5. Other automatio deductions
and payments,
BALANGE SHOWN
O THIS STATEMENT & —— e
ADD
DEROSITS NOT SHOWN
ON THiIS STATEMENT
(FANY) & o
TOTAL | —
SUBTRACT -
WITHDRAWALS

OUTSTANDING $

BALANGE $

SHOULD AGREE WITH YOUR REGISTER
BALANGE AFTER DEDUGTING SERVICE GHARGE
TOTAL{S {IF ANY) SHOWN ON THIS STATEMENT.

Pleass examinae Immediately and report If incoreect. [ no reply Is received within 80 days the acoount will be considered correct.

IN CASE OF ERRORS OR QUESTIONS ABOUT YOUR ELECTRONIC THANSFERS
In case ol erors o queslions ahout your elecironic ranslers telephone us at the phone number lisled on the front, prwle us at the address hisled on the [ront as soon as you
can, il you think your stalement or receipl Is wrong orif you need nore Information about a \ransfer listed on the staternent or recelpl. We rrust hear from you no Jater than 60
days after we sent ihe F IR ST staterment on which the problemor emor appeared.

(1) Tett us your name and account number if anvh
{2) Descriie the error or the fransfer yoll are Linsure aboul, and explain as cleary as you can why you believe it ia an error or why yout nead more information.
{3) Tell us the dollar amount of the suspected smor.

We must hear from you no later than 60 days after we aenl you Ihe FIRST staternent on which the eror or problern appeared. If no reply is recelvad within 60 tays, tha account
will be consldered comrect. We wll investigate your cormptaint and will correct any emar prorrptly, If we take more than 10 business days to do this, we will recredit your accounl
for the amount you think is in error, so that you will have use of the money during the time it takes Ls to complete ouwr investigation.

DEMAND DEPOSIT LOAN ACGOUNT SUMMARY OF RIGHTS

You remain obligated to pay the paris of your blli not in dispuls, but you do not have to pay any anount in dispute during the time It {akea 1 resolve the dispule, During that sane

{ime, no action can be taken to colleot disputed anounts a9 delinquent.
This Is a sunrrery of your fghts: # full staterrent of your rights and our respansibiiities under the Federal Fair Credil Act wil be sent to you both upon request and in response 1o

2 biliing error notice.

Your Demand Deposit Loan Account js opera ted In corjunclion wilh your chacking account. Any charges for your checking account will be rmade te ihe checiing account and
they wili be the sam charges as are mede for ohecking accounts not operated In conjuncllons with Pemand Deposit Loan Accounts, The following Information thus applies only
1o loans mrade o you under your Derrand Deposit Lean Account line of credit.

The FINANCE CHARGE is cormptited on the principal balance each day by application of the daily periodic rate,

The mrininum perodic paymenl requived is shown on trant of this statement and will be auteratically deducled fram your checking 2ccount al the end of each billing cycle
worcnally tirty @0) days, Youmnay pay off your Demand Deposil Loan Acceu loan balance at any time, or make volutary addiional payments, Paymenta shall ba applied, first
to any unpald FINANCE CHARGES, and second, 1o the principal lean balance outstanding in your Demand Deposil Loan Accounl, Periodlc statemenis maty be sent 1o you at e
end of each biling cyele showing your Damend Deposit Loan Account loan fransacilons,

Send payments and inquirfes to the address at the bottarm of this staterment.
NOTE: Payments received alter close of business shall be deamed recelved an the following business day for puposes of creclifing your account.

L)
Nz Southern
—BANK
2991 Oak Grove Road

PO, Box 520
Poplar Bluff, MO 63901-0520

1-855-4KASASA
www.bankwithsouthern.com




.
N

N2, Southern
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Statement Ending 05/31/2021

BAN I( Page 3 of 6
Strang Roots. $trang Brawrches, Custornar Number: o000
1991 Oak Grove Road Poplar Blull, MO 63901

SM Bus Interest-XXXXXX: _ . (continued)

Electronic Debits {continued)

Date Description Amount

05/10/2021  ACH Payment $1,938.43
IRS USATAXPYMT

05/11/2021  ACH Payment $1,140.46
PAYROLL PAYROLL

05/11/2021 ACH Paymenf $1,282.44
PAYROLL PAYROLL

05/13/2021  ACH Payment $6.65
IB Blipay Serv FEES

05/17/2021  ACH Payment $2,793.14
CHASE CREDIT CRD EPAY

05/18/2021  ACH Payment $769.73
PAYROLL PAYROLL

05/18/2021  ACH Payment $1,262.43
PAYROLL PAYROLL

05/21/2021  ACH Payment $448,82
Specially Risk M Payment

05/25/2021  ACH Payment $793.04
PAYROLL PAYROLL

05/26/2021  ACH Payment $1,262.43
PAYROLL PAYROLL

Other Debits

Date Description Amount

05/18/2021 OUTGOING WIRE $4,892.50
HAMER FISCHBEIN LLC Wires

05/18/2021 OUTGOING WIRE $5,235.50
CARRIER VIBRATING EQUIPMENT INC Wires

05/18/2021 OQUTGOING WIRE $8,131.05
PATTERSON FAN COMPANY Wires

05/18/2021 OUTGOCING WIRE $10,978.77
PATZ CORPORATION Wires

D5/18/2021 CUTGOING WIRE $14,782,60
MOISTTECH CORPORATION Wires .

05718/2021  OUTGOING WIRE $22,813.00
C&W TECHNICAL SALES INC Wires

05/18/2021  OUTGOING WIRE $25,238.50
GEELEN COUNTERFLOW Wires

06/18/2021 OUTGOING WIRE $31,066.20
MMI GRAIN STORAGE Wires

05/18/2021 OUTGOING WIRE $31,353.50
HAMER FISCHBEIN LLC Wires

05/18/2021  WIRE FEES $20.00
HAMER FISCHBEIN LLC Wires

05/18/2021  WIRE FEES $20.00
HAMER FISCHBEIN LLC Wires

05/182021  WIRE FEES $20.00
CARRIER VIBRATING EQUIPMENT INC Wires

05/18/2021  WIRE FEES $20.00
MOISTTECH CORPORATION Wires

05/18/2021  WIRE FEES $20.00
C&W TECHNICAL SALES INC Wires

05/18/2021  WIRE FEES $20.00
PATTERSON FAN COMPANY Wires

05/18/2021  WIRE FEES $20.00
MM! GRAIN STORAGE Wires

05182021  WIRE FEES $20.00

PATZ CORPORATION Wires




N KOO, Statement Ending 05/31/2021 Page 4 of 6
SM Bus Interest-XXXXXXXX9656 (continued)
Other Debits {(continued)
Date Description Amount
05/18/2021  WIRE FEES $75.00
GEELEN COUNTERFLOW Wires
05/24/2021 OUTGOING WIRE $3,964.60
SUDENGA INDUSTRIES INC Wires
05/24/2021 OUTGCING WIRE $5,822.50
FARM CREDIT SERVICES OF AMERICA Wires
05/24/2021 OUTGOING WIRE $16,147.00
MMI GRAIN STORAGE Wires
05/24/2021  WIRE FEES $20.00
SUDENGA INDUSTRIES INC Wires
05/24/2021  WIRE FEES $20.00
MMI GRAIN STORAGE Wires
0572412021 WIRE FEES $20.00
FARM CREDIT SERVICES OF AMERICA Wires
05/25/2021 OUTGOING WIRE $5,822.50
FARM CREDIT SERVICES OF AMER|CA Wires
05/25/2021  WIRE FEES $20.00
FARM CREDIT SERVICES OF AMERICA Wires
05/26/2021  WIRE FEES $15.00
FCS OF AMERICA Wires
Checks Cleared
Check Nbr Date Amount _GChack Nbr Date Amount _Check Nbr Date Amount
4300 05/03/2021 $1,000.00 4315* 05/18/2021 $1,000.00 4320" 05/26/2021 $10,000.00
4310 05/03/20219 $1,000.00 4316 056/19/2021 $1,000.00 4321 05/26/2021 $9,000.00
4311 05/03/2021 $1,000.00 4318 05/19/2021 $1,000.00 995017" 05/06/2021 $126.50
¥ndicates skipped check number
Daily Balances
Date Amount Date Amount Date Amount
05/01/2021 $314,340.55 05/11/2021 $305,927.69 06/24/2021 $437,384,72
05/03/2021 £311,340.65 05/13/2021 $305,920.74 05/25/2021 $429,486.75
05/04/2021 $300,380.52 05/17/2021 $303,127.60 05/26/2021 $416,334.25
05/06/2021 $309,254.02  05/18/2021 $146,368.22 05/31/2021 $416,371.86
05/07/2021 $310,269.02 05/19/2021 $143,368.22
05/10/2021 $308,330.50 05/21/2021 $142,919.40

Overdraft and Returned ltem Fees

Total for this period

Total year-to-date

Total Overdraft Fees

$0.00 $0.00

Total Returned ltem Fees

$0.00 $0.00
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BANK Statement Ending 0_5/31/2021

Page 5 of 6
Strang Raots. Strong Brarches, Customer Number:Xo00MXX.
2991 Oak Grove Road Poplar Blufl, MO 63901
i — .
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REPORT OF CONDITION
of the

SOUTHERN BANK of POPLAR BLUFF

DR-TUS

Name of Bank City

in the state of Missouri at the close of business on . March 31

2021

Statement of Resources and Liabilities

ASSETS
Cash and balances due from depository institutions
Noninterest-hearing balances and cUrrency and COINM ...
INMErESH-DBAMNG DAIAMEES ...t e e et b AR B SeTS e R TS A bR e
Securities:
HElt-f0-MARUTIEY SEOUMHIES ... .o ee i ieieer e e b br e bbb 1AL LT LA RIS RO TR e s s
AVAIAD B Or-BAI8 SBOUIIES ... iui i virrnirsirsirs i e ser s raseere s e e earnese s s eamsaeesees a8 smss s es st sass e mb e £ 1e e renE€nEert b sbe s b ses e bmdmbe s nbn s besbnrenreben
Federal funds sold ..
Securities purchased under agreements to resetl
Loans and lease financing receivables;

Thousands of doltars

38,742

199,132

190,384

Loans and l2ases, Net of UNEEMEH NGOMIE ... vt e e sttt b bbb b b bbb 2,170,112

LESS: Allowance for lean and lease losses .. 35,227

LESS: Allocated transfer risk raserve....ooce e ceeececeerieen,

Loans and feases, net of unearned income, allowance, and reserve...

Assets held in trading accounts ...

Premises and fixed assets (|nc|ud|ng capltallzed leases)

Other real estate owned .. ;

Investments in unconsolrdated sub5|d|ar|es and assemaled companies... rerrrr ey e ae .

Customers' liabifity to this bank on accepiances oUIStANING ... e

Intangible assets - Includes GoOdWill of............... ] QT OO

OMEr 288618 ..vvvcvceereeee e " X

TOLA] BSSBES Lvvivivriiererersrassimerssisiorrsresseessbarsbeesmesstere seses smes s aes s 048681000 EHEbaE AR R4 EoEF T 108811 ESRREES 448 00A RS SRt e § Sk bR Sn Rt AR b seE e an e re et rar e e a e s et
LIABILITIES

Deposits:

In domestic offices ......

2,134,885

_ 53,806

2,651

8217

80,863

2,718,680

[ 2,369,902 |

INONITHBIBSI-DEBIING ...v..veeecteesserae st ars st s s b o serepast s s st sbs embe s rrb b e b bt s e s simes 1o i b en e s raa b e er 387,949

Interest-bearing ... 1,081,953

In foreign offices, Edge and Agreement submdrarres and IBFs ........................................

o]

Noninterest bearmg

Interest-bearing ...

Federal funds purchased . .
Securities sold under agreements te repurchase .............................................................................................................................
Demand notes issued 10 the LS. TIEASUMNY ..o e e et e e e L st e
‘Trading liabilities ..
Other borrowed money:.. . ‘ . .
With original maturity of one year or Iess ......................................................................................................... et
With original maturity of more than one year... . .
Mortgage indebledness and obllgatlens under capltallzed Ieases
Bank’s liability on acceptances.executed and outstanding ..o
Subordinated notes an.d BBEIMUTES . vveer oo oot
Other liabilities ..
Total liakilities...
Limited-life preferred steck and re1ated surplus
~EQUITY CAPITAL -
Perpetual preferred stock and related surpius
Common stock...
Surplus (excludlng all surplus related to preferred stock)
Undivided profits and capital reserves . .
Net unrealized holding gains {losses) on avallable-for sale securities...
Cumulative foreign currency transfation adjustmentS..... ... e e
Total equity capital ...
Tofal liabitities, limited-life preferred stock, and eGUHY CaPILALL.....ii e e s s e e e e an

29,531

33,2560

12,924

2,445,607

1

167,694

102,983

2,395

273,078

2,718,680

I | MATTHEW FUNKE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFIGER

Name Title

of the above—named bank do hereby declare that this Report of Condition is frue and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief.



GREAT SOUTHERN
BANK

June 8, 2021

Christian County Commission

Ralph Phillips, Presiding Commissioner
100 W Church Street, Room 100
Ozark, MO 65721

Greetings, Commissioners & County Officials:

RE: Request for Depository Banking Services

Thank you for the invitation to provide a depository services proposal.

We respectfully decline the opportunity to participate in the bidding process.
We wish you success in selecting a depository financial institution, and hope

you will retain Great Southern Bank on your solicitation list for future
opportunities.

spectfully,

@B/””%*JMM NPl

Treasury Management Officer
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Christian County Commission

Ralph Phillips, Presiding Commissioner
100 W Church Street, Room 100
Ozark, MO 65721
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HAMBEY

CONSTRUCTION

Today’s Date: 06/09/2021

Notification Due Date and Time: 06/25/2021 at 5pm

To Be Delivered/Completed No Later Than:

Project: CC HCH — Clerk’s Office Storage Area
Flooring

Project Mailing Address:
100 W. Church St., Room 100
Ozark, MO 65721

Delivery/Project Location:
100 W. Church St. #304
Ozark, MO 65721

Work Plan Description:

vinyl plank.

Skim coat and prep existing concrete floor (approx. 12’x28’) to smooth out for installation of

Installation of 6ml glue down vinyl plank flooring (approx. 336 sq. ft.).

and misc. materials

Labor:
Manager/Carpenter | Rate No. of Crew No. of Hours ea | Total
Regular Time Journeyman $35.00 2 12 $840.00
Regular Time Foreman $40.00 1 6 $240.00
Material:
Qty Material Type Amount
1 Floor patch, glue, approx. 336 sq. ft. of ml vinyl plank flooring $656.08

Guaranteed Not-To-Exceed Price to Complete this Project: $ 1,736.08

Correspondence: P.0O. Box 8954, Springfield, MO 65801e Phone (417) 988-0206 ® www.hambeyconstruction.com




HAMBEY

CONSTRUCTION

Today’s Date: 06/08/2021

Notification Due Date and Time: 06/25/2021 at 5pm

To Be Delivered/Completed No Later Than:

Project: CC HCH — Clerk’s Office Storage Area
Suspended Ceiling & Lights

Project Mailing Address:
100 W. Church St., Room 100
Ozark, MO 65721

Delivery/Project Location:
100 W. Church St. #304

Ozark, MO 65721

Work Plan Description:

Removal of (3) existing 8’ led strip lights.

Provide & install (6) new 2'x4’ led flat panel light fixtures in new suspended ceiling.

Provide & install new suspended ceiling in approx. 28’x12’ area.

grid wires, rivets, tapcons and misc. ceiling materials

Labor:
Manager/Carpenter | Rate No. of Crew No. of Hours ea | Total
Regular Time Journeyman $35.00 2 16 $1,120.00
Regular Time Foreman $40.00 1 9 $360.00
Regular Time Electrician $50.00 1 9 $450.00
Material:
Qty Material Type Amount
1 (6) led 2’x4’ flat panel lights, wire and misc. electrical materials $584.10
1 Wall angle, main beams, 2’ cross tees, 4’ cross tees, ceiling tiles, | $703.48

Guaranteed Not-To-Exceed Price to Complete this Project: $ 3,217.58

Correspondence: P.0O. Box 8954, Springfield, MO 65801e Phone (417) 988-0206 ® www.hambeyconstruction.com




o County oF CHRISTIAN

o
REQUISITION FOR MATERIAL STATE OF MISSOURI N2

T CERTIFY THAT THE ITEMS LISTED BELOYW ARE NECESSARY

FOR THE FROTER OPERATIONS OF THIS DEPARTMENT AND

TTAT UNENCUMBERED BALANCES ARE SUFFICIENT TO MEET
. ESTIMATED COST .

Vendor . .t v . ity ey

!; s i i Lol
OFFICE o A

PONo. 1! 1, " T

LA B

/ Autherizing Signature

Quantity Fund

TOTAIL >

This transaction complies with RSMo. Section 50,160, 50.166, and 50.660, unless otherwise noted

Vendor Code: P =Purchase S = Supply
B = Bid SB = State Bid
Address C = Contract Q = Quote

Auditor Certification

I certify that the expenditure contemplated by this docoment is within the purpose of the appropriation to which it is to be charged and that there is an
unencumbered balance of anticipated revenue appropriated for payment of same. (for use with First and Second class counties only)

:

R I AP o i !

. . L { L

A Audited By Audifor Certification Date
ORDER TO ISSUE WARRANT L
Christian County Commission on the .»:" -:‘ 4 ddy of « i £, does hereby approve the purchase above, and, upon

receipt of the item/items and/or the performance of such services and lecezpt of the correct invoice, thereafter orders the County Clerk to issue a
warrant therefor.
i S e oo

S L

Presiding Comiissioner Western Connnissioner Eastern Commissioner

1, Kay Brown, Cletk of the County Commission, hereby centify the above to be a true copy of proceedings of said County Commission, on the day and
year above written as the same appears of record in my office.

WARRANT:
TREASURER O THE COUNTY OF CHRISTIAN: Pay to the vendor above described § out of any money in the treasury
ftpplopnated for the payment of the above-described item.
Given at the courthouse this day of , , by order of the County Commission.
Attest:
Clerk Check No. Auditor

White - Accounting Canary - Conxmission Copy Pink - Department Copy




Devan Custom Creations

P.o. Box 432

Ozark, MO 65721

ph: 417-485-4883

ph2: 417-234-4332
devancustomcreations@yahoo.com

Item Qty

Paint 5
additional supplies

labor to paint all walls in

areas discussed

fasten and clean up existing
haseboard

replace 1 ceiling tile

remove all fasteners, fill

holes and repair cracks

Jan 24, 2011

Kay Brown

100 W. Church
Ozark,MO 65721
417-581-6330

kaybrown@Christiancountymo.gov

Price Ea.

gal 35.00
50.00

425.00

125.00
30.00

125.00

Sub Total
Tax (0%)
Total

Extended Price

175.00
50.00

425.00

125.00
30.00

125.00

$ 930.00
$0.00
$ 930.00




' PREP RIGHT

JERRYDYKE Painting and Power Washing CELL(417) 224-5988
- 17) 831-0583 Workers” Comp & Liability Insurance
Painting Springfield since 1987
Job Name Cow\‘f\gf Commir 5574 O’{) (J\mah:M cud«ti?
Address /oo (/. Cb\wz,avt R o6 .
contact_ Ao @m A /Q(/:z—m date //2(5///

phone

LJVUM/ U‘H);coﬁ/ = Repnine DA mnce. s thate -

Pede "Wl paine pafoh, & /J,Dﬁa!:,]sy;wﬂ Texfce

‘T/b _ WA 0’{/\&/‘* L)) 'ﬂ’l ls £ mn cﬁ Vp:-’-} HJI"

MU ctor Wwalle Peoma tdoe caili e

r ﬂs} (m}’ ”"Stfo,oo
7 -
Jad (o) 904,09
Wood (Joek - Wk hod odns & Rase ~ Shwd g/[-rfu",,\ |
Vll‘t\'\*%\ {ad (—/W\" - /£/75 470

Rempue fOJl:v-U’ Pﬂem base. fla 3 Lm%ﬁn’u; J’,;Zoa a9
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(38) Declaration:

The vendor hereby declares understanding, agreement and certification of compliance to provide the items and/or services, at
the prices quoted, in accordance with all terms and conditions, requirements, and specifications of this eriginal invitation to bid.
The vendor further agrees that upon receipt of an authorized purchase order from the Christian County Commission or when a
Notice of Award is signed and issued by the Commission, a binding contract shall exist between the vendor and Christian County,

Signature required below confirming understanding of this statement.

Doing Business as (DBA)} Name Legal Name of Entity/Individual Filed with IRS for this Tax ID No.
L] 4 4 1 .

Mailing Address IRS Form 1099 Mailing Address

A4 Y w, west bypass Jaus & wesr boypasy

City, State, Zip Code City, State, Zip Code

Sprvgbied, Ao . CT¥T3 Sprisqfinul. Aa bfBug

Contact Person Email Address
ﬁgiﬁ_émn onin . qheac @ € by o e DA L i
Phone number Fax number
UI1-$2)1-Ue\b 4Y19-%31 710
Authorized Signature Date
et 6l
Printed Mame Title

Lrlof Lodner Saley frarsse

Page 11 of 16




List three (3) business references:
151:

Company Name 6?\';\«.1,;:&\41.& LLMLL( ik Representative Name fqﬂfﬂu\ H-Aﬂ.(.Jj
G - |- 5?&!;& Ao CS%xu e

Address City State Zip
Yo -fez2-9203 Y[1-Jtb -l6 'S
Business Phone Business Fax Cellular Phaone

email address if available

2nd
Company Name S scwrs Capmamnroial Representative Name D=y Gl o
Address City State Zip

Hi7- gt - Yo je

Business Phone Business Fax Cellular Phone

email address if available

3rd
Company Name fex & pmiHa o | Representative Name X S HL
LI . lesb bopess 5 044 po b Ceos
Address City State Zip
H17- 866~ (G e
Business Phone Business Fax Cellular Phone

email address if available
Page 12 of 16



(39) Contact Information:

L -
]

Any additional information desired rﬁ?v be requested by mail to the address listed, or by telephone to 417-582-4300.
Information requests may also be e-mailed to countycommission@christiancountymo.gov. This e-mail address is for
information reguests only and shall not be used for submission of proposals or modifications to proposals. Such
submissions will be rejected and deleted without notification to the sending party.

Thank you for your consideration of this Invitation to Bid. We appreciate your participation in the bidding process.

CHRISTIAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
Ralph Phillips, Presiding Commissioner
Hosea Bilyeu, Western Commissioner

Lynn Morris, Eastern Commissioner

Page 13 of 16



Bid Specifications

The Christian County Commission is accepting bids for the following products and services: Concrete Materials. The
Christian County Commission reserves the right to refuse or reject any and all bids and waive any formality or
irregularity in any bid received. The Commission reserves the right to make awards to other than the low bidder, or
multiple bidders, if such award(s) is deemed to be in the county’s best interest.

Companies that contract with Christian County are required to provide goods and services on this bid. They must
have proof of insurance and a notarized statement that the company is complying with Federal Department of
Transportation Regulation 49 CRF Part 40 (random drug and alcohol testing of personnel in safety sensitive positions).
Material and Performance Bonds may be required at the time of individual project award.

The Christian County Commission would like to express their appreciation in taking the time and work to participate

in the bid letting process. Thank you for all your work and support in making Christian County a better place to live
and work.

Page 14 of 16



CDNS_REI'E MATERIALS BID

Material Specifications: Mix design shall meet Missouri Standard Specifications for Highway Construction,
latest addition. A mix design may be required to be submitted to the County prior to the purchase of any
materials,

Item Description Alternate Name* Unit Unit Price

Precast Concrete Blocks EA S

atl
(Full) LfS.
Precast Concrete Blocks EA S

ol
(Half) 44,
River Sand Mix (3000 PSI) Y 1S 24,20
River Sand Mix (3500 PSI) Y |5 25, 22
River Sand Mix (4000 PSI) &Y |S 12920
Manufactured Stone Y |8
Sand Mix (2000 PSI) y 1% 2o
Manufactured Stone cy S
Sand Mix (2500 PSI) i2). 30
Manufactured Stone cY 5
Sand Mix (3000 PSl) 123.30
Manufactured Stone cy 5
Sand Mix (3500 PSI) 125.39°
Winter Service Add’| cY S 5 o0
Charge (11/1 thru 3/15) S
Minimum Load Add'l 1s. |5 >

' o]

Charges (Less than 2 CY) [-21 qds 12.0.
Minimum Load Add'l ; s |$

oo
Charges (Less than 3 CY) 3-3'. qds 70.
Minimum Load Add'l : LS 5 i
Charges (Less than 4 CY) H-4'ly Gds 34,0
Fuel Surcharge Please attach separate sheet

*Christian County understands that not every company refers to their products with the same name even though they meet the
same specifications. Please provide name of itemn as it will appear on the delivery tickets and/or invoices. A failure to provide a
ticket/invoice that does not match the bid may result in a delayed payment.

Page 15 of 16



FINAL MANDATORY COMPLIANCE CHECKLIST:

Please use the below table to ensure your bid is fully compliant before you seal it for submission. If you have any
guestions regarding any of these items, please call:

Madi Hires
(417) 582-4300
countycommission@christiancountymo.gov

FINAL COMPLIANCE CHECKLIST (v)

| am submitting my bid prior to the specified deadline. (Page 2, Section 2)

| understand that if | hand-deliver my bid to the Christian County Courthouse, | will need to go
through a security checkpoint. This may take extra time.

| understand that no faxed or electronically transmitted bids will be accepted. (Page 2, Section 1)

| have filled out, signed, and dated the declaration page, and | understand that failure to do so will
result in rejection of my bid. (Page 11, Section 38)

I am including one (1) unbound original and one (1) copy of my bid.

| am enclosing my bid in a sealed envelope, and | am marking the envelope “SEALED BID — DO NOT
OPEN". (Page 2, Section 1)

| am indicating on the envelope the good/service that | am bidding on.

Page 16 of 16




PR‘I NGERIEL?D

SPRINGFIELD, MO 65802
PH: (417) 862-8203 FAX: (417) 866-1656

PRICE QUOTATION
To: Christain County Commision Date: June 7, 2021
Phone: (417) 5824200
Attn: Estimating Department Fax:
Project: Annual Contract for Concrete Materials - Christian County

Wi are pleased to have the opportunity to submit the following prices for concrete delivered to your project referenced above. Mixes listed
as priced may contain air entraining admixture when appropriate. Other additives are priced seperately. Requested changes to mixes may
result in price adjustments accordingly. Special pricing and procurement considerations may be required for specialty products not normally kept
in stock. Please call our office if you need additional prices or information. This price quotation is extremely confidential and is intended only for
the company listed above.

MATERIAL  DELIVERY PRICE  PRICE WITH
MIX DESCRIPTION COST + CHARGE = PER YARD DISCOUNT
MODOT CLASS B MODQT CLASS B $107.20 + $2000 = $127.20 $120.84
MODOT CLASS B-1 ~ MODOT CLASS B-1 §11220 + $§2000 = $132.20 $125.59
MODOT CLASS B-2 MODOT CLASS B-2 $120.00 + $2000 = $140.00 $133.00
MODOTCLASSPCCP  MODOT CLASS PCCP $11050 + $2000 = $130.50 $123.98
MODOT 8 SACK ~ MODOT 8 SACK §11520 + §2000 = $135.20 $128.44
“R" denotes riversand fine aggregate. “L" denotes limestone sand fine aggregate. All mixes may contain blends of fine aggregates.
Special Considerations: Terms: Net 30
* 5% Discount is allowed only for prompt payment. 1.5%/mo. Invoices over 30 days

* Price quote good for 30 days from date of quotation. Prices subject to appoved credit account.
* Portland Cement is Type I/11 only. Mixes shown above contain Class C Flyash, If Class C Flyash is removed and straight cement is used,
add $6.00 per CY per mix.
* Coarse Aggregate is ASTM C33 crushed limestone. Fine aggregate is ASTM C33 natural Missouri riversand and ASTM C33 crushed
limestone sand.
* Shortload Fee: 1 -2 CY = $120 * Shortload Fee 3 - 3% CY = 8§70 * Shortload Fee: 4 - 432 CY = $35
No Shortload Fee for orders 5 CY and greater.
* "Order-Back" loads will be only delivered without Shortload Fees on orders over 8 CY.
* Loads will only be batched in 5 CY increments, and at a minimum of 1 CY,
* Color Clean-Up Fee of $25 per truck for loads with color added.
* Truck Time: 1st 30 minutes included, $60 per hour per truck thereafter billed in Ys-Hour increments.
* Night & Weekend Mobilization Fee (loads batched from 6:30pm - 5:30am M-Th, & After 6:30pm Fri) add $3950 flat fee. Minimum
Night'Veekend order = 40 CY.
* No Sunday deliveries.
* Winter Service Fee for heated water: Add $5.00 per cubic yard Nov.1 thru Mar, 15,
* I cooling procedures are required, we will sprinkle stockpiles. Any other cooling measures will be the responsibility of the contractor to notify
Springfield Ready Mix at least 5 business days in advance when cooling measures are required. Ice added to concrete for hot weather
mndltmns add $28.00 per CY,
Calcium Chloride Accelerating Admixture is $1 per 0.5% per CY (example: 1.5% = $3 per CY)
* MNon-Chioride Accelerating Admixture: Add $6.90 for 1%
* Set Retarding Admixture: Add $4.90 per CY.
WRA (Water-Reducing Admixture); Add $6.70 per CY. WRA may be required to achieve necessary workability.
Synthetic Fibers: Add $7.25 per bag of fiber per CY (1 to 1.5 Ibs per CY - Polypropylene or Buckeye Fibers).
Solomon SGS Integral Color is $75 per bag of color for most colors. Typical dosage is 1 bag of color per 1 CY.
* Environmental Fee (NO JOBSITE WASHOUT) $25.00 per load
* Helix Fiber Clean Up Fee: $200.00 per load
We are committed to quality service to all of our customers, both large and small. As such, we ask for at least 2 business day advance notice
for scheduling orders,
* If the project is tax exempt, proper cerification must be submitted or sales tax will be charged on the project.

Thank you for your consideration of our services. |If you have any questions, please call our office at 417-862-8203.

-

Respectfully Submitted, = B
Calob Cotner, Sales Manager Ph: (417) 862-9203
Springfield Ready Mix Co, Fx: (417) B66-1666

Concrete is our Product -- Quality and Service is our Product



Christian County Commission

Invitation to Bid/Request for Proposal

REQUESTED: Invitation to Bid: Annual Contract for Concrete Materials
CONTACT: Christian County Commission

PHONE: (417)582-4300

EMAIL: countycommission@christiancountymo.gov

RETURN BID NO LATER THAN: 8:45am

RETURN BID TO: Christian County Commission
100 West Church Street, Room 100
Ozark, Missouri 65721

The bidder hereby declares understanding, agreement, and certification of compliance to provide the items and/or services, at the prices
quoted, in accordance with all requirements and specifications contained herein and the Terms and Conditions for this proposal. The
bidder further agrees that the language of this RFP shall govern in the event of a conflict with hisfher bid. The bidder further agrees that
upen receipt of an authorized purchase order from the Christian County Commission or when an Agreement for Contract Services is
certified by the Christian County Auditor, a binding contract shall exist between the Bidder and the County of Christian, State of Missouri.

Christian County makntains a list of vendors interested in bidding on products and services for Christian County. It is the vendor's responsibility to update contact information.
Vendors are removed from the list if they are invited ta bid, but do not participate. The Christian County Commission office is not obligated to send invitations to vendaors.
Due to the volume of request and postage costs, the Commission Office does not send bids to all interested vendoes. Christian County fulfills its legal requirements by posting

a notice in the local paper,

Page 1 of 16



(1) SUBMITTAL INSTRUCTIONS:

Please print the due date on the outside of the package and return this entire document with your bid submission. Mark your
sealed envelope “BID DOCUMENTS — DO NOT OPEN”", Sealed bids must be received at the Christian County Commission by the
return date and time. No bid transmitted by fax machine or email will be accepted. Bids are opened in public meetings on the
opening date and time specified above. Any interested persons may attend, Bids must be delivered no later than fifteen (15)
minutes before bid opening time mentioned above. If the Commission office receives a container which is not identifiable as a
bid/proposal, the container will be opened in order to determine the contents. If the contents are determined to be a
bid/proposal, the container will be resealed and the date and time received will be noted on the outside. All bids will remain
sealed until they are opened and read aloud during the Christian County Commission meeting at the specified time. Bids which
are not received in the Commissioner's Office at least 15 minutes prior to bid opening date and time shall be considered late,
regardless of the degree of lateness, and normally will not be presented or opened, except as stated below. At the time fixed
for opening of proposals, the content will be made public for the vendor and other interested persons. Vendors are cautioned
to review their bid very carefully. Any additional information, specifications, drawings, etc. should be attached. Bids should be
signed and dated. It shall be the responsibility of persons submitting bids to acguire the necessary specifications.

(2) LATE BIDS:

Under extraordinary circumstances, the Commission may authorize the opening of a late bid when the bid was turned over to
the physical control of an independent postal or courier service with a promised delivery time prior to the time set for the
opening of bids. The County Commission is not responsible for bids sent to the wrong address, faxed, emailed, or received after
the cut-off date and time. Remember to.address or hand-deliver your bid. Bids will not be accepted by fax or email because we
must have the original signed document. Bidders must consider the postal service or courier time schedules when sending their
bids and provide ample time for delivery, The following guidelines may be utilized to determine the criteria for an extraordinary
circumstance: Christian County offices were closed due to inclement weather conditions, postal or courier services were delayed
due to labor strikes or unforeseen “Acts of God”, or postal or courier services did not meet the delivery time promised to the
vendor. In such case, the vendor must provide written proof that promised delivery time was prior to the time set for the bid
opening. All such decisions are at the sole discretion of the Commission,

(3) Bid Withdrawal:

After the bid opening, a vendor may be permitted to withdraw a bid prior to the award at the sole discretion of the County
Commissioners if there is a verifiable error in the bid and enforcement of the bid would impose an unconscionable hardship on
the vendor. The withdrawal will be considered only after receipt of a written request supporting documentation from the
vendor, Withdrawal shall be the vendor's sole remedy for an error other than the obvious clerical error.

(4) Product Samples:

The Commission may request samples for evaluation purposes. Any samples requested must be provided free of
charge. Samples which are not destroyed by testing will be returned at the vendor’s expense if return of the samples
is stipulated in the vendor’s bid. Samples submitted by a vendor who receives the award may be kept for the duration
of the contract for comparison with shipments received.

(5) ltemization of Proposal:

Vendor must clearly identify in his/her bid and on the pricing worksheet, all components. It is mandatory that vendors submit
with their proposal documents, itemization of all goods and services proposed. The breakdown must be itemized by model/part
number, description of goods or services, and unit cost.
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(6) Minority Business Participation: .

Christian County encourages the participation andu.unllzatmn of minority business enterprises in all projects of the county.
Christian County will provide equitable and fair opportunity to minority businesses to submit bids and proposals and to receive
an award. By responding to this invitation, the vendor agrees that it does not discriminate on the basis of race, religion, creed,
national origin, age, sex or disability, and that it will refrain from any unlawful employment practices.

(7) Communication with County Employees:

Vendors shall not communicate with any county employee regarding this Invitation to bid with the exception of the county
contact written on the first page. Vendors shall ensure that no improper, unethical, or illegal relationships or conflict of interest
exists between vendor, the county, any employee, officer, director, or principal of vendor or the county and any other party.
The county reserves the right to determine the materiality of such relationships, when discovered or disclosed, whether intended
or not. The county also reserves the right to decide at its sole discretion whether disqualification of vendor and/or cancellation
of award shall result. Such disqualification or cancellation shall be without fault or liability to the county.

(8) Collusion:

By submitting a proposal in response to this invitation to bid, vendor and each person signing on behalf of the vendor, certify
under penalty of perjury, that to the best of his/her belief the prices in the proposal were arrived at independently and without
collusion, consultation, communication, or agreement for the purpose of restricting competition as to any matter relating to
such prices with any other vendor, or any other competitor. Unless otherwise required by law, the prices in the bid have not
been knowingly disclosed by vendor, and will not be knowingly disclosed by vendor, prior to opening, directly or indirectly, to
any other vendor or competitor. No attempt has been made or will be made by vendor or any other person associated with this
invitation to bid, partnership, corporation, or entity to submit or not to submit a proposal in response to this bid for the purpose
of restricting competition.

(9) Incurred costs:

The county is not liable for any costs incurred by a vendor in the preparation or production of its proposal or for any work
performed prior to the issuance of a valid contract under Missouri law. Such exemption from liability applies whether such costs
are incurred by vendor or indirectly through vendors agent, employees, assigns or others, whether related or not to vendor.

(10) For Construction Services:

All on site employees of vendors and sub vendors must complete required safety training. Reguired safety training is OSHA 10
training. (A ten (10) hour course in construction safety and health taught by an OSHA approved instructor), or similar program
at least as stringent as OSHA 10 training. For more information contact the Missouri Division of Labor Standards. Christian
County requires documentation showing that the on-site employee/s have completed the reguired training.

(11) Vendor's Personnel Qualifications:

Christian County reserves the right to approve or disapprove the vendor’s personnel providing services for Christian County
Government. Christian County also reserves the right to request replacement of any person assigned to provide services. Unless
the situation regarding the personnel requires immediate replacement, the vendor shall be allowed at least fourteen (14) days
after notification to replace unsatisfactory personnel,

if requested, the vendor shall provide a list of names, social security numbers, and dates of birth for each such personnel who
will be providing services at Christian County buildings. In addition, the vendor must notify Christian County of any additions or
changes to the list. Christian County reserves the right to accept or reject any of the vendor's personnel assigned to the contract
to provide services.
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(12) Discount applicable: -
Vendor will provide information on any quantity discounts that may apply to the equipment or services utilized in developing
their pricing structure. State the length of time the discounts are available post-installation.

(13) Insurance:

The vendor shall understand and agree that Christian County cannot save and hold harmless and or indemnify the vendor or
employees against any liability incurred or arising as a result of any activity of the vendor, or any activity of the vendor’s
employees related to the vendor's performance under the contract. Therefore, the vendor must acguire and maintain adeguate
liability insurance in the form (s) and amount (s) sufficient to protect Christian County, its agencies, its employees, its clients, and
the general public against any such loss, damage and/or expense related to his/her performance under this contract. The vendor
shall take out and maintain during the life of the contract comprehensive general liability insurance which names Christian
County, Missouri and its elected officials and employees as additional named insureds in an amount sufficient to cover the
sovereign immunity limits for public entities as calculated by the Department of Insurance and published annually in the Missouri
Register per section 537.610, RSMo. For the life of the contract, vendor shall maintain comprehensive general liability insurance
coverage for all claims arising out of a single accident or occurrence of at least $3,000,000.00 and for any one person in a single
accident or occurrence of at least $500,000.00 Vendor shall maintain during the life of the contract Workers Compensation
insurance for Vendor's employees coverage that shall meet Missouri statutory limits or 51,000,000 for each accident, whichever
is greater. General and other non-professional liability insurance shall include an endorsement that adds Christian County and
their respective officials and employees as an additional insured. Self-insurance coverage or another alternative risk financing
mechanism may be utilized provided that such coverage is verifiable and irrevocably reliable and Christian County is protected
as an additional insured.

(14) Vendor Liability:

The vendor shall be responsible for any and all personal injury (including death) or property damage as a result of the vendor's
negligence involving any equipment or service provided under the terms and conditions, requirements and specifications of
the contract. In addition, the vendor assumes the obligation to save Christian County, including its agencies, employees, and
assignees, from every expense, liability, or payment arising out of such negligent act. The vendor also agrees to hold Christian
County including its agencies, employees, and assignees, harmless for any negligent act or omission committed by any
subcontractor or other person employed by or under the supervision of the vendor under the terms of the contract. The
vendor shall not be responsible for any injury or damage occurring as a result of any negligent act or omission committed by
Christian County, including its agencies, employees, and assignees.

(15) Business Compliance:

The vendar must be financially sound and must not be operating under the protection of the United States Bankruptcy Code.
The vendor must be in compliance with the laws regarding conducting business in the State of Missouri, The vendor certifies by
signing the signature page of this original document and any amendment signature page(s) that the vendor and any proposed
subcontractors either are presently in compliance with such laws or shall be in compliance with such laws prior to any resulting
contract award. The vendor shall provide documentation of compliance upon request by Christian County. The compliance to
conduct business in the state shall include but may not be limited to:

- Registration of business name. [if applicable)

- Certificate of authority to transact business/certificate of good standing. (if applicable)
- Taxes (e.g, city/county/state/federal)

- State and local certifications (e.g. Professions/occupations/activities)

- Licenses and permits (e.g., city/county license, sales permits)
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- Insurance (e.g., worker's campensation/unemployment compensation)

A
™

(16) Terms and Conditions: '

The vendor is cautioned when submitting pre-printed forms containing terms and conditions or other type material to make
sure such documenits do not contain other terms and conditions which conflict with those of this agreement and its contractual
requirements. The vendor agrees that in the event of conflict between any of the vendor's terms and conditions and those
contained in this agreement, that this agreement shall govern. Taking exception to Christian County terms and conditions may
render a vendor's bid non-responsive and remove it from consideration for award.

Christian County will enter into a one-year agreement.

Christian County has the option of renewing the agreement for two (2) additional one-year periods. This process is accomplished
by a vote of the County Commissioners each year and a letter notifying vendor of the award.

The Commission will give vendor a 30-day written notice prior to the end of the term whether the county has exercised its option
to renew or not.

A binding contract shall consist of: (1) the RFP or invitation to bid, amendments thereto, with RFP bid invitation
changes/additions, (2) the vendor’s proposal and (3) the County Commission’s acceptance of the proposal by “notice of award”
ar by “purchase order”. All Exhibits and'Attachments included in the RFP or bid invitation shall be incorporated into the contract
by reference.

The contract expresses the complete agreement of the parties and performance shall be governed solely by the specifications
and reguirements contained therein,

Any changes to the contract, whether by modification and/or supplementation, must be accomplished by a formal contract
amendment signed and approved by and between the duly authorized representative of the vendor and the County Commission
or by a modified purchase order prior to the effective date of such modification. The vendor expressly and explicitly understands
and agrees that no other method and/or no other document, including correspondence from the County Commission, acts, and
oral communications by or from any person, shall be used or construed as an amendment or modification to the contract.

(17) Employee Bidding/Conflict of Interest:

Vendors who are elected or appointed officials or employees of Christian County or any political subdivision thereof, serving in
an executive or administrative capacity, must comply with sections 105.450 to 105,458, RSMo, regarding conflict of interest. If
the vendor or any owner of the vendor’s organization Is currently an elected or appointed official or an employee of Christian
County or any political subdivision thereof, please provide the following information:

Name and title of the elected or appointed official or employee of Christian County or any Political subdivision,

- What is the percentage of ownership interest in the vendor’s organization held by elected or appointed official or
employee of Christian County or political subdivision thereof?

(18) Independent Contractor:

The vendor is an independent contractor and shall not represent the vendor or the vendor's employees to be employees of
Christian County or an agency of Christian County. The vendor shall assume all legal and financial responsibility for salaries, taxes,
FICA, employee fringe benefits, workers compensation, employee insurance, minimum wage requirements, overtime, etc.
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(19) Substitutions: ,

The vendor shall not substitute any item(s) without the prior written approval of the Christian County Commissioners. In the
event an item becomes unavailable, the vendor shall be responsible for providing a suitable substitute item. The vendor’s failure
to provide an acceptable substitute may result in cancellation or termination of the contract. Any item substitution must be a
replacement of the contracted item with a product of equal or better capabilities and quality, and with equal or lower pricing.
The vendor shall understand that Christian County reserves the right to allow the substitution of any new or different
product/system offered by the vendor. Christian County shall be the final authority as to the acceptability of any proposed
substitution. Any item substitution shall require a formal contract amendment authorized by Christian County Commissioners
prior to Christian County acquiring the substitute item under the contract. The vendor shall not be relieved of substituting a
product in the event of manufacturer discontinuation or other reason simply for reasons of unprofitability to the vendor.

(20) Replacement of Damaged Product:
The vendor shall be responsible for replacing any item received in damaged condition at no cost to Christian County. This
includes all fuel costs for returning non-functional items to the vendor for replacement.

(21) Prices:

The vendor shall submit firm fixed prices on the Pricing Page. All pricing shall be considered firm for the duration of the contract
period. All pricing shall be quoted with all fees included. Vendor's prices must be the lowest offered to any governmental or
commercial consumer, under the same terms and conditions.

(22) Fuel charges:

Fuel charges shall be added into the quote for services. Howaever, if the cost of #2 diesel as reported by the Department of
Energy internet site and recorded as the "Weekly Retail On-Highway Diesel Prices” for the Midwest Region exceeds $3.50 per
gallon, the vendor will charge no more than 1 % % for each 5.10 increase in the recorded cost of fuel above the 53.50 base line.
It is expected, because of the timeliness of the DOE report, the cost of fuel for a prior month shall be used as the basis for a
current month's fuel surcharge assessment. January’s reported diesel cost shall be used to compute any surcharge for February's
services, etc, Vendor agrees that any additional charges related to fuel increases must be agreed upon between vendor and
Christian County before implementation by the vendor.

(23) Description of Product:

The vendor should present a detailed description of the product proposed on the Bid Sheet in response to this Invitation for Bid,
It is the vendor's responsibility to make sure all products proposed are adequately described in order to conduct an evaluation
of the bid. At the time fixed for opening of proposals, the content will be made public for the information of the bidder and
others interested.

(24) Non-Exclusivity:

The Contract is non-exclusive and shall not in any way preclude the County from entering into similar agreements and/or
arrangements to acquire equal or like goods and/or services from other vendors. The County may make multiple awards from a
single solicitation document when such awards are in the best interest of the county.

(25) Billing and Payments:

Invoices will be submitted to Christian County Highway Department, 1106 W Jackson St., Ozark, MO 65721. It is estimated there
are 25 various offices and departments requiring separate billing (if applicable to bid products offered). Vendor shall provide
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the department with invoices and statements of accounts on a monthly basis noting any amounts and invoices past due. Invoices
should be delivered with the materials and packing slip. Payment will be made within 30 days from receipt of an accurate invoice.
Services or goods must be received before payment can be made. The vendor shall submit all reports reqguired herein and a
copy of each invoice as supporting documentation with the monthly statement. Other than the payments and reimbursements
specified above, no other payments or reimbursements shall be made to the vendor for any reason whatsoever including, but
not limited to taxes, shipping charges, insurance, interest, penalties, termination payments, attorney fees, liguidated damages,
etc.

Notwithstanding any other payment provision of the contract, if the vendor fails to perfarm required work or services, fails to
submit reports when due, or is indebted to the United States, Christian County may withhold payment or reject invoices under
the contract.

Final invoices are due no later than thirty (30) calendar days after the expiration of the contract. Christian County shall have no
obligation to pay any invoice submitted after such date. If a request by the vendor for payment or reimbursement is denied,
Christian County shall provide the vendor with written notice of the reason(s) for denial,

If the vendor is overpaid by Christian County, upon official notification by Christian County, the vendor shall provide Christian
County with a check payable as instructed by Christian County in the amount of such overpayment. The vendor shall submit the
overpayment to Christian County at the address specified. The vendor shall agree and understand that Christian County shall be
solely responsible for payment for only those services requested by Christian County.

(26) Return of Goods:
Christian County may cancel any purchase at any time for a full credit.

(27) Management of Materials:

The vendor agrees and understands that as the needs of the county change, the county will notify the vendor of those changes.
If requested by the county, the vendorshall make a corresponding adjustment to the services. The vendor will implement the
requested changes upon notification.

In the event changes occur during the effective period of this contract which are beyond the control of the vendor that
significantly increase or decrease the established cost, the vendor or Christian County may request a corresponding modification
ta the established cost.

With such request, the vendor must provide documentation of the change and must demonstrate how such change affects the
cost. In addition, the vendor shall recommend an adjusted cost accompanied by the resulting calculations. However, the vendor
shall agree and understand that any such reguest must be approved by the Christian County Commissioners.

The decision of the adjustment to the cost by Christian County shall be final and without recourse.

(28) Schedule:

The vendor shall ensure that services are performed in a manner so as to minimize any interference, annoyance, or disruption
to the operations of Christian County.

In the event the vendor does not perform in accordance with the vendor’s agreement, Christian County shall notify the vendor
following determination of such. Vendor shall be responsive ta the needs of Christian County at all times. The vendor shall be
responsible for all permits, fees, and expenses related to the service. The vendor shall disclose to Christian County all information
on sub vendor contracts/agreements, if applicable, including any rebates or incentives offered by sub vendors to the contactor.

(29) Services:

The vendor agrees to provide a detailed description of the services to be provided, including any additional information about
the services on a separate sheet of paper if needed. The vendor will provide an itemization of the amount the vendor will
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charge, the unit of measure for the services, and sp®cific increments and timeframes to submit invoices to the vendor and
receive payments from the vendor, . a

II:'
-
. Ll

(30) Reporting Requirements: '

On a monthly basis, the vendor shall submit a report to Christian County for each County building site, identify the services
provided and the dates of service,

The vendor must maintain financial and accounting records and evidence pertaining to the contract in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. The vendor shall make all records, books, and other documents relevant to the contract available
to Christian County and the Christian County Auditor in an acceptable format and at all reasonable times during the term of the
contract, and for three (3) years from the date of final payment on the contract or the completion of an independent audit,
whichever is later. If any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit, or other actions involving the records has been started before the
expiration of the retention period, the vendor shall retain such records until completion of the action and resolution of all issues
which arise from it. Failure to retain adequate documentation for any service billed may result in recovery of payments for
services not adequately documented.

The vendor shall permit the County Auditor or authorized representatives of Christian County or any other division of
government to have access, for the purpose of auditing or examination, to any of the vendor’'s books, documents, papers,
records, recording receipts and disbursements of any of the funds paid to the vendor. The vendor further agrees that any audit
exception noted by governmental auditors shall not be paid by Christian County and shall be the sole responsibility of the vendor.
However, the vendor shall have the right to contest any such exception by any legal procedure the vendor deems appropriate.
Christian County will pay the vendor all amounts which the vendor may ultimately be held entitled to receive as a result of any
such legal action.

The vendor shall agree and understand that if contract monitoring reveals that an audit is warranted, Christian County reserves
the right to require the vendor to have an audit of financial records, accounting records, and related contract documentation
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards.
Christian County’s determination of the need for the audit shall be final and without recourse.

(31) Liquidated Damages:

The vendor agrees and understands that the provision of the services in accordance with the schedules and requirements stated
herein and in accerdance with the Christian County Commissioner’s approval are considered critical to the efficient operations
of Christian County. Since the amount of actual damages would be difficult to establish in the event the vendor fails to comply
with the schedules and requirements, the vendor shall agree and understand that the amount identified below as liquidated
damages shall be reasonable and fair under the circumstances:

In the event the vendor fails to perform the services, the vendor shall be assessed liquidated damages in the amount of ten
percent (10%) of the price for the services for each twenty-four (24) hour period thereafter in which the identified reguirement
is not completed. If the fault lies with Christian County, no assessment shall be made.

The vendor shall also agree and understand that such liguidated damages shall either be deducted from the vendor’s invoices
pursuant to the contract or paid by the vendor as a direct payment to Christian County at the sole discretion of Christian County.
The vendor shall agree and understand that all assessments of liquidated damages shall be within the discretion of Christian
County and shall be in addition to, not in lieu of, the rights of Christian County to pursue other appropriate remedies,

(32) Excused Performance:

Any failure or delay in performance or payment due to contingencies beyond either party’s reasonable control, including strikes,
riots, terrorist acts, compliance with applicable laws or governmental orders, fires, and acts of God, shall not constitute a breach
of this agreement.

Page 8 of 16



N
L]
(33) Cancelling Service: .
The Christian County Cornmission reserves fhe right to discontinue service at any time by giving a
30-day notice. The vendor shall agtee and understand that the vendor shall terminate the services upon written notification
from Christian County. The decision by the Christian County Commissioners shall be final and without recourse.

(34) Determination for Award:

The award shall be made to the lowest priced and best responsive vendor, Christian County reserves the right to reject any bid
which is determined unacceptable for reasons which may include but are not necessarily limited to: 1) failure of the vendor to
meet mandatory general performance specifications; and/or 2) failure of the vendor to meet mandatory technical specifications;
and/or, 3) receipt of any information, from any source, regarding delivery of unsatisfactory product or service by the vendor
within the past three years. As deemed in its best interests, Christian County reserves the right to clarify any and all portions of
any vendor’s offer.

Agreements signed by Christian County must be signed by at least a majority of the members of the County Commission.
Agreements must be attested by the County Clerk and approved to form by the County Counselor. In addition, the County Auditor
must certify that there is an unencumbered balance available to pay the contract cost.

(35) Protesting bid award:

A bid award protest must be submitted in writing and must be received by the county within ten (10) calendar days after the
date of the award. If the tenth day falls on a Saturday, Sunday or state holiday, the period shall extend to the next business day.
A protest submitted after the ten (10) calendar day period shall not be considered. The written protest should include the
following information: (A} Name, address, and phone number of the protester, (B) Signature of the protester or the protester’'s
representative, (C) Solicitation product, (D) Detailed statement describing the grounds for the protest; and supporting exhibits,
evidence, or documentation to substantiate the claim.

(36) Suspension or debarment of Vendor:

The County Commission may suspend or debar a vendor for cause. The following shall be sufficient cause for suspension or
debarment, The list is not meant to be all inclusive but shall serve as a guideline for vendor discipline and business ethics:
Failure to perform in accordance with the terms, conditions and requirements of a contract/purchase order.

Violating any federal, state or local law, ordinance or regulation in the performance of a contract/purchase order.

Providing false or misleading information on an application, in a bid, or in correspondence to county offices.

Failure to honor a bid for the length of time specified.

Colluding with others to restrain competition. Obtaining information, by whatever means, related to a proposal submitted by a
competitor in response to a request for proposal in order to obtain an unfair advantage during the negotiation process.
Contacting bid evaluators or any other person who may have influence over the award, without authorization from the County
Commission, for the purpose of influencing the award of a contract; or giving gifts, meals, trips or any other thing of value or a
monetary advantage for personal benefit, directly or indirectly, to an employee of the county or to any evaluator of
bids/proposals.

The vendor may appeal suspension or debarment by submitting a written request to the County Commission within fifteen (15)
calendar days after receipt of the formal notice. The vendor must provide specific evidence and reasons why the suspension or
debarment is not necessary. On the basis of this information, the suspension may be modified, rescinded, or affirmed. The
decision shall be final and mailed to all parties.
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{37} RRICING-SHEET- PLEASE SEE BID TABLE BELOW

Product/Service

Size/Type

Frequency

Price (includes all fees)
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